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August 5, 1999 

Florida Public Service Commission 
Division of Records and Reporting 
2540 Shumard Oak Blvd. 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850 

RE: Application of NEXTLINK Long Distance Services, Inc. for Authority to Provide 
Interexchange Telecommunications Service 

Dear Sir or Madam: 

NEXTLINK Long Distance Services, Inc., by its attorneys, presents an original and six 
(6)  copies of this cover letter and the enclosed Application Form, including an initial tariff, This 
packet also includes a $250 filing fee. 



0 
STATE OF FLORIDA 

0 
Commissioners: DIVISION OF RECORDS & REPORTING 

JOE GARCIA, CHAIRMAN 
J. TERRY DEASON DIRECTOR 

JULIA L. JOHNSON 
E. LEON JACOBS, JR. 

BLANCA S. BAYO 

SUSAN F. CLARK (850) 413-6770 

#hfiric 6ecbice Commis’e’ion 

August 19,1999 

Shelby Hall, Attorney 
Davis Wright Tremaine LLP 
2600 Century Square 
1501 Fourth Avenue 
Seattle, Washington 981 01 -1 688 

Re: Docket No. 991 154-TI 

Dear Mr. Hall: 

This will acknowledge receipt of an application for certificate to provide 
interexchange telecommunications service by NEXTLINK Long Distance Services, Inc., 
which was filed with this office on August 19, 1999 and assigned the above-referenced 
docket number. Appropriate staff members will be advised. 

Mediation may be available to resolve any dispute in this docket. If mediation is 
conducted, it does not affect a substantially interested person’s right to an administrative 
hearing. For more information, contact the Office of General Counsel at (850) 41 3-6078 
or FAX (850) 41 3-6079. 

Please make notes as well that Commission Rule 25-22.005(7), F.A.C., requires 
certificated companies to notify the Commission of any changes in name, telephone, 
address, or contact person. Should your application be granted by the Commission, you 
will be expected to comply with this rule by advising us of any changes as they occur. 

Division of Records and Reporting 
Florida Public Service Commission 

CAPITAL CIRCLE OFFICE CENTER 2540 SHUElARD OAK BOULEVARD TALLAHASSEE, FL 32399-0850 
An Affirmative Action/Equal Opportunity Employer Internet E-mail CONTACT@PSC.STATE.FL.US 
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August 5, 1999 

Florida Public Service Commission 
Division of Records and Reporting 
2540 Shumard Oak Blvd. 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850 

RE: Application of NEXTLINK Long Distance Services, Inc. for Authority to Provide 
Interexchange Telecommunications Service 

Dear Sir or Madam: 

NEXTLINK Long Distance Services, Inc., by its attorneys, presents an original and six 
(6)  copies of this cover letter and the enclosed Application Form, including an initial tariff. This 
packet also includes a $250 filing fee. 

An extra copy of this filing is enclosed to be date-stamped and returned to us in the self- 
addressed, postage paid envelope enclosed. If you have any questions regarding this filing, 
please contact the undersigned. 

Respectfully submitted, 

DAVIS WRIGHT TREMAINE LLP 

Shelley Hall / 

Seattle 



** FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION ** 

DIVISION OF TELECOMMUNICATIONS 
BUREAU OF CERTIFICATION AND SERVICE EVALUATION 

Application Form for Authority to Provide 
lnterexchange Telecommunications Service 
Between Points Within the State of Florida 

Instructions 

+ This form is used as an application for an original certificate and for approval of 
assignment or transfer of an existing certificate. In the case of an assignment or 
transfer, the information provided shall be for the assignee or transferee (See 
Appendix A). 

+ Print or TvDe all responses to each item requested in the application and 
appendices. If an item is not applicable, please explain why. 

+ Use a separate sheet for each answer which will not fit the allotted space. 

+ Once completed, submit the original and six (6) copies of this form along with a 
non-refundable application fee of $250.00 to: 

Florida Public Service Commission 
Division of Records and Reporting 
2540 Shumard Oak Blvd. 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850 
(850) 41 3-6770 

Note: No filing fee is required for an assignment or transfer of an existing 
certificate to another certificated company. 

+ If you have questions about completing the form, contact: 

Florida Public Service Commission 
Division of Telecommunications 
Bureau of Certification and Service Evaluation 
2540 Shumard Oak Blvd. 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850 
(850) 41 3-6600 
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1. This is an application for J (check one): 

( x ) Original certificate (new company). 

( ) Approval of transfer of existing certificate: 
Example, a certificated company purchases an existing certificated 
company and desires to retain the authority of both certificates. 

( ) Approval of assignment of existing certificate: 
Example, a non-certificated company purchases an existing company 
and desires to retain the certificate of authority rather than apply for a 
new certificate. 

( ) Approval of transfer of control: 
Example, a company purchases 51% of a certificated company. The 
Commission must approve the new controlling entity. 

2. Name of company: 

NEXTLINK Lonq Distance Services, Inc. 

3. Name under which applicant will do business (fictitious name, etc.): 

NEXTLINK Long Distance Services, Inc. 

4. Official mailing address (including street name & number, post office box, city, 
state, zip code): 

500 108th Ave. NE, Ste. 2200 

Bellevue, WA 98004 

5. Florida address (including street name & number, post office box, city, state, zip 
code): 

Registered - Agent: Corporation Service Company 

1201 Hays Street, Tallahassee, FL 32301 

6. Select type of business your company will be conducting J (check all that 
apply): 

(X ) Facilities-based carrier - company owns and operates or plans to own 
and operate telecommunications switches and transmission facilities in 
Florida. 
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(X)  Operator Service Provider - company provides or plans to provide 
alternative operator services for IXCs; or toll operator services to call 
aggregator locations; or clearing house services to bill such calls. 

(X)  Reseller - company has or plans to have one or more switches but 
primarily leases the transmission facilities of other carriers. Bills its own 
customer base for services used. 

( ) Switchless Rebiller - company has no switch or transmission facilities 
but may have a billing computer. Aggregates traffic to obtain bulk 
discounts from underlying carrier. Rebills end users at a rate above its 
discount but generally below the rate end users would pay for 
unaggregated traffic. 

( ) Multi-Location Discount Aggregator - company contracts with 
unaffiliated entities to obtain bulWvolume discounts under multi-location 
discount plans from certain underlying carriers, then offers resold service 
by enrolling unaffiliated customers. 

(X)  Prepaid Debit Card Provider - any person or entity that purchases 800 
access from an underlying carrier or unaffiliated entity for use with 
prepaid debit card service and/or encodes the cards with personal 
identification numbers. 

7. Structure of organization: 

( ) Individual 
(X) Foreign Corporation 
( ) General Partnership 

( ) Corporation 
( ) Foreign Partnership 
( ) Limited Partnership 

( ) Other 

8. If individual, provide: NOT APPLICABLE 

Name: 

Title: 

Address: 

CitylStatelZip: 

Telephone No.: Fax No.: 

Internet E-Mail Address: 

Internet We bsi te Address: 
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9. If incorporated in Florida, provide proof of authority to operate in Florida: NOT 
APPLICABLE 

(a) The Florida Secretary of State Corporate Registration number: 

I O .  If foreign corporation, provide proof of authority to operate in Florida: 

(a) The Florida Secretary of State Corporate Registration number: 

F99000003166 PLEASE SEE SUPPLEMENT FOR PROOF OF 
AUTHORITY. 

11. If usinq fictitious name-d/b/a, provide proof of compliance with fictitious name 
statute (Chapter 865.09, FS) to operate in Florida: NOT APPLICABLE 

(a) The Florida Secretary of State fictitious name registration number: 

12. If a limited liabilitv partnership, provide proof of registration to operate in 
Florida: NOT APPLICABLE 

(a) The Florida Secretary of State registration number: 

13. If a partnership, provide name, title and address of all partners and a copy of 
the partnership agreement. NOT APPLICABLE 

Name: 

Telephone No.: Fax No.: 

Internet E-Mail Address: 

Internet Website Address: 

14. If a foreign limited partnership, provide proof of compliance with the foreign 
limited partnership statute (Chapter 620.169, FS), if applicable. NOT 
APPLICABLE. 

(a) The Florida registration number: 
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15. 

16. 

Provide F.E.I. Number (if applicable): 91-1957034 

Provide the following (if applicable): 

(a) Will the name of your company appear on the bill for your services? 

(x) Yes ( ) No 

(b) 

Name: 

If not, who will bill for your services? NOT APPLICABLE 

Title: 

Address: 

C ity/State/Zi p : 

Telephone No.: Fax No.: 

(c) How is this information. provided? 

APPLICANT WILL BILL CUSTOMERS DIRECTLY 

17. Who will receive the bills for your service? 

( ) Residential Customers (X) Business Customers 
( ) PATs providers ( ) PATs station end-users 
( ) Hotels & motels ( ) Hotel & motel guests 
( ) Universities ( ) Universities dormitory 

residents 
( ) Other: (specify:) 

18. Who will serve as liaison to the Commission with regard to the following? 

(a) The application: 

Title: Counsel for NEXTLINK Loncr Distance Services, Inc. 

Address: DAVIS WRIGHT TREMAINE LLP, 2600 Century Square, 1501 
Fourth Avenue 

CitylStatelZip: Seattle, WA 98101 -1688 
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Telephone No.: (206) 622-3150 Fax No.: (206) 628-7699 

Internet E-Mail Address: shelleyhall@dwt.com 

Internet Website Address: 

(b) Official point of contact for the ongoing operations of the companv: 

Name: Doug Kinkoph 

NEXTLINK Long Distance Services, Inc. 

Address: Two Easton Oval, Ste. 300 

City/State/Zip: Columbus, Ohio 43219 

Telephone No.: (614) 629-3200 Fax No.: (614) 629-3201 

Internet E-Mail Address: dkinkoph@nextlink.net 

Internet We bsite Address: 

(c) C o m D I a i n t s/ I n a u i r i es from custom e rs : 

Name: Applicant will handle complaints and inquiries through a toll-free 
number listed below. 

Address: 

City/State/Zi p: 

Telephone No.: 1 (800) 900-6398 Fax No.: 

Internet E-Mail Address: 

Internet We bsite Address: 

19. List the states in which the applicant: 

(a) has operated as an interexchange telecommunications company. 

Applicant has not operated as an interexchange telecommunications 
company in any state. 
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(b) has applications pending to be certificated as an interexchange 
telecommunications company. 

Applicant has applications pending in Louisiana. Kentuckv, Kansas, 
Vermont, Oklahoma, Alaska and Oregon. 

(c) is certificated to operate as an interexchange telecommunications 
company. 

Applicant is certified to operate as an interexchange telecommunicatons 
companv in Arkansas, Montana and Rhode Island. 

(d) has been denied authority to operate as an interexchange 
telecommunications company and the circumstances involved. 

Applicant has not been denied authoritv in any state. 

(e) has had regulatory penalties imposed for violations of 
telecommunications statutes and the circumstances involved. 

Applicant has not had any regulatorv penalties imposed. 

(9 has been involved in civil court proceedings with an interexchange 
carrier, local exchange company or other telecommunications entity, and 
the circumstances involved. 

Applicant has not been involved in civil court proceedings with an 
interexchange carrier local exchange company or other 
telecommunications entitv. 

20. Indicate if any of the officers, directors, or any of the ten largest stockholders 
have previously been: 

(a) adjudged bankrupt, mentally incompetent, or found guilty of any felony or 
of any crime, or whether such actions may result from pending 
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proceedings. If so, please exriain. 

None of the officers or directors of applicant have been adjudged 
bankrupt, mentally incompetent or found guilty of any felony or of any 

(b) an officer, director, partner or stockholder in any other Florida certificated 
telephone company. If yes, give name of company and relationship. If no 
longer associated with company, give reason whv not. 

Yes, officers and directors of applicant also are officers and directors 
NEXTLINK Florida, Inc. NEXTLINK Communications, Inc. whollv owns 
both NEXTLINK Florida, Inc. and applicant. 

21. The applicant will provide the following interexchange carrier services J (check 
all that apply): 

(a) MTS with distance sensitive per minute rates 

Method of access is FGA 
Method of access is FGB 
Method of access is FGD 
Method of access is 800 

(b) MTS with route specific rates per minute 

Method of access is FGA 
Method of access is FGB 
Method of access is FGD 
Method of access is 800 

(c> x MTS with statewide flat rates per minute (i.e. not 
distance sensi tive) 

Method of access is FGA 
Method of access is FGB 
Method of access is FGD 
Method of access is 800 

X 

(d) MTS for pay telephone service providers 
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(e) Block-of-time calling plan (Reach Out Florida, Ring 
America, etc.). 

(9 x 800 service (toll free) 

(9) x WATS type service (bulk or volume discount) 

X 
X 

Method of access is via dedicated facilities 
Method of access is via switched facilities 

Private line services (Channel Services) 
(For ex. 1.544 mbs., DS-3, etc.) 

(h) x 

(0 x Travel service 

Method of access is 950 
Method of access is 800 X 

c i )  900 service 

(k) x Operator services 

X Available to presubscribed customers 
X Available to non presubscribed customers 

(for example, to patrons of hotels, students in 
universities, patients in hospitals). 
Available to inmates 

I. Services included are: 

X Station assistance 
X Person-to-person assistance 
X Directory assistance 

Operator verify and interrupt 
X Conference ca I I i ng 

22. Submit the proposed tariff under which the company plans to 
begin operation. Use the format required by Commission Rule 
25-24.485 (example enclosed). SEE SUPPLEMENT FOR 
TARIFF. 

23. Submit the following: 

A. Financial capability. SEE ATTACHED SUPPLEMENT. 

The application should contain the applicant's audited 
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financial statements for the most recent 3 years. If the applicant 
does not have audited financial statements, it shall so be 
stated. 

The unaudited financial statements should be signed by the 
applicant's chief executive officer and chief financial officer 
affirming that the financial statements are true and correct and 
should include: 

1. the balance sheet; 

2. income statement; and 

3. statement of retained earnings. 

NOTE: This documentation may include, but is not limited to, 
financial statements, a projected profit and loss Statement, credit 
references, credit bureau reports, and descriptions of business 
relationships with financial institutions. 

Further, the following (which includes supporting documentation) should 
be provided: 

1, A written explanation that the applicant has sufficient financial 
capability to provide the requested service in the geographic area 
proposed to be served. 

2. A written explanation that the applicant has sufficient financial 
capability to maintain the requested service. 

3. A written explanation that the applicant has sufficient financial 
capability to meet its lease or ownership obligations. 

B. 
the company that would indicate sufficient managerial experiences of 
each. SEE ATTACHED SUPPLEMENT. 

Managerial capability; give resumes of employees/officers of 

C. 
company that would indicate sufficient technical experiences or indicate 
what company has been contracted to conduct technical maintenance. 
SEE ATTACHED SUPPLEMENT. 

Technical capability; give resumes of employees/officers of the 
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** APPLICANT ACKNOWLEDGMENT STATEMENT ** 

1. REGULATORY ASSESSMENT FEE: I understand that all telephone 
companies must pay a regulatory assessment fee in the amount of .I 5 of one percent 
of its gross operating revenue derived from intrastate business. Regardless of the 
gross operating revenue of a company, a minimum annual assessment fee of $50 is 
required. 

2. 
a gross receipts tax of two and one-half percent on all intra and interstate business. 

GROSS RECEIPTS TAX: I understand that all telephone companies must pay 

3. 
and interstate revenues. 

SALES TAX: I understand that a seven percent sales tax must be paid on intra 

4. 
$250.00 must be submitted with the application. 

APPLICATION FEE: I understand that a non-refundable application fee of 

UTI LlTY OFF1 CIAL: 

s ig'n &fu re C L -  Date 
R. Gerard Salemme 
Title: Sr. Vice President, External Affairs 

And Industry Relations 

17- 7-30-94 
Telephone No. 

Address: 500 108th Ave. NE, Ste. 2200 
Fax No. 

Bellevue, WA 98004 

ATTACHMENTS: 

A - CERTIFICATE SALE, TRANSFER, OR ASSIGNMENT STATEMENT 
B - CUSTOMER DEPOSITS AND ADVANCE PAYMENTS 
C - CURRENT FLORIDA INTRASTATE NETWORK 
D - AFFIDAVIT 
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** APPENDIX A ** 

CERTIFICATE TRANSFER, OR ASSIGNMENT STATEMENT 

I, (Name) NOT APPLICABLE 

(Title) of 

(Name of Company) 

and current holder of Florida Public Service Commission Certificate Number 
# 
petitioner's request for a: 

, have reviewed this application and join in the 

( ) transfer 

( ) assignment 

of the above-mentioned certificate. 

UTILITY OFFICIAL 

Signa tu re Date 

Title Telephone No. 

Address: 
Fax No. 
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** APPENDIX B ** 

CUSTOMER DEPOSITS AND ADVANCE PAYMENTS 

A statement of how the Commission can be assured of the security of the 
customer's deposits and advance payments may be provided in one of 
the following ways (applicant, please .I check one): 

( X ) The applicant will not collect deposits nor will 
it collect payments for service more than one month 
in advance. 

(-) The applicant intends to collect deposits 
and/or advance payments for more than one 
month's service and will file and maintain a surety 
bond with the Commission in an amount equal to 
the current balance of deposits and advance 
payments in excess of one month. (The bond must 
accompany the application.) Applicant is 
submitting a $5,000 bond. 

UTI L I TY 0 F F I C I AL 

7 -30 - w 
Sidnature: R. Gerard Salemme Date 
Sr. Vice President, External Affairs and Industry Relations 
Title Telephone No. 

Address: 500 108th Ave., NE, Ste. 2200 

Bellevue, WA 98004 
Fax No. 
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. 

** APPENDIX C ** 

CURRENT FLORIDA INTRASTATE SERVICES 

Applicant has ( 
telecommunications in Florida. 

) or has not (X ) previously provided intrastate 

If the answer is has, fully describe the following: 

a) What services have been provided and when did these services begin? 
NOT APPLICABLE 

b) 
discontinued? 

If the services are not currently offered, when were they 

NOT APPLICABLE 

UTI L I TY 0 F I C I AL 

/ 3r -30 - s q  . S ig datu re" Date 
R. Gerard Salemme 
Title: Sr. Vice President, External Affairs 

and Industry Relations 
Telephone No. 

Address: 500 108th Ave., NE, Ste. 2200 

Bellevue, WA 98004 
Fax No. 
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** APPENDIX D ** 

AFFIDAVIT 

By my signature below, I, the undersigned officer, attest to the accuracy of 
the information contained in this application and attached documents and that the 
applicant has the technical expertise, managerial ability, and financial capability to 
provide alternative local exchange company service in the State of Florida. I have read 
the foregoing and declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, the information 
is true and correct. I attest that I have the authority to sign on behalf of my company 
and agree to comply, now and in the future, with all applicable Commission rules and 
orders. 

Further, I am aware that, pursuant to Chapter 837.06, Florida Statutes, 
"Whoever knowingly makes a false statement in writing with the intent to 
mislead a public servant in the performance of his official duty shall be guilty of 
a misdemeanor of the second degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 and 
s. 775.083." 

UTI L ITY 0 FF I C IAL 

/ -3 -30 - s9 
Date 

R. Gerard Salemme 
Title: Sr. Vice President, External Affairs Telephone No. 

and Industry Relations 

Address: 500 108th Ave., NE, Ste. 2200 

Bellevue, WA 98004 
Fax No. 

15 

f:\docs\38936\149\Long Distance CertAFlorida App.doc 



* 

BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA 

BUREAU OF CERTIFICATION AND SERVICE EVALUATION 

In the Matter of ) 
) 

Long Distance Services, Inc. for a ) 
Application of NEXTLINK ) Docket No. 

Certificate of Authority to Offer ) SUPPLEMENT TO 
Interexchange Telecommunications ) APPLICATION 
Services in the State of Florida 1 

SUPPLEMENT TO APPLICATION OF NEXTLINK LONG DISTANCE SERVICES 
FOR A CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY 

NEXTLINK Long Distance Services, Inc. (“Applicant”), a Washington corporation 

wholly owned by NEXTLINK Communications, Inc. (“NEXTLINK Communications”) hereby 

submits this Supplemental Application to the Florida Public Service Commission 

(“Commission”) for a Certificate of Authority to operate as a Telecommunications Services 

Provider offering facilities-based and resold interexchange service throughout Florida. In 

support of this Application, the following information is provided: 

1. ORGANIZATION AND OWNERSHIP OF APPLICANT 

NEXTLINK Communications is a telecommunications company founded in 1994 to 

provide local, long distance and enhanced communications services. NEXTLINK 

Communications maintains its principal place of business at 500 10Sth Ave. N.E., Suite 2200, 

Bellevue, Washington 98004. NEXTLINK Communications is controlled by Eagle River 

Investments, L.L.C., which in turn is majority owned and controlled by Craig 0. McCaw, a 

A copy of NEXTLINK Communication’s Articles of Incorporation is attached as Exhibit A. 

F:\docsU8936\149\Long Distance Certs\Florida Supplement.doc 
Seattle 



leader and pioneer in the telecommunications industry. 

Applicant is a corporation organized under the laws of the State of Washington,2 and is 

also headquartered at 500 10Sth Ave. N.E., Suite 2200, Bellevue, Washington 98004. Applicant 

is a wholly owned subsidiary of NEXTLINK Communications. 

2. DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES 

Applicant intends to operate as a provider of resold and facilities-based long distance 

services throughout the state of Florida. Applicant also intends to provide optional pre-paid 

calling cards in addition to its regular service. Initially, all operator assisted calls will be 

contracted to third parties. A grant of a Certificate of Authority to the Applicant will benefit the 

citizens of Florida and the public interest generally by giving customers a source from which to 

obtain competitive, reliable, and efficient telecommunications services. 

3. MANAGERIAL AND TECHNICAL QUALIFICATIONS 

The NEXTLINK Communications companies possess the technical and managerial 

qualifications required to provide telecommunications services throughout the State of Florida. 

NEXTLINK Communications, through its operating subsidiaries, is certified to provide local and 

long distance telecommunications services in numerous  state^.^ NEXTLINK Communications 

already operates 26 facilities-based SONET-based fiber optic networks providing local dialtone 

and long distance services in 4 1 markets in 14 states. The NEXTLINK Communications 

A copy of NEXTLINK Long Distance’s Articles of Incorporation and its Certificate of 
Authority to transact business in Florida are attached as Exhibit B. 

These states are Arizona, California, Colorado, Delaware, Florida, Georgia, Illinois, Indiana, 
Maryland, Michigan, Missouri, Nevada, New Jersey, New York, North Carolina, Ohio, 
Pennsylvania, Tennessee, Texas, Utah, Virginia, Washington, Washington D.C. and Wisconsin. 
Local certification has been obtained in Indiana. Long distance certification has been obtained in 
Alabama, New Hampshire, New Mexico, Oregon and West Virginia. Local and long distance 
certification is pending in Mississippi. NEXTLINK Communications has never been denied 
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companies are managed by an able team of officers who have many years of combined 

experience in the telephony field.4 This successful operational experience is evidence of 

NEXTLINK’S technical and managerial capability to deliver the services discussed above in a 

fashion that is satisfactory to consumers. 

4. FINANCIAL QUALIFICATIONS 

The NEXTLINK Communications companies also possess adequate financial resources 

to provide the proposed services. The company is well financed and has sufficient  asset^.^ As a 

wholly owned subsidiary of NEXTLINK Communications, the Applicant will have the financial 

resources of its parent company available to it. 

5. INITIAL TARIFF 

Applicant’s initial tariff is attached as Exhibit E. 

6. DEPOSITS/BOND 

Applicants may require some customer deposits and, therefore, is submitting a $5,000 

bond as requested by the Commission. 

7. CONCLUSION 

In light of the foregoing, Applicant respectfully submits that the public interest, 

convenience and necessity would be served by a grant of this Application for a Certificate of 

Authority to Provide Interexchange Telecommunications Service throughout the State of Florida. 

authority to offer service in any state. 

These officers will ultimately be responsible for all Florida operations and may be reached 
through Applicant’s headquarters. 
’NEXTLINK Communication’s Form lOQ for the quarterly period ending September 30, 1998 
and its 1 OKSB for the fiscal year ended December 3 1, 1997 are attached as Exhibit D. 

Brief Biographies of the officers of NEXTLINK Communications are attached as Exhibit C. 
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. 
DATED this 4 day of #hz~,45%', 1999. 

Respectfully submitted, 

NEXTLINK COMMUNICATIONS, INC. 
NEXTLINK LONG DISTANCE SERVICES, INC. 

By: 
Shelley Hall 
DAVIS WRIGHT TREMAINE LLP 
2600 Century Square 
1501 4th Avenue 
Seattle, Washington 98 101 -1 688 

Counsel for NEXTLINK Communications Companies 
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. 
1 

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA 1 
1 

VERIFICATION 

R. Gerard Salemme, being first duly sworn under oath, states that he is Senior Vice 
President, External Affairs and Industry Relations of NEXTLINK Long Distance Services, Inc., 
that he has read the foregoing Application and that the matters stated therein are true to the best 
of his knowledge and belief. 

SUBSCRIBED and SWORN 
to before me this 30$" day 
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CERTIFICATE OX' INCORPORATION 

OF 

NEW NEXTLNKCOMMUNICATIONS, INC. 

Pursuant to 1 102 af thc General Corpordtion Law of Dclawim, cht mxlsrsigned docs 
hereby submit this Certificate of Incopa t ion  for the purpose of foming a busin- corporatioa 

i .  Name. 'Ihe name ofthc corporation is: 

NEW N E X n M K  COMMUNICATIONS, MC. 

New "K Communications, Inc;, is rcfcmd to as thc "Corporation" hereafter in 
this Mificate of Tnwrpordioh 

2. Purpow. rile w e  of ttrc business or pupcue to k waductcd or 
promokd by the Corporation is to cngage in any lawful sct or activity for which corporations may 
k acganizcd under the Genml clirpnition Law of k l a w i i .  

3. Shara. The Corporation shall have authority to issuc OAC Hundred Fifty- 
Four Million Four IIwdrcd Sixty-Seven Thousand Six Hundrcd (1 54,467,600) shares of 
common stock (the "Commoii Stock"), which shall k divided into two dasscs, One Hundred 
'Tea Million Threc~I1undrc.d Thirty.Faur T h o d  (1 10,334,000) shares of Class A Common 
Stock, parvdue $0.02 per share (the "Clast A Common Stock"), and Forty-Four Million One 
Hmdred 'Rtirty-Thrce Thousand Six Hundred (44,133,600) shares of Class B Common Stock, 
par valuc $0.02 per share (&e "Class B Common Stock"). The C o p d o n  shd1 have authority 
tu issue Twenty-Five Million (ZS,OOO,OOO) sh;uss of p d d  stock, par vdue S O 1  per shvc 
(tbc "PreferTed Stock?. 

Thc Class A and Class I3 &"on Stock arc mtitlcd to votc on all m&n which come 
bcforc thc rWhl9rs. S u b j a  to tbc d- voting pow hucaftcr d e & i  in this 
pangraph 3, all Stock dull vote bgcthcr as a single clus. Foch ohyr of  Class A 
Commoa Stockshallhave onc(1) vote and each ShareofClasoB Comnron Stwkshallhavc tcn 
(lo) votes on all n a k s  M which h a l b  of Stock ut cntitlcd to v a k  F A  &art of 
Class 8 Common Stock may bc convcd,  ul any time and at thc option of the holder, krto onc 
sharr of Class A Common Stock. Each share of Class R Common Stock may also he ccrnverkd, 
at the option of the Corporation as dctmnined in the sole discdon of its B o d  of Directors, 
into om rhan: of Class A COmmon Stock at my time such Class B Common Stock is 

STATE OF DELAWARE 
SECRETARY OF STAlZ 

DIVISION OF CVWRATIONS 
F I U D  09:OO AN 05/18/1998 

981190547 - 2898326 
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uwfcrrcd, ot is prcmlcd to dit Company for Wmsfct on the Coorptiy’s rrwds by the holder 
oC such CLass B Common Stock, whether such trvLsfcr rcoults h m  a ~ ~ t ~ ~ ~ u r t l  obligation of 
the hulder, by opcrrtion of  law, by I c h i y c  in contrnl or the huldcr, by ccnranimtclry disposition 
or gifl, or fur uny other rtuon. 

kkcepl with regard to thc differential voting power hertinbefore dercribcd in this 
pangraph 3, thc Class A Common Stodc and thc Class B Common Stock shall umy identid 
c h a ~ ~ h i s t i c s ,  riAhtf prcfcrcnces, and Imitation. including but not ILPitcd to prlicipotiny equally 
in any dividends when d os d c c l d  by the Directan aut of funds lawfully available thedor and 
in any distribution rrsulting from a liquidation or &stxibution of assew whether voluntjry or 
involuwy, in each c w  subject to miy prcfcrtnthl rights ~Irauted to any series of Pnfkrmd Stock 
hat m y  be then out.aanding. 

Shares of R c f d  Stock of the Carpomtion may bc issued from time to timL in one 
O r  mort clarscs CK scrier, each uf which class or scricv shall have such distinctive &sibpation or 
Ijllr: I L ) ~  shall k 5x4 by thc Uoard of Direcbrs of th Corpararion (the * B d  of Dirccton”) *and 
m r d d  in a catificatc of Desigmtioits adoptl and filed iu’ rqukod by 3; 151 uf the Cicaual 
C a p o d o n  h w  of WWEIK prior to the issusnce of any shims them€ Each such d i u s  or sriw 
of Referred Stock shall havc such voting powersa full or limitcd, or no voting powcn, and such 
pnfcfinccf jad d a t i v e  pr l i c ipa t i ry ,  option or olher qxcid rights and such qdit idoru,  
IimiUhms or restrictions rhcrebf‘, as .hull be swcd in such rzstrldon or wsoludo~~  pmviding for 
thc irsuc of such class Or series of Prcfcrrcd Stock as may be adopted &am time to time by the 
W Of Dimlon prior TD the i s s u ~ c e  ofuny sham rhcreaf p w w t  to thc authority h e b y  
cxprcssly vested in it, dl in aceordancc with the low of the Statc of Uclowarc. 

statute, thc: bylaws of thc Cbrpomtioo nuy be mndc, alutd, amended or rcpulcd by the 
rrockholdm or by a mjority ofthc cntire Hoad of Dimton. 

4. Byluwr. In € i”ance  a d  not in limiution of the p o w m  c d c m d  by 

I 



State of Delaware 
Office of the Secretary of State PAGE 1 

I, EDWARD J. FREEL, SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF 

DELAWARE, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THE ATTACHED IS A TRUE AND CORRECT 
,,,,?:,,.:. A.-- 

COPY OF THE CERTIFICATE OF INCORPOSTION OF IINEW NEXTLINK . , '. 
. I  

COMMUNICATIONS, .,INC. 'I, 
I *  

bAY OF MAY, A.D. .1998', 

.a. , I 

4 

FILED'IN THIS OFFICE ON THE EIGHTEENTH 
. L - I (  

AT 9 O'CLOCK A.M. 

2898326 8100 

981215125 

Edward J. Freel, Secreta y of State 

AUTHENTICATION: 9 1 19 87 0 



Name 

R Bruce Easter, .Ira 

Address 

NEXTLINK Commuoic~tiocu, Inc 
1SS 108th Avenue NE 
Stu 810 
BcUevus, W A  9%04 

The tcrm of& initial directors shall bc until the first m u d  mccting of the stockholdcn or 
until their sucasson arc elected and qualified, unlcss tcmowd in iscordmcc with the provisions of 
the Bylaws. !%doas of dirccton need not bs by w3ten bal!nt 

9. l n c o i p " r .  'lhe m e  iind mailing addrrrs ofthe incorporator arc os 
follows: 

. ( i ~ g  F. A h s  

.Davis Wright 'iicmoinc 

1 SO1 Fourth Avmue 
2tToo CC~ltury squprc 

S C ~ C ,  WA 98101-1688 

. 10. 1ndcmnificr;tioa. 

(a) *I& Corporjtion shall indemnify to the fullest extcnt permitted under aud in 
accordance with the laws of thc Statc o f  Iklawm any pcrson who was or is a party or is threatened 
to be lILadc a parry to MY thrwted, pending or completed uction. suit or proceeding, whetbcr 

ivc or investigative by m n  of the h t  that hc OT shc is or was a civil, crimid, 
direcror, oficer, employe or agent of thc Corprjtion, or is or wns scrving at &e request of LIE 
Corpontion as a dinctor, of ice ,  truslee, ~ I o y c s  or pgcnt of' or in any other cap3city with 
anothcr corpwdon, parlncrship, joint vcnture, trust or other entaprise, q b t  c l q ~ p ~ u  (including 
attorneys' fees arrd c0s1.Q~ judgmsnts, fine a d  oorow~l~ p i J  in ucittsmcnt actually and reawnably 
hcumcl by him or her in connection with such a d 0 4  suit or pmccding ifhc or she acted in gcsod 
Mth and iaa"she orshe ttwxuibly Waved cob in or not opposcd~o thc best intulcm of 
Lhc corporation, aad, with nspcct tu any aiminal action or pr-diag, had no " a b l e  w s c  to 
helieve his c o n k t  was unlawf?u. 

. .  

(b) kpcnscp i n c d  in ddendhg a civil or vi& action, suit or proceeding 
zhell (in thc casc of any action, wit or proccedln~ against a dkctor of thc Cnrporalio~$ or may (in 
the c'psc of uny d o n ,  suit or pmcceding +, an a€€icct, trustee, cmployee or agcnt) be paid by 
the Carpontion in adv;ulce of thr final disposition of such d o n ,  suit or pmcaeding as outhodzcd 

PWC 3 - CERTFICATE OF INCOWOIWTTON 

I 



by thc Board of Directors upon rcceipt of an undertaking by nr on bcldf of tho irrdemnilid p o n  
to repay such mount if it shall ultimately be d c t w n i d  that hc or Khc is not atitled to k 
indemniGul by the Corporation as authorid in this paragraph 10. 

(c) The iiidnnaification ad other rights set fortlr h this priagrdph 10 shall not 
be cxclu.ivr: of any provisions with rcspca thccta in the hylaws or my othcr conlmct or agrwmcnt 
bet- the Corporation and any oficer, director, aploycr: or agent of the Carpomtian. 

(d) Neither thc amendment nor rrpeal of din paragmph LO, subparagraph (a), 
(b) or (c), nor the adoption of any provision of this Certificate of Incorporation hconristent with 
this paragmph 10, " i p p h  (A), (b) or (c), sM1 climimk or d u c e  the cffcct of this pugrrtph 
1% s & ~ g r z p t J  (a), @} a d  (cj, in rwpcc~ of auy matter o c c d n g  belore svch Pmcndmcn; 
tcpcal Or adoption ofan inconsistent provision or in m i t  of any caue of action, suit or claim 
rJatky to any such matter which WUW have givcn ntc to a tight of inddfrcation OT right to 
r e e i v r  expenses pursuant to this FYsgraph 10, subpansnph (a), @) or (c). if such provision had 
uot  CUI YO umonJtxl01 r + d  or if a provision incclnsiismt lhcrrwith had not been so adopted. 

11. Limitation of Director Liability. A d k t o r  shall have no liability w tllc 
corporation or its stockholdem for monetary 
except for any breach of thc dimtor's duty of loyalty to thc corporation nr its stockholders, acts or 
omjssions not in goad faith or which involvc intcntiond miwmduct or a knowing violation of law 
by the director, conduct violating 5 174 of tho G a d  Corpontion I AW trf lkln\iwe, or for my 
tranwtion fiom which the director will p c d l y  receive a b e f i t  in money, ptoperiy or d c e s  
lo which the dinctor is not Icgdiy entitled If tbc oeacral Corporation IAW o € D c k m  is 
hutaftcr amended to authorize corporate action further eliminating or l i i  the penowl Iiability 
of directus, then the Liability of a director shall k eliminated or limited to the N1 octent pcmitted 
by thc Qcned CorgOr&n h w  of Dclaumq M so amended h y  rcpcal or modification of this 
Article shall not advencly affcn any right 01 p t d o n  of a dircctor of the wrporation cxisttig Bt 
thc timc of .such repeal or moriification for or with nspcct to u ucst or omission ofsuch dkrckr 
wcuning prior to such fcpcal or modiicaioa 

for b w h  of  fiduciaty duty a director, 



ARTICLES OF INCOF&ORATION 

. .. - OF 

NEXTLINK LONG DISTANCE SERVICES, INC. 

Pursuant to RCW 23B.02.020 of the Washington Business Corporation Act, the 
undersigned does hereby submit these Articles of Incorporation for the purpose of forming a 
business corporation. 

ARTICLE I 

The name of this corporation is NEXTLINK LONG DISTANCE SERVICES, INC. 

ARTICLE 11 

This corporation is organized for the following purposes: 

To engage in any business, trade or activity that may be conducted lawfully by a 
corporation organized under the Washington Business Corporation Act. 

ARTICLE I11 

This corporation is authorized to issue one thousand (1,000) shares of common stock with 
no par value. 

ARTICLE IV 

PREEMPTIVE RIGHTS 

Each Shareholder shall have preemptive rights to acquire additional shares which may be 
issued by this corporation to the extent preemptive rights apply to such shares under the 
Washington Business Corporation Act. 

ARTICLES OF MCORPORATION - Page 1 
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ARTICLE V 

NO CUMULATIVE VOTING 

At each election for directors, every shareholder entitled to vote at such election has the 
right to vote in person or by proxy the number of shares held by such shareholder for as many 
persons as there are directors to be elected. No cumulative voting for directors shall be permitted. 

ARTICLE VI 

BYLAWS . 
The Board of Directors shall have the power to adopt, amend or repeal the Bylaws or adopt 

new Bylaws. Nothing herein shall deny the concurrent power of the shareholders to adopt, alter, 
amend or repeal the Bylaws. 

ARTICLE VI1 

REGISTERED AGENT AND OFFICE 

The name of the initial registered agent of this corporation and the address of its initial 
registered office are as follows: 

Registered Agent - Office 

DWTR&J Corp. 2600 Century Square 
1501 Fourth Avenue 
Seattle, WA 98101-1688 

ARTICLE VI11 

DIRECTORS 

A. The number of directors of this corporation shall be determined in the manner 
specified by the Bylaws and may be increased or decreased from time to time in the manner 
provided therein. 

B. The term of the initial directors shall be until the first annual meeting of the 
shareholders or until their successors are elected and qualified, unless removed in accordance with 
the provisions of the Bylaws. 

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION - Page 2 
F:VXX3SU8936\1\Long Distance Services AOI.dw 02/25/99 



ARTICLE IX 

SHAREHOLDER VOTING REOUIREMENTS FOR CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS 

In order to obtain shareholder approval in connection with the following corporate actions, 
such actions must be approved by each voting group of shareholders entitled to vote thereon by a 
majority of all the votes entitled to be cast by that voting group: amendment of the Articles of 
Incorporation; a plan of merger or share exchange; the sale, lease, exchange, or other disposition of 
all, or substantially all, of the corporation's assets other than in the usual and regular course of 
business; or dissolution of the corporation. 

ARTICLE X 

JNCORPORATOR 

The name and address of the incorporator are as follows: 

Name 

Jeff Belfiglio 

Address 

1800 Bellevue Place 
10500 N.E. 8* Street 
Bellevue, Washington 98004 

ARTICLE XI 

LIMITATION OF DIRECTORS' LIABILITY 

A director shall have no liability to the corporation or its shareholders for monetary 
damages for conduct as a director, except for acts or omissions that involve intentional misconduct 
by the director, or a knowing violation of law by the director, or for conduct violating RCW 
23B.08.310, or for any transaction from which the director will personally receive a benefit in 
money, property or services to which the director is not legally entitled. If the Washington 
Business Corporation Act is hereafter amended to authorize corporate action further eliminating or 
limiting the personal liability of directors, then the liability of a director shall be eliminated or 
limited to the full extent permitted by the Washington Business Corporation Act, as so amended. 
Any repeal or modification of this Article shall not adversely affect any right or protection of a 
director of the corporation existing at the time of such repeal or modification for or with respect to 
an act or omission of such director occurring prior to such repeal or modification. 

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION - Page 3 
F:DOCSU8936\1\Long Distance Services AOI.doc 02/25/99 



ARTICLE XI 

INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS 

Section 1. Right to Indemnification. Each person who was, or is threatened to be made a 
party to or is otherwise involved (including, without limitation, as a witness) in any actual or 
threatened action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, by 
reason of the fact that he or she is or was a director or officer of the Corporation or, while a director 
or officer, he or she is or was serving at the request of the corporation as a director, trustee, officer, 
employee or agent of another corporation or of a partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, 
including service with respect to employee benefit plans, whether the basis of such proceeding is 
alleged action in an official capacity as a director, trustee, officer, employee or agent or in any other 
capacity while serving as a director, trustee, officer, employee or agent, shall be indemnified and 
held harmless by the corporation, to the full extent permitted by applicable law as then in effect, 
against all expense, liability and loss (including attomey's fees, judgments, fmes, ERISA excise 
taxes or penalties and amounts to be paid in settlement) actually and reasonably incurred or suffered 
by such person in connection therewith, and such indemnification shall continue as to a person who 
has ceased to be a director, trustee, officer, employee or agent and shall inure to the benefit of his or 
her heirs, executors and administrators; provided, however, that except as provided in Section 2 of 
this Article with respect to proceedings seeking to enforce rights to indemnification, the corporation 
shall indemnify any such person seeking indemnification in connection with a proceeding (or part 
thereof) initiated by such person only if such proceeding (or part thereof) was authorized by the 
board of directors of the corporation. The right to indemnification conferred in this Section 1 shall 
be a contnct right and shall include the right to be paid by the corporation the expenses incurred in 
defending any such proceeding in advance of its final disposition; provided, however, that the 
payment of such expenses in advance of the final disposition of a proceeding shall be made only 
upon delivery to the corporation of an undertaking, by or on behalf of such director or officer, to 
repay all amounts so advanced if it shall ultimately be determined that such director or officer is not 
entitled to be indemnified under this Section 1 or otherwise. 

Section 2. Right of Claimant to Brine Suit. If a claim under Section 1 of this Article is not 
paid in 1 1 1  by the corporation within s ix ty  (60) days after a written claim has been received by the 
corporation, except in the case of a claim for expenses incurred in defending a proceeding in 
advance of its final disposition, in which case the applicable period shall be twenty (20) days, the 
claimant may at any time thereafter bring suit against the corporation to recover the unpaid amount 
of the claim and, to the extent successfid in whole or in part, the claimant shall be entitled to be 
paid also the expense of prosecuting such claim. The claimant shall be presumed to be entitled to 
indemnification under this Article upon submission of a written claim (and, in an action brought to 
enforce a claim for expenses incurred in defending any proceeding in advance of its final 
disposition, where the required undertaking has been tendered to the corporation), and thereafter the 
corporation shall have the burden of proof to overcome the presumption that the claimant is not so 
entitled. Neither the failure of the corporation (including its board of directors, independent legal 
counsel or its shareholders) to have made a determination prior to the commencement of such 

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION - Page 4 
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action that indemnification of or reimbursement or advancement of expenses to the claimant is 
proper in the circumstances nor an actual determination by the corporation (including its board of 
directors, independent legal counsel or its shareholders) that the claimant is not entitled to 
indemnification or to the reimbursement or advancement of expenses shall be a defense to the 
action or create a presumption that the claimant is not so entitled. 

Section 3. Nonexclusivitv of Rights. The right to indemnification and the payment of 
expenses incurred in defending a proceeding in advance of its final disposition conferred in this 
Article shall not be exclusive of any other right which any person may have or hereafter acquire 
under any statute, provision of the Articles of Incorporation, Bylaws, agreement, vote of 
shareholders or disinterested directors or otherwise. 

Section 4. Insurance. Contracts and Funding. The corporation may maintain insurance, at 
its expense, to protect itself and any director, trustee, officer, employee or agent of the corporation 
or another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise against any expense, 
liability or loss, whether or not the corporation would have the power to indemnify such person 
against such expense, liability or loss under the Washington Business Corporation Act. The 
corporation may, without further shareholder action, enter into contracts with any director or officer 
of the corporation in W e r a n c e  of the provisions of this Article and may create a trust fund, grant 
a security interest or use other means (including, without limitation, a letter of credit) to ensure the 
payment of such amounts as may be necessary to effect indemnification as provided in this Article. 

Section 5 .  Indemnification of Emdovees and Agents of the Comoration. The corporation 
may, by action of its board of directors from time to time, provide indemnification and pay 
expenses in advance of the final disposition of a proceeding to employees and agents of the 
corporation with the same scope and effect as the provisions of this Article with respect to the 
indemnification and advancement of expenses of directors and officers of the corporation or 
pursuant to rights granted pursuant to, or provided by, the Washington Business Corporation Act or 
otherwise. 

ARTICLE XIII 

EFFECTIVE DATE 

These Articles of Incorporation shall be effective upon filing. 

DATED this 25* day of February, 1999. 

, 
JEFF %ELF1 GLI 6, Incorporator 

! 
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CONSENT TO SERVE AS REGISTERED AGENT 

DWTR&J Corp., a Washington corporation, hereby consents to serve as Registered Agent, 
in the State of Washington, for NEXTLINK LONG DISTANCE SERVICES, INC. DWTR&J 
Corp. understands that as agent for said corporation, it will be responsible to receive service of 
process in the name of said corporation; to forward all mail to said corporation; and to immediately 
notify the office of the Secretary of State in the event of its resignation, or of any changes in the 
registered office address of2600 Century Square, 1501 Fourth Avenue, Seattle, WA 98101-1688. 

DATED this 25" day of February, 1999. 

DWTR&J COW., a Washington corporation 

/SHARON L A W C E ,  Vice President 

2600 Century Square 
1501 Fourth Avenue 
Seattle, Washington 98 10 1 - 1688 

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION - Page 6 
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I,  RALPH MUNRO, Secretary of State of the State of Washington and custodian of its seal, 
hereby issue this 

CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORA TION 

to 

NEXTLINK LONG DISTANCE SERVICES, INC. 

a Washington Profit corporation. Articles of Incorporation were filed for record in this 
office on the date indicated below. 

UBI Number: 601 935 809 Date: February 26, 1999 

Given under my hand and the Seal of the State 
of Washington at Olympia, the State Capital 

4%%3 100-5 Ralph Munro, Secretary 
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FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF STATE 
Katherine Harris 

Secretary of State 

June 21,1999 

csc 
, 

Qualification documents for NEXTLINK LONG DISTANCE SERVICES, INC. 
were filed on June 21, 1999 and assigned document number F99000003166. 
Please refer to this number whenever ccrresponding with this office. 

Your corporation is now qualified and authorized to transact business in Florida 
as of the file date. 

A corporation annual report will be due ,this office between January 1 and May 1 
of the year following the calendar year of the file date. A Federal Employer 
Identification (FEI) number will be required before this report can be filed. If you 
do not already have an FEI number, please apply NOW with the Internal 
Revenue by calling 1-800-829-3676 and requesting form SS-4. 

Please be aware if the corporate address changes, it is the responsibility of the 
corporation to notify this office. 

Should you have any questions regarcling this matter, please telephone (850) 
487-6091, the Foreign QualificationlTax Lien Section. 

Agnes Lunt 
Document Specialist 
Division of Corporations Letter Number: 199A00032903 

Account number: 072100000032 Account charged: 70.00 

Division of Corporations - P.O. :BOX 6327 -Tallahassee, Florida 32314 
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APPLICATION BY FOREIGN CORF.r)RATION FOR AUTHORIZATION 
TO TRANSACT 13USINESS IN FLORIDA 

IN COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 607.1503, FLORIDA STATUTE$, THE F O U O  WING IS 
SUBMIlTED TO REGISTER A FOREIGN CORPORATION TO TRANSACT BUSfNESS IN THE 
STATE OF FLORIDA: 

1. 

2. 

4. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

9. 

NEXTLINK Long Distance Services, Lnc. 

("e of corporation must includc rhc word "INCORPORATED". "COMPANY", "CORPORATIQN" or 
words or abbreviations of like impon in language as will clearly indicate that it is a corporation instend of a 
natural person or partnership if not SO contained in he name at present.) 

-..- 

91-1957034 
...d._-r ,.., . . 3. Washington 

(State or country under the law of which it is incosrakd)  
- .-_ 

(FEI number, if applicable) 

Perpetual 5. February 2 6, 19 9 9 
o.----"I-- 

(Date of Incorporation) mumtion: Year COT. wi11 cease &-e& or 
"perpetu d " 1 

Upon Qualification 
,--,--r. ., . -  

(Dare first transacted business h Florida. ( S E I Z S E ~ O N S  607.1501,607.1502, AND 817.155, F.S.) 
Suite 2200, 500  - 108th Avenue N . X .  

. . .... - . -- 

Bellevue, WA 98004 
-I-- - _. ...-.. 

(Current mailing address) 
Operating a telecommunications seririce. To engage in any a c t  or activity 
for which corporations may be orga:;lized. 

-I ..,_---.--IL- - 
(Airpose(s) of corporation auiulhorized in home state or country to be carried out in the state of Florida) 

Name and street address of FIorida registered agent; (P.O. Box or Mail Drop Box NOT 
acceptable) L D O  

5v, 
-,-I 

- r-r: 
N ~ ~ ~ :  Corporation Service Company g g g  

- ..-e .-.- 
?.ZT 
,7 %r 

3r 2;m- 15-,- 

+ 

Office Address: 12O1 Hays St ree t  

S d  a Jv, 

ul s m  
3s (zipcode) t; -- ---.--I.- I* ,.-,.I T a l  lahassee - , Florida, 323O1 

z 10. Registered agent's acceptance: 

Huving been named CIS registered agent and to accept selvice of process for the above stated 
toporation ai the lace designated in this application, I hereby acte f the appoiotment as 
re istered agent an B agree to act in this capticity. 
a1 f statutes relative to the proper and 

ugree to comp P y with the provisions of 
of my duties, crnd I am familiar with 

unci accept the obligations of my position as 
Corpgration Service C o m p a n y  

-.., By: 

1 I .  Attached is a certificate of existence duly authcndcated, not more than 90 days prior to 
delivery of this application LO the Department of State, by the Secretary of State or other 
official having custody of corporate records in the jurisdiction under the law of which it is 
incorporated. 
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12. Names and addresses of ofljcers andlor dizctors: (Street address ONLY- I?. 0, Box 

A. DIRECTORS (Street address only- P. 0 . Box NOT acceptable) 

Chah-nan: -.-.,-,- 

Address: I- I,_.* 

NOT acceptable) 

- -- See attached officers/directors r ide r  

~- - .  
Vice Chaiiman: -- - 

Address: 

Director: 

Address: 

Dircccor: 

Ad dress : 

.--I- - , ,  /,.,., ."-,".- ..,... + Zf-9 
G C", 

2% 5 
president: ..,,?.:e attached off icer$/ t  irectors rider I- -$27- 

3 :p 
~ --' 
ul sm 

B. OFFICERS (Street address only- P. 0. Box NOT acceptable) 
e<-r, 

3 Y " 
5 r ,  c! 6:' 

-- - 7 _ C I  
,- 

, , -- _.. . . . .  -,I .'!.,, 

-! 
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BIOGRAPHIES OF NEXTLINK OFFICERS i Y - -  

George M. Tronsrue 111 
President and Chief Operating Officer 

Mr. Tronsrue has been President of NEXTLMK Communications, Inc., since July 1998 and Chief 
Operating Officer of NEXTLINK since October 1997. Prior to that, Mr. Tronsme was part of the initial 
management team of ACSI fkom February 1994 to September 1997, and was responsible for planning and 
overseeing the operations of ACSI for its first three years serving as Chief Operating Officer, President, 
Strategy and Technology Development Division and Executive Vice President, Planning and Development. 
Prior to that, Mr. Tronsrue served as the Regional Vice President of the Central Region of Teleport 
Communications Group ("TCG"), and M Vice President, Emerging Markets overseeing the start-up of 
TCG's initial eight cable television partnerships. Before TCG, Mr. Tronsrue was at MFS Communications 
fiom its inception in 1987 until 1992. At MFS, Mr. Tronsme served as Vice Resident, Corporate Planning 
and Information Management; Vice President, Field Sales; Vice President and General Manager for MFS 
New Yo* during its first year of operations and Executive Vice President, MFS Internet. Prior to MFS, 
Mr. Tronsrue served at MCI from 1983 to 1986 in a variety of engineering and operations roles, 
culminating as Director of Operations, Michigan and Ohio. 

R. Gerard Salemme 
Senior Vice President, External Affairs and Industry Relations 

Mr. Salemme has been Senior Vice President, External Affairs and Industry Relations of NEXTLMK since 
July 1997. Prior to joining NEXTLMK, Mr. Salemme was Vice President, Government Affairs at AT&T 
Corporation from December 1994. Prior to joining AT&T, Mr. Salemme was Senior Vice President, 
External Affairs at McCaw Cellular from 1991 to December 1994. 

Charles P. Daniels 
Vice President & Chief Technology Officer 

Mr. Daniels has been Vice President, Chief Technology Ofiicer of NEXTLINK since July 1997. Prior to 
that, Mr. Daniels was Vice President, Chief Marketing officer of NEXTLMK from November 1995. From 
1992 to 1995, Mr. Daniels worked for MCI where he was the founder and Program Manager of the network 
MCI Developers Lab. Mr. Daniels was also a founding member of MCI's Advanced Technology Group. 
Prior to joining MCI, Mr. Daniels worked for Manufacturers Hanover Trust from 1989 to 1992 as Vice 
President, Strategic Technology & Research, where he was responsible for evaluating and implementing 
new technologies that either reduced costs or generated new revenue. 

R Bruce Easter, Jr. 
Vice President, General Counsel & Secretary 

Mr. Easter has been Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary of NEXTLMK since January 1995. 
From 1986 to December 1994, he was an associate and then partner in the law f m  of Davis Wright 
Tremaine in Seattle, Washington, where he focused on communications law and media matters. 



Kathleen H. Iskra 
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer 

Ms. Iskra has been Vice President and Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of NEXTLINK since January 
1996. Prior to that, she was President and Chief Executive Officer of Horizon Air, a wholly-owned 
subsidiary of Alaska Air Group. Prior to her appointment at Horizon Air, Ms. Iskra served as staff Vice 
President of Finance and Controller of Alaska Airlines and Alaska Air Group. Ms. Ish's  service with 
Alaska began in 1987, when she was appointed Controller. Prior to joining Alaska, she was an audit 
manager with Arthur Andersen. 

Janice E. Loichle 
Vice President, Chief of Local Exchange Operations 

NEXTLMK since October 1996. Prior to that, Ms. Loichle was President of NEXTLINK Solutions (an 
enhanced services subsidiary) from July 1995. Prior to joining NEXTLMK, Ms. Loichle was Executive 
Vice President at U.S. Signal in Detroit and Grand Rapids, Michigan from April 1993 to July 1995. At 
U.S. Signal, Ms. Loichle was responsible for Finance, Systems, Administration and was also involved in 
the initial CLEC development in Grand Rapids. From 1990 to 1993, Ms. Loichle was Assistant Vice 
President of Finance for SP Telecom in San Francisco. Prior to that, Ms. Loichle was Vice President of 
Financial Operations for LexiteVAllnet/ALC in Birmingham, Michigan from December 1980 to October 
1989. 

Michael J. McHale, Jr. 
Chief Marketing Officer 

Mr. McHale has been Vice President, Chief Marketing Officer of NEXTLINK since November 1997. 
Prior to joining NEXTLINK, Mr. McHale served as Vice President and General Manager of the Phoenix 
market and Regional Vice President at Teleport Communications Group, Inc. from 1993, developing the 
Phoenix market from its inception. Prior to that, from 199 1 to 1993, he was Vice President, Product 
Marketing and Development at MFS Intelenet, Inc. and was responsible for planning and implementing 
MFS's initial introduction of switched services in New York City. 

Richard A. Montfort, Jr. 
Assistant Secretary 

Mr. Montfort has been Assistant Secretary of NEXTLMK since July 1998. From October 1992 to 
February 1998, he was associated with the law fm of Preston Gates & Ellis in Seattle, Washington, where 
he focused on securities law and mergers and acquisitions. 

Jay D. Hull 
Assistant General Counsel and Assistant Secretary 

Mr. Hull has been Assistant Secretary of NEXTLMK since August 1998. Mr. Hull began practicing law in 
1984 and become a partner at Davis Wright Tremaine in Portland, Oregon in 1991. He represented 
NEXTLINK at Davis Wright Tremaine from the time NEXTLMK was formed in 1994. 
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PART I. 

Item I(a). 

FIh'Ah'CIAL Ih'FORhUTION 

Financial StatemenG 

NEXTLINK Communications, Inc. 
Consolidated Balance Shcets 

(Dollars in thousands, except per shrre mounts )  
(Amounts 8s of September 30,1998 8re unaudited) 

ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Crsh and cash equivalents ...................................................................... 
Marketable securities ............................................................................. 
Accounts receivable, net ........................................................................ 
Pledged securities ................................................................................... 

Total cumni  u s e l t  .................. ....................................................... 
Pledged securities .......................................................................................... 
P r o p 3  and quipmenf net .......................................................................... 
Goodwill, net ................................................................................................ 
Orher u s e t s ,  net ............................................................................................. 

Total u s e t s  ..................................................................................... 

LIABILITIES A h 3  SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITl' (DEFICIT) 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable ................................................................................... 
Accrued expenses ................................................................................... 
Accnxd inleren payb le  ........................................................................ 
Notes payable and current ponion of capital l ese  obligations .............. 

Total current liabilities ................................................................... 
Long-term debt ............................................................................................... 
Capital lease obligations m d  other long-term liabilities ................................ 

Total liabilities ............................................................................... 
Commi!ments and contingencies 
Redeemable preferred s o c k  par value 50.01 per share, 25,000,000 shares 

authorized; 14% Prcfemd qgregaie liquidation preference 5358,646, 
7,009,348 and 6,322,031 shuts issued m d  outsanding in 1998 and 1997, 
respectively; 6 %% Convertible Prefened, 4,000,000 m d  0 shuts issued 
and o u w q d i n g  in 1998 and 1997, rtspectively ........................................ 

Common s o c k  subject to redemption, par value f0.02 per share, 519,950 
Clrss B shares issued and ouuunding in 1997 .......................................... 

Shueholden'  equity (deficit): 
Common Stock par value f0.02 per share, stated at mounts paid in; 

C l u  h 110,334,000 au thor i zd  20,830,169 m d  19,167,899 
s h m s  issued and outstanding in 1998 md 1997, respectively; Clrsr 
B, 44,133,600 shares authorired 33,133,502 m d  33,746,573 rhrrts 
issued and o u m d i n g  in 1998 and 1997, respectively ............. _. ...... 

Deferred compensation .................... ........................... _. ........................ 
Accumulated deficit .................. _. ..................... ... ................................... 

Total shareholders' equity (deficit). .................. .... ..................... 
Toul liabilities m d  shareholders' equity (deficit) .......................... 

September 30, 
1998 

f 392,350 
784,493 
29,525 
12,273 
42.992 

,' 1,261,633 - 
448,550 

260.182 - 553 13 

f 24,634 
32,119 
40,615 

4.021 
101,389 

1,503,263 
16.096 

1,620,748 

543,258 

- 

352,018 
(12,894) 

December 31, 
1997 

f 389,014 
353,283 
22,955 
4,530 

41.425 
81 1,267 
21,185 

253,653 
52,278 

18.RO - 
f 26,776 

13,082 
18,880 
10.844 
69,582 

750,000 
10.842 

830,424 

3 13,3 19 

4.950 

See accompmying notes IO unaudited interim consolidated financial Mlcments 

IVEXTLIhX Communications, Iuc. 



Consolidatcd Statements of Opcrations 
(Dollars in  thousands, except per share amounts) 

(Una ud i tea) 

Revenue .......................................................... 
.Costs m d  expenses: 

Operating ................................................. 
Selling, general and adminimt ive  ......... 
Dcfecned compensation ........................... 
Deprcciation ............................................ 
Amonitation ........................................... 

f o u l  com and expcnscs ................. 
Loss fiom opentions ....................................... 
Interest income ................................................ 
Interest expense ............................................... 

Net loss ........................................................... 
Prefecned stock dividends and accretion of 

prcfecned S I O C ~  redemption obligation, 
including issue costs ................................ 

Net loss applicable to c o r n "  shares ............ 

Net loss per share ............................................ 
Shares used in computation of net loss per 

share ........................................................ 

Three Months Ended 
September 30, 

1998 1991 

f 31,811 S 13,390 

32,828 
4 1,565 

1,120 
11,334 
3.444 

90,891 

(53,074) 

21,559 
(37,434) 

sA&ua 

13,916 
19,318 

334 
3,898 

1.631 
39,097 

(25,107) 

4,868 
( I  0,746) 

u i u u  

Nine Months Ended 
September 30, 

1998 1997 

f 96,392 f 35,058 

85,448 
109,599 

3,101 
26,243 

10.898 
235,292 

(1 38,900) 

56,116 
(99,050) 

S U L w  

35,851 
48,421 

1,449 
9,952 

100,181 

(65,129) 

15.560 
(32,187) 

s) 

See accompanying notes to unaudited interim consolidated financial statements. 



.NEXTLINK Communications. Inc . 
Consolidatcd Statements of Cash Flows 

(Dollars In thousands) 
(Unaudited) 

OPERATMG ACTIVITIES: 
Net loss ........................................................................................................... 
Adjusunents to reconcile net loss to net c u h  used in openting activities: 

Deferred compensation expense ............................................................. 
Equity in loss of d5lirtts ....................................................................... 
Depreciation m d  unon imion  ................................................................ 
Accretion of interest on senior notes ...................................................... 
Accounts rcceivable ................................................................................ 
Other assets ............................................................................................ 
Accounts payable .................................................................................... 
Accrued expenses m d  other liabilities .................................................... 
Accrued interest payable ......................................................................... 

Ne1 ULsh u x d  in operating activities .............................................................. 

Purchase of properr). and quipmcnt  .............................................................. 

Changes in uxts m d  liabilities. net of effects from acquisitions: 

hVESTh’G ACTIVITIES: 

Net assets acquire6 in business and asci aquisitions (net of a s h  
acquired) .................................................................................................... 

Cssh withdraw fiom escrow 10 be used in business aquhi t ion ................... 
Asscu acquired in netuork lease agreement ................................................... 
Convibution to h’EXlBAhD for purchase of spectrum licenses ................... 
lnverments in unconsolidated afliliatcs ......................................................... 
hfaruriv of pledged securities ........................................................................ 
Purchase of marktuble securities ................................................................... 
Sale of mzkeubl: securities .......................................................................... 
Net cash used in investing activities ............................................................... 

1998 

S (181. 834) 

3. 104 
2. 635 
37. 141 

.. 18. 940 

Nine Months Ended 
September 30. 

--Am 
(1 04. 770) 

(209. 136) 

0 . 
(92. OOO) 
(67. 354) 
( 13. 337) 
19. 636 

(3.347. 468) 
2.916.258 

(793. 401) 

1997 

S (82. 356) 

1. 449 
1. 688 
14. 460 - 
(3. 062) 
(662) 

(6. 328) 
5. 370 

10.208 
(59. 233) 

(89. 146) 

(4 1. 239) 
6. 000 

0 

0 

(6. 342) 
18. 049 
(28. 812) - 
(14 1. 490) 

. Continued . 



KEXTLIKK Communications, Inc. 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Cont'd) 

@Dollars in thousands) 
(Unaudited) 

Nine Months Ended 
September 30, 

1998 1997 

FMANCMG ACTIVITIES: 
Net proceeds from issuance of redeemable prefecrred stock ............................ 
Repayment of note payable and c a p i d  leare obligations ........................ - ..... 
Repayment of payable to afliliatet ................................................................. 
P r o d s  bom issuance of w m o n  stock upon exercise of  stock optio ns..... 
Dividends paid on wnverrible prcfecmd stock .......................... i .................... 
Repayment (issuance) of l o a  to related pSnits ............................................ 
Proceeds born issuance of senior not= (net of discount) ............................... 
Cans ~ C U K C ~  in wnncaion with financing .................................................. 
Net cash provided by financing activities ....................................................... 
Net i n c r w c  in wh and cash equivalents ...................................................... 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period ............................................. 
Cash and cash equivalenu, end of period ....................................................... 
SUPPLEMEh7AL CASH FLOW DISCLOSURES: 
Noncuh financing and investing activities: 

Redeemable prefened nock dividends, paid in redeemable preferred 
shares .................................................................................................. 

Accmed redeemable p rc fend  stock dividends, payable in redeemable 
prefened shares, and accretion of prefencd stock redemption 
obligation and issue CON ................................................................... 

Issuance of Class B wmmon sock  for purchase ofminority intercsu ... 
CIpiul lease obliga!ions srsumd .......................................................... 
Class A common sock issued under lew m g e m e n l  ......................... 

G s h  paid for interen ...................................................................................... 

S 193,824 S 274,000 
(7,346) (1,380) - (1.500) 
2,021 111 

( 6 , W  - 
2,357 (2,825) 

' 734,323 - 
(4Qu 

268,004 

3,276 67.28 1 

- 
901,447 ' 

389,074 16,807 - - 
See accompanying notes to unruditd interim contolidrtd frnmcid " n e n f s .  



NEXTLm'K Com m u n Ica tions, Inc. 
Notes  t o  In t c r im  Consol idatcd Financial  S t a t emcn t s  

(Unaudi ted)  

1. Basis of Presentation 
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of NEXTLINK Communications, Inc., r Delaware. 

corporation, and its majority-ouned subsidiaries (collectively referred 10 as the Company). The Company, through 
predecessor entities, was formed on September 16, 1994 and, through its subsidiaries, provides competitive local 
telecommunications services in selected markets in the United States. ?he Company is a majority+wned subsidiary 
of Eagle River Investments, L.L.C. (Eagle River). 

The Company's financial statements include 100% of the assets, liabilities and results of operations of 
subsidiaries in which the Company has a controlling interest of greater than 50%. 7 % ~  Company's investment in 
Telecommunications of Nevada, L.L.C. (Nevada L.L.C.), 8 limited liability company in which the Company hss a 
40% interest and which operates a nenvork that is managed by the Company in Las Vegas, Nevada, is accounted for 
on the equity method. A11 operational statistics of the Company included in this Report include 100% of the 
operational statistics of Nevada L.L.C. Investments in entities in which the Company has voting interests of not more 
than 20% are accounted for on the cost method. A11 significant intercompany accounts and bansactions have been 
eliminated. 

The interim fiancial  statements are unaudited and have been prepared pursuant to the nrles and regulations of 
the Securities and Exchange Commission. C e m b  information and footnote disclosures normally included in 
fmancial statements prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles have been condensed or 
omitted pursuant IO such rules and regulations. These condensed consolidated frnancial statements should be read in 
conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in the Company's Form 10- 
KSB BJ filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 25, 1998. 

The fiancial information included herein reflects all adjustments (consisting only of normal recwing 
adjustments) which are, in the opinion of management, necessary to a fair presentation of the results for interim 
periods. The results of operations for the three and nine-month periods ended September 30, 1998 =e not necessarily 
indicative of the results to be expected for the full year. 

2. Financings 
Debt 
On March 3, 199S, the Company completed the sale of $335.0 million b rggregate principal amount of 9% 

Senior Notes due March 15, 2008 (9% Senior Notes). Proceeds bom the sale net of discounts, underwriting 
commissions, advisory fees and expenses totaled approximately S326.5 million. Interest payments on the 9% Senior 
Notes are due semi-annually. The 9% Senior Notes are redeemable at the option of the Company, in whole or in pa& 
beginning March 15,2003. 

On April 1, 1998, the Company completed the sale of 9.45% Senior Discount Notes (9.45% Notes), due April 
15, 2008. The 9.4S% Notes were issued at 8 discount bom their principal m o u n t  to genente aggregate gross 
proceeds fo the Company of approximately $400.0 million. Proceeds net of underwriting commissions, advisory fees 
and expenses totaled $390.9 million. The 9.45% Notes rccrete at 8 rate of 9.45% compounded semi-annually, to an 
aggregate principal amount of approximately S637.0 million by April 15, 2003. No w h  interest will a c m e  on the 
9.45% Notes until April 15, 2003. Interest will become payable in cash semi-annually beginning on October 15, 
2003. The 9.45% Notes are redeemable at the option of the Company, in whole or in part, at any time after April 15, 
2003. 

The indentures pursuant to which the 9% Senior Notes and the 9.45% Notes (the Notes) are issued contain 
c e m b  covenants that, among other things, limit the ability of the Company and its subsidiaries to incur additional 
indebtedness, issue stock in subsidiaries, pay dividends or make other distributions, repurchase equity interests or 
subordinated indebtedness, engage in sale and leaseback -actions, create wain liens, enter into certain 



transactions with affiliates, sell assets of the Company and its subsidiaries, and enter into cemin mergers and 
consolidations. 

In the event of a change in control or asset disposition of the Company as defvlcd in the indentures, holders of 
the Notes will have the right to require the Company to purchase their Notes, in whole or in p a  at a price equal to 
101% of the principal m o u n t  thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, thereon to the date of purchase. The 
Notes are senior unsecured obligations of the Company, and =e subordinated to all c w e n t  and future indebtedness' 
of the Company's subsidiaries, including trade payables. 

Redeem o blc Pr e /err cd Stock 
On March 31, 1998, the Company completed the sale of 4,000,000 shares of 6%% cumulative convenible 

preferred stock (a%% Preferred Stock) with I liquidation preference of SSO per share. The sale generated gross 
proceeds to the Company of $200.0 million, and proceeds net of undenvriting discounts, advisory fees and expenses 
ofS193.8 million. Each share of 6%% Preferred Stock i s  convertible, at the option ofthe holder, into 1.145 shares of 
the Company's Class A common stock (subject to adjustments in certsin circumstances). Tbe Company may cause 
such conversion rights to expire if the closing price of the Class A c o m p o  stock exceeds 120% of UI implied 
conversion pricc (tu defmed) for 20 days in a 30 consecutive day tnding period after April 15,2001 m d  through 
April IS, 2006. Dividends on the 6%% Preferred Stock accme fiom March 31D 1998 and are payable in w h  
quarterly, beginning on June 30, 1998, at an annual fate of 6%% of the liquidation preference thereof. The Company 
i s  required to redeem all of the 6%% Preferred Stock outstanding on March 31,2010 at a redemption price equal to 
100% of the liquidation preference thereof, plus accumulated and unpaid dividends to the date of redemption. 

3. Network Lease 
In February 1998, the Company entered into a 20-year capital lease for excluive rights to multiple fibers and 

innerducts throughout New York, New Jersey, Connecticut, Pennsylvania, Delaware, Maryland and Washington 
D.C. T h e  Company paid S92.0 million in the transaction, of which $80.3 million was placed into escrow pending 
completion and delivery of segments of the network route to the Company. The p a y "  was recorded as a long-term 
asseg and will be reclassified as propeny and equipment as ponions of the network are completed. The Company has 
the option to renew the lease for tu'o additional 10-year terms. 

4. Joint Ventures 

Lo January 1998, the Company and Nextel Communications, Inc. (Nextel), a nationwide provider of wireless 
telephone semices, formed a joint venture called NEXTBAND Communications, L.L.C. WXTBAND), which is 
ouned SO% each by the Company and Nextel. NEXTBAND was the successful bidder in 42 markets covering 
approximately 105 million POPS, or persons located within the licensed afas owned, in the FCC's local multipoint 
distribution service (LMDS) auctions, which concluded in March 1998. The Company has c o n ~ b u t e d  S67.4 million 
to NEXTBAND, representing its pro ma share of NEXTBAND'S total bid in the LMDS auctions. ' b e  Company is 
evaluating means to use its access to NEXTBAND'S LMDS spec- to enhance its ability to connect customers to 
its fiber rings, and to deploy wireless local loop technologies using LKDS bequencies when it determines it cost 
effective to do so. 

Ih7DWElT 
In July 1998, the Company announced the fonnation of INTERNEXT L.L.C., which it beneficially owned 50% 

each by the Company and Eagle River. MTERNEXT has entered into an agreement with Level 3 Communications, 
LLC (Level 3). Level 3 is constructing a national fiber optic network that is expected to cover more than 16,030 
route miles with six or more conduits and connect 50 cities in the United States and Canada. Pursuant to this 
agreemen6 INTERNEXT will receive an exclusive interest in 24 fiben in a shared, filled conduig one entire empty 
conduit and the right to 25% of the fibers pulled through the sixth md m y  additional conduiu in the network. 
MTEFLNEXT will  pay $700.0 million in exchange for these rights, the majority of which will be payrble u 
r e p e n t s  of the network a.re completed and accepted by INTERNEXT, which is expected to occur subswtially 
during 2000 and 2001. The Company has guaranteed 50% of the fmancial obligations of INTERNEXT under this 



agreement and, together with Eagle River, has also guaranteed the pedonnance of cemin other obligations of 
MTERNEXT thereunder. The Company anticipates that Nextel will acquire a one-third ownership interest in 
MTERNEXT, which would reduce the Company's beneficial interest in and obligations with respect to 
INTERNEXT to one-third. 

5. Reclassifications 

Certain reclassifications have been made to prior period amounts in order to conform to the current presentation. 

6. Subsequent Event 
On November 12, 1998, the Company completed the sale of $500.0 million in aggregate principal amount of 

IO%% Senior Notes due November 15, 2008 (lo%% Senior Notes). Proceeds bom the sale net of undenvriting 
commissions, advisory fees and expenses totaled approximately $488.5 million. Interest payments on the notes are 
due semi-annually, beginning May 15, 1999. The IO%% Senior Notes sue redeemable at the option of the Company, 
in whole or in part, beginning November 15, 2003. 

The indenture pursuant to which the IO%% Senior Notes an issued conihins cemin covenants that, among other 
things, limit the ability of the Company and its subsidiaries to incur additional indebtedness, issue stock in 
subsidim*es, pay dividends or make other distributions, repurchase equity interests or subordinated indebtedness, 
engage in sale and leaseback trmsactions, create certain liens, enter into certain transactions with affiliates, sell 
assets of the Company and its subsidiaries, and enter into cenain mergers and consolidations. In addition, under the 
indenture, the Company has agreed to use the net proceeds fiom the sale for expenditures relating to the constmction, 
improvement and acquisition of new and existing networks and services and direct or indirect investments in cemin  
joint venwes  to fund similar expenditures. 

Ln the event of a change in control or asset disposition of the Company as defined in the indentures, holders of 
the IO!<?& Senior Notes will have the right to require the Company to  purchase their lo%% Senior Notes, in whole 
or in part, at a price equal to I O  1% of the principal amount thereof, p l u  accnred and unpaid interest, if any, thereon 
to the date of purchase. The IO%% Senior Notes are senior unsecured obligations of the Company, and are 
subordinated t o  all cunent and future indebtedness of the Company's subsidiaries, including trade payables. 



PART I. FIh'ANCIAL IXFORhZATION 

item I(b). Financial Statements 

NEXTLINK Capital, Inc. 
Balance Sheets 
(Una u d i t ea) 

ASSETS 

September 30, 
1998 1997 

................... ........................................................................ Cash in bank i u u 
SKAREHOLDER'S EQUITY 
Common stock no par value, 

.............................. :u u 1,000 shares authorized, issued and outstanding 

Notes to Balance Sheets 

1. Description 
hZXTLhX Capital, Inc. (NEXTLINK Capital) is a H'ashington corporation and a wholly o w e d  subsidiary of 

hZXTLbX Communications, Inc. ( h T X T L M ) .  h Z X T L M  Capital was formed for the sole purpose of 
obtaining fmancing !?om external sources and is a joint obligor on the 12%% Senior Notes due April 15, 2006 of 
NEXTLTNK. NEXTLINK Capital H'U initially funded with a SI00 conuibution from NEXTLhK and has had no 
operations to  date. 

2. Basis of Presentltion 

T h e  interim financial statements have been p r t p a r i  uithout audit, pursuant to the rules and regulations of the 
Securities and Exchange Commission. These consolidated financial statements should bc read in conjunction with 
the audited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in the Company's Form IO-KSB LS filed 
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 25, 1998. 



PART I. Fh’ANCLAL INFORhZATION 

Item 2. hlanaeement’s  Discussion and Analvsis of Financial Condition and Results of O o e r a t i w  

OV E RVI E W 

Since its inception in 1994, the Company has executed a strategy of consovcting and acquiring fiber optic 
networks and acquiring related telecommunications businesses. Over this period, the Company has pursued this 
strategy by consuucting, acquiring, leasing fibers or capacity on, and entering into agreements to acquire local 
telecommunications networks. 

The Company develops and operates high capacity, local fiber optic networks with broad market coverage in a 
growing number of markets across the United States. In its switched local service markets, the Company offers iu 
customen a bundled package of local and long distance services md also offers dedicated transmission and 
competitive access services to long distance carriers and end users. The Company plans to acquire, build or develop 
networks in new areas, expand its c w e n t  networks, and also explore the acquisition or licensing of additional 
enhanced communications services and other telecommunications service providers. These ef for~~ should allow the 
Company to increase its presence in the marketplace, and facilitate providing a single source solution for the 
telecommunicatioPs needs of its customers. 

The Company currently operates 19 facilities-based network providing switched local and long distance 
services in 33 markets in 1 1 states. The Company sewes larger markets including New York, Los Angeles, Chicago, 
Atlanta and the San Francisco Bay Area, medium-sized markets such as Salt Lake City and Nashville, and clusters of 
smaller markets in Orange County, California and ccnml Pennsylvania. The Company anticipates developing 
additional new mvkets throughout a majority of the nation’s top 30 markets which, together with its existing 
markets, are expected to have 8 total of approximately 27 million addressable business lines by the end of 2000. The 
Company plans to launch service in Dallas, Denver and Miami in the fouth quaner of 1996 and in San Diego, 
Washington, D.C. and Seanle in the first half of 1999. The Company is also developing a national network strategy 
to enable it t o  offer its cutomers  complete, cnd-to-end voice and data communications services over NEXTLINK- 
ouned facilities . 

The table below provides selected key financial and operating data (dollars are in thousands): 

As of and  
For the Three Months 
Endcd September 30, 

1998 1997 
Financial data: 
Gross propeny and equipment ............................. s 51 1,204 S 214,320 
EBITDA ( 1  ) ......................................................... S (36,576) S (19,844) 

Operating data (2): 
Route miles (3). .................................................... 2,150 1,757 
Fiber miles (4) ...................................................... 158,987 124,399 
On-net buildings connected (5) ............................ 736 479 
Off-net buildings connected (6) ............................ 9,688 1,404 
Switches installed. ................................................ 18 13 
Access lines in service (7) .................................... 134,107 30,944 
Employees .......................................................... 2,065 1,027 

(1) EBITDA represents net loss before interest expense, interest income, depreciation, amortiration and deferred 
compensation expense. EBKDA i s  commonly used to malyre companies on the brsis of operating 
performance, leverage and liquidity. While EBIlDA should not be comed as a substitute for operating 
income or a better mesure  of liquidity than cash flow fiom operating activities, which are determined in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, it k included herein to provide additional 
information with respect to the ability of the Company to meet future debt service, capital expenditure and 
working capital requirements. 



The operating data includes 100% of the suitistics of the Lss Vegas network, which the Company manages and 
in which the Company has a 40% membership interest. 
Route miles refers to the number of miles of the telecommunications path in which the Company-ouned or 
l w e d  fiber optic cables are installed. 
Fiber miles refers to the number of route miles installed along a telecommunications path, multiplied by the 
Company's estimate of the number of fibers along that path 
Represents buildings physically connected to the Company's neworb ,  excluding those connected by 
unbundled incumbent local exchange h e r  ( U C )  facilities. 
Represents buildings connected to the Company's nehvorks through l w e d  or unbundled ILEC facilities. 
Represents the number of acctss lines in service, including those lines that vc provided through rua le  of 
Centrex senices, for which the Company is billing services. The Company serviced 33 12 resold access lines 
as of September 30, 1998. '2he Company defines an ateess line as a telephone conncdon khveen a customer 
purchasing local telephone services and "C. 'Ibis connection does not include the concept of access 
line equivalents (ALES), and is a one-for*ne relationship with no multipliers used for bunk ratios, extcpt for 
those mnh over which primary rate interfacc (PRI) service is provided, which an counted as 23 access lines. 

The Company builds its neworks to encompass the significant business conccnhions  in each area it serves, 
focusing on direct connections to end-user locations and ILEC central offices. The Company employs a uniform 
technology platform for each of its local exchange neworkt that is bared on the Nonel DMS 500 digital local and 
long distance combination switching platform and associated distribution technology. As of September 30, 1998, the 
Company had 16 operational Nonel DMS 500 switches, including one switch in its NEXTLAB facility, and 
currently plans to install three additional switches by the end of 1998. NEXTLAB is a filly functional model of one 
of the Company's networks, which serves as a testing facility for switch software and the Company's products and 
services and will serve as the Company's network operations control center. 

The development of the Company's businesses and the consmction, acquisition and expansion of its networks 
require significant expenditures, substantial porlions of which are incurred before the realiration of revenues. These 
expenditures, together with t h e  associated eaAy operating expenses, result in negative cash flow until an adequate 
customer base is established. However, as the cutomer base grows, the Company expects that incremental revenues 
can be generated with decreasing incremental operating expenses, which may provide positive contributions to cash 
flow. The Company has made the strategic decision to build high capacity networks with broad market covenge, 
which initially increases its level of capital expenditures and operating losses. The Company believes that over the 
long term this will enhance the Company's fvancial performance by increasing the traflic flow over the Company's 
networks. The Company has recently entered into leased dark fiber and fiber capacity arrangements which allow the 
Company, by installing one or more switches and related electronics, to enter a market prior to completing 
consuuction of its oun fiber optic network. 

JIESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

Revenue increased 182% to $37.8 million during the third quarter of 1998, t o m  $13.4 million in the same 
period in 1997. Year to date revenue of $96.4 million represented a 175% incrcrse t o m  the $35.1 million reported 
for the comparable period in 1997. The inmsse  was driven by 290% growth in revenues from bundled local and 
long distance services and dedicated services, as well u by the acquisitions of Start Technologies Corpontion (Start) 
and Chadwick Telecommunications Corpontion (Chadwick) in the fourth qurrter of 1997. Revenues reported in the 
third quarter of 1998 included $31.5 million derived from IOU! and long distance, competitive access, dedicated line 
services and shared tenant services and $6.3 million derived from enhanced communications services, primarily 
interactive voice response (IVR) services. The Company's IVR revenue comprised 16% and 28% of the Company's 
total revenues during the third quarter of 1998 and 1997, respectively. 

?he Company increased the number of customer access lines added during the quarter from 30,053 in the 
second quarter of 1998 to 31,220 during the third quarter of 1998. As of September 30,1998, the Company had 
134,107 access lines in service, compared to 50,131 as ofDecember 31, 1997 and 30,944 u of September 30,1997. 
Revenues bom the provision of such services are expected to continue to increase as a component of total revenues 



over future periods. Access lines in service includes those lines which are provided through resale of Centrex 
services, the number of which is decreasing over time as the Company converu those customers to its o w  network. 

Operating expenses consist of costs directly related to providing facilities-based network and enhanced 
communications services and also include salaries and benefits and related costs of operations and engineering 
personnel. Opeating expenses increased 136% in the third quarter of 1998 to $32.8 million, an increase of $18.9 
million over the third quarter of 1997. For the nine months ended September 30, 1998, operating expenses rose 
$49.6 million, or 138%, over the same period in 1997. These increases were attributed to increased network costs 
related to provisioning higher volumes of local, long distance and enhanced communications services, an incruse in 
employees and an i n c r w e  in other related costs primarily to expand the Company's switched loul and long d i swce  
service businesses in its existing and planned markets. To a lesser extent, the requisitions of S U  and Chadwick in 
the fourth quarler of 1997 also contributed to the increue in operating costs over those in the third quarter of 1997. 

Selling, general and adminismtivc (SGBA) expenses include salsries and related personnel costs, facilities 
expenses, sales md marketing, information systems costs, consulting and legal fees and equity in loss of affiliates. 
SGBA expenses inc rwed  115% and 126% in the h e  m d  nine-month periods ended September 30, 1998 IS 
compared to the conesponding periods in 1997. The incrwes were due to the Company's increase in employees, IS 
well as other costs associated with the expansion of the Company's switched local and long distance service 
businesses in its existing and planned markets. 

Dcfencd compensation expense was recorded in connection with the Company's Equity Option Plan until April 
1997, and in connection with the Company's Stock Option Plan, which replaced the Equity Option Plan, subsequent 
to April 1997. The stock options granted under the Qui ty  Option Plan were considered compensatory and were 
accounted for on a basis similar to that for stock appreciation rights. All options outstanding under the Equity Option 
Plan were r e p m d  under the new Stock Option Plan with terms and conditions substantially the same u under the 
Equity Option Plan. As such, the Company continues to record defened compensa:ion expense for those 
compensatory stock options issued, as well as for compensatory stock options issued subsequent to the Plan 
conversion date. Compensation expense is recognizcd over the vesting periods based on the excess of the fair value 
of the stock options at the date of grant over the exercise price. 

Depreciation expense increased primarily due to placement in service of additional telecommunications network 
assets, including switches, fiber optic cable, network electronics and related equipment. Amortization of intangible 
useu increased primarily as a result of the  star^ and Chadwick acquisitions in the fourth quarter of 1997. 

Lnterest expense increased 248% in the third quarter of 1996 over the comparable period in the prior year due to 
an inc rwe  in the Company's average outstanding indebtedness over the respective periods. Interest expense will 
increase in future periods in conjunction with the sale of SSOO.0 million in aggregate principal amount of IO%% 
Senjor Notes on November 12, 1998. See "-Liquidity and Capital Resources." Pursuant to Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards No. 34, the Company capitalizes a portion of its intenst costs u part of the consmetion cost 
of its communications networks. Capitalized interest during the f i t  nine months of 1998 totaled $3.0 million. 
Interest income resulu hom investment of excess cash IS well IS certain securities that have been pledged IS 
collatenl for interest payments on the 12%% Senior Notes. The increase in interest income for the three and nine- 
month periods in 1998 over the same periods in 1997 corresponded to the increue in the Company's avenge 
outstanding cash balances. 

bIOUIDITY Ah9 CAPITAL RESOURCES 

The competitive local telecommunications service business is a capital-intensive business. The Company's 
existing operations have required and will continue to require substantial capital invesment for the acquisition and 
installation of fiber, electronics and related equipment in order to provide switched services in the Company's 
n e w o r h  and the funding of opemting losses during the t u - u p  phase of each market. In addition, the Company's 
strategic plan calls for expansion into additional market areas. Such expansion will require significant additional 
capital for: potential acquisitions of businesses or assets; design, development and construction of new networks; and 
the fbnding of operating losses during the s M = u p  phase of each market. During the fvrt nine months of 1998, the 



Company used S104.8 million in cash for operating activities, compared to S59.2 million for the same period in the 
prior year. The increase was primarily due to a substantial increse in the Company's activities associated with the 
continued development and expansion of switched local and long distance service operations. During the fint nine 
months of 1998, the Company invested an additional $301.1 million in property and equipment and acquisitions of 
telecommunications bssets. During the same period in 1997, the Company invested $130.7 million in properly and 
equipment, acquisitions of telecommunications assets urd businesses and equity investments in telecommunications 
businesses. 

In July 1998, the Company announced the formation of INTERNEXT L.L.C., which is beneficially owned 50% 
each by the Company and Eagle River Investments, L.L.C (Eagle River). INTERNEXT entered into an agreement 
with Level 3 Communications LLC (Level 3). Level 3 is consmcting a national fiber optic network that is expected 
to cover more than 16,000 route miles with six or more conduits and connect 50 cities in the United States and 
Canada. Pursuant to this agreement, INTERNEXT will receive an exclusive interest in 24 fibers in a shared, filled 
conduit, one entire empty conduit and the right to 25% of the fibers pulled through the sixth and any additional 
conduits in the network. INTERNEXT will pay S700.0 million in cxcbange for these rights, the majority of which 
will be pajable u segments of the netwo& are completed aad accepted by IKIZRNEXT, which is expected to occur 
substantially during 2000 and 2001. The Company has guannteed 50% of the f'cial obligations of NTERNEXT 
under this agreement and, together with Eagle River, has also g u m t e e d  tbe perfonnance of certain other 
obligations of WTERNEXT thereunder. The Company anticipates that Nextel Communications, b c .  (Nextel) will 
acquire a one-third ounership interest in M T E W X T ,  which would reduce the Company's beneficial ownership 
interest in and obligations with respect to W R N E X T  to one-third. The Company is in the process of defining its 
plans for implementation of a national network strategy, which will require additional capital expenditures. 

In F e b m q  1998, the Company signed a defrnitive agreement with Metromedia Fiber Network for exclusive 
righu to multiple fibers and innerducts for 20 years, with two IO-year renewals. The route covered by the agreement 
cx?ends bom M u h a m  to White Plains 0, to Stamford (CT), to Newark (Nr) and south from Manhattan through 
Philadelphia, Wilmington (DE), Baltimore, and to Washington (DC). The route will offer frequent splice points 
within metropolitan areas and on routes between metopolitan a r e s ,  as well u provide access to ILEC central and 
tandem switching of5ces. The Company paid S92.0 million in cash for this transaction, $80.3 million of which was 
placed into escrow, to be released as segments of the route are consmcted and delivered to the Company. 

In Jbnuary 1998, the Company and Nextel formed NEXTBAND, a joint venture that is owned 50% each by the 
Company and Nextel. M X D A N D  was the successful bidder in 42 markets in the FCC's local multipoint 
disribution service (LMDS) auctions. The Company's pro rata share of NEXTBAND'S total bid in the LMDS 
auctions was S67.4 million, wbich was paid in full in June 1998. The Company is in process of definiig its 
operational and fmancial plans for implementation of ur LKDS smtegy, which will likely involve additional capital 
expenditures. 

On March 3, 1998, the Company completed the sale of $335.0 million in aggregate principal m o u n t  of 9% 
Senior Notes due March IS, ZOOS. Proceeds from the sale net of discounts, undenvriting commissions, advisory fees 
and expenses totaled approximately 5326.5 million. lnterest payments on the 9% Senior Notes are due semi- 
mua l ly ,  beginning September 1998. 

On March 31, 1998, the Company completed the sale of 4,000,000 shares of 6H% cumulative convertible 
preferred stock (a%% Preferred Stock) with a liquidation preference of $50 per share. The sale genented gross 
proceeds to the Company of S200.0 million, and p roc teb  net of undenvriting discounts, advisory fees and expenses 
of $193.8 million. Each share of 6%% Preferred Stock is convenible, at the option of the holder, into 1.145 shares of 
the Company's Class A common stock (subject to adjustments in certain circumstances). Dividends on the 6H.h 
Preferred Stock accme from March 3 1,1996 urd are payable quarterly in w h ,  beginning on June 30,1998. 

On April 1 , 1998, the Company completed the sale of 9.45% Senior Discount Notes (9.45% Notes), due Apnl 
IS, 2008. The 9.45% Notes were issued at a discount *om their principal amount to generate aggregate gross 
proceeds to the Company of approximately S400.0 million. Proceeds net of undenvriting commissions, advisory fees 
and expenses totaled S390.9 million. The 9.45% Notes accrete at a rate of 9.45% compounded semi-annually, to an 



aggregate principal mount of approximately $637.0 million by April IS, 2003. No cash interest will accme on the 
Notes until April 15,2003. Interest will become payable in cash semi-annually beginning on October 15,2003. 

On November 12, 1998, the Company completed the sale of $500.0 million in aggregate principal amount of 
IO%% Senior Notes due November IS, 2008. Proceeds from the sale net of underwriting commissions, advisory 
fees and expenses totaled approximately $488.5 million. Interest payments on the notes are due semi-fiually, 
beginning May 1999. Pursuant to a covenant in the indenture under which the lo%% Senior Notes were issued, the 
Company has agreed to use the net proceeds bom the sale for expenditures relating to the construction, improvement 
and acquisition of new and existing networks and services and direct or indirect investments in certain joint ventures 
(including NEXTBAND and RJTERNEXT) to fund similar expenditures. 

The Company will u e  the net proceeds from the sale of the 9 %  Senior Notes, the 6%% Preferred Stock the 
9.45% Notes, the IO%% Senior Notes (subject to the limitations described above) and existing unrestricted u s h  
balances for expenditures relating to the development, constmetion, acquisition and operation of telecommunications 
networks and service providers and the offering of telecommunications services in those areas where the Company 
currently operates or intends to operate. Expenditures for the consbuction md operation of networks include (i) the 
purchase and installation of switches and related electronics in existing nchorks and in networks to be constructed 
or acquired in new or adjacent markets, (ii) the purchase and installation of fiber optic cable and electronics to 
expand existing networks and develop new networks, including the connection of new buildings, (iii) the 
development of its comprehensive information technology platfonn, (iv) the acquisition of LMDS specmm 
purchased in the FCC's auction and the consmction and deployment of sssociated facilities and (v) the funding of 
operating losses and working capital. The Company may also acquire or invest in businesses that consist of existing 
networks or companies engaged in businesses similar to those engaged in by the Company and its subsidiaries or 
other c o m p l e m e n w  businesses. 

As of September 30, 1998, the Company had unrestricted cash and investments of $1,176.8 million and 
$1,665.3 million on a pro fonna basis after giving effect to the sale of the IO%% Senior Notes. The Company's 
c w e n t  plvr contemplates an aggressive expulsion into a number of new markets throughout the United States. The 
Company may pursue various alternatives for achieving its growth stntegy, including: additional network 
construction; additional leases of nework capacity fiom third parry providen; acquisitions of existing networks; and 
s p e c m  that was purchased during the LMDS auction and rssociated facilities construction and deployment. The 
Company also anticipates that a substantial amount of additional capital expenditures will be made in 1999 and 
beyond. The funding of these capital expenditures is expected to be provided by existing cash balances, future 
vendor andlor credit facilities, future public or private sales of debt securities, future sales of public or private capital 
stock md joint ventures. There can be no uswance, however, that the Company will be successful in nising 
sufficient additional capital on term that it will consider acceptable or that the Company's operations will produce 
positive consolidated cash flow in sufficient amounts to meet its interest m d  dividend obligations on its outstanding 
secrrrities. Failure to raise mad generate suficient funds may require !be Company to delay or abandon some of Its 
planned future expamion or expenditures, which could have a material advene effect on the Company's growth m d  
its ability to compete in the telecommunications services industry. 

In addition, the Company's openting flexibility with respect to  temin business matten is, m d  will continue to 
be, limited by covenants sssociated uith the 12H% Senior Notes, the 9 9 8 %  Senior Notes, the 9% Senior Notes, the 
9.45% Notes and the lo%% Senior Notes (collectively n f e m d  to as the Notes). Among other things, these 
covenants limit the ability of the Company rad its subsidiuies to incur additional indebtedness, m a t e  liens upon 
assets, apply the proceeds from the disposal of assets, nuke  dividend payments m d  other distributions on capital 
stock and redeem capital stock. In addition, the terms of the 14% Senior Exchangeable Redeemable Referred Shares 
(14% Preferred Shares) contain certain covenants that may limit the Company's openting flexibility with respec, to 
the incwrence of indebtedness and issuance of additional preferred shares, There wn be no assurance that such 
covenants will not adversely affect the Company's ability to fvlance its future operations or capital needs or to 
engage in other business activities that may be in the interest of the Company. 'Ihe Company was in compliance with 
all covenants associated with the Notes and the 14% Preferred Shares as of September 30,1991. 



IMPACT OF YEAR 2000 

Certain of the Company's older computer systems and applications were witten to defile a given year with 
abbreviated dates using the last two digits in a year rather than the entire four digits. As a resuls when computer 
systems attempt to process dates both before and after January 1,2000, two digit year fields may create processing 
ambiguities that can cause CKOB and system failures. For example, systems and applications may have lime-sensitive 
software that recognize an abbreviated year "00" as the year 1900 rather than the y w  2000. These emon or failures 
may have limited effects, or the effects may be widespread, depending on the computer chip, system, or softwan, 
and its location and function. 

The Company is currently assessing the impact of the Year 2000, and a formal Year 2000 plan (the "Plan") in 
expected to be completed and adopted by the Company by yearend 1998. The purpose of the Plan will be to 
develop and p e d o m  r u o n a b l e  steps intended to prevent the Company's tntical opentioral functions from being 
impaired due to the Y w  2000 problem. The fvst phase of the Company's Year 2000 assessmeng to be completed by 
December 1998, includes: 1) taking an inventory of Company-wide systems and equipment to determine the extent 
of testing required for Y w  2000 compliance (generally defined as the ability of information system to accurately 
process data from, into and between the twentieth and twenty-first centuries, including leap y w  calculations), 2) 
developing a strategy to manage vendors' and other outside entities' progress toward Year 2000 compliance, 3) 
designing a Company-wide Year 2000 communications plan, md 4) creating a risk assessment and impact analysis 
fiom which the Plan can be developed. The Company has engaged outside consultants to aid in formulating and 
implementing the Plan. 

The Company's assessments to date have indicated that its major operational suppon systems, including its 
billing, order managemen6 network managemen6 and financial systems are Year 2000 compliant. Ln addition, the 
Company has received positive confirmation from iu vendor that the Company's None1 DMS SO0 switches u e  also 
Year 2000 compliant. 

As part of the Plan and ongoing Year 2000 atsessmen4 the Company will continue its testing of existing 
telecommunications equipment and back ofice systems to assess the effects of the Year 2000 problem on those areas 
that would result in significant impairment to the Company's critical operations. Through its NEXTLAB facility, 
which operates separate and apart from the Company's operational switches, the Company has the m e w  to test 
switch configurations Without impacting its neworkr or customers, m d  the Company is using N E X W  to 
independently verify Y w  2000 compliance of its network systems and equipment. 

The Plan will also address the potential adverse effects to the Comprny in the event that the computer, 
telecommunications, and other systems of outside entities' (including vendors, customers, and local urd 
interexchange cam'ers and Internet service providers with which the Company interchanges W ~ C )  arc not Year 
2000 compatible. The Company does not have control of these outside entities or their systems. However, the 
Company's Plan will include ongoing identification of urd conact with such outside entities whose systems m y  
have a substantial effect on the Company's ability to continue to conduct the critical aspects of its opmtions without 
disruption 6om Year 2000 problems. In the event such outside systems are identified, the Company will work with 
the outside entities in a reasonable attempt to inventory, assess, malyrc, test, and develop contingency plant for the 
Company's connections to these outside entities and their Iystem and to determine the extent to which they m, or 
can be made to be, Year 2000 compliant. 

Costs IO Address Year 2000 Issucr 

The Company has not incurred material historical toss for Year 2000 awareness, inventory, assessment, 
analysis, conversion, testing, or contingency planning. Further, the Company anticipates that its future COSU for these 
purposes will not be material. 



Year 2000 costs are difficult to estimate accurately because of unanticipated vendor delays, technical 
difficulties, the impact of tests of outside entities' systems, and similar events. Although management believes that its 
estimates are reasonable, there can be no a~surance that the actual costs of implementing the Plan will not differ 
materially ffom the estimated costs or that the Company will not be materially adversely affected by Year 2000 
issues. Furthennore, the estimated costs of implementing the Plan do not consider the costs, if my,  that might be 
incurred as a result of Year 2000-related failures that occur despite the Company's implementation of the Ph. 

Year 2000 Risk Factors 

Between now and the year 2000 there will be increased competition for people with the technical m d  
managerial skills necessary to deal with the Year 2000 problem. The Company believes it employs m adequate 
number personnel skilled in dealing with the Year 2000 problem and has retained outside consultants who bring 
additional skilled people to deal with the Year 2000 problem u it affects the Company. Nevertheless, the Company 
could face shortages of skilled personnel or other resources, such as Year 2000 compliant computer chips. 'Ihese 
sbortages mjght delay or othensise impair the Company's ability to =sure that its critical systems are Year 2000 
compliant. Outside entities could face similar problems that could materially affect the Company. The Company 
believes that the possible impact of the shortage of skilled people and resources is not, and will not be, unique to the 
Company. 

The Company believes that its critical systems will be Year 2000 compliant before January I ,  2000. However, 
there is no u s m c e  that the Plan will succeed in accomplishing its purposes and unforeseen circumstances may 
arise during implementation of the Plan that would materially and adversely affect the Company. 

T h e  Company is taking reasonable steps to identify, assess, and, where appropriate, replace devices that contain 
embedded chips. Despite these reasonable cffons, the Company may not be able to fmd and remediate all embedded 
chips in all of the Company's systems. Further, ouuidc entities on which the Company depends also may not be able 
to fmd and remediate all embedded chips in their systems. Some chips that arc not Year 2000 compliant may create 
system disruptions or failures, which may, in tun, cause disruptions or failures in other systems. These cascading 
problems could impair the Company's ability to serve its customers and othenvise fulfill contractual and legal 
obligations. Tbe Company believes that the possible adverse impact of the embedded chip problem is no6 md will 
not be, unique to the Company. 

The Company cannot ensure that suppliers upon which it depends for essential supplies and services will wnven 
and test their critical systems and processes in a timely m w e r .  Failure or delay by all or some of these entities, 
including federal, state, or local governments, to make their systems rod processes Y w  2000 compliant could create 
substantial disruptions having a material adverse effect on the Company's opentiorus. 

In a recent Securities and Exchange Commission release regarding Year 2000 disclosure, the Securities and 
Exchange Commission stated that public companies must disclose the most reasonably likely worst mse Y c u  2000 
scenario. Although it is not possible to usess  the likelihood of m y  of the following events, each must be included in 
8 consideration of worst w e  scenarios: widespread f a i l w  of ele&cal, gas, m d  similar supplies serving the 
Company; widespread disruption of the services provided by common communications carriers; similar d h p t i o n  to 
the m e a  and modes of transpomtion for the Company and its employees, conmdors ,  suppliers, m d  customers; 
significant disruption to the Company's ability to gain acccss to, m d  remain working in, office buildings and other 
facilities; the failure of subsmtial numbers of the Company's critiul computer h a r d w e  and softu.are system, 
including both internal business systems and systems controlling opentional facilities such u elecdcal genention, 
tnmmission, and distribution systems; and the failure of outside entities' systems, including systems related to 
banking and fmance. Among other things, the Company could face tubnantial claims by customers or loss of 
revenue due to service intenuptions, inability to fulfill contractual obligations or to bill customers rccurately and on 
8 timely basis, and increased expenses associated with litigation, stabilization of operations following critical system 
failures, and the execution of contingency plans. The Company could also experience m inability by customers md 
others to pay, on a timely basis or at all, obligations owed to the Company. Under these circumstances, the adverse 
effecu on the Company would be material, although not quantifiable at this time. Further, the cumulative effect of 
these failures could have a substantial adverse effect on the economy, domestically m d  internationally. The adverse 



effect on the Company bom a domestic or global recession or depression also could be material, although not 
quantifiable at this time. 

The Company will continue to monitor business conditions to usess  and quantify material adverse effects, if 
any, that may result fiom the Year 2000 problem. 

Contingency PIom 

As part of the Plan, the Company is developing contingency plans that deal with two aspects of the Yur 2000 
problem: I )  that the Company, despite its good faith and reasonable efforts, may not have satisfactorily addressed the 
Year 2000 problem with respect to its critical internal systems and 2) that outside entities' systems may not be Y w  
2000 ready. The Company's contingency plant will be designed to minimize the disruptions or other adverse effects 
resulting bom Year 2000 incompatibilities with respect to critical functions or systems. 

The Company's contingency plans will contemplate m assessment of a11 its critical internal information 
technology systems and its internal operational systems that use computer-Lysed controls. In additioq the Company 
will assess any critical disruptions due to Year 2000-related failures that are external to the Company. l l e s e  
processes will begin January 1,2000, and uill continue as long as circumstances require. 

The Company's contingency plans will include the creation of teams that will be prepared to respond 
immediately and bs necessary to critical Year 2000 problems as soon as they become h o w .  The composition of 
t e a  that are assigned to deal with such problem will vary according to the nature, significance, and location of the 
problem. 

INFO R 51 A TI 05 REG A RDI NG FORM' A R D  LO 0 SUNG STATE M E  hTS 

The statements contained in this report and in sssociated prior filings by the Company with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission which are not historical facts are "fonvard-looking statements" (as such term is defined in the 
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995), which can be identified by the use of forward-looking 
terminology such as "believes", "expects", "may", **ill", "should", or "anticipates" or the negative thereof or other 
vuiarions thereon or comparable terminology, or by discussions of smtegy that involve r i s k  and uncertainties. Such 
forusrd-looking statements include, but are not limited to: the Company's plans to build, acquire or develop 
networks and offer senices in new areas, e x p a d  its current networks and explore the asquitition or licensing of 
additional enhanced eommdcations senices and otber t c l e c a " ' u t i o n s  service providers (md the effects of 
such efforu); the Company's development of a national m t e g y  for end-twnd communications services; the 
Company's presence in the marketplace and its ability to provide a tingle source solution for the telecommunications 
needs of its customers; the Company's anticipated development of m d  entry into new markets and market expansion 
(and timing thereof); its expected number of addressable business lines in markets where the Company opcntes and 
by the end of 2000; its p l w  to launch service in various cities; Its plans to insull additional switches by the end of 
1998; its expectation regarding incremental revenues, incremental operating expenses and conmiutions to cash flow; 
the Company's belief regarding its financial performrnce m d  trrfic flow over its networks; its expectations 
regarding revenue bom access lines u a percentage of total revenues; incrwet in interest expexse in fum periods; 
its requirements for capital investment; its use of proceeds from various tinancings; its anticipated capital 
expenditures; its intentions regarding LMDS technology; matten related to the natiorurl network being consmeted 
by Level 3, including network specifications, INTERNEXT'S interest thenin, the delivery of s e a e n t s  thereunder, 
md the cost thereof and the timing of payments for the network; the participation by other entities (including Nextel) 
in certain joint ventures and financial matters related thereto; m d  other statements contained herein ngvding  
matters that are not historical facts. Management wishes to caution the reader that these foruwd-looking statements 
we only predictions. These statements are based on a number of assumptions that ultimately could prove inaccmte 
urd, therefore, no assurance can be given that the future results will be achieved, &nul events or nsults may differ 
materially as a result of a number of factors, including those identified in the Company's m u a l  repon on Form 10- 
KSB (File No. 333-04603). Factors that could affect performance include: the level of the Company's future 
negative cash flows and operating losses incurred by the Company until it establishes m adequate revenue base a d  



generates substantial revenues from the provision of switched local and long distance services; successfi~lly 
generating or raising on terms that the Company will consider acceptable sufficient capital to accommodate planned 
future expansion and expenditures; continued attraction and retention of qualified managerial, professional and 
technical personnel; timely installation of the required switches, fiber optic cable and associated electronics 
necessary to provide switched local service in a manner that will permit the resolution of technical problems; 
successfully negotiating new and, to the extent necessary, renegotiating existing interconnection agreements; 
successfully developing effective systems relating to ordering, provisioning and billing for telecommunications' 
services; successfully offering, marketing and selling twitched local services and other enhanced products and 
sentices in all of the Company's networks u quickly as pncticable; sufficient access to the ILEC's networks and 
rdequate cooperation therefrom to connect new customers to the Company's network on 8 t h e l y  basis; identifying, 
fiancing and completing suitable acquisitions; maintaining existing, and obtaining and maintaining new, hnchises,  
permits and rightsof-way and any required governmental ruthoriutions, hnchises  and pennits on r timely basis; 
competition bom incumbent providers and new entrants; the n a m e  of regulatory, legislative and judicial 
developments; rapid and significant changes in technology; and risks related to the Company's national network and 
LMDS strategies. These are representative of factors that could affect the outcome of the fonvard-looking 
statements. In addition, such statements could be affected by geneml industry and market conditions and economic 
conditions including interest rate fluctuations. 

NE\!' ACCOUhTING STAhaARD 

Ln April 1998, the AICPA released Statement of Position 96-5, "Reporting on the Costs of Start-up Activities" 
(SOP 98-5). The new standard requires that all entities expense costs of start-up activities as those costs we incuned. 
SOP 98-5 defines "start-up costs" fs those costs directly related to pre-operating, preopening, and organization 
activities. This standard must be adopted in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 1998. The adoption of SOP 
98-5 will not have a material impact the Company's financial position. 



PART 11. OTHER INFORMATION 

Item 1. 

item 2. 

Item 3. 

Item 4. 

Item S. 

Item 6. 

Leeal Proceedines 

The Company is not currently a party to any legal proceedings, other than regulatory and 
other proceedings that are in the normal course of its business. 

chanees in Securities and Use of Pro ceedi 

The Company filed a registration statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-3200]) which 
became effective on September 26, 1997, whereby 15,200,000 shares of Class A common 
stock, S.02 par value per share, were sold in an initial public offering (SPO) at 8 price of S17 
per share. Of the 15,200,000 shares of Class A common stock sold, 12,000,000 were sold 
by the Company and 3,200,000 were sold by a selling shareholder. The Company did not 
receive any of the proceeds from the sale of shares by the selling shareholder. In addition, 
the undehvriten of the PO, led by Salomon Brothers Inc, exercised an option to purchase 
2,280,000 additional shares of Class A common stock at the s m e  price per share. Net 
proceeds to the Company from the initial public offering totaled approximately $226.8 
million, after deducting undemiting discounts, advisory fees 'md expenses aggregating 
approximately 516.0 million. The Company intends to use substantially all of the net 
proceeds from the initial public offering for expenditures relating to the expansion of 
existing networks and services, the development and acquisition of new networks and 
services and the funding of operating losses and working capital. None of the proceeds from 
this offering had been used as of September 30, 1998. 

The Company filed a registration statement on Fom S-1 (File No. 333-32003) which 
became effective on September 26, 1997, whereby the Company sold $400.0 million 
aggregate principal amount of 9 9 8 %  Senior Notes. The offering w11s led by Salomon 
Brothers Inc. Net proceeds from the sale of the 9 9 8 %  Senior Notes totaled approximately 
S388.5 million, after deducting issuance costs aggregating approximately $1 1.5 million, 
relating to u n d e n ~ t i n g  discounts, advisory fees and expenses. The use of proceeds from 
the debt oKering is expected to be subswtially the same as the Company's initial public 
offering. Approximately $349.8 million of the proceeds bom this offering had been used as 
of September 30, 1998, S209.1 million of which was used for the purchase of properry and 
equipment, $20.5 million for the network lease agreement entered into in February 1998, 
and the remainder was used to fund the Company's openitions and working capital 
requirements. 

. .  Pefaults UDO n Senior S e c w  

None. 

Submission of M aften to a Vote of Securitv H o l d m  

None. 

Dther In fomat i~n  

None. 

Exhibits and R C D O ~  on Form 8 4  

(a) Exhibits 

3.1 Cenificate of Incorporation of NEXTLWK Communications, Inc. (1) 

3.2 Bylaws ofNEXTLINK Communications, h c .  (1) 
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3.3 Anicles of Incorporation of NEXTLMK Capital, lnc. (2) 

3 A Bylaws of NEXTLMK Capital, Inc. (2) 

4.1 Form of Exchange Note Indenture, by and among NEXTLMK Communications, 
Inc. and United States T w t  Company of New York, as Trustee, relating to the 
Exchange Notes, including fonn of Exchange Notes. (3) 

4 2  Certificate of Designations of the Powen, Preferences and Relative, 
Parricipating, Optional and Other Special Rights of 14% Senior Exchangeable 
Redeemable Preferred Shares and Qualifications, Limitations and Restrictions 
Thereof. (1) 

4.3 

4.4 

4.5 

4.6 

4.7 

Form of stock cenificate of 14% Senior Exchangeable Redeemable Preferred 
Shares. (3) 

Indenture, dated as of April 25, 1996, by and among NEXTLlNK 
Communications, Inc., NEXTLMK Capital, Inc. and United Sutes Trust 
Company ofNew York, as T w t e e ,  relating to 12%% Senior Notes due April 15, 
2006, including form of global note. (2) 

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of January 31, 1997, by and among 
N E X T L M  Communications, Inc., NEXTLMK Communications, L.L.C., 
NEXTLM); Capital and United States Trust Company of New Yorl; as Tnrstee. 
(3 1 

Form of Indenture between United States Trust Company, as Trustee and 
NEXTLIFT); Communications, Inc., relating to the 9 518% Senior Notes due 
2007. (4) 

Indenture, dated March 3, 1998, between United States Trust Company, as 
Trustee and NEXTLINK Communications, Inc., relating to the 9% Senior Notes 
due 2008. (5 )  

4.8 Certificate of Designations of the Powers, Preferences and Rel8tive, 
Participating, Optional and Other Special Rights of 6%W Cumulative 
Convertible Preferred Stock and Qualifications, Limitations and Resuictions 
Thereof. (1) 

4.9 Indenture, dated April 1, 1998, between United States T a t  Company, as 
Trustee and NEXTLMK Communications, Inc. relating to the 9.45% Senior 
Discount Notes due 2008. (6) 

4.10 Second Supplemental Indenture, dated June 3, 1998, amending Indenture dated 
April 25, 1996, by and among =INK Communications, Inc., NEXTLMK 
Capital, Inc. and United States Trust Company of New Yo* ns Trustee. ( I )  

4.1 1 First Supplemental Indenture, dated June 3, 1998, unending Indenture dated 
September 25, 1997, by and between NEXTLM Communications, lnc. and 
United States Trust Company of New Yorl; LS Tmtec .  (1) 

First Supplemental Indenture, dated June 3, 1998, amending lndenhrre dated 
March 3, 1998, by and between NEXTLINK Communications, Inc. and United 
Sutes Trust Company of New York, as Tnutee. (1) 

4.12 
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4.13 

10.1 

10.2 

10.3 

10.4 

10.5 

10.6 

10.7 

10.8 

27 

Cost Sharing and IRU Agreement dated July 18,1998, between Level 3 
Communications, LLC and MTERNEXT LLC. (7) 

Stock Option Plan of NEXTLINK Communications, Inc., as amended. (1) 

Employee Stock Purchase Plan of NWlTLMK Communications, Inc. (1) 

Registration Rights Agreement dated as of Janurvy 15, 1997, between the 
predecessor of NEXTLMK Communications, Inc. and the signatories listed 
therein. (3) 

Preferred Exchange and Regismtion Rights Agreement, dated as of January 3 1, 
1997, by and among the predecessor of NEXT'LMK Communications, Inc. urd 
the Initial Purchasers. (3) 

Fiber Lease and Innerduct Use Aicement, dated as of February 23, 1998, by 
and between NEXTLMK Communications, Inc. and Metromedia Fiber 
Network lnc. (5 )  

Amendment No. 1 to Fiber Lease and Innerduct Use Agreement, dated as of 
March 4, 1998, by and between NEXTLMK Communications, Inc. and 
hlelromedia Fiber Network, Inc. (5) 

Guaranty Agreement, dated July 18, 1998, between NEXTLINK 
Communications, Inc. and Level 3 Communications, LLC. 

Cost Sharing and IRU Agreemen< dated July 18, 1998, between Level 3 
Communications, LLC and MTEFWEXT LLC. (7) 

Financial Data Schedule 

(1 )  Incorporated herein by reference to the exhibit filed with the Regismtion Statement on 
Form S-4 of NEXTLM): Communications, Inc. and NEXTLMK Capital, Inc. 
(Commission File No. 333.53975). 

(2) Incorporated herein by reference to the exhibit filed with the Registration Statement on 
Form S-4 of NEXTLMK Communications, L.L.C. (the predecessor of NEXTLINK 
Communications, Inc.) urd Capital, Inc. (Commission File No. 3334603). 

(3) Incorporated herein by reference to the exhibit filed with the h u r l  Report on Form 
10-KSB for the year ended December 31,1996 of NEXTLINK Communications, Inc. 
urd NEXTLINK Capital, Inc. (Commission File Nos. 33344603 and 3330460391). 

(4) Incorporated henin by reference to the exhibit filed with the Registration Statement on 
Fonn S-1 of NEXlLMK Communications, Inc. (Commission File No. 333-32003). 

(5) Incorporated herein by reference to the exhibit filed with the h u a l  Repon on Form 
IO-KSB for the y w  ended December 31,1997 of NEX'LlNK Communications, inc. 
and NEXTLINK Capitrrl, Inc. (Commission File Nos. 33344603 and 333-04603-01). 

(6) Incorporated herein by reference to the exhibit filed with the quarterly repon on Form 
10-Q for the quarterly period ended M u c h  3 1, 1998 of NEXTLM Communications, 
Inc. and NEXTLMK Capital, Inc. (commission File No. 000-22939). 

(7) Ponions of this exhibit were omitted and filed sepantely with the Secretary of the 
Commission pursuant to NEXTLMK Communications, Inc.'r Application Requesting 
Confidential Treament under Rule 24(b)-2 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. 
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(b) Repom on Form 8-K 

Current report on Fonn 8-K, filed July 20, 1998, regarding the 
announcement by James Voelkcr of his resignation as President and a 
director of the Company and the appoinment of George Tronsrue as 
President of the Company. 

Current report on Fonn 8-y filed July 22,1998, regarding MTERNEXT 
L.L.C., of which each of the Company and Eagle River Invesments 
L.L.C. beneficially owns a one-half interesg entering into a Cost Sharing 
and IRU Agreement with Level 3 Communications, LLC. 



SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regisWants have duly caused this repon to be signed 
on their behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized. 

NEXTLINK Communications, Inc. 

Date: November 16, 1998 

Date: November 16, 199s 

By: [ s f  Kathleen H. I s b a  
Kathleen H. Is&a 
Vice President, Chief Financial Oficer and 
Treasurer 
(Principal fmancial and accounting officer) 

NEXTLINK Capital, Inc. 

By: /SI Kathleen H. Iskra 
Kathleen H. I s h  
Vice President, Chief Financial Oficer and 
Treasurer 
(Principal fmancial md accounting officer) 
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NEXTLINK Communications, Inc. 
NEXTLINK Capital, Inc. 

PART I 

Item I.  Descripriom of Business 

Copirokrd teriiis used hereiii which are nor orlienvise dejined have the respeaiw nieartiiigs ascribed IO 
[herit irr d ie  G/osSorj: begirinirrg or1 page 19. 

Overview 

NEXTLINK Communications, Inc. ("NEXTLINK(* or the "Company") u a s  founded in 1994 by 
Craig 0. NcCa\\ ,  its largest and controlling shareholder, 10 provide local facilities-based telecommunications 
services to its targeted customer base of small and medium-sired businesses. In July 1996, NEXTLINK 
became one of the first competitive local exchange caniers ("CLECs") in the United States to provide 
facilities-based switched local ser\kes under the Telecommunications Act of 1996 (the "Telecom Act"), 
which o?encd the entire local exchange market to competition. In each of the markets it serves, NEXTLINK 
seeks to become 3 principal competitor to the incumbent local exchange carrier ("ILEC") for its targeted 
customers by p:o\.iding an integrated package of high quality local, long distance and enhanced telecommuni- 
caiions ser\.ices at com?etiti\.e prices. I n  October 1997. the Company completed an initial public offering of 
sha res  of i t s  Ckss A Common S!ock. 

The r - x k e !  p o x m i d  for coi:ip:tiii\.e telecoinmunications services is large and gro\ving. Industr\. sources 
e s l imi t e  thsr i n  1996 the  1o:.11 re\'cnues from local and long distance telecommunications services \\ere 
~ ~ F ~ c s ~ ; T ~ ~ I c I ! .  SI S.3 billion. 'of which a?:ro~im3tel!. 51 01 billion were dtrived from local exch3nge services 
and 3~pio \ in13i~l !~  SS.2 billion fro:ii long distance services. Based upon FCC information, aggregate revenues 
for loc2l and long distsncc senices grcu' at s compounded annual rate of approximately 5.5% between 1991 
and 1996. The Tclecom ACI, the FCC's issuance of rules for competition and pro-competitive policies 
d:;.eloped b!. s t a x  regulatop,  coinniissions, h2s created opporlunities for new entrants, including the 
Compr,!'. i o  c?:::ire 3 pOZiOn of th: ILEC's d o m i n m .  and historically monopoly controlled, market share of 
local s:r\.j:es. The de\~elcpriieni of s n  iiched local services competition, howvcr,  is in its early stages, and the 
Ccmpzn! belie\ .es that CLECs currentl!. stri'e f w e r  than 55 of the total business lines in the Uniled States. 

The Con:?.n!'s txgeted customer base uithin the national telecommunications market is small to 
niedium-sized businesses. gcner~ll!~ those businesses with fewer than 50 access lines. Based on consultants' 
rcpo:ts. t h e  Compzn!. estiniaies lh31 as of year end 1996, there \\ere approximately 170 million access lines 
njtion\\.ide, including ap?rosimstcl!, 55 million business lines. 

The Compmy develops and operates high capacity, fiber optic net\wrks with broad market coverage in a 
growing number of markets across the United States. In its switched local service markets, the Company 
offers its customers a bundled package of local and long distance services and also offers dedicated 
transmission and competitive access services IO long distance carriers and end users. In  addition, NEXTLINK 
offers several non-network-based enhanced communications services IO customers nationwide, including a 
varict!, of interactive voice response ("IYR") products. 

The Company currently operates 16 facilities-based networks providing switched local and long distance 
services in 26 markets in eight states. The Company anticipates developing additional new markets during 
1998 v.hich, together with its existing markets, are expected to  have a total of approximately IS million 
addressable business lines by the end of 1998. The Company's goal is to add or expand markets to increase its 
addressable business lines for markets in service or under development to approximately 21 million by the end 
of 1999. 



The Company's goal of targeting IS million addressable business lines by year cnd 199s represents P 361 
increase over (lie Compirny's previous objective. The Conipany has increased its line t q e t s  b m d  principi\IIp 
on three factors: initial success in establishing networks and launching services in major nieiropolitan markets 
in 10s  Anpeles, Chicago and Philadelphia; the Company's significnnt growth in the tale and instidlation of 
access lines throughout all markets; and the Company's review of stvtri\l potential target nr;\rkcts, liich 
underlined the significant market opportunities available to NEXTLINK in those markets. 

NEXTLIVK is pursuing its targeted customer base in markets of all sites. In  larger markets, the 
Company has operationnl networks in 10s Angeles. Chicago and Philadelphia, and networks under develop- 
ment in Netv York City, the San Francisco Bay' Area and Atlanta. The Company also has operational 
networks in niedium-sized markets such as Las Vegas and Nasliville as well as smaller markets that have been 
clustered in Orange County, California and central Pennsylvania. The Company 1 4 1  enter large markets on a 
stand-alone basis where i t  is economically attractive to do so and where competitive and other market factors 
warrant such entry. The Company also considers pursuing smaller markets where i t  can extend or cluster an 
existing netuork with relatively little incremental capital. The Company anticipates that the addressable 
business lines in t h e  larger markets that i t  is currently operating and developing will represent the majority of 
the Compsny's addressable business lines by year end 199s and 1999. 

KEXTLIXK has experienced significant growth in its custonier base. NEXTLINK'S custonier access 
lines i n  ser\.icc have increased froni 8-51 1 access lines at December 31. 1996 to 50,131 ilcccss lines at 
Deceniber 31, 1997. This grouth is attributable to both new network 1aunches as well as significant increases 
i n  g rou th  ra tes  i n  those markets \ \ l iere the Company Inunched service in 1996. For markets lunched  in 1996, 
t h e  Conpn!. has  increased i t s  access lines in service by l4S5, from 8 3 1  1 10 29.591 at Dtceniber 31. 1996 
d n d  1997. rcspecti\ely, representing 515 of the Comp;in)'s over;lll incrensc in nccess lines in scrvicc over the 
rt5Fccti\e periods. T h e  Compnn! h3s also impro\xd t h e  qu~iet l ! .  r31e of access line inst311~tions froin 1.604 in 
the  f w r i h  c u m c r  of 1996 to 19.1S7 in the  fourth quar te r  of 1997. Appro\iiiimly 325 of the increrw in tot31 
qdarierl! insirtll~tions \ \as d r i w n  b!, 3 n  increase i n  q u a r t e r l ~ ,  install~tions in those niarkcls l unched  in 1996. 
\ \ l iere insisllstions incrcsscd froni 1.601 in  the fourth quar te r  1996 to 7.293 in  the fourth quarter  of 1997. 

S E X T L I S K  b e l i e w  1113: 2 critical f x t o r  i n  the successful imp1ement;ition of its stwtegy is the quality 
of its ; i idnz_renicn t  k 3 n i  n n d  their extensi\.e experience in tlie telecommunic3tions industr:. The Company has 
b L i l 1  z mn3gein:n: teai i i  th3t i t  b c l i ew  is \wll suited to challenge the doniinmce of the ILECs in the local 
eychang:  mdrAc1. Craig 0. hlcCa\\ .  the Compan!,'s founder and largest and con troll in_^ sh;ireliolder. 
Sic\ en \\'. Hooper.  tlie Comp3n!'s Chsirman of the  Board. \\'q.ne hl. Perq!, the Comp;ln!*'s \'ice Ch i rn i an  
a n d  Chicf E\eccti\,e OficcI. Jsints F. \'oelker. t h e  Compnn!,'s President. and George h!. Tronsrue I l l .  the 
Coi?ip?n!"s Chief Operating Ofiiicer. each h3s 15 or more !.ears of experience in  leading conipmies in  
co: ;?~eri : i \ t  s:gnxnts of the telecoinmunications indust?,. I n  addition. t h e  presidents of t h e  Conipan!.'s 
operdling scbsidixies 3 n d  tlie Conipm!,'s senior oficcrs have an average of 14 years of esperience in the 
i e l e c o ~ ~ ~ : ~ ~ j c , i t i o n s  indust? I h l r .  Hooper and Aft. Perry uere  nienibers of thc senior nianagem:nt team at 
hIcC3\\  C e l l u l ~ r  Conimunications, I n c .  ("hlcCan Cellular") during the )'cars in I\ liich i t  became the nation's 
largest ccllul3r iclcphonc compan).. Folio\\ inp XlcCa\\ Cellular's sale to AT&T Corp. in 1991, Messrs. Perry 
and Hooper \\.ere \'ice Chairman and Chief Executi\t Officer, respectively. of A T k T  \\'ireless Services. lnc. 

, .  

X I 3  rkc t 0 p por t u n if y 

Prior to 19S4, ATPT Cop. ("AT%T") dominated boih the local excliange and long distance 
marketplace b!, owning the operating entities that provided both local exchange and long distance services to 
mosi of the U.S. population. While long distance competition began to emerge in the late 1970s, the critical 
event triggering the growth of long distance competition was the breakup of AT&T and the separation of its 
local and long distance businesses as mandated by the  Modified Final Judgment relating to the breakup of 
A T k T  (the "MFJ"). To foster competition in the long distance market, the MFJ prohibited ATkT's divested 
local cxchsnge businesses, the Regional Bell Operating Compjnies ("RBOCs"), from acting as 3 single 
source proiider of telecommunications services. 
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The Cornpan), believes that a similarly c'ritical event occurred in 1996 with the passage of the Telecom 
Act. In  niost locations throughout the United States, the ILEC has operated with a virtual monopoly over the 
provision of niost local exchange services. Hoivevcr, just as competition slo~vly emerged in the long distance 
business prior to the MFJ,  competitive opportunities also have slou.ly emerged over the last 10 p a r s  at the 

Industry sources estimate that in 1996 the total revenues from local and long distance telecommunica- 
tions services were approximately $ 1  83 billion, of which approximately $101 billion were derived from local 
exchange services and approximately 582 billion from interlATA long distance services. Based upon F C C  
information. apgregate revenues for local and long distance services grew at a compounded annual rate of 
3pproximatcly 5.5% between 1991 and 1996. Although the hlFJ relating to the breakup of A T k T  established . 
the preconditions for competition in the market for long distance services in 1984, the market for local 
exchange services has been, until  recently, virtually closed to competition and has largely been dominated by 
regulated monopolies. Efforts to open the local exchange market began in the late 1980s on a state-by-state 
basis when conipetitive access providers ("CAPS") began offering dedicated private line transmission and 
special access strikes. These types of s e n k e s  together currently account for approximately 12% of the total 
local exchange revenues. CAPS were restricted, often by state laws, from providing the other, more frequently 
used services such as basic and switched services, which today account for approximately 8870 of local 
exchange revenues. 

The Telecom Act and the FCC's issuance of rules for competition, particularly those requiring the 
interconnection of all net\\orks and the interchange of traffic among the ILECs and the CLECs, as wll as 
pro-comp:titive policies already de\,eloped by state regulatory commissions, have caused fundamental changes 
in t h e  structure of t h e  local exchange markets. Alihouph a recent decision by the United States Coun of 
A ~ p e ~ l s  for th: Eighih Circuit subst;lntially limits the FCC's jurisdiction and expands the state regulators' 
jurisdiciion to sei and enforce rules go\.erning the development of local competition, most states ha\x already 
b e p g n  I O  e s t~b l i s l i  r u l e s  for loc;ll competition t h a t  are consistent with the FCC rules o iwurned  by the Eighth 
Circuit. S:e "- Regulatory O\en+w." 

These d:\,e!cpments c rea~c  opportunities for ne\\ entrants offeying local exchange services to capture a 
poriion o f  :he  ILEC's dominmt. and historicall). monopol!. controlled, market share of local services. The 
de\~t!c:mcni of st\ iiched local ser\,ices competition, ho\\ever, is in its e3rly stages and the Compan!, believes 
11131 CLECs current)! serve f t u r  than 55 of the total business lines in the United States. 

S E X T L I S K  belic\.es th31 t h e  Fro\*isions of the Telccom Act requiring the lLECs to cooperate on a 
tc;hr,ic~l le\,e! i i h  com~e:irors are as significant as the Telecom Act's provisions eliminating state laws 
b3rrir.g conip:ti!ors from enter ing t h e  local exchange services markel. Under the Teleconi Act, the FCC and 
s a t e  re;ul3iors 3re required to ensure t h a i  ILECs implenient: 

Interconnection - provides competitors the right to connect to the ILECs' networks at any techni- 
c.ill), f es ib lc  point 2 n d  to obtain access to its rights-ofwa).; 

Unbundling of the  Lo:al Network - allo\\~s competitors to purchase and utilize components of the 
ILECs' net\\ork selectively; 

Reciprocal Compensation - establishes the framework for pricing bctueen the CLEC and the ILEC 
for use of each other's networks; and 

h'umbcr Portability - a l low ILEC customers to retain their current telephone numbers when they 
swiich to 3 CLEC. 

I n  addition, the Telecom Act provides that lLECs that are subsidiaries of RBOCs cannot combine in- 
repion, long distance senpices across local access and transport areas ("LATAs") with the local services they 
offer unt i l  they have demonstrated that they have complied with certain regulatoy requirements relating to 
local competition. See 'I- Regulatory Overview." One federal district coun has ruled that the Telecom Act's 
restrictions on RBOC long distance entry are unconstitutional. This decision has been stayed pending appeal. 
See '' - Federal legislation." The Company believes it will have an opportunity to gain market share in 

loci\l level. 
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certain markets by combining local and long distance services in a single offering to its customers before that 
market's ILEC, if i t  is 3 subsidiary of a RBOC, is permitted to do so. 

Business Strategy 

The Company has built an end user-focused, locally oriented organization dedicated to providing 
switched local and long distance telephone service at competitive prices to small and medium-sized 
businesses. The key components of the Companyls strategy to become a leading provider of competitive 
telecommunications services and to maximize penetration of its targeted customer base an: 

Provide Iriregmied Trleconirriirriicarions 'Sen~ices IO SiriaII arid Mediuni-Si:ed Btrsirresses.' The  
Company primarily focuses its sales efforts for switched local and long distance services on small and 
medium-sited businesses and professional groups, those businesses having fewer than 50 business lines. 
The Company's market research indicates that these customers prefer I single source for all of their 
telecommunications requirements, including products, billing, installation, maintenance and customer 
service. The Company has chosen to focus on this segment based on its expectations that higher gross 
margins will generally be available on services provided to these customers as compared with larger 
business, and that ILECs may be less likely to apply significant resources towards retaining these 
customers. The Company expects to attract and retain these customers through a direct sales effort by 
obcring: ( i )  bundled local and long distance services, as \vel1 as the Company's enhance communications 
services; ( i i )  up to a 10% to 15% discount to coniparable.pricing by the ILEC as well as promotional 
discounts, depending on the individual market: and ( i i i )  responsive customer service and account 
management pro\,ided on a local level. 

Fosrer Decejirrnli:cil Lotnl JVu/ ingerwi i  urid Conrrd. The Con ipng  believes that its success is 
enh3nc:d b!, building loc;iIl! bssed nimapcnient teams 11131 are responsible for the Conipang's success in 
e x h  of t h e i r  opentionol markets. The Compan!, hrs recruited experienced entrepreneurs and industy 
e \ ccu t i \  es as  presidcnis of each of the Conipan!,'~ operating subsidiaries, many of whom have previously 
bzil; 2 n d  led t h e i r  o \ w  start-up tcleconiniunic~tions businesses. The local presidents and their teams are 
charged w i t h  achieving growth obj:itives i n  their resp:ctive markets and have decision making authority 
i n  ke!, operating areas. including custonier care, network growth and building connectivitg, and managing 
t h e  rclstionship and provisioning efforts with the ILEC. The Company hzs esi3blished an incentive based 
cmpcnssiion policy for these management teams that is based upon the achievement of targeted growth 
a n d  oi~ersiional objecti\.es. The Conipm!, believes th3t this local management focus udl  provide a critical 
cor.:pe;iti\.e edge in custonier acquisition and retention in each market. 

Fxri l ier Dri~eloj) €flec:iw D i m :  Soles orid Cwonier  Core 0rgnrii:aiion.c. KEXTLlNK is building 
a highly nio!i\.died and exptrienced direct s3les force 3nd custonier care organization that is designed to 
establish 3 direct a n d  personal relationship with its custoniers. The Company has expanded its sales force 
from 9s sslespeople 31 ~ e s r  end 1996 to 223 siilespeople at December 31, 1997. The Company expects to 
f u r t h e r  increase its sales force IO approhatel!. 350 salespeople by year end 1998. Salespeople are given 
incentixs through a commission structure that targets 40% of a salesperson's compensation to be based 
on performance. To  ensure customer satisfaction, each customer will have a single point of contact for 
custonier care who is responsible for solving problems and responding to customer inquiries. The  
Compsny has expanded its customer care organization from 36 customer care employees at year end 
1996 to 162 custonier care employees at December 31, 1997. The Company expects to  further increase its 
custoiner care organization to approxinutely 275 customer care employees by year end 1998. 

Cotirinuowly Improve Provisioning Processes IO Acceleralr Revenrte Growrh. The  Company be- 
lieves that a significant ongoing challenge for CLECs will be to continuously improve provisioning 
systems, which include the complex process of transitioning lLEC customers to the Company's network. 
Accordingly, the Company will continue to identify and focus, as 8 key competitive rtratqy, on 
implementing best provisioning practices in each of its markets that ui l l  provide for rapid and seamless 
transitions of customers from the ILEC to the Compsnp. To support the provisioning of its services, the 
Company has begun the long-term development and implementation of a comprehensive information 
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technology platform geared toward deljvering inforniation and automated ordering and provisioning 
capability directly to the end user as \vel1 as to  the Company's internal staff. The Company believes that 
these practices and its comprehensive information technology platform. as developed. w,ill  provide the 
Coinpan), with a long-term competitive advantage and allo\v i t  to niore rapidly implement s i \  itched local 
services in its markets and to shorten the time between the receipt of a customer order and the generation 
of revenues. The Company's improving capacity to provision access lines to its nct\vorks is reflected in the 
number of access lines insralled per business day. For those markets in uhich the Company has ofl'ered 
switched local services since 1996, the rate increased from 41 installations per business day in the first 
quarter of 1997 to 309 per business day in the fourth quarter of 1997. 

Der.elop High Capnciry Fiber Opic A'ertt*orks wilh Broad Market Cowage. NEXT11 SK designs . 
its networks with a long-term vie\v focusing on three key elements. First, the Company designs and builds 
its networks to provide extensive coverage of those areas where the density of business lines is highest and 
to enable the Company to provide direct connections 10 a high percentage of nfarby commercial buildings 
and ILEC central oRces situated near the network. Over time, this broad coverage is expected to result in 
a higher proportion of traffic that is both originated and terminated on the Company's networks, which 
should provide higher long-term operating margins. In addition, the Company is participating in the 
FCC's Local Multipoint Distribution Service ("LMDS") auction which, depending on the bidding and 
deployment costs, niay offer an economically efficient means to supplement the Company's fiber network 
build-out in sonic localities. Furthermore, a wireless local loop, alternative may create competitive 
pressure on high unbundled loop costs in certain areas. Second, the Conipany constructs high capacity 
networks t h a t  utilize large fiber bundles capable of carrying high volumes of voice. dilta. video and 
Internet trJiiic as \\.ell as other high band\\ idth services. This strategy should reduce potential "ovctbuild" 
cos:$ and Fro\, idc added netuork cllpacit!, as the Conipan!, adds high bandoidth services in the future. In 
.4!13nts. C1:icd;Fo. Veri l ' o r k  and h'enark. Ne\ \  Jersey. the Company will urilize \eased dark fiber and 
fiber capazir! to launch f3ciliries-based ser\*ices and begin building a custoiiier base in advance of 
cmnpie~ing construction of its oun fiber optic net\\sork in these markets. Third. the Conipan). e ~ i i p l o ~ s  3 
uniform t::hnolog!. p1:tforiii bssed on ~ o r t c l  DblS 500 switches. as~ociiited distribution technology and 
o:hcr common trJnsrnission technologies cnabiing the Company to ( i )  deploy features and functions 
qsickl! i n  311 of i t s  net\\orks, ( i i )  expnnd switching capacit), in a cost effective iiianner and ( i i i )  lower 
m a i n t e n m e  costs through reduced training and spare parts requirements. The  Conipan). currently has 12 
op:ra!ion2l So:!el DYIS 100 s\\itches. including one installed s\vitch at the Conipanj. '~ testing and 
ne!\\ ork opc:s!ions control center ("KEXTLXB"). For economic or strategic redsons. the Company ma!. 
in  the f u r u r c  elect to u!ilize other w i t ch  vendors and ma!' also acquire and utilize non-h'orrel s\viiches in 
connection \\ irh acquisilions of other coinpanies. The Conipan!. plans to install three additional h'ortel 
D51S 100 s\\ i:ches b!. June 199s. The Compan!, also utilizes unbundled loops from the ILEC to connect 
t h e  Cor.?;zn)'s suitch and netuork to end us:r buildings 2nd is eiduating other ;\ltern;ltiw for building 
connccti\.it). iniluding  ireles less connections, for the "last mile" of  transport. 

Cm!i / : ic  . l fnrkei Espnrrsio/r. The Conipan;~'~ go31 is to add markets and market clusters to i n c r e m  
its addressable business lines to approximately 15 million by the end of 1996 and 21 miliion by the end of 
1999. The Company anticipates continued expanbion inio new geographic ureas. including additional 
large markets. as opportunities arise either through building new networks. acquiring existing networks or 
other telecommunications companies, or acquiring or leasing dark fiber and fiber capacity. NEXTLINK 
also believes that its strategy of operating its networks in clusters ( i )  offers substantial advantages 
including economies of scale in management, marketing, sales and network operations, ( i i )  enables the 
Compsn)' to capture a greater percentage of regional traffic and to develop regional pricing plans, because 
the Companj- believes that a significant level of trafic terminates within 300 miles of its origination and 
( i i i )  provides opportunities in smaller markets that arc  too small to develop on a stand-alone basis. 

o$'k E n h r r e d  Co~rirriiiriicarionJ Services. NEXTLINK offers customers value-added senices 
Such as the Company's I V R  products that are not dependent on the Company's locsl facilities. The 
Conipzn!, offers its enhanced communications services in a]] of its markets, as \vel1 as in areas of plmncd 
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network expsnsion. The Company believes these services increase its visibility in attracting local 
exchange customers when i t  operates networks in  these markets. 

The  Com pa nfs Teleconimunira t ions Scrr ices 
Local and Long Distancc Scniccs 

The Company commenced the offering of switched local and long distance services in seven markets on 
July 4. 1996, and in 18 additional markets in 1997. In February 1998, the Company launched switched local 
and long distance services in Chicago, Illinois and expects to commence the offering of switched local and long 
distance services in additional markets, including the south San Francisco Bay Area, New York City, Atlanta 
and Newark (NJ) areas, during the remainder of 1998. The Company focuses its product offering on basic 
telecommunications services, which it believes are the core of local exchange services. Pricing, which is 
determined and implemented by the Company's operating subsidiary in each local market, has been generally 
10% to 15% l o w r  than the pricing for comparable local services from the ILEC and the Company also makes 
promotional offering prices available from time to time. The Company's current product offering includes: 

Standard dial tone, including touch tone dialing, 91 1, and operator assisted calling; 

hlulti-trunk services. including direct in\\ard dialing (DID)  and direct outward dialing (DOD); 

Long distance service. including I+. 800/6SS and opefator services; 

\'oice nesssging n i t h  personalized greetings. send. transfer. reply 3nd remote retrieval capabilities; 
a n d  

D i m t o n .  1istir .p 2nd assisimce. 

Currcnrl!. the  Coi:i;in! 0ITe1.s CAP s:rvices in 26 inarkcis. focusing on long distance carriers and the 
F:l\'31C l ine  needs of  high \olur,ie customers. I n  oddiiion. d 3 u  s t r ikes  that are currently offered b! the 
C C ~ ~ J E ! .  inc lude  Ethernet. TOKEh' rings. and Fiber Distributed Dsia In i t r fxe  (FDDI) .  

The Compx!,'s C.AP ser\ices. which 3re used 3s boih primsry and bsck-up circuits, fall into three 
piRciF3I c~tcgories: ( I ) special B C C C S S  circuits that  Connect end users to long distance csrriers, (2 )  special 
B C C C S S  cir;uiis t h a t  conneci long distance carriers' facilities to one another and (3 )  private line circuits that 
c o ~ n e c i  s t \ . e ra !  f ~ c i l i r i e s  owned by the ssnie end user. 

Eirlrnrrccrl Currinrurricrrriotrs Scrliccs 

SESTLISK's I \ 'R ;!;ltfo:in 211o\\s a consunitr to d id  into a compmr-based sysiem using a toll-free 
number and a touch tone phone and. by following 3 customized menu, to access a variety of information and to 
I:z\e. simul;sneously. 3 profile of the caller behind for use b), eiiher E;EXTLlSK or its clients. Currently, 
XEXTLIYK provides four  types of I\'R services: 

Leai,elf'or.d- prompts the consumer to Icaw messages of any length or complexity, ranging from 
c3tsIog requests and contest entries to specific product questions and surveys; 

Dzolw Lorafor - helps a consumer to locate the nearest dealer of the client's products by instantly 
identifJ-ing the consumer's area and responding with the names, addresses and phone numbers of the 
client's locations within any desired mileage radius; 

Airiotmed Order E r i r ~ ~  - allou~s consumers to purchase products using the interactive phone service 
23-hours a day, with real-time order and credit card confirmation as ~ t l l  as arranging for delivery of 
the new item to the consumer's desired address; and 

lrirerurfi~~e Cnll Cerrfer - provides the consumer with a menu of selections that include Deafer 
Locstor, Automated Order E n t y  and other functions, including receiving a catalog. registering the 
\\arrant! of a product, contest e n t y  and an option for callers to be forwarded to a li\<e operator. 
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The Company anticipates that i t  \vi]] '  continue to explore other enhanced communications services 
opportunities and may acquire, invest in  or est;lblish marketing relationships with addilional service providers 
i n  t h e  future that support its overi\lI business and marketing strategies. 

Sales and Customer Care 

Overview 

The Company utilizes a two-pronged sales strategy in each of its markets, one directed to the sale of local 
and long distance services and the other to enhanced communications services. The pr imav sales efforts in the. 
Company's markets are for switched local and long distance services focusing on small and medium-sized 
businesses and professional groups with fewer than 50 business lines. The Company's market research 
indicates that these customers prefer a single source for all of their telecommunications requirements, 
including products, billing, installation, maintenance and customer service. T h e  Company utilizes a direct 
sales effon offering combined local and long distance services with prices that ate generally at a 10% to 15% 
discount from the ILEC. Providing a combination of local and long distance services provides the Company's 
customers a level of convenience that has been generally unavailable since the break-up of ATLT. The  
Company is also marketing its enhanced communications services through a separate direct sales force in each 
market, which is expected to increase the number of customers for all of NEXTLINK'S telecommunications 
services in that market at a faster rate. I n  addition, the Company is continuing i t s  sales efforts for traditional 
CAP s:riiics to long distance carriers and large commercial users. 

Srilcs F O X C  

The Compzn!, is building a liighl;, niotivated and espericnced direct s;tles force 3nd custonier care 
orgJnizztion 1h.t is designed to establish a direct and persons1 relationship with its customers. The Company 
seeks to recrui t  s~ l e speo? lc  11 it11 strong sales backgrounds. including salespeople from long distance 
compmies. te1econimunic;ltions equipnicnt nanufacturers, netttork systems integrators and the ILECs. The 
Compsn! h?s expanded its sales force from 9 s  salespeople at year end 1996 to 223 salespeople at 
December 31, 1997. The Comp~n! expects to further increase its sales force to approsimately 350 salespeople 
b!, !esr e n d  199s.  S~lespeopl: are given incenti\.es through a commission structure that targets 4 0 8  of a 
~ 2 l e ~ p e r j o n ' ~  co:np:ns~tion to be based on performance. \\'ith resptct to traditional CAP services, the 
Compm! curr:nil!. utilizes a n3tionnl sjles force to e~tablish and espand long distance compan!' access service 
s3les.  S2les efforts for long distLnce carriers are centralized in order to  provide a single point of contact for 
thes: customers. 

The  Compsn! anticip~tcs that its enhanced communications service offerings will continue to be sold 
iicrojs the countn' by its existing national sales force for these services. The Company has also augmented 
these eforts v i t h  a separate, targeted, 1oca11) based siles force in each of its markets. The Company believes 
that this approach to each market \vi11 provide revenues that arc incremental to its local exchange operations. 

Cusronier Cure 

The Company is augmenting its direct sales approach with superior customer care and suppon through 
locall). based custoiiicr care representatives. The Company is structuring its customer care organization in 
such a manner that each customer \vi]] have a single point of contact for customer care who is responsible for 
solving problems and responding to customer inquiries. The Company has expanded its customer c a n  
organization from 36 customer care employees at year end 1996 to 162 customer care employees at 
December 31,1997. The Company seeks to provide a customer Care group that h3s the ability and resources to 
respond to and resolve customer problems as they arise. The  Company believes that customer care 
represcntatiw \rill be the most effective i f  they aye based in the community in which the Company is offering 
services, which  placement ~ 4 1  allow, among other things, the opponunity for the representatives 10 visit the 
customer's location. 



I n  developing its netu.orks, the Company has generall). executed a strategy of ( i )  acquiring fully or 
p;irti;iil!, constructed fiber optic networks und ( i i )  designing and constructing high capacity fiber optic 
networks w i t h  broad cowage .  The Company has recently entered into leased dark fiber and fiber capacity 
arrangements which allow the Compsny. by installing one or more switches and related ele~tronics, to enter a 
nrarkct prior to completing construction of a fiber optic network. The Company regularly evaluates markets as 
locations for expansion of the Company's current n'etworks and the development of additional networks, T h e  
decision to build, acquire or utilize capacity of an existing network is not based on any single factor, but on a 
combination of a number of factors including: 

demographic, economic, telccommunications demand and business line characteristics of the market 
and the surrounding markets; 

level of capital expenditures relative to the number of business lines; 

a\,ailability of rights-of-way; 

~lcrunl m d  potenti:il con7petitors: and 

potenIi.ll for the Coinpin! to cluster addition31 netuorks in the region. 

I f  ,I rLriicitl.\r nixket t;irg:ted for de\*elopiiient is dcenied to present an attracti\x niarket opportunity, 
15s Co!:i;.Jn! detcrinines \\hetlicr ;icqtiisition opportunities zre a\.ail;lble. In sonic Casts 1 large network can be 
. ~ : ~ ~ i r e d .  2nd in  o i l w  c3 j t j  ;I sniall elisling ncl\\ork can serve as a st;irting point for market  entry. If the 
Co!:i;~n! decides to build 3 ne\\ net\\o:k. or subsK"dl!, expand a small acquired system. the Company 
?:signs ;I Froposed ne\\ or e\pJndcd net\!ork th3t can connect a large nuinber of businesses. long distance 
cJrri:rs ;yo in ! j  of presence and the ILEC's principal central oflices i n  the area to be served. utilizing existing 
r i fh ts -of - \ \3 \ ,  and/or rights-of-u+ t k i t  the Conip3ny will develop. Concurrentl!,, the Company's niarket 
d:\ cls;~ien: personnel \isit the location of the  proposed network to begin discussions with city officials, 
pro\,id::s oi rifhts-cf-\\3!.. potentid end users and long distance comp3nies. 

Bsj:d on the ddta d:\.elq?:d during these preliniinsry studies and visits, the C o n i p q  develops detailed 
fin.\nci.il es:iindlcS of the  costs of constructing a nti\\ork. including the cost of fiber optic cable, transmission 
;icd o:lier electronic equipment. as \\ell us costs rel3ted to switching. engineering. building entrance 
rcq::i:ei:::n:s ;!nd ri:ht-of-u 3) acquisiiions. I f  the financial estimates are s a t i s f a c t o ~ ~  to the Compan!,, the 
Coin;Jn;>'s m;lrLet de\clopnrent personnel prepare a detailed business and financial plan for the  proposed 
netuorL. including conipetitiw. regul.itoc and right-of-\\ay anal).scs. Based upon its review of these analyses, 
the Conipnn!. determines \\hether to proceed. The Conip3ny anticipates continuing the expansion of its 
netu orLs into ne\\' markets utilizing the market development a n a l j i s  described above. The  Company will seek 
to continue to expand its operritions in st3tes where i t  has established one or more net\vorks, by continuing to 
construct or acquire networks in adjacent areas to leverage its existing networks, switches and telecomniunica- 
tions equipment. tliereby establishing a cost effective and operationally efficient cluster of networks in various 
geographic regions. 

\ 

8 



The Cornpn n j  's Net works 

local and long distance services. 
The following tiible provides information on the markets in  which the Company has launched switched 

b u n c h  Dote for 
Sta te  hlatkri S~i irhrd Local Srnicrr 

Tell ~iessee . , . . . . . . 
Penns!h.nnia. . , . . . 

U'oshittgron . . . . . * . 
Uioh . , . . . . . . . . . . . 
h'erndu . . . . . , . . . . 
Oh io . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
CcIfornio . . . . . . . . 

Illiriois . . . . . . . . . , . 

hJ emphis 
N as h vi1 I e 
Allentown 
Harrisburg 
Lancastcr 
Reading 
Philadelphia 
Scranton /\Vilkes B a m  
Spokane 
Salt Lake City 
Orem /Provo 
Las Vegas 
Cleveland 
Columbus 
Anaheim 
Costa Mesa 
Fullerton 
Garden Grove 
Huntington Beach 
Ingleiiood 
Irvine 
Long Beach  
10s Anples  
Orange 
San ta  Ana 
Chicago 

July 1996 
July 1996 
July 1996 
July 1996 
July 1996 
July 1996 
July 1997 

December 1997 

January 1997 
September 1997 

April 1997 
April 1997 
April 1997 
July 1997 
July 1997 
July 1997 
July 1997 
July 1997 
Ju ly  1997 
Jul j  1997 
.Iul>, 1997 
July 1997 
Jul! 1997 
July 1997 

February 199s 

July 1996 

Sew orL Arciiirecfure 
Dcsign 

The CoRl;.3n! builds or 2 c q g i r e s  its oun fiber optic netuorks bec3use i t  believes that facilities-based full 
service telcccmmu~i:ations c o x ~ m i e s  hose net\vorks are directly connected to their customers will have the 
ability to r e s p n d  more quickly to customer needs for capscit!, and services. hforeover, the Company believes 
thai facilitits-based csrriers develop a more kno\vledge3ble, cooperativ relationship with their custoniers, 
impror.ing t h e i r  sbiliry ro provide ne\ \  serrkes 3nd other telecommunications solutions. which should result in 
higher long- i e rn  operating margins. 

The  Conpany believes that the fu iurc  telecommunications market \vi11 be an interconnected network of 
networks. Th: Company believes tha t  calls u i l l  flow bcrtveen local networks, with customers selecting their 
service pro\.ider based on high quality and differentiated products, responsive customer service and price. In 
some circumstances, depending in part upon regulatoy conditions, the Compnny will utilize its own network 
for one portion of a call and resell the services of another carrier for the remaining portion of a call. In other 
instances, both the origination and termination of calls will rake place on the Company's networks. The 
Company's net\\ orks ate designed to maximize connectivity directly u i ih  significant numbers of business end 
users, and to easily interconnect and provide a least-cost routing flow of traffic between the Company's 
net\{*ork and other networks in the marketplace. 
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I n  general, the Company seeks IO build wide, expansive networks, rather than a simple core ring in 3 
d o w t o u n  merropolitan area. The Company believes 11iat this type of broad coverqe of the ni;\rkcts in  tvhich 
it  operates ti i l l  result in  the following advantages: 

an increased number of buildings that can be directly connected to the Company's network. which 
should maximize the number of businesses to which the Company can offer its services; 

a higher volume of telecommunications traffic both originating and terminating on the Company's 
network, which should result in improved 'operating margins; 
the ability to leverage its investment in high capacity switching equipment and electronics; and 

* the opportunity for the Company's network to provide backhaul carriage for other telecommunica- 
tions service providers such as long distance and wireless carriers. 

The Company seeks to further utilize this network design to increase the number of buildings and 
customers directly connected to its networks. The Company believes that as compared to the extensive use of 
unbundled loops and pursuing a pure resale business strategy, having a direct connection to its custoniers will 
provide the Company with the highest long-term operating margins, allow the Company to provide greater 
fea ture  a n d  quality control as \wll as offer customer service that is both prompt and effective, because the 
nctuork to be serviced is controlled by the Company and not another service provider. 

The Company seeks to build high capacity networks usinp a backbone density ranging between 72 and 
240 strands. A single pair of glass fibers on the Company's networks can currently transmit 32.256 
s im~l t ineous  \,oicc convcrsations, \\*hereas a typical pair of copper wires can currenil), carry i\ ni;iximum of 24 
d!gitized sin;ult~neous \.oicc con~~crs3tions. The Company believes that inst3llinp high couni fiber sirnnds will 
3 1 1 0 ~  t h e  Conip3n!, to oficrr a h igher  volume of \,oice and broadband services I\ itliout incurring significant 
dddir ion31 construction COSIS.  

Consi~~rrcriorr 

Th: construction period of a ne \ \  nctvork \.aries d:pending upon the scope of tlie activities. such ;IS the 
n:r:Ser of bxkbont  route niiles to bc installed. whether the construction is underground or aerial* whether the 
cosduit is i n  plnce or requi res  construction, t h e  initial number of buildings targeted for connection to the 
r.eln o:k b x k b o n e  and the  genersl configuration for its deployment. Xfier insullinp the network backbone, the 
COTT, :~~! .  e \ ~ a I u ~ ~ c s  extensions to additional builiings and expansions to otlier i\re;lj of a marker. bnsed on 
d e ~ z i l c d  assessnients of n i x k c !  potenlial. 

The Coiiipan!.'s net\Vork backbones arc installed i n  conduits that are either o w e d  by the Company or 
lc3scd fim thi rd  p3riies. The Compan!, le3ses conduit or pole space from entities such as utilities, railroads, 
long distance carriers, state high\\.a\* authorities, local governments and transit authorities. These arrange- 
ments 3rc generally for multi-),ear terms u i t h  renewal options, and are nonexclusive. The  availability of these 
arrangements is an important part of the Company's evaluation of a market. Cancellation of any of the 
Compzny's material right-of-way agreements could have an adverse effect on the Company's business in that 
::?a and could have a material adverse effect on the Company. 

Office buildings arc connected primarily by network backbone extensions to one of a number of physical 
rings of fiber optic cable, which originate and terminate at the Company's central node. Alternatively, the 
Compan). may access an end user's location through interconnection with the ILEC's central office. The 
Company is also evaluating other alternatives for building connectivity, including wireless connections, for the 
"last mile" of transport. Signals are generally sent through a network backbone to the central node 
simultaneously on both primary and alternate protection paths. Most buildings served have a discrete 
Company presence (referred to as a "remote hub") located in the building. Within each building, Company- 
o m e d  internal wiring connects the remote hub to the customer premise. Customer equipment is coniixied IO 
Companyprovided electronic equipment generally located in the remote hub, \\.here customer ttansniissions 
are digitized, combined and converted to an optical signal, The  traffic is then transmitted through the network 
backbone to the  Company's central node u,here originating traffic is reconfigured for routing to its ultimate 
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destination. After completion of network construction, the Company employs maintenance and line crews that 
are responsible for responding to outiigcs and routine niaintcnancc of the network. 

I n  J;mu:iQ. 1998. the Comp;iny and Nestel Comniunic;ltions, Jnc. ("Nextel") formed NEXTBAND 
ConimunicJtions. L.L.C. ("NEXTBAND"). a joint venture which is o w e d  50% by the Company and 50% 
by Nextel. On JanuilV 20, 199% NEXTBAND filed an application uith the FCC for which it paid a 
$50.0 million refundable deposit to participate in  the Lh lDS auction which began on February 18, 1998. Of 
the deposit amount, S25.0 million was contributed by the Company. LMDS is a fixed broadband point-to- 
multipoint service which the FCC and industry analysts anticipate will be used for the deployment of wireless 
local loop, high-speed data transfer and video broadcasting services. TWO licenses will be offered in each of 
493 BTAs when the auction commences. Although the number of licenses that may be awarded to' 
NEXTBAND is limited by the amount of the deposit, NEXTBAND has applied for and is eligible to bid on 
any of the  markets being auctioned for the block A license (1,150 MHr of spectrum) and the block B license 
( 1  50 hlHz of spectrum). 

The Conipany is exploring LMDS for two reasons. Depending upon the bidding and deployment costs, 
LhlDS may ofer an economically efficient means to supplement the Company's fiber network build-out in 
some localities. I n  addition, a \vireless local loop alternative may create competitive pressure on high 
unbundled loop costs in cenain areas. There can be no assurance thzt NEXTBAND's participation in the 
auction u4l result in  the purchase of any LMDS licenses or that Lh lDS spectrum for wireless connectivity 
\ \ i l l  pro\,ide a cost-effective and efficiently engineered means to connqct to end user locations. 

I n  June 1997. the Company entered into an eight year exclusive agreement, which contains a five year 
r e n e \ ~ I  oyion.  u i t h  a compsny that has excess fiber capacity in each of Atlanta, Chicago, New York and 
h 'e i \ ; i rk  (SJ). I n  Iiddition to this capacit) arrangement, the Company also entered into a 2O-yeat lease of 
ca;xil!. o x :  sn elisring 47-niilc fib:r netuork which extends from the \\'all Street are3 north to midtown 
Yl.!nh2tiL1n, I n  Fcbruir)  199s. the Company entered into 3n  agreement for csclusi\t rights to multiple fibers 
;ind inn:rducls fOi 20 \ears,  u i t h  t u 0  IO )ear renewals. The route c o w e d  by the agreement extends over 650 
r w : e  i:;i!es from bIJnh3ttm to \\'bite Plains (KY), to Stamford (CT) ,  to Newark ( N J )  and south from 
h l a ~ h n i t n n  ihro:gli Phil3delphia. \\'ilmington (DE) ,  Baltimore. and to \\'ashington ( D C ) .  The route will 
ofer frcc;u:nt c : l i x  points \ \ i t h i n  nleiropolitan areas and splice points at least e v e 3  10,000 feet on routes 
ber\\ccn m:!ro;ditan areas. ns v~cll 3s pnvide access to ILEC central and tandem witching offices. 

, 

L'rri/or~iir Tcclrirologs PI(itforwr 

The Co:i::;ln!. is implementin: 3 consistent technology pl3tform based on the Kortel D l I S  500 switch 
throsghout its nt\\\orks. Unlike 3 tr3ditional long distance or local switch, the Nortel DXlS 500 s\vitch will 
en;lble t h e  Coi:yxn!. to provide 10~31  and long distance services from a single platform. The Compsny b e l i e ~ t s  
that having 3 standardized w i t c h  platform will enable it to ( i )  deploy features and functions quickly in all of 
its nc;\\orks.  ( i i )  expand wi tch  capacity in  a cost efecti i t  manner and (iii) Io\vcr maintenance costs through 
reduced t r i i n i n g  and spare parts requircnients. In addition, the scalability and capacity of these s\vitchcs will 
3110~ the Company to switch c3lls from more than one market, tvhich enhances the Compsny's ability to use a 
clustered approach to the building of its net\vorks. For economic or strareeic reasons, the Company may in the 
future elect to utilize other switch vendors and may also acquire and utilize non-Nortel switches in connection 
with acquisitions of other companies. 

The Company also is establishing a uniform transmission technology utilizing S O N E T  design and 
standardized digital access and cross connect systems ("DACCS") and other ancillary transmission 
equipment. DACCS provide the ability to aggregate and disaggregate capacity along the fiber optic network. 
Using DACCS, the capacity of 24 DS-Os can be aggregated to form a DS-I and, again through the DACCS, 
28 DS-Is can be aggregated to form a DS-3. 

The Company's NEXTLAB facility contains a fully functional Nom1 D M S  500 switch in a configuration 
that simulates the working environment of the Company's operational switches as well as distribution and 
ancillaq, equipment. Located in Piano, Texas, NEXTLAB operates separate and apan  from the Company's 
operational s\\,itches as a testing facility and wi]] S C N ~  as the Company's network operations control center 



(NOCC) .  NEXTLAB provides the Company with a means to test switch software and service configurations 
prior to their release on the Company's networks. The Conrpany believes that this process should: 
( i )  minimize network outages, ( i i )  s aw  network operating and training costs and ( i i i )  improve levels of 
c u t  ome r se rvicc . 

Implementation of Local Telecommunications 

A company preparing to offer local exchange services not only requires an installed switch, but also must 
have numerous network and routing arrangements in place. NEXTLINK has established all of these 
arrangements for Pennsylvania, Tennessee, Washington, Utah, Ohio, Nevada, Califomia and Illinois. These 
key elements include: 

Inietconnacrion. The Company has executed interconnection agreements for all of its current operating 
net\vorks: in Nashville and Memphis, Tennessee, with BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc.; in Hamsburg, 
Reading, Lancaster and Alltntown, Pennsylvania, with Bell Atlantic-Pennsylvania, Inc.; in New York, 
New York with Bell Atlantic-New York, Inc.; in Chicago, Illinois, and in Cleveland and Columbus, Ohio, 
with a division of Ameritech; in Spokane, Washington, and Salt Lake City and Provo/Orem, Utah with 
U S \\'EST Communications, Inc.; in Los Angeles, California and the surrounding markets, with Pacific Bell 
and GTE Corporation; and in  Las Vegas, Nevada, with a division of Sprint. The Company is currently 
negotiating \vith BellSouth for an interconnection agreement to cover Atlanta by the end of the third quaner 
of 1998. I n  addition, the Company believes that interconnection arrangements between the ILECs and other 
CLECs or t h e  Company will be in place in other markets that the Company may enter. The  Company likely 
\ \ , i l l  initiall), "piggg-back" on these other arrangements while pursuing more favorable long-term 
a r m  ,ne n en 1s. 

Th: Con?an!,'s a p p r o x h  to interconnection has been a tn'o-step process. T o  accelerate its launch of 
s:\ i i c h t d  l o a 1  ser\.ices. t h e  Conipan!, has entered into initial interconnection arrangements that allow for the 
immediait c\chsn_ce of 1o:aI traffic with the ILEC. These arrangements 3110~ tlie Company to commence 
s:r\.i:e i n m d i a ~ e l y  and then uork  to optimize its arrangements with the ILEC. The Company's I L E C  
a g r e e m e n ~ s  a re  nov  being re-negoti3ted under Sections 251 and 252 of the Tclecotri Act. The actual operating 
experience gained through the Company's initial inlerconnection agreements gives the Company critical 
knau ledge for n:go~iating longer term arrangements. In some cases, where agreement on a long-term 
2:r.?~gencnt cannot be reached, the  Company may pursue binding arbitration before the state utility 
commissions 2s pro\ided u n d e r  t h e  Telecom Act. The Compin!, currently has arbitration pro:eedings pending 
i n  Penns!.l: ani3  and Tennessee wi th  Bell .4tlantic and BellSouth, respectivelj.. Xegotiations are continuing 
u i i h  boih p2:tics during t h e  pcndenc) of the arbitration proceedings. There can be no assurance, howver ,  that 
t h e  Cornpin!. uill be able to negotiate longer term relationships on terms and conditions s a t i s f a c t o ~  to the 
Conpn!. .  

Telephone ;\'unrbers. The Company has been offered interim number portability arrangements by the 
ILEC in e x h  of its markets, and the Company also is engaged in industv negotiations to establish permanent 
number portability. h ' unb t t  ponability arrangements will allo\v ILEC customers to retain their telephone 
numbers when changing local exchange service carriers. I n  addition, the Company has been allocated multiple 
b1o:ks of 10,000 telephone numbers for each of its Tennessee, Washington, Pennsylvania, Ohio, Utah, 
Nevada, California and Illinois networks, and has applied for such numbers in New York, for use in assigning 
neu  numbers to its customers. These numbers, known as NXX numbers, are the first three digits of a 
customer's seven digit local phone number. In each of these cases, the N X X  is fully loaded into the Local 
Exchange Routing Guide or LERG, which instructs JLECs and other carriers to send a call using a 
NEXTLINK KXX to the appropriate NEXTLINK switch, for delivery to the KEXTLINK customer. 

SS7 Poirrr Codrs. For each of the Company's switches, the  Company has been assigned Point Codes for 
use w i t h  the advanced signaling system known as SS7 which is a separate or "out of band" communications 
channel used be twen  telecommunications carriers to set up and control traffic on and between networks. The  
Company has designed its network to fully utilize SS7 signaling, which improves call processing times and 
frees cspxi ty  for voice, data, and video transmissions. The  Company has entered into an agreement with a 

12 



national SS7 service provider that will allow the Company to utilize ss7 signaling in its current and new 
markets nationwide. 

The Company's services are subject to varying degrees of federal, state and local regulation. The  FCC 
generally exercises jurisdiction over the facilities of, and services offered by, telecommunications common 
carriers that provide interstate or international communications. The state regulatory commissions retain 
jurisdiction over the same facilities and services to the extent they are used to provide intrastate communica-' 
tions. Local govemments sometimes impose franchise or licensing requirements on local exchange and other 
carriers and regulate street opening and constmction activities. 

The  Telecom Act imposes on ILECs certain interconnection obligations h a t ,  taken together, grant 
competitive entrants such as the Company what is commonly referred to as "co-camer status." In addition, 
the Telccom Act generally preempts state or local legal requirements that prohibit or have the effect of 
prohibiting any entity from providing telecommunications services. The Telecom Act allows state regulatory 
authorities to continue to impose competitively neutral requirements designed to promote universal service, 
protect public safety and welfare, maintain quality of service and safeguard the rights of consumers. The  
Tclecom Act also preserves the abilitj, of state and local authorities t o  manage and require compensation for 
t h e  use  of public rights-of-way by telecommunications providers including competitors of the ILECs in the 
local market. 

I i  is anticipsied that co-carrier status and t h e  preemption of state and local prohibitions on e n t y  could 
pern:it t h e  Compjn!, to become a fu l l  service pro\.ider of svitched telecommunicitions services anywhere in 
the Vnited Sistes. The follo\ving table summarizes the interconne:tion rights granted by the Telecom Act that 
are nos1  i c ipxzn t  to the achie\,emtnt of this goal and ihc Compan1,'s belief as to the anticipated effect of the 
ne\\ reqnirenents, i f  properly implemented. 
l rruc  Definition 

1n:c:ccnn:riion Efficient network interconnection 
to transfer calls back and forth 
bet\\een ILECs and competitive 
networks (including 91 1, O+, 
directory assistance, etc.) 
Allo\vs competitors to selectively 
€sin access to ILEC wires which 
connect ILEC central ofices with 
customer premises 

compensation for local traffic 
exchange between lLECs and 
competitors 
Allo\4,s customers to change local 
carriers without chanping 
numbers; true portability allows 
incoming calls to be routed 
directly to a competitor. Interim 
portability allows incomin calls 
to be routed through the fLEC to 
a competitor at  the economic 
equivalent of true portability 
Mandates assignment of new 
telephone numbers to competitive 
telecommunications provider's 
customers 

Locsl Loo; C'nSsndling 

Reciprocal Compensation Mandates reciprocal 

Xumbcr Portability 

Access to Phone Numbers 

Anticipated fflect 

Allo\vs a C L E C  to service and 
terminate calls to and from 
customers connected to other 
n e t works 

Reduces the capital costs of a 
C L E C  to s e n e  customers not 
directly connected to its networks 

Improves the CLEC's margins for 
local service 

Allo\vs customers to switch to a 
CLEC's local service uithout 
changing phone numbers 

Allows CLECs to provide 
telephone numbers to new 
customers on the same basis as 
the ILEC 



While the interconnection rights established in the Telecom Act are a necessary prerequisite to the 
introduction of ful l  local competition, they must be properly implemented to be effective. Significant 
implementation issues remain to be resolved, including modifications to, and expansions of, the ILEC network 
interface facilities, before the barriers to e n t v  into the local telephone business ilre sufficiently lowred  to 
permit widespread competitive entry. See "Federal Legislation" below for a more complete explanation of the 
potential effect of the Telecom Act on the Company's business. 

Federal Legislation 

The Telecom Act, enacted on February 8, 1996, substantially w i s e d  the Communications Act of 1934. 
The Telecom Act establishes a regulatory framework for the introduction of local competition throughout the 
United States. Among other things, the Telecom Act preempts any state or local govcmment from prohibiting 
any entity from providing telecommunications service. This provision eliminated prohibitions on entry found in 
almost half of the states in the camtry at the time the Telecom Act was passed. In addition, the Telecom Act 
now requires that ILECs provide CLECs with physical collocation on rates, terms and conditions that are just 
and reasonable, unless the ILEC can demonstrate to state regulators that physical collocation is not practical. 
The Company believes that either physical or virtual collocation of its facilities in a timely fashion for 
appropriate rates and terms will accommodate its purposes. 

The Telecom Act also establishes a dual federal-state regulatory scheme for eliminating other barriers to 
competition faced by competitors to the ILECs and other neu  entrants into the local telephone market. 
Specifically, the  Telecom Act imposes on ILECs certain interconnection obligations, some of which are to be 
implemented bj. FCC regulations. The Telecom Act contemplates that states will apply the federal regulations 
and oversee t h e  implementation of all of the aspects of interconnection not subject to FCC jurisdiction as they 
o\ ersee inierconnection ncgoti~tions between I l E C s  and their ne\\. competitors. 

I n  z d d i t i m ,  the Telecom Act provides that ILECs that are subsidiaries of RBOCs cannot combine in- 
region. long distance ser\,ices across LATAs with the local services they offer until  they havc demonstrated 
t h 3 t  ( i )  the! h31.e entered into an approved interconnection agreement with o fxililies-based CLEC or that 
no s u c h  CLEC has requested interconnection as of a statutorilj' determined deadline. ( i i )  they h w e  satisfied a 
li-elen:cnt checklist designed to ensure that t h e  ILEC is offering access and interconnection to a11 local 
cxchsnge c~rriers on competitive terms and ( i i i )  the FCC has determined that in-region, interLATA approval 
is consistent u.i:h the public interest, convenience and necessity. 

On Jul! 2. 1997, SBC and ils local exchange carrier subsidiaries filed a Invsuit in the United States 
Disiri:t Cox1  for the Northern District of Texas challenging on Constitutional grounds t h e  Telecom Act 
resiriiiicns ~:$ic3ble to the RBOCs only. On December 31, 1997, the District Court ruled in favor of SBC 
and held  thz :  Sections 271 through 275 of the Telecom Act, including the long distance e n t v  pro\-isions, are 
unconstiru:ion31. On Februsq. 1 1 ,  1998, ho\\e\.ei, the Distrizt Court issued 3 s!ay of its December 31. 1997 
decision Fending appeal 10 the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the Fifth Circuit. The appeal is 
c u rren 11). pending. 

Fedcrn I Rcgii In rion 

The FCC has significant responsibility in the manner in which the Telecom Act will be implemented 
especially in the areas of universal service, access charges, numbering, number portability and price caps. The 
details of the  rules adopted by the FCC \vi11 have a significant effect in determining the extent to which 
barriers to  competition in local services are removed, as well as the time frame uithin which such barriers are 
eliminated. The FCC may also grant ILECs increased pricing flexibility to enable them to respond to 
comp:tition for special access and private line services. To the extent such pricing flexibility is granted, the 
Company's ability to compete for certain services may be adversely affected. 

On August 8, 1996, the FCC issued an order containing rules providing guidance to the ILECs, CLECs, 
long distance companies and state PUCs regarding several provisions of the Telecom Act. The rules include, 
among other things, FCC guidance on ( i )  discounts for end-to-end resale of ILEC local exchange services 
(u,hich the FCC has suggested should be in the range of 178-2570), ( i i )  availability of unbundled local loops 
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and other unbundled ILEC network elemen'ts, ( i i i )  the use of Total Element Long Run Incremental Costs 
("TELRIC") in  the pricing of these unbundled network elements. (iv) average default proxy prices for 
unbundled local loops in each state, ( v )  mutual compensation proxy rates for termination of ILEC/CLEC 
local calls and (vi)  the ability of CLECs and other interconnectors to opt into portions of interconnection 
agreements negotiated by the lLECs with other parties on a most favored nation (or a "pick and choose") 
basis. See be lo^ for a discussion of the Eighth Circuit Court of Appeals decision invalidating certain aspects 
of this order. 

On May 8, 1997, the FCC released an order establishing a significantly expanded federal telecommu- 
nications subsidy regime. For exaniple, the FCC established new subsidies for services provided to qualifying 
schools and libraries with an annual cap of 52.25 billion and for services provided to rural health care providers. 
with an annual cap of $400 million. The FCC also expanded the federal subsidies to low income consumers. 
Providers of interstate telecommunications services, such as the Company, as uell as cenain other entities, 
must pay for these programs. The Company's share o f the  schools, libraries and q r a l  health care funds will be 
based on its share of the total induslry telecommunications service and cenain 'defined telecommunications 
end user revenues. The  Company's share of all other federal subsidy funds will be based on its share of the 
total interstate telecommunications senice and certain defined telecommunications end user revenues. The  
Company intends to make all subsidy payments required by law. In the hlay 8 order, the FCC also announced 
that i t  will soon revise its rules for subsidizing senpice provided to consumers in high cost areas. Several parties 
have appealed the May 8 order. Such appeals have been consolidated and transferred to the United States 
Court of Appeals for the Fifth Circuit where they are currently pending. In addition, on Ju ly  3, 1997, several 
ILECs filed a petition for stay of the May 8 order with the FCC. That petition is also pending. 

I n  a combined Report and Order and Notice of Proposed Rulemaking released on December 24. 1996, 
t h c  FCC mad: changes and proposed fur ther  changes in  the interstate access charge structure. I n  the Report 
and Order ,  th: FCC removed restrictions on ILECs' ability to lo\\~er access prices and rel3red the regulation 
of ne \ \  w i t c h e d  access services i n  those niarkets \\here tlrere are other providers of access services. I f  this 
insressed pricing flehibility is not eflec~i\~ely monitored by federal regulators, it could h3t.e 3 material adverse 
effect on t h e  Compm\,'s abilit), to compete in providing interstate access services. On hlay 16, 1997, the FCC 
released a n  order rcbising its access charge rate structure. The ne\\. rules subs tan ti all)^ increase the costs that 
I l E C s  subject to the FCC's price cap rules ("price cap LECs") r e c o w  through monthly, no-traffic sensitive 
access ch3rfcs 2nd  substantially decrease :he costs that price c3p LECs recover through traffic sensilive access 
charges. I n  the  513). 16 order, the FCC also announced its plan to bring interstate access rate levels more in 
line w i t h  Cost. The plan will include rules to be established sometime this year that grant price cap LECs 
increased pricing flexibilit),  upsn demonstrations of increased competition (or potential competition) in 
rele\.ant markets.  The manner in uhich t h e  FCC implements this approach to lo\\tring access charge levels 
\ \ , i l l  h u e  a msterial erect  on the Conipan).'s ability to compete in providing interstate access services. Several 
parties h31.e 3:pealed t h e  h13). 16 order. Those appeals have been consolidated and transferred to the United 
States Court o l  Appeals for t h e  Eighth Circuit where they ate currently pending. 

As part of its overall plan to lower interstate access rates, the FCC also released an order on May 21, 
1997, in  hich the FCC revised its price cap rules. In the order, the FCC increased the so-called X-Factor 
(the percentage by which price cap LECs must lo\\er their interstate access charges every year, net of inflation 
and exogenous cost increases) and made it uniform for all price cap LECs. f l i t  results of these rule changes 
will be both a one-time o w a l l  reduction in price cap l L E C  inierstate access charges and an increase in the 
rate at \\,hich those charges will be reduced in the future. Several parties have appealed the May 21 order. 
Those appeals w e  consolidated and transferred to the United States Court of Appeals for the Tenth Circuit. 
They have been subsequently transferred to the United States Coun of Appeals for the District of Columbia 
\\here they are currently pending. 

On Januav  2, 1997, Ameritech of Michigan became the first RBOC to apply for authority to provide in- 
region interLATA service pursuant to Section 271 of the Telecom Act. T h e  application was withdrawn and 
refiled on May 2 I ,  1997. That application was denied on August 19, 1997. I n  denying the application, the F C C  
established specific and substantial criteria that must be met before future Section 271 applications will be 
granted. 



On April 1 I ,  1997, SBC Communications, Inc. ("SBC") applied to the FCC for authority to provide 
in-region interLATA service in the state of Oklahoma. On June 26, 1997, the FCC released an order rejecting 
SBC's application on the grounds that SBC had not demonstrated either that SBC had entered into an 
approved interconnection agreement with a facilities-based CLEC or that no CLEC had requested intercon- 
nection as of the statutory deadline. On July 3, 1997, SBC filed an appeal of the June 26 order with the United 
States Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia. On hlarch 20, 199% the Court of Appeals upheld the 
FCC's order. 

In September and November 1997, BellSouth Corporation ("BellSouth") filed rpplications for authori- 
zation to provide in-region interLATA service in the states of South Carolina and Louisiana. On Decem- 
ber 24, 1997 and February 4, 1998, respectively, the FCC released orders rejecting BellSouth's applications 
which conclude that BellSouth had not yet demonstrated that it generally oKered each of the items of the 
competitive checklist set forth in the Telecom Act. On January 13, 1998, BellSouth filed an appeal for the 
December 24, 1997 ruling with the United States District Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia. That 
appeal is currently pending. 

The Company anticipates that RBOCs \vi11 continue to apply for authority to provide in-region 
interLATA services in markets where the Company operates or plans 10 operate. The  Company also expects 
that the FCC will initiate a number of additional proceedings, on its o w  initiative and as a result of requests 
from CLECs a n d  others, as a result of the Telecom Act. N'hile the Eighth Circuit's recent decision in the 
a??eal of t h e  August 8, 1996 order limits the FCC's jurisdiction over the local competition provisions of the 
Telecom Act .  such proceedings n n ) '  nonetheless further define and construe the Telecom Act's terms. 

Co II ri of .4 p p  m IS D ccis io 11 

\'ariaus psrties. including lLECs and state PUCs. filed appe31s of the FCC's August 8, 1996 order in 
varicus U. S. Courrs of Appcsl. and se\.er31 parries petitioned the FCC and the courts to stay the effectiveness 
of the  FCC's rules included i n  the FCC's order, pending a ruling on the appeals. Man!. of the appeals were 
conso!ida:ed 2nd transferred to the  L'niled States Court of Appeal5 for the Eighth Circuit. On Ju ly  18, 1997, 
t h e  Eighth Circuit overturned the pricing rules established in  the August 8, 1996 order, except those 
zp;licable to commcrciol mobile radio service providers. The Eighth Circuit held lh31, in general, the FCC 
docs not h a \  jzrisdiction o\'er prices for interconnection, resale, leased unbundled net\vork elements and 
trrffrc te:minztion. The Eighth Circuit also overturned the FCC's "pick and choose" rules as \vel1 as cenain 
other FCC rules implemeniing the Telecom Acr's local competition protkions. In addition, the Eighth Circuit 
decision s:Ss:3nti3ll!~ limits t h e  FCC's authorit!, to cnfor:e the local competition provisions of the Telecom 
Act. 

On October I ? ,  1997. the Eighth Circuit vacated the FCC's rule prohibiting ILECs from separating 
unbundled neruork elements that are already combined, except at the request of CLECs. In addition, under 
t h e  decision, l l E C s  are not required to recombine unbundled network elements, but niust make such 
elements available for CLECs to recombine on their o w .  

On January 22, 1998, the  Eighth Circuit issued a writ of mandanius ordering the FCC to follow the 
court's July 1997 decision in  addressing certain pricing issues in  the context of RBOC Section 271 in-region 
inter1 ATA entr)' applications. 

On Januar), 26, 1998, the United States Supreme Coun agreed to hear challenges to the Eighth Circuit's 
July 18, 1997 and October 14, 1997 decisions. The Court has agreed to review all issues raised by the 
gowmment, the RBOCs, and competitors. These include uhether the FCC has authority (i) to set prices that 
ILECs charge CLECs for access to local networks, ( i i )  to require ILECs to allow CLECs to use provisions of 
existing interconnection agreements in their own agreements and (iii) to force ILECs to offer existing 
combinations of unbundled nettvork elements needed to provide local sewice. Becaust the Court will hear the 
consolidated cases i n  its next term which begins in October, a decision is not expected until next year. 
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In the short term the Company believes that the Eighth Circuit decisions will not have a niatetial adverse 
effect on it, because the Company already has interconnection agreements in place, or expects to have such 
agreements in place. under the provisions of the FCC's order and the Telecom Act which were not invalidated 
by the Court. The decision does not delay the implementation of the Telecom Act by the parties and by the 
state PUCs, but rather eliminates the guidance on pricing and most favored nation procedures as \vel1 as other 
issues that the F C C  sought to provide to parties and the state PUCs. 

In the long term, the Eighth Circuit's decisions make it more likely that the rules govcming local 
competition will vary from state to state. Most states have already begun to establish rules for local 
competition that are consistent with the FCC rules overtumed by the Eighth Circuit. If a patchwork of state 
regulations were to develop, i t  could increase the Company's costs of regulatory compliance and could make. 
competitive e n t v  in some markets more difficult and expensive than in others. 

Srare Regulation 

The Company expects thar as it offers local exchange and other intrastate services in an increasing 
number of states, it will be subject to direct state public utility commission ("PUC') regulation in most, if not 
all, such states. In states where the Company desires to ofier its services, the Company may be required to 
obtain authorization from the appropriate state commission, including certification as a CLEC. I n  all states 
where the Company is operational and cenification as a C L E C  is currently required, the Company's operating 
subsidiaries are certificated. In those markets \\.here the Company anticipates launching services in  1998, it 
has received or applied for such certification. 

In most states, the Compan!, is required to file tariRs or price lists setting forth the terms, conditions and 
prices for ser\ices uhich arc classified as intrastate. I n  some states, the Conipany's tariff c m  list a range of 
prices for p3rtic~li1r services, and in others. such prices can be set on an individual custonier basis. The  
Compsny is na: subjecr to price cap or IO r;ite sf return regulation in an!' statc in uhich i t  currentl!. provides 
sc rvi ces. 

As not:d abo\'e, as a result of the Jul!, IS ,  1997 Eighth Circuit decision, PUCs hale an even more 
significant responsibilit! in  iniplenienting the Telecom Act. Specifically, the states have authority to establish 
interconnection pricing, including unbundled loop charges, reciprocal compensation and holesale pricing. 
The states arc also charged under the 7cleconi Act n i t h  owseeing the arbitration process for resolving 
interconnection negotiation disputes betueen CLECs and the ILECs. The Telecom Act allows state 
r tgu13 to~)  authorities to continue to iniposc conipetitivel), neutr31 requirements designed to promote universd 
service. F i O t C C l  pgbli: safei!, and ut l fare ,  niaint~in quality of service and safeguard the rights of consumers. 

1 oca1 Got,rrn l t m r  A irtlior.i:nrion 

I n  ccnain locations, the Company is required to obtain local franchises, licenses or other operating rights 
and street opening and construction permits to install, expand and operate its fiber-optic netivorks. In some of 
the areas where the Company provides netu.ork services, the Company's subsidiaries pay licenst or franchise 
fees based on a percentage of gross revenues or on a per linear foot basis. There is no assurance that certain 
cities that do not currently impose fees will not seek to impose such fees in the future, nor is there any 
assurance that, follo\ving the  expiration of existing franchises, fees will remain at  their current levels. Under 
the Telecom Act, state and local govemments retain the right to manage the public rights-of-way and to 
require fair and reasonable compensation from telecommunications providers, on a competitiycly neutral and 
nondiscriminatop* basis, for use of public rights-of-way. 

If  any of the Company's existing franchise or license agreements were terminated prior to its expiration 
date and the  Company were forced to remove its fiber from the streets or abandon its network in place, such 
termination would have a material adverse effect on the Company's subsidiary in that area and could have a 
material adverse effect on the Company. The Company believes that the provisions of the Telecom A:t 
barring state and local requirements that prohibit or have the effect of prohibiting any entity from providing 
telecommunications service should be construed to limit any such action. However, there can be no ~ssurance  
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that one or niorc local authorities itill not attempt Io tirke such action. Nor is i t  clear that the Company would 
prevail in an)* judicial or regulatory proceeding to resolve such 3 dispute. 

Competition 

As noted above, the r c p u l a t o ~  environnicnt in which the Company operates is changing rapidly. The 
passage of the Telecom Act combined with other actions by the FCC and state regulatory authorities 
continues to promote competition in the provision of telecommunications services. 

ILECs 
In each market served by its networks. the Company faces, and expects to continue to face, significant 

competition from the ILECs, which currently dominate their local telecommunications markets. 

The  Company competes with the ILECs in its markets for local exchange services on the basis of product 
offerings, reliability, state-of-the-art technology, price, route diversity, case of ordering and customer service. 
However, the ILECs have long-standing relationships with their customers and provide those customers with 
various transmission and switching services that the Company, in many cases, does not currently offer. T h e  
Company has sought, and u,ill continue to seek, to achieve parity with the ILECs in order to become able to 
provide a full range of local tclccommunications services. See "Regulatory Overview" for additional 
informa:ion concerning the r c g u l a t o ~  environment in \\.hich the Company operates. Existing competition for 
pri\-ate line and special access services is based primarily on 'quality, capacity and reliability of network 
facilities, customer ser\*ice. re-sponse to customer needs, service features and price, and is not based on any 
pro;rictary tcchnolopy. As 3 result of the conipnrati\tly recent installation of the Company's fiber optic 
n:i\\o:ks, i t s  d u d  p2:h :irchitectures and the stiite-of-the-art technology used in its networks, the Company 
n2! hake cost and ser\,ice qulllit! ad\mitngcs o \ w  some currentl!~ nailable ILEC networks. 

Orlrrr Corrrpcrirors 

Th: C o m p ~ n y  also f;iccs. and e lpec t s  to continue to f x e ,  conipetiticn from otlicr potentin1 competitors in 
cer!ain of the markets in \\liich the Coi~~pan!, offers its ser\.ices. In addition to the ILECs and CAPS, potential 
cor,ip:titors cap2ble of offering s\\.it:h:d local and long distance services include long distance carriers such as  
,AT&T. h1CI Communications Corporation ("hlCI"). Sprint Corporation ("Sprint") and \\'orldCom, Inc. 
("\\'o:ldCom"). cable tel:\,ision companies such as TelcComniunications. Inc. and Time \\'arner. Inc., 
electric utiliries. niicrou a x  c3rri:rs. ircless tclephcne s!.stem operators and private neworks built by large 
cad users. 

The Conipsn! belie\,es t h ?  the Tclcconi Ac t .  3s \\.ell as a recent series of coniplctcd 2nd proposed 
trsns2::ioni lxt \ \een I l E C s  and long distnncc compsnies nnd cable companies, incresses the likelihood that 
barriers to 10~31 cschsngc competition will be removed. The Telecom Act states that e n t v  barriers must be 
Iouered in the m a s  served b!, ILECs that are subsidiaries of RBOCs before such ILECs are permitted to 
provide in-region, interLATA ser \kes .  \\'hen ILECs that iire RBOC subsidiaries are perniitted to provide 
such scnices, the). will be in ii position IO offer single source service. I L E C s  that are not RBOC subsidiaries 
ma!' offer single source service present]).. 

In some cases, cable television companies are upgrading their neworks with fiber optics and installing 
facilities to provide f u l l y  interactive transmission of broadband voice, video and data communications. In 
addition, under the Teleconi Act, electric utilities may install fiber optic telecommunications cable and may 
facilitm provision of telecommunications services by electric utilities over those networks if granted 
regulatory authority to do so. Cellular and PCS providers may also be a source of competitive local telephone 
senice. 

Th: Company also competes with equipment vendors and installers, and telecommunications manage- 
ment companies, with respect to certain portions of its business. 

A continuing trend towards business combinations and alliances in the telecommunications industry may 
crezte significant ne\\ competitors to the Company. In addition, many of the Compan!,'s existing and potential 
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competitors have financial, personnel and olher resources, including name recognition, significantly greater 
than those of t h e  Company. 

The Company also competes uith long distance carriers in the provision of long distance services. 
Although the long distance market is dominated by four major competitors, AT&T, MCI, Sprint and 
WorldCom, hundreds of other companies also compete in the long dislance marketplace. 

With respect to the Company's enhanced communications service ofenngs, each is subject to competi- 
tion. For example, there are several competitors that offer IVR services, such as Call Interactive, which the 
Company believes focuses its sales efforts on large volume IVR service users. Another conipetitor, Telemedia, 
which is owned by Sprint, also offers significant call volume capacity. With respect to Magic Number, the .  
Company's virtual communications center, there are numerous competitors with product offerings lh3t include 
some or all of the services offered by Magic Number. 

Purchasing and Distribution 

With respect to the Company's fiber optic networks, which constitute the Company's most significant 
capital in\,cstments, the Company has entered into general purchase agreements with key equipment suppliers 
for fiber and fiber optic transmission equipment, with Nortel for telecommunications switches, and with other 
suppliers for various other components of each system. These agreements provide the basic f ramwork  under 
uhich purchase orders for these slstem components \vi11 be made. The specific purchases made for each 
nct\tork d:pend upon the configurarion and other f2ctors related to the network, such as the prospective 
customer base and location and the services to be offered over the netitork. Once these decisions are made, 
purchase orders for t h e  appro?riate fiber and  selected equipment types are placed under the general purchase 
agreements. I n  ccnnection \ \ i t h  t h e  Conpmj , ' s  pro\ision of long distance services. it p~rchoses  capxi iy  at 

hsl:i:Lle x i e s  fioni long disi.in:e cirriers.  

fniplo!ecs 

As of D:cer.:b:r 3 I .  1997. t h e  Conipsny eniplo!,ed 1.327 people, including full-t ime and part-time 
emp1o:~~:es. Th: Cocipn! c0nsid:rj its er.iplo!,ee relstions to be good. None of the emplo!tes of the Company 
is coix::d b! 3 cclle:ti\~: ba:gainin_r agreenient. 

T r a d c m a r L s  a n d  T r n d c  Sanies 

T h e  Company uses t h e  njnie " S E X T L I N K ; "  3s its primary business name. I n  Ju ly  1995, the Company 
filed for fcdcrs! tradcni2rk protec;ion of this name and receiitd its notice of allowance from the U.S. Patent 
2nd Tradtzark 05:e (the '*PTO") on July I ,  1997. In addition, the Company has rcccittd a notice of 
allousnce from t h e  PTO of its distincti\,e floating "X" and related marks as protected trademarks under 
federal l a \ \ .  The Conipany from time to tinie recei\xs requests to consider licensing certain patents held by 
third parties lh31 ma! have bearing on its 1VR and virtual comniunications center services. The Company 
considers such requests on their merits. but has not to date entered into any such license agreements. 

Glossan. 

Addressoble birsilicss lilies - I n  accordance with industry practice, the Company includes in its 
calculation of ~ c r u a l  and t a r p e d  addressable business lines 311 business lines currently in active use through 
any seri,isc proiidtr in  each market area in which the Company has or plans to build a network. 

CAP (coriprirh*e occess prorider) - A company that provides its customers with an alternative to the 
ILEC for local private line and special access telecommunications services. 

Cewral oflees - The slvitching centers or central switching facilities of the LECs. 

Cf.EC (c.omperirii.e local e s c k n q e  corrier) - A company providing local telephone services in  competi- 
tion u i t h  the I L E C .  
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Co-mrrier .trnrir~ - A rcgulato~y scheme mder  \vhich the ILEC is required to integrate new. competing 
pro\,idcrs of local exchange service, such ;IS the Company. into tlie systems of traffic exchange, inter-carrier 
conipensation. and other inter-carrier rcliitionslrips that atread! exist among ILECs in most jurisdictions. 

Collornrion - The ability of a CLEC such as the Company to connect its network to the ILECs' central 
oficcs. P1i)sical collocation occurs when a CLEC places its ne twrk  connection equipment inside the ILEC's 
central omces. Virtual collocation is an alternative to physical collocation pursuant to which the ILEC permits 
a CLEC to connect its network to the ILEC's central offices on comparable ternis. even though the CLEC's 
net\\.ork connection equipment is not physically located inside the central offices. 

Dork f iber-  Unused fiber through tvhich n o  light is transmitted. Dark fiber is  provided with the 
custoiiier expected to supply the required electronics and signals. 

Dedicnred - Telecommunications lines dedicated or reserved for use by psrticular customers and 
charged on a flat, usually monthly, basis. 

DS-0, DS-I,  DS-3 - T h e  standard circuit capacity classifications. Each of these transmission services can 
be provided using the same type of fiber optic cable, but offer diflircnt bandwidth (that is, capacity), 
depending upon the individual needs of the end user. A DS-0 i s  a dedicated circuit that is considered to meet 
t h e  requirements of usual business comniunications. with transmission capacity of up to 64 kilobits of 
b3nduidih per second (that is. a voice grade equivalent circuit). This service offers a basic low capacity 
dedic3red digilnl line for connecting telephones. fax machines. personal computers and other telecomnrunica- 
lions equiprnent. A DS- 1 is a high speed digital circuit t!.pically linking high volume customer locations to 
long dist.\nce carriers or other  C U S ~ O I I ? ~ ~  locutions. T!,pically utilized for voice transmissions as \\ell as the 
inrerconneclion of L A h ' j .  DS-I service acconmoddtes iransniission speeds of up to 1.541 megabits per 
second. uhic l i  i s  the equi\,;ilcnt of 24 voice grade cqui\.dent circuits. DS-3 s s k c  provides 3 very high 
c.,;.!cit! cigi;:il circuit i i l i  tr,inwiission c;ipacity of 45 megabits per second. vlrich is equiu l tn t  to 25 DS-I 
i i i i c ~ i s  0: 6:: \ o i i c  gr.id: i.qui\~;ilcn~ ci:itiils. This is a digital se r \ke  used b! long distiincc c;irriers for central 
ct'ict cc,ni::ctions ;rnd b! s w i e  liirge commercial i i ~ t r s  to link multiple sites. 

FCC - 7I:c Cniicd Si i i tcs  Fedcrdl Communications Coniniission. 

FDDI / f ~ / i e r  d!.rrr,ibi(reA dnra irrrcr/nrt) - Bdsed on fiber optics. FDDl i s  a 100 iiicgi!bit per second local 
272.1 R C ; U  or!. ieclinolog! used to ccrlnect computers. printers. and uorkst;itions ;if \ 'cry hi;h speeds. FDDl is 
;?l;c. u ~ c d  ;!j h x k b o n c  icclinolcg! to interconnect other  L A K s .  

FibL7/. I ; ; ; / ' ,  - The n L i i i k r  of r o w  miles inmlled (ewluding pending instal1atior.s) along 3 telccomnru- 
riz2;ions ;.nil1 rtru1iiplicd b! the number of fibers along 111.71 path. See the definition of "route mile" below. 

ILEC I i / : r / /m!her i /  lorn/ exrhnrtgc rnwicr/  - A coriipmy Ilia1 1 \ 3 5  providing 1o:aI exchange ser\.ice prior 
13 11:: er,:r! of ilie CLECs.  

Lo.-n/ E\rhcr,rg'J - A geographic ;ire> determined h!, the appropriate stale regulatory autlrorit), in which 
cdlls gener311! are transmitted \~itliotit loll charges to the  calling or called party. 

f iuc - An electrical path beltteen ;in ILEC central o f k c  and a subscriber. 

f orrg di.r/o/icc* mrricrs (i/ircrrschnuge cnrr im)  - Long distance cnrricrs provide services bettieen local 
e\changes on an interst;ite or intrnstalc basis. A long distance carrier niny offer services over its own or another 
carrier's facilities. 

;l'/rrtlhcr Porrnbilir,r - The  abilit!, of an end user to change local exchange carriers while retaining the 
sanic telephone number. 

P0P.c ( @ / u s  o/ p / ~ s e / i r r )  - Locations where o long distance carrier has installed transmission 
equipment i n  3 service arc3 that serves as. or relays calls to, a network switching center of that long distance 
carrier. 

PL'C / p i H i r  i i r i / i / ) #  rortrntis.cion) - A state r e g u l a t o ~ ~  body. established in most s13tes, which regulates 

. .  

urilitics. including telephone conipnnies. providing intrastate services. 
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P t h l e  lirie - A dedic;ited teleconiniunications connection betiseen end user locations. 

Reciprocnl roniperisnliou - The conipcns;ition paid to and from a nets' competitive local exchiinge carrier 

Roure ruile - The number of miles of the telccon~niunications path in which the Conipany-o\\ned or 
leased fiber optic cables are installed. 

Speciol O C C ~ S S  senices - The  lease of private. dedicated teleconiniunications lines or "circuits" along the 
network of an ILEC or P CAP, which lines or circuits run to or from the long distance carrier POPS. Examples 
of special access services are telecon~munications lines running between POPS of a single long distance carticr, 
from one long distance carrier POP to the POP of another long distance carrier or fronr an end user to a long 
distance carrier POP. 

and the ILEC for termininion of a l o c ~ l  c;d1 on each other's net\\orks. 

Swirch - A device that opens or closes circuits or selects the paths or circuits to  be used for transmission 
of information. Suitching is a process of interconnecting circuits to form P transmission path between users. 

S\cYrrhed serr-ices - Transmission of stvitchcd calls through the local switched network. 

Item 2. Dcscriprion 01 Properties 

The Company owns or leases, in its operating territories. telephone property I\ hich includes: fiber optic 
backbone and distribution network fiicilities; point-to-point distribution capacity central office switching 
equipment; conneiiing lines bel\\ecn custoniers' prcniises and the central offices; nnd customer preniisc 
equi;rmcnt. 

The f iber  optic backbone and distribution ncinork iind connecting lines include ne r id  and underground 
cJbl:. condci!. and poles and \\ire;. Tllcje f;icilities arc 1o;;ited on public streets and h i p h u q s  or on privatel). 
ov n e d  I ind .  The Conipan!, h3s permission io u j t  these lands pursuant to consent or lease. permit. easement. 
or o ther  qcci: icnts.  The  ccntr.11 oftice s u  ilchinp cquiprnent includes electronic s\vitches and periplreral 
e q 2 i2nie n t  . 

The Conipn!, :ind its subsidi;iries Ieds: fJcilities for their ;idniinistmtive and siiles offices. network nodes 
and w r e h o - s e  spdce. The \.drious leases expire i n  !tars riinging from 199s to 202s. hlost have rene\val 
options. Additioniil oRce space ana equip1ii:ni rooms \I i l l  be leased ;IS the Conip3n!.'s operations and 
n e i \ \ o r k s  are e ~ p ~ n d e d  3nd ;is ne\\' nenrorks are constructed. 

f rem 3. L r p I  A u c c ~ ~ d i t i ~ s  

T h e  Conpan),  is not currcntl!. 3 part!' to an!. legal proceedings. other than repul3torl\, and other 
pi0:e:dings t h l  3re in  the nori;id course of its business. 

Item A. Subrtrissiorr oJll1nrrer.s ro n I,bre o j 5 c c i r r i r ~  Holders 

Xo ni~t te rs  \ w e  submitted to P vote of securit), holders during the quarter ended December 31, 1997. 

PART 11 

Ifem 5. AlntAer for Regisrrunrs' Conrntorr SroCk a d  Rclnred SrorkAoldcr Alarrers 

hlarket Information 

The Company's Class A Common Stock began trading on the Nasdaq National hlarket on Seplem- 
ber 26, 1997, under the symbol "NXLK". Prior to that date, the Company's Class A Common Stock was not 
publiclj, t r ~ d c d .  The following table sIio\\.s. for the periods indicated. the high and I O N  bid prices for the 
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Company's Class A Common Stock as reported by the Nasdaq National Market tier of The Nitsdaq Stock 
hiarket. 

Hi:h LOW - -  
1997: 

Third Quarter (since September 26. 1997) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $25.50 523.13 
Fourth Quane r . .  ......................................... $27.75 S19.50 

There is no public trading market for the Company's Class B Common Stock or NEXTLINK Capital's 
common equity. 

As of March 6, 1998, the approximate number of shareholders of record of the Company's Class A and 
Class B Common Stock was 218 and 15. respectively. The Company is the tole holder of record of 
NEXTLINK Capital's Common Stock. 

Use of Proceeds 

The Company filed a registration statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-32001) which became effective 
on Sep!enibcr 26, 1997, whereby 15.200,OOO shares of Class A Common Stock , $0.02 par value per share, 
\rere sold in  an jniiial public offering at 3 price of SI7 per share. Of t he  15,200.000 shares of Class A Common 
S:ock sold, 12,000.000 shares were sold by the Company and 3.200,OOO shares were sold by a selling 
sh3reholder. The Companj, did not receive any of the proceeds from the sale of shares by the selling 
shcreholdtr. I n  addition. the undenvriters of the IPO, led by Salomon Smith Barney, exercised an option to 
p m h m  2.2S0,OOO zdditional shares of Class A Common Stock a1 the same price per share. Set proceeds to 
t h e  C o m p n )  from t h e  I PO totaled approsiniatcly 5226.6 million. after deducting und:rwri!ing discounts, 
a?\,iscQ fees a n d  c\pens:s zgprepting ap?rosiniatel!. SI 6.0 nrillion. The Compmy iniends to use substantially 
311 cf ih: ne t  proceeds from 111: IPO for expendi:urcs relating to the chpmsion of existing networks and 
s e : ~  ices. t h e  de\,elopmeni and acquisition of ne\\ netnorks and services and the funding of operr!ting losses and 
uc:ki:: cs$:d. F o n t  of tlie net proceeds from the IPO had bern used b!. the Cor.iFm), as of Deceniber 31, 
199:. 

The  Company filed 3 registration statenienr on Form SI (File No. 333-33003) uliich becanie efl'ective 
cn S:;:tmbcr 26. 1997. whereby the  Company sold S400 million ag_nrcpaie principal amount of 9 X  Senior 
S o l e s  d a e  2007 (*.9!.i5 Senior Kotes"). The odering u s  led b!, Salonion Smith Barney. Kct proceeds from 
the 531: of the 9 W  Senior Sotes toidcd approsimstely S3SS.5 million. after deducting issuance costs 
zggr:g2!ing xFpro\im3iel!. SI 1.5 million. rela!inp to undcrwiting discounts. ad\.isor), fees 3nd expenses. The 
us: of proceeds from t h e  debt orering are substsntially tlie same as tlrc Company's 1PO. h'one of the net 
p:s:eeds fro111 the sd!e of 9!s5 Senio; h'otes Iind been used by t h e  C o m p n y  as of December 31, 1997. 

Dit idciids 

K e i i h t r  the Company nor S E X T L I S K  Capital h3ve declared a cash dividend on a n )  of their respective 
equii!. securities. Covenants i n  the  indentures pursuant to which the Company's and NEXTLINK Capital's 
Senior Soics have been issued restrici t h e  ability of the Compm). to pa!' cash dividends on its capital stock. 

Sales of Unregistered Securities 

h'one. 

Item 6. Alanngenient's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition arid Rcsrrlts of Operations 
01 e n  ielr. 

Since its inception in 1994, the Company has executed a strategy of developing fiber optic neworks and 
acquiring related telecommunications businesses. O w  this period, the Company has pursued this strategy by 
constructing, acquiring, leasing fibers or capacity on, and entering into agreements to acquire teleconmunica- 
t ions ne I works. 



The Company's primsty focus is providing switched local and long distance and enhanced communica- 
tions services to small and medium-sized commercial end user customers. The Company plans to acquire. 
build or develop networks in new areas, expand its current networks, and also explore the acquisition or 
licensing of additional enhanced communications services and other telecommunications service providers. 
These cRorls should allow the Company to increase its presence in  the niatketplace, and facilitate providing a 
single sourcc solution for the telecommunications needs of its customers. 

The table provides selected key operational data: 
As of Drrrmbrr 31, 

1997 1996 - -  
Operating data (I):  
Route miles(2). ........................................... 1,897 1,060 
Fiber niiles(3) ............................................ 133,224 66,046 
On-net buildings connected(4) .............................. 513 403 

S\vitches installed.. ........................................ 13 9 

Emplo!,ees.. .............................................. 1,327 568 

( I ) The operating data include the statistics of the Las Vegss net\\,ork, which the Company manages rnd in 

( 2 )  Rout: miles refers to the number of miles of the tclecominunications path in  which the Company-owed 

( 3 )  Fibcr ni i le5 refers to t h e  number of route niilcs installed along 3 telecommunications path. niultiplied by 

( A )  Represents buildings phpicall!, connected I O  the Compan!,'s networks. cx ludinp  those connected by 

( 5 )  Rt?rcstn!s buildings connected IO the Company's networks through leased or unbundled ILEC facilities. 

(6 )  Rtprestnis the  n u m b e r  of access lines i n  ser\ice, including those lines which are pro\*idcd through ressle 
of Cen:r:\ xrvices. for hich the Compan!, is billing ser\kes.  

The Comyn) .  builds its n:t\\orks to encompass t h e  significant business concentrations in each area it 
s e n c s ,  foccsing on direct connections to end user locations and ILEC central ofices. The Company employs a 
uniform iechnolog!, plztforni for each of its local exchange netuorks that is based on the A'ortel DAIS 500 
digital 10;d 2 n d  long distance combination s\\irching platform and asso:iated distribution technology. As of 
Januap  31. 199s. the Company had 12 operation31 h'orrel Dh1S 500 switches, including one switch in  its 
KEXTLAB f ~ c i l i t ~ , ,  and currentlj, plans IO install three additional switches by the end of the second quarter of 
199s. NEXTLAB is a fu l ly  functional model of one of the Company's networks, which serves as a testing 
facility for wi tch  software and the Company's products and services and will serve as the Company's network 
operations control center. 

The Company 3150 provides enhanced communications services including interactive voice response 
("IVR") services, which provide an interface between the Company's clients 3nd their customers for a variety 
of applicarions. Historically, t h e  Company has derived a substantial proportion of its revenues from these IVR 
services. As local and long distance revenues arc expected to grow more rapidly than revenues for the 
Company's enhanced communications services, rhe Company anticipates that, over the next fiw years, local 
and long distance revenues uill account for a significantly higher percentage of total revenues. 

The dewlopmcnt of the Company's businesses and the construction, acquisition and expansion of its 
n e t \ w k s  require significant expenditures, a substantial portion of which are incurred before the realization of 
revenues. These expendirures, together with the associated early operating expenses, result in negative cash 
flo\\, u n t i l  an adequate customer base is established. Ho\vevcr, as the customer base grows, the Company 

Off-net buildings connected(5) .............................. .'3,504 - 
Access lines in scrvice(6) .................. I... ............. 50,131 8.51 1 

v hich t h e  Company has a 405 membership interest. 

or leased fiber optic cables are installed. 

tlic Conipn!"s estimate of the number of fibers along 11ut pJ1h. 

unbundled incunibent local exchange (ILEC) facilities. 
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expects th:it incremental revenues c;m be generated with decreasing incremental operating expenses, tvhich 
1iiaj' prn\,idc positive contributions to cash no\\. The Conipany has made the strategic decision IO build high 
capiicity netu orks \\ iih bro;id niurket coverage, which initially increases its level of capital expenditures and 
operating losses. The Conipiny believes thiit over the long term this will enhance the Conipany's finkincia1 
performance by increasing the traffic now over the Cotripany's networks. The Company has recently entered 
into leused dark fiber and fiber capacity :itrangemenis, which allow the Company, by installing one or more 
switches and related clcctronics, to enter a market prior to completing construction of its own fiber optic 
network. 

Prior to Jmuary  31. 1997. the Conipany was a liniitcd liability company that was classified and taxed.ss a 
partnership for fedcriil and state income tax purposes. As of January 31, 1997, the Compmy was subject to 
federal and state income tas. 

Results of Operations 
)'cnr Ettdcd Dccctitber 31, 1997 Corrtprrred wiih Ikar Ended Decentbar 31, 1996 

Re\*cnue in:remd 124"~ to 557.6 million in  1997 from 525.7 million in the tame period in 1996. T h e  
increase \\ 'os primarily due to 45% pro\vth in  the Company's local and long distance services (both switched 
and reu!:). dedic.ited services and enhanced communications services, as well as due to recording a ful l  ).ear's 
reienue from ITC. 3 switcIr-b.ised long distnnce reseller acquired in  Deceniber 1996. T o  a lesser extent, the 
Jcquisilioris of Surt Tcchnologies Co,rporation ("Start") and Chadivick Telecommunications Corporation 
("Ch.idnick") i n  the fourth rju.irier of 1997 also contributed to the increase in revenue. Revenues reported in  
I997 inc!ad:d S3S.9 nii1lio:i der;\  :d froni local and long distance. competiti\.e access. dedicated line services 
;i~:d d i ~ x d  I C I L : : ; ~  s c r \ , i x -  ;in2 S I S.7 niillion derived from enhanced communications ser\,iccs. primaril!~ IVR,  
Tllc Cc!!:-,;-.iii! 'Z I \ ' R  s\ibidi:ir! csn t r ih ted  2?% and 52% of the Conipan!,'s re\.enucs during 1997 and 1996. 
re<;xcli,$,cl!, Tlrt re\ tnt i t . ;  ger;e;.i!ed b!. 1 h i 3  subsidiary h:i\-e tended to fluctun:e on ;i quarter to qtinrter basis 
;I: t i i i '  :S\CI:UC< a1.c p x r . i l l !  e\.eni dri\,rn and scasonal in  n;iture. 

TI]: Cwipii:! !x;.!R \)Tcring s\~i:clxd local and long dist;ince ser ikes  i n  seven of its ni3rkcts in 
Jul! 1996. a n d  i n  I8 dddiiionJ1 m r k e t s  during 1997. I n  addition, the Company has offered dedicated line 
sci, \ , iccs sjn;c JJnuar), 1995 ;ind has resold Cenirex x c e s s  lines since April 1995. The Coiiipan!. incrcased its 
cEJ i i : r l>  c:s:aiiier J C C t S S  line i n s~ l l~ l t i on  r a e  froni 1.604 in the fourth quarter of 1996 to 19.1S7 during the 
fo:::Ii cjg;r:ci' of 1W. A s  of Dccembcr 31. 1997. the Coinpan!. h3d 50,131 access lines in service, compared 
to 8 .51  1 ;is d Dc;cmber 31. 1990. Rexnues  from t h e  pro\ision of such services are expected i o  continue to 
increase ,!s J coiiipsneni of tOi.11 re\'enues o\'er future periods. Access lines in service includes those lines 
\\ hi:h ;irc pw ided t h r s ~ ~ l r l i  r c j n l t  of Centrcx services. the number of uhich is decreasing over time as the 
CO:ilF3l;> cGii\ 'eri3 thobe cuS:OiiierS 10 its o\\ n netuork. 

Opc:.i:ii:g eypenses consist of costs dirccily related to providing facilities-based network and enhanced 
co:iiiiiu;iia!tions scrvicc> and also include salaries and benefits and related costs of operations and engineering 
personnel. Operiiting expenses increased 1 IS% in  1997 to SS1.0 million, an increase of 528.9 million over the 
same period in  1996. These increases w r e  attributed to factors that include an increase in network costs 
relatcd to tlic provision of i n c r c m d  voluiiies of local, long distance and enhanced communications services 
and the Coiiipnny's increase in employees as \\ell as other related costs primarily to expand the Company's 
swiiched 10c;ll and long distance service businesses in its existing and planned markets. Additionally, the 
effects of the ITC acquisition in  Deccniber 1996 and the two acquisitions in the fourth quarter of 1997 further 
resulted in i4n increase in  1997 operating expenses over those of the prior year. 

Selling. general and administrative expenses ("SGBA") include salaries and related personnel costs, 
facilities expenses. sales and marketing. consulting and legal fees and equity in loss of affiliates. SG&A 
increased 142% for the year ended December 31, 1997 as conipared to the corresponding period in 1995. The  
increase W:IS prini3riIy due to the Company's increase in employees and other cosls associated wiih the 
expansion of t he Conipan).'s s\\,itched local and long distance sen ice  businesses in its existing and planned 
markets.  3s ucll as the  ITC acquisition. 
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Deferred compensation expense was recdrded in connection with the Company's Equity Option Plan until 
April 1997, and i n  connection with the Company's Stock Option Plan (the "Plan"). which repl;lccd the 
Equity Option Plan, subsequent to April 1997. The stock options granted under the Equity Option Plan were 
considered compensatory and were accounted for on a basis similar to that for stock appreciation rights. All 
options outstnndirig under the Equity Option Plan were rcgranted under the new Plan with terms and 
conditions substantially the same as under the Equity Option Plan. As such, the Company continues to record 
deferred compensation expense for those conipensatory stock options issued, as well as for compensatory stock 
options issued subsequent to the Plan conversion date. Compensation expense is recognized o w  the vesting 
periods based on the excess of the fair value of the stock options at the date of grant over the exercise price. . 

Depreciation expense increased primarily due to placement in service of additional telecomniunications 
network assets, including switches, fiber optic cable, network electronics and related equipment. Aniortization 
of intangible assets increased primarily as a result of the ITC acquisition in December 1996, as well as the 
acquisitions of Linkatel, Start and Chadwick in 1997. 

Interest expense increased 76% in 1997 over the prior year due 10 an increase in the Company's average 
outstanding indebtedness over the respective periods, primarily relating to the 1 2 % 8  and 9%% Senior Notes 
issued in  April 1996 and October 1997, respectively. See "- Liquidity and Capital Resources." Pursuant to 
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 34, the Company capitalizes a portion of its interest costs 
as part of t h e  construction cost of its communications nettvorks. Capitalized interest during 1997 totaled 
51.8 million. Ir,terest income results from investment of excess cash and certain securities that have been 
pledged as col1st:ral for interest payments on the I2%% Senior Notes. The increase in  interest income in 1997 
o w  1996 corres7onded to the increrse in the Compsny's average outstanding cash b a l m "  

, 

Liquidit!  and Capit31 Rcsourccs 

The coi:;?eii;ive local tc1ecomn:unications service busincss is 3 capital intensi\,e b~~s ine is .  The Coni- 
psn! 'S  e\is:ing o2::ations have required and \I i l l  continue to require s ~ b s t i ~ n t i i ~ l  c3pit;il in\'estment for the 
acquisition 2nd inst3llation of fiber. electronics and related equipment in  order to provide switched sewices in 
the Conn;lsnj's net\\,orks and the funding of operating losses during the start-up phase sf each market. In 
addi~ion. t l i t  Compsn!,'s strategic plan callr for expansion into additional market areas. Such expansion will 
reqcire signi5:cn: 3dd i t io r~ I  capitz! for: potential acquisiiions of businesses or assets; design. development and 
cons1roction of ne \ \ .  nei\\orks: and the funding of operating losses during the start-up phase of esch market. 
Dur ing  1997, t h e  Compmy used S94.5 million i n  cash for operating activities, comp3red to 540.6 niillion in 
1996. The i n c r e s :  \\as primarily due to a substantial increjsc in the Company's activities associated u i t h  the 
de\elcpment 2nd ini~isrion of s\\,itched local and long distance services. In addition, during 1997, the 
Conipmy i n \  es lcd  3 n  additions1 S210.5 million in  cash in property and equipment. acquisitions of ieleconmii- 
nicarions busintsses and equity investments i n  telecommunications businesses. During 1996, the Company 
inested S?S.O nillion in  cash in property and equipment, acquisitions of telecommunications assets and 
businesses ar,d e q u i t y  investments in telecommunications businesses. 

I n  F e b r u q  199S, the Company signed a definitive agreement with hfctroniedia Fiber Net\vork for 
exclusive rights to multiple fibers and innerducts for 20 years, with two I O  year reneivals. The route covered by 
the agreement extends o w  650 route miles from Manhattan to \\'bite Plains (KY), to Stamford (CT), to 
h w k  (NJ 1 and south from Manhattan through Philadelphia, \t'ilmington (DE) ,  Baltimore, and to 
\\'ashinpion (DC). The route wilf offer frequent splice poinis within metropolitan areas and splice points 31 
least e \ q *  10,000 feet on routes between metropolitan areas, as well as provide access to ILEC central and 
tandem switching offices. The Company will pay $92.0 million in cash for the transaction, of which 
580.3 million will be placed into escrow, to be released as segments of the route are constructed and delivered 
to the Company. 

In January 1998, the Company and Nextel formed NEXTBAND, a joint venture uhich is owned 50% by 
the Company and 50% by Nextel. On January 20, 1998, NEXTBAND filed an application with the  FCC for 
l'hich i t  p3id a S50.0 million refundable deposit to panicipate in the FCC's LMDS auction which began on 
Februar) IS, 3998. Of the deposit amount, S25.0 million was contributed by the Company. LMDS is a fixed 
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broadband point-to-multipoint service which the FCC and industry analysts anticipate will be used for the 
deployment of \vireless local loop, high-speed data transfer and video broadcasting services. Two Iicenses will 
be awarded in each of 493 BTAs when the auction is concluded. Although the number of licenses that may be 
awarded to NEXTBAND is limited by the amount of the deposit, NEXTBAND has applied for and is eligible 
to bid on any of the  markets being auctioned for the block A license (1,150 MHr of spectrum) and the block 
B license (150 hlHt of spectrum). 

The Company is exploring Lh lDS for ,two reasons. Depending upon the bidding and deployment costs, 
LhlDS may offer an economically eficienl means to supplement the Company's fiber network build-out in 
some localities. In addition, a wireless local loop .altemativc may create competitive pressure on high 
unbundled loop costs in certain areas. There can be no assurance that NEXTBAND'S participation in the 
auction will result in the purchase of any LMDS licenses or that LMDS spectrum for wireless connectivity 
will provide a cost-effective and efficiently engineered means to connect to end user locations. If 
NEXTLINK'S bids are successful, the purchase price of the licenses and the costs of building out any such 
wireless systems could be substantial. 

In November 1997, the Company acquired all outstanding shares of Start, a shared tenant services 
provider serving commercial buildings in Dallas, Austin and Corpus Christi, Texas and Phoenix, Arizona. 
Services offered by Start include local and long distance services, Internet access and customer premise 
equipment management. Start currently provides services under long term contracts to 600 corporate 
customers, or approximately 13,000 end users. The Company paid"consideration for the transaction consisting 
of S20.0 million in cash. 411,336 shares of Class A common stock and the assumption of approximately 
S5.3 million of liribilities. the majorit!, of which \ w e  repaid. 

In Oziober 1997. the Conipcln! acquired all of the outstanding shares of Chad\\ick. a s\\itch-based long 
dij \snzc rt jcllc:  i n  centrd Penns!,l\*ani;l. through a merger transxtion bet\reen Chad\\.ick and a wholly owned 
subs idi2q.  of FEXTLIXK.  Chsdwick serves approsini3tely 11.500 customers throughout the central and 
e x i t r n  Pcr.ns!,lunis regions. The Company issued consideration for the trins3ction consisting of a proniissov 
nolc p?!Jble i n  t h e  q g r c g a t e  principal ai:iount of $5.0 million (vhich \\.as repaid in  f u l l  in  Januagt 1998), 
257.151 shares of Class A Coninion Stock and the repa;'ment of long term debt and other liibilities totaling 
56.6 million. Thc merger agreement also provides for additional payments of up to a maximum of 192,663 
shares  of Clsss A Comnion Stock o w  a two y a r  period, with these payments being contingent upon the 
a c q u i x d  o7:rsiion achieving specified p:rfornr3nce goals. 

I n  S:picniber 1997. t1x Compin), entered into 3 dcfiniti\x qreement  to acquire certain telccommunica- 
:ions 3ss:fs of L'niconi T h e n "  l'echnologies, Inc. ("UTT"), including tu.0 existing route miles of network 
F I U S  15  miles of conduii i n  doimtown Chicago. The Conipan!, also h3s the right to'pirticip3tc i n  the ongoing 
eyxnsisn of L'TT's nei\\ork in Chicago. The existing netuork currently provides connectivity to 2s buildings. 
Thc Corpsn!, ;Ifreed to pay S2.S million in cish, plus up to an additional 5560,000 for the acquisition of 
ceriain addiiional teleconiniunic~tions hcilities. The Conipany \vi11 also be required to pa)' certain additional 
considmtion to UTT for 3 portion of the net\\ork expansion costs, up to $3.4 million in cash plus the issuance 
of up to 60.022 shares of Class A Comnion Stock. 

I n  J u n e  1997, the Conipmy entered into an eight year excIusive agreement, with an option to renew for 
five additional years, with a conipan) lh31 has excess fiber capacity in each of Athnta,  Chicago, New York 
City, Newark (NJ) and Philadelphia which it agreed to make available to the Company in each of those 
markets at a substantial discount to the wholesale rates charged by other vendors of capacity. In  addition IO 
the capacity arrangement described above, the Company also has entered into a 20-year lease of capacity over 
an existing 47-mile fiber network in New York City, which extends from the Wall Street area north to 
midtown hlanhattan. In June 1997, the Company paid $ 1  1 million in full satisfaction of its obligations under 
this lease, $6 million of which was placed in escrow pending completion of certain building connections by the 
lessor. AS of December 31, 1997, 54.1 million remained in escrow. These arrangements will allow the 
Comp;ln), to accclerale its entry into each of these markets by enabling the Company to avoid a significant 
portion of t h e  infrastructure development and construction time that would otherwise be required to launch 
su,itched local 2nd  long distance services in these markets. Although these agreements have reduced the initial 
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capital expenditures necessay to enter these markets, the Company has not, as a result, reduced its overall 
planned capital expcnditures through 1999. 

I n  June 1997, the Company also executed o definitive agreement to acquire an existing fiber optic 
network in dountoun Philadelphia in order to extend its existing network in Pennsylvania. The acquisition is 
subject to regula to~* and other consents and is anticipated to be consummated by the end of the second 
quarter in  1998. During the interim period prior to closing. the Company is operating under a 36 fiber capacity 
agreement with the seller. 

On Februav  4, 1997, the Company completed the acquisition of substantially all of the 8SSClS of Linkatel, 
a 1 0 s  Angcles-based competitive access telecommunications provider. At the time of acquitition, Linkatel 
operated an 80 mile fiber optic telecommunications network covering several markets in the Orange and Lor 
Angeles county areas. The total purchase price of $423 million consisted of a cash payment of $36.1 million 
(including the release of $6.0 million which was deposited into escrow during 1996) plus the repayment Of 
debt of 55.6 million and the assumption of net liabilities totaling $0.8 million. 

In January 1997, the Company obtained rights-of-way to expand its existing Salt Lake City network into 
Provo and Orem, Utah. The Company has completed the expansion of this network to Provo and Orem and 
began providing s\titched local and long distance services in Provo and Orem in September 1997. 

Prior to April 1996, the  Company funded its expenditures with approximately $55.0 million of cash equity 
investments from t u 0  entities that are controlled by Craig 0. McCaw. On April 2S, 1996. the Company &sed 
gross proceeds of 5350.0 niillion through the issuance of 12th8 Senior Notes due April 1% 2006 (''12lh% 
Senior Notes"). The Compm!, used SI 17.7 million of the gross proceeds to purchase and hold in escrow U.S. 
governm:nt secu:i1ies. representing funds sufiicient to provide for payment in full of interest on the 12Wc 
Senior h'o:cs through April IS. 1999. i\nd used an additional 532.2 million to repap certain adviinccs and 
accrued in:crcj: fiO:!> Espl: R i w .  H conipan!' nujority-o\vncd and controlled by hlr. h l c h v .  In addition. the 
C o m p q  incurred  cosis of S9.E million in connection with the financing. Interest payments on the 12!% 
Senior h'o:es x e  due senii-annu;~ll~,  

On Jsnu.77 51. 1997, the C o ~ p a n y  compltted the sale of S2S5 million aggregate liquidation preference 
of 14% s:nior txchangeible redecmible prtferred shares ("Preferred Shares") which, after deducting 
issuance C O S i S .  res:ltcd i n  ne1 proceeds to the Company of approximately 5274 million. The Preferred Shares 
accrue dividends 31 the  rate of 14% p:r annum. On OT before February 1.2002, dividends may, a1 the option of 
the Corr.;an!. be paid in cash or by issuing additional Preferred Shares with an aggregate liquidation 
preferen:e e q u 2 l  i o  :h: amouni of such di\,idends. After F e b r u a ~ ,  1 .  2002, dividends must be paid in cash. As 
of December 31, 1 9 9 i ,  the Compiny had issued an addilional 622,031 shares of Preferred Shares in 
sotisfaciion of the  first th ree  qu;lrterl\. diiidcnds. 

Since i r ~ : e ~ : i c ~  .?nd through December 1996, the Compiny has also issued Class A Units valued at 
51 5.5 million primsrily for the  acquisiiion of certain telcconimunications assets and businesses, which Units 
titre con\wled to shares of Class B Comnion Stock of the Company on J a n u a v  31, 1997. 

On October I .  1997. the Company completed an initial public offering ( " I P O )  of 12,000.000 shares of 
Class A Common Stock at a price of SI7 per share. I n  addition, the undenvriters of the IPO cncrcised an 
option to purchase 2.280.000 additional shares of Class A Common Stock at the same p i c e  per share. Gross 
proceeds from the ]PO totaled 5242.8 million, and proceeds net of undcmriting discounts, advisory fees and 
esriniated expenses aggregated approximately f226.8 million. Concurrently with the IPO, the Company sold 
$400 million in aggregate principal amount of 978% Senior Notes due 2007, which, after deducting estimated 
issue costs, resulted in  net proceeds to the Company of approximately f388.S million. Interest payments on the 
9Wo Senior Notes are due semi-annually. 

On March 3, 199S, the Company completed the sale of $335 million in aggregate principal amount of 9% 
Senior Notes due 2005 ("9% Senior NO~CS"). Proceeds from the sale, net of discounts, undenvriting 
commissions, ad\.isory fees and expenses, totaled approximately 53263 million. Interest payments on the 9% 
Senior Notes are due semi-annually, beginning Sepiembcr 1998. 
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The Company will use the remaining proceeds from the sale of Class A Common Stock, 9HB Senior 
Notes and 9% Senior Notes and existing unrestricted cash balances for expenditures relating to the 
construction. acquisition i\nd operation of tclccommunications netttorks and service providers and the offering 
of telcconinunications services in those areas where the Company currently operates or intends to operate. 
Espcnditurcs for the construction and operation of nct\vorks include (i) the purchase and installation of 
SI\ itches and related electronics in existing networks and in networks to be constructed or acquired in new or 
adjacent markets; ( i i )  the purchase and instollation of fiber optic cable and electronics to expand existing 
networks and develop neu  networks. including the connection of nett' buildings; (iii) spectrunr that may be 
purchased during the LhlDS auction that is currently ongoing; (iv) the devcloplnent of its comprehensive 
in formiit ion technology platform and (v) the funding of operating losses and working capital. The Company 
niay also acquire or invest in  businesses that consist of existing networks or companies engaged in businesses 
similar to those engaged in by the Company and its subsidiaries or other complementary businesses. 

As of December 31, 1997, the Company had unrestricted cash and investments of $742.4 million and 
S 1,068.9 million on a pro forma basis after giving effect to the sale of the 9% Senior Notes. The Company's 
current plan contemplates an aggressive expinsion into a number of new markets throughout the United 
States. The Company may pursue various a l t ema t iw  for achieving its growth strategy, including: additional 
network construction; additional leases of network capacity from third party providers; acquisitions of existing 
net\\orks; and spectrum that may be purchased during the LMDS auction that is currently ongoing and 
asso:ijted facilities construction and deployment if any spectrum is purchased. The Company also anticipates 
t h a t  a subsiantial amount of idditional capital cspenditures \vi11 be mode in 1999 and beyond. The funding of 
these capital expenditures is expected to be provided by existing cash balances, future vendor and/or credit 
f;ciIiiies. f u t u r e  public or priwte s;llcs of debt securities. future  ssles of public or private c3pitaI stock and joint 
\.er,!urej. There can be no assurmce. h o u e w .  that the Comp;rn), tiill be successful in raising sufficient 
a ldi l ionsl  c ; i~ i t i I  on ternis th3 t  i t  \rill consider ilcccpt;\ble or that the Conipany's operations will produce 
F O S i t i \ :  consclid~~tcd cas11 !lo\\ in sufticicnt amounts to  m e t  its interest and dividend obliptions on 
ou!j!dnding securities. Fiiilure to r i s e  and generate suficicnt funds nrsy require the Company to delay or 
a h n d o n  sonie of iis plinn:d future espmsion or expenditures. uhich could have a mmria l  adverse effect on 
thc Coi:ipan!,'s grou i h  and its ability to  compete in the lelccommunicitions services industry. 

In  iddition, the Compan!,'s operating flexibility with respect to certain business matlets is ,  and will 
cor,:inue to be, limited b!. co\.enants associated w i t h  the I!!'?% Senior Kotes, the 9W.c Senior Notes and the 
95 S:r,ior Soles.  Aniong oihet things. these covenants limit the ability of the Company and its subsidisrics to 
i ncc r  2ddiiionil indcbiedxss. c m : e  liens upon assets, 2771: the  proceeds froni the disposil of assets, make 
d i \  id:nd Fqr:i:nts a n d  other disiributions on capital stock and redeem capital stock. I n  addition. the terms of 
t h e  Preferred Slnres coniiin certain c o \ " m t s  that ma)' limit the Conipany's operating flexibility with respect 
to t h e  in:urren:e of indcbwdntas and issuance of i~dditionnl preferred shares. There can be no assurance that 
such co\'ensnis \ \ , i l l  not adwsel!, alTect the Conip;ln!.'r ability to finance its future operations or capital needs 
or IO engage in other business acti\*i:its thnt ma!. be in  the interest of the Company. The Company \vas in 
compli3nce u i t h  all co\'eni\nts :issociated u i t h  the 12!% Senior Notes, the 9 t i E  Senior h'otts and the 
Preferred Shares 3s of December 31, 1997. 

Impaci of )'car 2000 

Ccriain of the Conipan!,'s older computer systems and applications were wit ten  to define a given year 
with abbreviated dates using the last IWO digits in P gear rather than the entire four digits. As a nsult, those 
s!mms and applications have time-sensitive sofitvan that recognize an abbreviated year "00" as the p a r  
I900 rather than the year 2000. This could cause n system failure or miscalculations resulting in disruptions of 
optrarions includin~, among other things, a tempotar). inability to process transactions, send invoices or engage 
in other normal business activities. 

The Company has received positive confirmation from its vendor that the Company's None1 DhIS SO0 
switches and related telecommunications equipment are Year 2000 compliant. The Company is currently 
assessing the extent of replacements or modifications n c c e s s a ~  to certain of its older computer systems and 
applications so that such systems and applications will properly utilize dates beyond Deccnibcr 31' 1999. The  
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Company believes that the inipact of upgnding or modifying existing software and convening to new so f twte  
(the "Year 2000 Project") will not be material to the Company operations or financial position. Coslr incurred 
in connection v i t h  the Yeirr 2000 project will be expensed as incurred unless new softure is purchased. in 
uhich case such costs will be capitalized. The Company has not incurred significant Year 2000 project costs to 
date. The Conipmy plans to complete the Year 2000 project no later than December 31, 199s. 

Oullook: Issues and Uncertainties 

The Company does not provide forecasts of future financial performance. This Repon, ho twer .  does 
contain s13lenicnls that are not historical facts and arc fon\*ard=lookin~. Actual events or results may differ' 
materially from events or results indicated, whether expressed or implied. AlthouBh the Company's 
management i s  optimistic about the Company's long-term prospectss the following issues and unccnninties, 
among others, should be considered in evaluating its outlook. 

A'egurive Cnsh NOW and Optraring Losses; Linrirrd Hisroty 01 Oprroriont 

The detxlopnicnt of the Company's businesses and the installation and cxponsion of i ts  networks require 
significanl expenditures, a substantial portion of which must be made before any revenues may be realized. 
Certain of the  expenditures are expensed as incurred, \\bile certain other expenditures are capitalized. These 
expenditures. together \\.ith the associated earl), operating expenses, result in negative cash flow and operating 
losses unl i l  2n  adequdte revenue base is established. There can be no assurance that an adequate revenue base 
w,ill  be es~s t l i sh td  for any of the Company's netivorks. The Company's operations have resulted in net losses 
of 512.7 million, 571.1 million and 5129.0 million for the years ended December 31. 1995, 1996 and 1997, 
respc;ti\.cl!~. The C o m p m y  uill continue to incur significant expenditures i n  the future in connection with the 
accuisiiion. d:\.elopnicnt and expansion of its networks. services and customer base. There Ciln be no 
a s i ~ r ~ r ~ : e  1 h i 1  I!): ConiFm!. uill 3chit1.e or sustain profrtabilit! or generate positi\x c..~sh flov in the future. 

Th: C c r , p n y  \ \as fornied in S:yeniber 1994. A significant. but declining. portion of the Company's 
re \ ' cnue  To: t h e  !ears ended December 31, 1995. 1996 and 1997. \\as derived from the operations of the 
Coinpm!'s I \'R enhanced sevice ofitring. which operations \ w e  acquired by the Company in Seplcnibcr 
1995. Pros?:iii\ e in\csiors. therefore, h3ve limitcd historical financial information upon 11 hich to base i\n 
e\,aIda!ii~n of t h t  Corip;ln!,'s performance in  the business vhich \ \ i l l  be its principal focus in the future.  The 
Con.rpn! has  on11 rccentl!, commenced operations as a single source service provider of teltconimunications 
s:r\.ices. Ci\er! the Conipsn!.'s limited oper3tinp histon. there can be no assurance t h a r  it \ \ i l l  be able to 
ccnn; !e le  ~ u ~ i e s s f u l l ! ~  in the teleconiniunic~tions business and to gener;lte posititx cash flow in the future. 

Sigrrgcnnr rirriir~c Cnpirril Rcqirirorirrrrs; Sirbsrnnriul Indchrcdnrss 

ExFmsic-t of t h e  Comp3n)'s existing nttuorks and scnices and the development and acquisition of new 
ne\\ \  O i k s  2nd s:rvices \ \ i l l  require significant capital expenditures. The Company \vi11 also continue to evaluate 
additional ret'enue opportunities in each of its markets and, as and when attractive additional opportunities 
deitlop, the Company plans to make capital investments in its networks that might be required to pursue such 
opportunities. The Company expects to meet its additional capital needs with the proceeds from credit 
facilities and o the r  borrotihgs. the proceeds from public or private sales of debt securities, the sale or issuance 
of cquitj, securities and through joint ventures. There can be no assurance, however, that the Company will be 
successful i n  raising sufficient additional capital on terms that it will consider acceptable or that the 
Comprny's operations will produce positi\~c cash flow in sufficient amounts to s e n k c  its debt and to pay cash 
dividends on the 149 Preferred Shares. Failure to raise and generate sufficient funds may require the 
Company to  delay or abandon some of its planned future  expansion or expenditures, which could hiwe a 
material a d w s e  e~?cct on the Company's growth and its ability to compete in the rclecommunicrtions sewices 
industry. See "h!an~gemcnt's Discussion and Analysis of financial Condition and Results of Operations - 
Liquidity and Capital Resources." 
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acquisition of telecommunications companies, the possible acquisiiion of LMDS spectrum and the construc- 
tion and deployment of associated fdcilitics, if such spectrum is purchased, the purchase of additional 
s\vitches, the offering of switched local and long distance services, the introduction of other new service 
offerings and the development and implenrcntation of a comprehensive information technology platform. T h e  
Indenture does not limit the amount the Company may invest in Restricted Subsidiaries or certain joint 
ventures engaged in one or more fclecomniunicrrions Businesses (including the joint venture through uhich  
the Company is participating in the LMDS auction) or the amount of Debt the Company may incur to fund 
investments in  Restricted Subsidiaries or such joint ventures. As of December 31, 1997, after giving pro forma 
effect to the Offering, the amount of total consolidated liabilities of the Company would have been 
approximately 5 1,164.7 million. 

The fu!urc funding requirements discussed above are based on the Company's cunent estimates. T h e n  
can be no assurance that actual expenditures and funding requirements will not be significantly higher or 
louoer. 

Risk Associaird mirh hp!eivenrm'un of Grumrh SrrurrcpV 

The expansion and devclopment of the Company's operations (including the construction and acquisition 
of additional networks) xi11 depend on, among other things, the Company's ability to assess markets, identify, 
f inance  and complete suitable acquisitions, design fiber optic netuatk backbone routes, install fiber optic cable 
and f3cilities, including s\\.itches, and obtain rights-of-way, building access rights and any required Bovemment 
s~thorizations. franchises and permits, all in a timely manner. at nasonable costs and on satisfactoy terms 
3nd conditions. I n  addition. the Cornpan!, h3s experienced rapid g r o ~ t l i  since its inception, and the Company 
belie\.ts t h n t  sustained grot\ th plsces 3 strain on operation31. human and financial resources. In order to 
t::Jn2ge i!s g:ov rh. NESTLISK niust continue to inrprow i t s  operating and administrative s!*srems including 
t h e  continued de\,clopmen1 of effective systems relating to ordering. provisioning and billing for tclccommuni- 
c3tions ser\.i:tr. KEXTLIXK must also continue to attract and retain qualified nm3geri;ll. professional and 
technic~~l Fcrsonnel. As 3 reslrlr. there can be no .?ssurance that the  Company will be able to inrplement and 
m3n2g: scccessfully its grou t h  stnteg). The Company's growth strategy also in\.olvcs the following risks: 

Quoi,lird Pcmrrirel .  FEXTLIN'K bclie\~es that a criiical component for iu success will be the attraction 
and ret:r,:ion of quslified msnqeri31, profession31 and technical personnel. During 1997 the  Company has 
e\p:ri:nced sipificsnt cor,ip:tirion in  the attraction and reteniion of personnel that possess the skill sets that 
the ConiFZn), is seeking. Although the Company has been successful in attracting and retainin4 qualified 
personnel. t h e r e  c3n be no assurance tha t  KEXTLlh'K !\ill not experience a shortage of qualified personnel in 
t h e  f u t u r e .  

Si~Yrrh nrid L q ~ / i p ~ i i t ~ m  l ~ u r n l l ~ i o ~ i .  An esreniial element of the Company's current strategy is the 
Fmision of su itched local service. There can be no assurance that the installation of the required switches, 
fiber optic cjblc and associotcd electronics necessaty to implement the Company's business plan will continue 
to b: completed on time or that, during the testing of these switches and related equipment, the Company will 
not experience icchnological problems that cannot be resolved. The failure of the Company to install and 
operate successfully additional switches and other nework equipment coutd have a material adverse effect 
upon the Compsny's ability to enter additional markets as a single source provider of telecommunications 
services. 

Inrcrconnuciioii Aprrrnrrrru. The Company has agreements or i s  currently negotiating agreements for 
the interconnection of i t s  networks with the networks of the ILEC covering each market in which 
NEXTLINK either has or is constructing a network. NEXTLINK may be required to negotiate new, or 
renegotiate existing inierconnection agreements as it enters new markets in the future. There can be no 
assurance that the Company uill successfully negotiate such other agreements for interconnection uiih the 
ILEC or rcne\~~als of existing interconnection agreements. The  failure to negotiate required inicrconnection 
agrtemenls could haw a material adverse effect upon the Company's ability to enter rapidly the telecommuni- 
cations market as a single source provider of telecomniunications services. 
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Orderitig. Probisioniirg a id  Billing. The Company has developed processes and procedures 8nd is 
H orking with external vendors, including the ILECs, in the implementation of customer orders for services, 
the provisioning. installation and delivery of such services and monthly billing for those services, In connection 
with its de\tlopment of a comprehensive information technology platform, the Company is developing and 
implementing automated internal systems for processing customer orders and provisioning. Billing is provided 
by unafiliated third-party vendors. The failure to develop effective intema! processes and systems for these 
service elements or the failure of the Company's cumnt vendors or the ILECs to deliver effectively ordering, 
provisioning (including establishing sufficient capacity and facilities on the ILEC's networks to service the 
Company) and billing services could have a material adverse efkct upon the Company's ability to achieve its 
growth strategy. 

Producrs and Semites. The Company expects to continue to enhance its systems in order to offer its 
customers switched local services and other enhanced products and services in all of its networks I S  quickly IS 
practicable and as permitted by applicable ngulations. The Company believes its ability to offer, market and 
sell these additional products and services will be imponant to the Company's 8bility to meet its long-term 
strategic grouth objectives, but is dependent on the Company's ability to obtain the needed capital, additional 
favorable regulatory developments and the acceptance of such products 8nd services by the Company's 
customers. No  assurance can be given that the Company will be able to obtain such capital or that such 
dctelopments or acceptance \vi11 occur. 

~ r q u i ~ i r i o m  The Company intends to use the net proceeds of the' Offering to expand its networks and 
sen ice oferinps through internal developments and acquisitions. uhich could be material. Such acquisitions, 
i f  made. could di\crt t h e  resources and management time of the Company and would require integration with 
the Conipanj's e\isrinp netuorks a n d  services. There can be no assurance that any such acquisitions \ g i l l  occur 
or 11131 sn! such acquisitions, if made. ~ o u l d  be on tern15 favorable to the Company or uould be successfully 
inxgrjicd into the  Conipnnj's operations. 

:\'red To Obrrriti Atrd .Vnintairr Frnnclriscr, Pcnttits And Riglirs-O/.llaj* 

I n  order to acqui re  and de\~elop its netuorks the Conipany must obtain local franchises and other permits. 
as \\ell  as rights to utilize underground conduit and aerial pole space 3nd other rights-of-wy and fiber capacity 
from cniiiies such as ILECs and other utilities. railroads, long distance companies, state highway authorities, 
local gowrnm:n!s 2nd transit auhorities. There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to 
maintain i t s  esis:ing franchises. permits and rights or to obtain and nmintain the other franchises, permits and 
righis n e e d e d  to ir;..plenient its busin:ss plan on 3cccptable terms. Although the Company does not believe 
that any of t h e  exisling arrangements will be c;lnccled or will not be renewed as needed in the near future, 
canccll3tion or non-renew1 of cc r t~ in  of such arr3ngements could materially adversely affect the  Company's 
business in  the  aRecied nietropolitan area. I n  addition, the failure to enter into and maintain any such required 
arrsngements for 3 psrticular nctivork, including a network which is already under development, may affect 
the Compm) 3 sbility to acquire or develop that nettvork. See "Business - Conipanp Network Architecture." 

Conrprtition 

In  each of the markets served by the Company's networks, the Company competes principally with the 
ILEC serving that area. ILECs are established providers of local telephone services to all or vinuallp all 
telephone subscribers within their respective service areas. ILECs also have long-standing relationships with 
r e p l a t o ~ y  authorities at the federal and state levels. While recent FCC administrative decisions and initiatives 
provide increased business opportunities to telecommunications providers such I S  the Company, they dS0 
provide the ILECs with increased pricing flexibility for their private line and special access 8nd switched 
access services. In addition, with respect to competitive access services (as opposed to switched loca! 
exchange senkes ) ,  the FCC recently proposed a rule that would provide for increased ILEC pricing flexibility 
and deregulation for such access services either automaticalty or after cenain competitive levels are reached. 
I f  the ILECs arc  allo\\.ed by regulators to offer discounts to large customers through contract tariKs, engage in 
aeercssiw \iolumc and term discount pricing practices for their customers, andlor  seek to charge competitors 
excessi\,e fees for interconnection to their networks. the income of competitors to the ILECs, including the 
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Company, could be materially adversely affected. I f  future regulatory decisions afford the ILECs increased 
access services, pricing flexibility or other regulatory relief, such decisions could also have a material adverse 
effect on competitors to the ILEC, including the Company. 

The Company also faces, and expects to continue to face, competition from other current and potential 
market entrants, including long distance carriers seeking lo enter, reenter or expand entry into the local 
exchange market place such as ATkT Corp. ("AT&T),  MCI Communications Corporation ("MCI"), 
Sprint Corporation ("Sprint") and WorldCom, Inc. ("WorldCom"), and from other CLECs, competitive 
access providers ("CAPS"), cable television companies, electric utilities, microwave camen ,  wireless 
telephone system operators and private networks built by large end-users. In addition, a continuing trend 
toward combinations and strategic alliances in the telecommunications industry could give rise to significant 
new competitors. The Tclecom Act includes provisions which impose ccnain regulatory requirements on all 
local exchange camen,  including competitors such as the Company, while granting the FCC expanded 
authority to reduce the Ieve? of regulation applicable to any or all tclecommunicrtions camers, including 
ILECs. The manner in which these provisions of the Telecom Act are implemented and enforced could have a 
material adverse effect on the Company's ability to successfully compete against ILECs and other telecom- 
munications service providers. The Company also competes with equipment vendors and installers, and 
telecommunications management comp~nies  with respect to certain portions of its business. Many of the  
Companj's current and potential competitors have financial, personnel and other resources, including brand 
name recognition, substantially greater than those of the Company': as \\ell as other competitive advantages 
over  t h e  Company. 

Thc Company also competes with long distance carriers in the provision of long distrnce sen4ces. 
h1:houph t h e  long distance market is dominated by four major competitors. AT&T, NCI, Sprint and 
\\'orldCon~. hundreds of other companies also compete in the long distilnce nixkctplace. 

The Company is subject IO vaying degrees of federal. state and local regulation. In each state in which 
the Compsn; desires to offer its services. the Company is required to obtain authorization from the 
a7prcpris1e state commission. Although the Company h3s received such authorization for each of its 
opcrs:ionsI nnrkets, there can be no assurance that the Company will receive such authorization for markets 
to be hunched i n  the future. The Company is not currently subject to price cap or rate of return regulation, 
nor is i t  currenll!, required to obtain FCC authorization for the installation, acquisition or operation of its 
n:i\vork fa:ilities. Further, the FCC h3s determined that non-dominant camers, such as the Company and its 
subsidi3ties. 3 x  not required to file interstaie tarifs for interstate access and domestic long distance service on 
a n  onroing basis. On February 13, 1997, the United States Coun of Appeals for the District of Columbia 
g r a m d  motions for a stay on the FCC det3riffinp order pending judicial review of that order. The result of this 
stale is that carriers must continue to file tariffs for interstate long distance services. The FCC requires the  
Company and its subsidiaries to file inierstate tariffs on an ongoing basis for interstate and international inter- 
eschange traffic. The Company's subsidiaries that provide or will provide intrastate services are also generally 
subject IO certification and tariff or price list filing requirements by state regulators. Although passage of the 
Telccom Act should result in increased opportunities for companies that are competing with the ILECs, no 
a s ~ ~ r i n c e  can be given that changes in current or future regulations adopied by the F C C  or state regulators or 
other legislative or judicial initiatives relating to the tclecommunications industry would not have a material 
adverse effect on the Company. In addition, although the Telecom Act provides incentives to the ILECs that 
are subsidiaries of Regional Be11 Operating Companies ("RBOCs") to enter the long distance service market, 
there can be no assurance that these ILECr will negotiate quickly with competitors such as the Company for 
the required interconnection of the competitor's networks with those of the ILEC. O n  July 2, 1997, S B C  
Communications lnc. ("SBC") and its local exchange c a m e l  subsidiaries filed a lawsuit in the United S!ates 
District Court for the Northern District of Texas challenging on Constitutional grounds the Telccom Act 
restrictions applicable 10 the RBOCs only. The plaintiffs in the case seek both a declaratory judgment and an 
injunction against the enforcement of the challenged provisions. See "Business - Regulatoty Owview." 
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On December 31, 1997, the United Statts District Court for the Northem District of Texas issued a 
decision holding that Sections 271 through 275, including the long distance entry provisions, of the Telccom 
Act are unconst itutional because they violate the separation of powers pinciplcs and bill of attainder provision 
of the U.S. Constitution. On February 11, 1998, the United States District Court for the Northern District of 
Texas granted the CLECs' request for a stay of the December 31,1997 decision pending appeal to the United 
States Court of Appeals for the Fifth Circuit. That appeal is cunently pending. If the stay is lifted, or if the 
Fifth Circuit upholds the district court's ruling, then the RBOCs would be f m  to enter the long distance 
market, providing additional competition to the Company's bundled service oKering. In addition, the district 
court's ruling uould eliminate the long distance entry incentives under the Telccom Act that uen designed to 
promote interconnection between the ILEC and new competitors. The district court's decision has k e n  
appealed by the US. government and a number of other intervenors. 

On May 8, 1997, the FCC released an order establishing a significantly expanded federal telecommunisr- 
tions subsidy regime which both increase the sire of existing subsidies rnd created new subsidy funds. In the 
May 8 order, the F C C  also announced that it will soon revise its nles for subsidirin8 service prob-ided to 
consumers in high cost areas. The Company intends to make all subsidy pay"nts required by law. See 
"Business - Regulatory Overview." 

On July 18, 1997, the United States Court of Appeals for the Eighth Circuit ovenumed many of the rules 
the FCC had established pursuant to the Telccom Act goveming the terms under which ClECs may, among 
other things, inicrconnect with ILECs, resell JLEC services, lease unhndled  ILEC network elements and 
terminate traffic on ILEC networks. On October 14, 1997, the United States Court of Appeals for the Eighth 
Circuil vaca:cd the FCC's rule prohibiting ILECs from separating unbundled nctuotk elements that are 
already combined. except at the request of the CLECs. These eighth Circuit decisions substantially limit the 
FCC's jurisdiction and expands t h e  state regulators' jurisdiction to set and enforce rules g o w n i n g  the 
de\dopmcnt of Io:31 competition. As a result, i t  is more likely that the rules goveming locd competition will 
vaQ subs~antiall) from state to state. Most S I ~ I C S ,  houever, have already begun to estabIish rules for local 
compelition lh31 are consistent t l i ih  the FCC rules overturned b? the Eighth Circuit. If a patch\vork of state 
rcgulstions \\ere IO develop, it could increase the Company's costs of rcgulatofy complisnce and could make 
competiiivc c n q  in some markets more dificult and expensive than in others. See "Business - Regul r toy  
O\.crvic\\ ." 

Drpcndrncc on Lnrge Citsromcrs 

To d3:e t h e  Com:3nj, has derived a substantial proponion of j i s  revenues from certain large customers of 
its compeiitive a:cess services and its I\'R enhanced communication service oflenngs, the loss of one or more 
of which could ha\.e a material adverse effect on the Company's operating results. The Company's 10 largest 
customets accounted for approximately 25%. 51% and 66% of the Company's revenues in 1997, 1996 and 
1995, respecti\,ely. The Company does not have long-term service contracts with most of these customers. The 
Company will continue to be dependent upon a small number of customers for 8 substantial pcrtion of its 
revenues until  such time, if at all, as the Company generates substantial revenues from the provhion of 
switched local and long distance communications senices. 

Rapid Technological Cho nger; Licenses 

The telecommunications industry i s  subject to rapid and significant changes in technology. The  eKect on 
the Company of rechnological changes, including changes relating 10 emerging uirelinc and wireless 
transmission and switching technologies, cannot be predicted. In  addition, the Company from time to time 
receives requests to consider licensing certain patents held by third parties that may have bearing on its IVR 
and virtual communications center services. The Company considers such requests on their merits, but has not 
10 date entered into any such license agreements. Should the Company be required to pay license fees in the 
future, such payments, if substantial, could have a material adverse effect on the Company's results of 
operations. 
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Dtpendeiice an K e j  Prrsonnrf 

The Compmy's businesses 3re managed by a small number of key executive ofticers. the loss of certain of 
tthom could have a material 3d\wse effect on the Company. The Company belie\*es that its future success \till 
depend in  large part on its ability to develop a large and sophisticated soles force and its ability to attract and 
retai, highly skilled and qualified personnel. Most of the executive officers of the Company, including the 
presidents of its operating subsidiaries, do not have employment agreements. Although the Company has been 
successful in attracting and retaining qualified personnel, there can be no assurance that NEXTLINK will not 
experience a shortage of qualified personnel in the future.  

I'arin bilitj. o/ Qiinrrcr& Operaring Results 

As a result of the significant expenses associated with the expansion and development of its networks and 
services and the variability of the level of revenues generated ihroiigh sales of NEXTLINK'S IVR enhanced 
communications services, the Company rnticipatcs that i ts  operating results could va.rry significantly from 
period to period. 

Control by Air. Craig 0. hfcCaw; Porenrial Confliers o/ Inrensrs 

Craig 0. hlcCa\\, primarily through his majority otvnersbip and control of Eagle River Investments, 
L.L.C.. 3 \\'ashington limited liability company ("Eagle River"), controls approximately 52% of the 
Comp~ny's io131 voting po\\cr. As a result, Mr. McCn\v has the ability to control the direction and future 
oyr3tions of the  Conipnn!,. hlr .  hlcCatv is not an executive oflicer of the C o n i p ~ n y  and. in addition to his 
in\estmeni in the Company through Eagle River. hlr. NcCatr h3s significant investments in other 
cor;m;inic;itions conipanics. including Nestel Communic:itions, Inc.. feledcsic Corporation 3nd Cable Plus 
lr,c..  sonic of nliich could conipeie u i t h  the Conipan!, as a single source provider of teleconmiuniciitions 
ser\ . iccc 01 ;!ct 3s 3 supplier to the Compsny of certain tclecon~niunications services. The Company does not 
have 3 noncompetilion ;yreement with either hlr. hlcC;i\\ or E ~ g k  River. hlr. h!cC:~ is not bound b> any 
ionir.?:lu.lI restrictions qnins t  ssles cf the Compan!.'~ coninion stock. 

Poti*ii:iril I o1rrtilii.r O/ SIUCA I'ri~c 

TI:: niarkst  priic of th: Compan!.'s coliinion siock h is  been. and is likely to continue to be. volatile. The  
m.irke:  price of t h e  coninion stock could be subject to  sipnific3nt fluctuations in response to a number of 
factors. su:h 3 5  ; i i tua l  or ilnliCiFaied variations in Ihe Conipany's quarterly operating results, the introduction 
of ne\ \  p:oducts b! the Conipan!. or iis conipttitors, changes in other conditions or trends in the Compsnp's 
i:,c;s:r!. c k n g c s  in ~ o * ,  ernr;icnt;ll regulations, changes ir. securities an31ysts' estiniates of the Compan).'~, or 
its conipetitors' or indusq's.  future performance or genet31 market conditions. In addition. stock markets 
h w e  experienced ewen ie  price and volume volatilit), in recent years, u,hich has had a subslantid effect on the 
ni3rLti  prices of securities of many smallcr public companies for reasons frequently unrelated to the operating 
performance of such companies. 

. *  

lreni 7. Fiirniirial Srmiirenrs and Sirpplrnrmraty Dora 

The consolidated financial s~atcments of the Company are filed under this Item, beginning on page 44 of 
this Report, and of NEXTLINK Capitol are filed under this ltem, beginning on Page 61 of this Report. 

item 6. C/IO tigcs in  and Disagrrmrrnrs nirh Arrounranrs on Arroirntinp and Nnanriaf Disrfosiire 

None. 
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PART 111 

Item 9. Dirmrors nnd Exocrrtiw OJicrrs o/ ;lie Conrpnnj 

hlANACEhlENT 

Simr 

Steven W. Hoopcr(3) ..... 
\!'aj*nc hl. Peny(1 ) .  ...... 
James F. Voelker( 1 ) ...... 
George hl. Tronsrue I11 . . , 
Jan Loichle .............. 

- 

KathJeen H. Iskra ........ 
R. Bruce Easter, Jr..  . . . . . .  
Charles P. Daniels . . . . . . . .  
h l i c h x l  J .  hfcHale.  Jr. . . . .  
R. Gerard Solemme. .  . . . . .  

Cr2i: 0. 3lcCau . . . . . . . . .  
Dennis \\'cibling( I ) ( ? )  ( 3 )  
Scoi J m . i s ( 2 ) .  . . . . . . . . . . .  
\ \ ' i l l i33  A .  Hoglund( 1 ) ( 2 )  
Sh2ron 1. Kelson(3) . . . . . .  
Jeffre! S. Raikes . . . . . . . . .  

* 
45 
48 
41 
41 
50 

41 

40 
41 
41 
41 

4s  
46 
37 
41 
51 
39  

The folio\\ing table sets forth the names, ages and positions of th executive officers and members Of th 
Company's board of directors. Their respective backgrounds are described following the table. 

Position - 
Chairman of the Board of Directors 
Vice Chairman rnd  Chief Executiw Officer 
President and Director 
Chief Operating Officer 
Vice President, Chief of Local Exchange 
Operations 
Vice President, Chief Financial Omccr and 
Treasurer 
\'ice President, General Counsel and Secretary 
\'ice President, Chief Technology Officer 
Vice President, Chief h/3rketing Oficer 
\' ice President. External Affairs and Indus ty  
Relations 
Director 
Director 
Director 
Director 
Director 
Director 

. 

( 1 )  h l e ~ 5 c :  cf the E\ecuti\c Conimi;tec 
( 2 )  5lemb:r of t h e  Coniptnsglion Commitice 
(3)  31en*,b:r cf the Audit  Committee 

The  fo!loi\ irs persons arc the presidents of the Conipanj's operating subsidinries: 
Position * - \rmc - 

Hugh C. Ca they . .  . . . . . . . .  47 President of h'EXTLlh'K Ohio, L.L.C. 
Don HiIlennre!er . . . . . . . . .  52 President of NEXTLINK Tennessee, L.L.C. 
Jeff C. S tone . .  ........... 40 President of NEXTLINK Interactive, L.L.C. 
D\ra)ne Nielson .......... 43 President of NEXTLINK Utah, L.L.C. 
G a 9  Ratiding. ........... 46 President of NEXTLINK Pennsyluania, L.P. 
Dondd N'. Sessamen ...... 64 President of NEXTLINK California, L.L.C. 
Richard Kingston ......... 38 President of KEXTLINK Illinois, Inc. 

Direciors of the Company are elected annually at the annual meeting of shareholders. The next annual 
meeting of shareholders is scheduled for May 1998. All of the oficcrs identified rbove serve I t  the discretion 
of the Bsard of Directors of the Company. There rn no family relationships betwren m y  person identified 
above. 

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the services provided by the Company's independent 
auditors, consulting u i t h  the independent auditors on audits and proposed audits of the Company rnd  
reVic\\inE the need  for internal auditing procedures and the adequacy of internal controls. The Compensation 
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Coniniittee dctcrniines executive conipensition and stock option wards .  The Executive Committee exercises, 
to iliu nininiuin extent permitted by law. all paws of the Board of Directors be twen board meetings. except 
those functions ilssigned to specific conrnriirees. The Board of Directors may establish additional committees 
from time to time. 

The following iltt brief biographies of persons identified above. 

Sw.tw W. Hooprr. hlr. Hooper has been Chairman of the Board since July 21, 1997. Prior to that, 
Mr.  Hooper was Vice Chairman of the Conipany since June 16,1997. Mr. Hooper was formerly President and 
Chief Executive Officer of ATCT \Vircless Services. Jnc., following the merger with h lccaw Cellular. Prior to 
being appointed President and Chief Executive Ohcer ,  he served as Chief Financial Officer Tor two ,%an. 
This was preceded by five years as Regional President for Cellular One's Pacific NorthwcstlRocky hlountrin 
region, where his responsibilities included managing the cellular operations in six westem states and Alaska. 
Mr. Hooper is a member of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors. 

W q I i c  M. Prrry. Mr. Perry has been Chief Executive Officer of the Company since July 21, 1997 and 
Vice Chairman of the Company since June 16, 1997. Mr. Peny was formerly Vice Chairman of A T k T  
!\'ireless Services, Inc. since September 1991, follo\ving the merper with McCaw Cellular. Prior to the 
nicreer, he served as Vice Chairman of the Board of hlcCaw Cellular since June 1989, and before that served 
3s President since December 1985. Prior i o  becoming President of h1cCaw Cellular, hlr. P e w  sewed IS 
E\ccuti\ t  \'ice President and General Counsel and \\.as pr imav kga! officer from 1976 to 1985. hh. Pew was 
appointed \'ice Chairnun of the Board of L l N  Broiidcasting Corporation on March S, 1990. He also served as 
C h n i r n x i n  of t h e  Boxd of Directors of the Cellular Ttlecommunications Industry Association, the nationwide 
uireltss industp, nssoeintion. for the 1993194 term. hlr. Pcrc*  i s  a member of the Executive Committee of the 
B 0.1 r d of D ire c t ors. 

J ; / H W , <  F, IbdXrr >!r. \ ' o t Ikr  h;is been the President of NEXTLINK since April 1995 and is 
r:sponsible Tsr d:\eloping ihc compnn!. vision 3nd guiding o w a l l  operations. He is recognized as one of the 
e.irl! en:rcprencurs in t h e  business of building and delivering competitive local exchange service. 
bI i .  \'o:lker's c m e r  i n  telcconiniunicz:ions spins alnrost two decades and includes experience in very 
di7ereril segni:nts of the  industry i n  3 utiet!  of executive positions. From 1981 to 19S4 he served as Vice 
Presiden: of Sdcs. hlarketing 2nd Customer S t r i k e  for Lcxitel Corporation, the forerunner of Allnet 
Coxi::sni:r!tions. hlr .  \'oelker co-founded Digit21 Signal Inc. and served as Chief Operating Officer and 
Chief E\ccuti\.e 0:Xcer from 1 9 S S  through the c o m p q . ' s  sile to S P  Teleconi in 1990. Digital Sienal operated 
r! n i : i o n u  id: fiber optic netu ork supplying cap3tii!., engineering. provisioning and operational support IO over 
o x  1:;;ndrcd interc\ch;inge carriers. in the CAP arena. hlr. Voelker became Vice Chairman of City Signal 
In;. in  1992, nliich consmcied and operated networks in six nurkets. Subsequently, he served as its Chief 
Ext:c;i\.t 0 f i : e r  a f w  th: coinpmy merged \\ith i t s  sister company Teledial America to form U.S. Signal. 
B s e d  in Grand Rapids. hlichjgan, U.S. Sign31 was one of the first fully cenified CLECs in the country. 
>I:. \'c:lker has served as \'ice Chi rn ian  of ALTS, the industry Association of Local Telephone Service 
pro\.idcrs and 3s a director of Phoenix Network Inc., a publicly held long distance company. hlr. Voelker is 
also a meniber of the Executive Committee of the Board of Direciors. 

Ccorgv AI. fro~tsntr IN. Llr. Tronsrue has been Chief Operating Officer of NEXTLINK since 
October 1997. Prior to that. hlr. Tronsrue was p3rt of the initial management team of ACSI from 
Fc bruary 1994 to September 1997, and was nsponsible for planning and overseeing the operations of ACSI  
for its first three years serving as Chief Operating Officer, President, Strategy rnd Technology Development 
Division and Eiecutivc \'ice President, Planning and Development. Prior to that, Mr. Tronsrue served IS the 
Region31 Vice President of the Central Region of Telepon Communications Group ("TCG"), and u Vice 
Pretidcni, Emerging Markets overseeing the start-up of TCG's initial ciBht cable television partnerships, 
Before TCG, hlr. Tronsrde was ai hlFS Communications from its inception in 1987 until 1991. At MFS, 
h!r. Tronsrue sewed as Vice President, Corporate Planning and Information Management; Vice President, 
Field Sales; Vice President and General Manager for hJFS Neu York during its first year of operations and 
Esecu~i \x  \'ice President, hlFS Internet. Prior io  MFS, hlr, Tronsrue sewed at MCI from 1983 to 1986 in a 
\*ariei~, of engineering and operations roles, culminating as Director of Operations, Michigan and Ohio. 
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Jon Loichlr. Ms. Loichlc has been Vice PEsident, Chief of Local Exchange Operations of NEXTLINK 
since October 1996. Prior to that, Ms. Loichle \vas the President of NEXTLINK Solutions (the virtual 
communications center) from July 1995. Prior to joining NEXTLINK, Ms. Loichle was Executive Vice 
President at U.S. Signal in Detroit and Grand Rapids, Michigan from April 1993 to July 1995. At U.S. Signal 
Ms. Loichle led the development of an enhanced service platform (Magic Number) from concept through 
production system and implementation, From 1990 to 1993, MS. Loichle was Assistant Vice President of 
Finance for S P  Telecom in San Francisco. Prior to that, Ms. Loichle was Vice President of Financial 
operations for Lexitcl/Allnct/ALC in Birmingham, Michigan from December 1980 to October 19S9. 

NEXTLINK since January 1996. Prior to that, she was President and Chief Executive Officer of Horizon Air, 
a uholly owned subsidiary of Alaska Air Group, Prior to her appointment at Horizon Air, MS. I s h a  served as 
staff Vice President of Finance and Controller of Alaska Airlines and Alaska Air Group. Ms. Iskra's service 
with Alaska began in 1987, uhen she was appointed Controller. Prior to joining,Alaska, she was an  audit 
manager with Arthur Anderscn. 

R. Bruce €amr ,  Jr. hlr. Easter has been Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary of 
NEXTLINK since January 1995. From 1986 to December 1994, hlr. Easter was an associate and then 
panner in the la\\. firm of Davis Wright Trcmaine in Seattle, Washineton, uhere he focused on communica- 
tions lau, and media matters. 

Chorles P. D o i ~ i e t .  hlr. Daniels has been \'ice President, Chief Technology Oficer since July 1997. 
Prior to t h z t ,  h!r. Daniels \\as \'ice President, Chief hlarketine OAcer of NEXTLINK from No\vember 1995. 
from 1992 to 1995, M r .  Daniels \\,orkcd for hlCl \\here he was the founder and Program L I m q e r  of the 
net\\ork h!CI Dc\,elopers L3b. h t r .  Daniels \\as also 3 founding menibcr of MCl's Advanced Technology 
Group. Prior to joining NCI, hlr ,  Daniels worked for Manufacturers Hanovcr Trust from 19S9 to 1991 ;IS 
\'ice Presideni/Siriitegic Technology and Research. \\.here he w a s  responsible for e\.;duating and implenient- 
ing new technologies that either reduced costs or gcncrstcd ne\\ revenue. 

hfichoel J. McHole, Ir.  h!r, hlcHale has been \'ice President. Chief hlarketing Oflicer since Novcni- 
ber 199i. Prior to joining SEXTLINK,  hlr, McHale served as l'ice President and General Manager of the 
Phoenix market and Region31 \'ice President at Teleport Comniunic;ltions Group, Inc. froni 1993, developing 
the Phoenix market from its inception. Prior to that. from 1991 to 1993. he was \'ice President, Product 
hlarkcting 3nd Dc\.clo?mcnt at h!FS Intelcnct, Inc. and \vas responsible for planning and implementing 
SlFS's in i i i i l  introduction of suitchtd services in A'eu York City. 

R. Cernrd Sole i? i i~ ie .  hlr. Salemnic has been \'ice President, Extemal Affairs and Indus tv  Re1;itions 
since Jul! 1997. Prior to joining KEXTLlh'K, hfr. Salemme \vas \'ice President, Government Affairs at 
ATAT COQ. from December 1994 Prior to joining A T P T  Cop. ,  hlr. Salemme \ u s  Senior \'ice President. 
External AKairs at McCaw Cellular from 1991 to December 1994. 

Crnig 0. hfcCnw. M r .  hlcCaw has been 3 director of the Company since September 1991 and was Chief 
Executi\.e Officer of NEXTLINK from September 1994 to July 21, 1997. hlr. M c C w  is also Chairman and 
Chief Executive Oficer of Eagle River. a company fomied and owned by hlr. McCaw to make strategic 
in\icstmcn:s in telecommunications ventures. hlr. LlcCaw was the founder. Chairman and Chief Executive 
Oficcr of IrlcCaw Cellular, the nation's leading provider of wireless communications services, until the 
company was sold IO AT&T in August 1994. Prior to entering the cellular telephone business in 1983, 
Mr. McCaw was requested by his family to assume responsibility for the daily operations of 8 small cable 
television operation in Ctntralia, Washington, that he and his three brothers owned. The one-sptem operation 
serving 4,000 subscribers e w t u a l l y  grew to be the nation's 201h largest cable operator serving 450,000 
subscribers. In 1974, the cable company's services expanded by entering the paging and conventional mobile 
telephone industries. The company eventually became the fifth largest paging operator in the country, serving 

. approximately 320,000 subscribers in 13 states. In 1981, the company began to develop broad-based cellular 
telephone ser\ices. Later, hfcCaw Cellular became the nation's largest cellular telephone operator, with 
cellular system positions in more than 100 U.S. cities, representing more than 100 million potential customers. 
The company also had inicrcsts in wireless data transmissions, personal communications ser\*ices. air-to- 

Korhtccn H. Iskro. Ms. Iskra has been Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Trcasukr  of . 
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ground phone systems and satellite communications at the tinic of its tole to ATPT. hlr, hlcCuw is one of the 
two principal owners of  Telcdesic Corporation, which in hlarch 1994 announced plans for 3 worldwide 
satellite-based telecommunications system. hlr. hlcCmv is indirectly a significnnt stockholder. o dircctor and 
Chairman of the Operating Comniittec of Nextel Communications, Inc.. ;I provider or wireless tclecommuni- 
cations services. hlr. McCaw is also o director of Cable Plus, Inc. 

Drirnis U'eibling. Mr. Weibling has been a dircctor of the Company since Jonuay  1997 and had been 
Executive Vice President of NEXTLINK since September 1994. Mr. Weibling is  also President of Eagle 
River, Inc., since October 1993. Mr. Weibling is a director and member of Nextel Communications, Inc.'s 
Board of Directors and operations, audit and. coniptnzation committees. Nextel is o leading provider or 
integrated wireless communications services for teams of niobile workers. Mr. Wcibling s e n m  on the board 
and executive committee of fcledesic Corporation, a satellite teltcommunications company backed by 
Mr. McCaw and Microsoft founder Mr. William Gates. Mr. Wcibling is  a director of Cable Plus, one of the 
leading providers of private cable television and telephony service to tesidcntial rponment complexes. 
A licensed certified public accountant in Washington, hlr. Weibling i s  a m t m b t r  of the Amencan Society of 
Ccnified Public Accountants and the Washington Society of Certified Public Accountants. In addition. 
hlr, Weibling is a licensed attorney in Ohio and a member of the Amencan Bar Arsociation and Ohio State 
Bar Association. hir. Wcibling is also a member of the Executive, Compensation and Audit Committees of 
the Board of Directors. 

Sror Inni5. hlr. larvis has been B director of the Company since J a n u a y  1997 und. prior to that, hod 
been Executive Vice President of NEXTLlh'K since September 1994, and tvas 3 Vice President of Eagle 
River, Inc. from October 1994 through April 1996. hlr. Jarvis is the co-founder and since March 1997 has 
been 3 member of Cedar Grove Partners, L.L.C. Prior to t h 3 ~  hlr. .Ii\r\.is u a s  the arling President of the 
Company from September 1994 to April 1995. Prior to joining Eirplc River. Inc.. hlr. J m i s  served as Vice 
President of hlcCa\v DeveloFnxnt Corporrnion from 1992 to 1991 utid of XlcCmt Cc1lul;lr froni 19S5 through 
1994. During his !enure 31 h l c C w  Cellul~r.  M r .  J w i s  served in  thc positions of General h lmiger  from 1990 
to 1993, \'ice Presidtnt of Acquisitions and Dcvelo?ment froni 19bS to 1990 ;rnJ Assistant Vice President 
from 1985 to 19SS. hlr .  Jarvis also recently served on the Board of Directors or executive committees oT: 
KEXTEL Communicrtions, Inc.. YriCcllul~r Corporation, Horizon Cellular Group, 10s Angelcs Cellular 
fel:phont Company, Cellular ZOO0 Partntrship, Cyberiel Cellular Telephone Company (SI. Louis), h'orth- 
n e s t  Cellular Partnership, and hlovitel del Noroeste (Mexico Region). hlr. Jsrris h3s also served as the 
Presjd:ni of the Iberia Cellular Telephone Conipany froni 1991 10 1994. Alr. J w i s  is illso J mcniber of the 
Conpensation Comn.rittee of the Board of Directors. 

H'i/ / iow A .  Hoglund. Mr. Hoglund has been a director of the Conipmy since January 1997 and, prior to 
t h i i ,  h J d  been Executht Vice President or KEXTLINK since February 1996. hlr. Hoglund is also Vice 
President and Chief Fjnsncial Omcer of E q l e  River, Inc. since J a n u a y  1996. Prior 10 joining Eagle River, 
Inc.. h l r .  Hoglund was h lanqing  Director of J.P. Morgan 8: Co. in its investment banking group. 
hlr. Hoglund \vas employed by J.P. Morgan b: Co. from 1977 through 1995, focusing for the p3St nine yean on 
clients in  the telecommunications, cable and media industries. hlr. Hoglund is also a member of the Executive 
and Compensation Committees of the Board of Directors. 

SAorou L. A'elson. hls. Nclson has been director of the Company since September 1997 and, prior to 
that, was Chairman of the Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission ("WUTC") from Febru- 
ary 11 ,  1985 until her resignation on August IS, 1997. Prior to sewing on the WJTC, Ms. Nelson served as 
staff coordinator for the Washinpton State Legislature's Joint Select Committee on Telecommunications 
(1983 IO 1985), an attorney in private practice (I982 to 1983), legislative counsel to the Consumers Union of 
the United States (1978 to 1981), staA counsel to the Commerce Committee of the US. Senate (1976 to 
1978) and secondary school teacher of history and anthropology (1969 to 1973). Ms. Nelson is also the pzst 
president of the National Association of Regulatory Utility Commissioners. AQs. Nelson also served on the 
Fcderal-State Joint Board on Universal Service created under the Telecom Act and as one of the ZO-member 
negotiating team appointed by the Governors of Washington, Idaho, Oregon 3nd Montana to review the 
h'orthwst electric p o w r  system. Ms. Nelson is also a member of the Audit Committee of the Board of 
Dire c I ors. 

36 



JeJky  S. Roikcs. Mr. Raikes has been u director of the Company since September 1997. He is also 8 
member of the E m u t i v c  Comnrittee and the Group Vice President. Sales and Marketing of Microsoft 
Corporation. As Group \'ice President, Mr. Raikes has responsibility for hlicrosoft's worldwide customer units 
as \vel1 :IS sales. marketing. support and service in the United States and Canada. Prior to joining the 
Executive Conrmittec in July 1996, Mr. Ruikes was Senior Vice President of Microsoft Nonh America since 
1993. Prior to serving as Senior Vice President of Microsoh Nonh America, from 1990, hlr. Riikes was Vice 
President or Ofice  Systems, where he \vas responsible for the development and marketing of word processing. 
workgroup applications and pen computing. From 1984 to 1990, Llr. Raikes was the Director of App!icrtions 
Marketing, where he was the chief strategist behind Microsoft's graphical applications for the Apple 
Macintosh and Microsoft \!'indotvs as well as leading the product strategy and design of Microsoft Oftist. 
hlr. Raikes is also (1 member of the University of Nebraska Foundation and a f t u s i t e  of the Nfashington State 
University Found at ion 

The follo\r.ing individuals are the senior management of the Company's ru.bsidiaries. 

Hugh C. Curhry. M r .  Cathey has been the President of NEXTLINK Ohio since August 1996. Prior to 
joining NEXTLINK, M r .  Cathey had nearly 20 years of experience in the telecommunications industry. 
Mr.  Cathey uss President and Chief Executive Officer of Digital Network, Inc., 8 publicly traded, facilities- 
based long dis:once company based in  Dallas, Texas. From 19S9 to 1993, Mr. Cathey served as President and 
Chief Executive Offrccr of United Telcm;lnagement, Inc. Prior to that, Mr. Cathey held sales and product 
mzn;r_cenrent positions of increasing responsibility with ATPT, culminating as the senior executive of 8 
business u n i t  of ATBT t r i t l i  n n n u l  revenues of approximately SI00 million. During hlr. Cathey's tenure at  
United Tcl:ri;;ln~lgcl:lent, Inc.. thai rompmy filed ii petition under ;he Federal bankruptcy laws. 

DOJI  R///tv:~iit,.wr. hlr .  liillenix!er h;is been the President of NEXTLIh'K Tennessee since 
bf.!rcli 1995. Prio: i o  jciziny S E X T L I X ) ;  i n  31;lrcli of 1995. hlr, Hillenmeyer \\as president of MCMG, Inc.. 
3 S;!jl>\. iIle-b~<:d \( ireless coriiniunic.:itions tnanngenrent consulling and operations firm specializing in 
runnir,g Rur.\l Stnix A r e s  for indtpcndent cellul;\t telephone owners. Before founding SICMG, lnc., 
blr. Hiliennic!er held \m ious  senior nianqtnieni positions at h!cCa\v Ccllulrr and \\.as responsible for 
13 southern s:;ites koni  August 1956 10 February 1990. 

Jrj'j C. .S/oma. h!r. Stone h;ls been the President of SEXTLIXK Inter3ctivc (the I\'R subsidiary) since 
August 1 ,  1997. Prio; to joining t!i: Compin!*. hlr. Stone 111s \'ice President and Generrl Manager for the 
Western Repion of \\'OrldCoiii. Inc. (Frcviousl!, hlFS Tclccom. Inc.) from 1994 10 July 1997. Prior to that, 
frozi 19S9 to 1S9-i. 5lr. S:one u i i s  the Dirccior of Sales and Marketing of Associrted Communications of 
Lsi Angeles .  

D ~ M . Y I I C  .*ticholi. h l r .  Siclson has been President of KESTLlN\'E; Utah since Februay 1996. Prior to 
joining NESTLISK. h!r. Nielson \\'as Assism1 \'ice President, Consumer and Small Business Market, at 
Spr in t  Co:px.!:icn Croni 0ctoS:r 1991 to F e b r u q .  1998. Prior IO that, from August 19S5 through 
October 193-1. 3!r. Nelson lreld a variety of sales and niarkcting positions at Sprint and United Telephone. 

Gr;r:~ R n w h g .  M r ,  Rwding  has btcn President of NEXTLlNK Pennsylvania since September 1994. 
Prior to founding Pcirns Light Communications. Inc.. certain assets of which tven acquired by the Company 
in Sep~tmber  1994. he sened  as \'ice President of Sales and Marketing at Eastem TeleLogic Corporation 
froni 19S9 until  1993. Prior to joining Erstem Telclogic, Mr. Rawding held various positions with Bell 
Atlantic Corporation. 

Dounld W. Srssnnirir. blr. Sessomen has been President of NEXTLINK California since Ko\.em- 
ber 1996. Prior to that. M r .  Sts sancn  acted as a consultant to NEXTLINK. Prior to acting os a consultant to 
the Comyiny. Mr. Sessamen joined Brooks Fiber Califomia in 1994 as President, after the company acquired 
Phoenix Fiberlink. At Brooks Fiber California, Llr. Sessamen completed the installation of the Sin Jose 
ssstcm and managed the entry into witched services in the Sacramento market. From 1991 10 1994, 
hlr. Sessamen \ \as E w u t i v e  \'ice President of Operations, Engineering and MIS at SPTelecom, 8 fiber optic 
systems constructicn and \vholescilc transmission company using Southern Pacific Railroad righis-of-way east 
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of the hlississippi River. At S P  Tcleconi. hlr. Sessamcn led SP fclccom's entry into suitch-based products 
utilizing the  Northern Tclcconi DhlS 250 Super Node, introducing innowive witch-bascd products. 

Riclrtrrtl A'iirgsmi. Mr. Kingston hi\S been the President of NEXTLINK Illinois since July 1997. Prior 
to joining N EXTLIN K, hlr. Kirgston was the \Vestern Regional Vice Presidcnt/General Manager of 
American Coniniunications Services, lnc. from April 1994 to July 1997. Pnor to that, Mr. Kinaston operated 
his own telecommunications company. King Communications, lnc. from Januay  1992 to January 1994. From 
December I990 to January 1992. hlr. Kingston was West  Region Agent Manager for Telesphcrc Communicr- 
tions, Inc. and from 1988 to December 1990. Mr. Kingston \\*as Director of Camer  Sales at MFS Communi- 
carions Company, fnc. 

Section 16(a) Beneficial Oivnership Reporting Compliance 

Inforniation regarding compliance with Section l 6 (a )  of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is set forth 
under the caption "Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance" in the Company's Proxy 
Statenrent rclatinp to the Conip3ny's annual meeting of shareholders to be held on May 20, 1998, and is 
incorporsled herein by tcference. Such Proxy Statement will be filed within 120 days of the Company's year 
end. 

1 ieni 10. EAecirriw Conrpnisorion 

Inform.irion c ~ l l e d  for b! Part 111. lieni 10. is included in the'Companj's Prosy Statement relating to the 
ComF:n!'s .innu.il meeting of ,h3rcholders to be held on hlay 20. 1998, and is incorporated herein by 
rc.fc:cn:e Th: ii-Jornisrion zF7ear; in the Pro\! Statenrent under the caption "Compensation of Executive 
O5:trj" Su:h Pro\! Si.w:ieni nil1 be filed u i t h i n  120 d q s  of the Conip3n)'s !ear end. 

I ic i i i  1 I .  Six i/iit.y Owitmlii/i of Ccrtiiiii Bcrrcfcirrl Oii*rrrrr nrrrl . \ f a n n p t m r  

Infs:in.l:ian c;\lled for b! P.irt I l l .  I t e m  11. is included in the Company's Prop) Statement relating to the 
Co:::;.!c!'s annusl mecling of sha rchddm to be held on May 20, 1998. and is incorporated herein by 
refcren:c. The infornistion q q x a r s  in the Pro\! Slatenlent under the caption "O\w"h ip  of Cenain 
Bt;:*::~.il Our!ers." Such Pro\\ Sta:enient nil1 be filed uithin 120 dq.5 of the Comp;rny's year end. 

I i c n i  11. Ctwiiiii Rclnrio/rslripr ~ i i d  Rclnrcrl frnrtsncrions 

Infc:ri>3iion c;rlled for b\ P:irt 111. Item 12, is included in the Company's Prosy Statement relating to the 
Con:p:lr!'s ;innc;il meeting of shmholdcrs to be held on Ma!, 20, 1998. and is incorporated herein by 
r:fcr:r,ie. Tt:: infornxitio: y7:;irs in llie P r o y  Sutenient under the caption "Certain Relationships and 
Re!.\itd Tr3ni;lctions." Such Prosy Statenient \ \ i l l  be filed within 120 days of the Company's year end. 
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Item 13. Exhibits, Financial Statciirm; Sclieilirles ond Reports ON Forti; 8 4  

( a )  Financial Statements 
n’EA’TLIA’K Corirrii~irrirotiorrs, Inc. 
Report of Independent Public Accountants . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 43 
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31. 1997 and 1996.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 44 
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Years Ended December 3 I ,  1997 

and 1996..  .. . .. . .. ..,... , , .... .. .... ... ... ..... , ...... .. . . . . .... .. ...... ... 45 
Consolidate Statements of Changes in Shareholders‘ Equity (Deficit) for the Years Ended 

December 31, 1997 and 1996 ........... ................................... . ... 46 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 1997 and 

1996.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , , . . . , , . . , , . , . . , . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 47 
Notes 10 Consolidated Financial Statements . . , . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 48 

* 

A’EATLlA’K Capiral. Inc. 
Repon of lndepcndcnt Public Accountants . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 60 
Balance Sheets as of December 31, 1997 and 1996.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 61 
Note to Balance Sheets..  . . .. . . . .. . . .. . .. . . . . . . , . . . . . . .. . .. . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . 62 

( b )  List of Exhibits: 
ENhibif So. Drwiprion ** 

3. I 
3.2 
3.3 
3 .J 
4.1 

Articles of incorporation of NEXTLINK Comniuniciitions Inc.(2) 
B y l a \ \ s  of KESTLIXK Communications. Inc.(Z) 
Articles of Incorporarion of NEXTLISK Capi t~ l .  Inc.( I ) 
B!.-la\\s of S E X T L I K K  Capital, Inc.( 1 )  
Form of E\:li3np Note Indenture. b!. a n d  m o n g  S E X T L I N K  Conimuniciitions. 
I n c .  and United States Trust Comp;iny of Kc\\  Sork. as trustee. relilting IO the 
Exchange Sotes. in:luding fornr of Eschsnge Notes.(2) 
Cenificzte of Dtsipations of the Poncrs. Preferences ilnd Relative. P i i r t i c iphg .  
Options1 and Other Special Rights of 145 Senior Eschanpeable Redecnrnble 
Preferred Stlxes and Qualiticstions. Limi:a:ions and Reslriclions Thereof. (2) 

4.3 Form of sto:k certificate of 145  Senior Exchmgeable Redecniable Preferred 
Shares. ( 2 )  

4 4  Indenture. dated as of April 3. 1996. b!. and aniong SEXTLINK Coniniunications. 
Inc., XEXTLIKK Capiml, Inc. and L’nitcd States Trust Company of Ke\\ York. 3s 
Trusiec. relating to 12Wi Senior Notes due April IS. 2006. including form of globid 
note. ( 1 ) 
First Suppltnrental Indenture, dated as of January 31. 1997, by and among the 
Company, NEXTLINK Communications. L.L.C., NEXTLINK Capital and United 
States Trust Company of Ne\\. Sork. as Trustet.(2) 

4.6 Form of Indenture between United States Trust Company, as Trustee and 
XEXTLINK Communications, lnc., relating to the 9%% Senior Notes due 2007.(3) 

4.7 Form of Indenture between United States Trust Company. as Trustee and 
NEXTLSNK Communications, Inc., relating to the 9% Senior Notes Due 2008. 

10.1 Stock Option Plan of the Company.(2) 
10.2 First Amendment to Stock Option Plan of the Company. 
10.3 Registration Rights Agreement dated as of J a n u a y  15. 1997, be twen  the Company 

and the sign~lories listed thetein.(2) 

-1.2 

4.5 
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Exhibit So. 

10.4 

10.5 

10.6 

21 
27. I 
27.2 

DemipIion 

Preferred Exchange and Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of Januar). 31, 
1997. by and among the Company and the Initial Pu rchase r~ (2 )  
Fiber Lesse and Innerduct Use Agreement, dated as of February 23, 1998, by and 
betuecn NEXTLlNK Communications, Inc. and Metromedia Fiber Network, 
Inc.(4) 
Amendment No. I ' t o  Fiber Lease and Innerduct Use Agreement, dated as of 
March 4, 1998, by and between NEXTLINK Communications, Inc. and Metromedia 
Fiber Network, lnc.(4) 
Subsidiaries of the Registrants. 
Financial Data Schedule for the year ended December 31, 1997. 
Financial Data Schedule, restated for the periods ended December 31, 1996, June 30, 
1997 and September 30, 1997. 

( 1 )  Incorporated herein by reference to the exhibit filed with the Reeistration Statement on Form S 4  of 
SEXTLISK Communications, L.L.C. (the predecessor of NEXTLINK Communications, Inc.) and 
NEXTLINK Capital, Inc. (Commission File No. 333-4603). 

( 2 )  lncorporsted herein by reference to the exhibit filed with the Annual Report on Form IO-KSB for the 
!'car ended December 31. 1996 of KEXTLINK Communications, Inc. and KEXTLINK Capital, Inc. 
(Commission File Nos. 333-04603 and 333.04603-01 ). 

( 3 )  1ncorps:zted herein by reference to the exhibit filed with the Registration Statement on Form S-1 of 
S E X T L I S K  Comn~uniijtions. In:. (Commission File KO. 233-32003). 

(4) Po:iiscs cf th is  ellribit \ \ e x  o:i1ill:d 3nd fikd sepsrml! u i t h  t he  Sccrctaq! of the Conmission pursuant 
IO th: Isjaer's .A:$icJ:ion Rcqueslinp. Confidentin1 Tre~tii ient under Rulc 22 (b).? of the Se:urities 
Exchange Act of 1934. 

( c )  Reporls on Form 8 - K  

None. 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

To the Aolrrd of Directors of NEXTLINK Communications, Inc.: 

\\'e h3\ c iiudited the  accompanying consolidated balance sheets or NEXTLINK Communications. Inc. 
(a \!'ashinglon Corporation) and subsidiaries as of December 31, 1997 and 1996. and the related consolidated 
stiminents of operations, changes in  shareholders' equity (deficit) and cash f l o w  for the years then ended. 
These financial statenients are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 

W e  conducted our audits in accordance with generally rcccpted auditing standards. Those standards 
require that ~c plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial * 

slattmenls are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the  amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An rudit also includes rssesring the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as we!l as evaluating the overall 
financial statemenl presentation. W e  believe that our audits provide a nasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, thc  financial statements refened to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of NEXTLINK Communications, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 1997 and 1996, 
and the results of their oprations and their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with generally 
accepted accounling principles. 

ARTHUR AXDERSEN LLP 
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NEXTLINK Communications, Inc. 

COSSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
(Dollars in  thousands, except per share m o u n t s )  

ASSETS 
Dctrmbrr 31, 

1996 - 1997 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents ............................................ S 389,074 
Marketable securities ................................................ 353,283 
Accounts receivable, net..  ............................................ 22,955 
Other ............................................................. 4,530 
Pledged securities ................................................... 41,425 

81 1,267 
Pledged securities ..................................................... 21,185 

253,653 
Cooduill, n e t . .  ....................................................... 52,278 ...................................................... 7S,77O Other ~ s s e t s ,  net 

TO131 assets .................................................. 31.217.153 

Total current assets.. .......................................... 
Propeny and equipment, net ............................................ 

- 
Ll ABILITIES Ah'D SHAREHOLDERS'  ZQUITI' (DEFICIT) 

Currenl liabilities: 
Accocnls p3!.able ................................................... s 26.776 
A c c r u e d  esFcnses ................................................... 13,082 
h'ores ~ 3 ! . a b l e  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  6,231 
. A c c r u e d  interest pqable  ............................................. 16,860 
Current po:rion of capital l ea s t  obliptions .............................. 2,610 
Pn!sSle 10 affiliate .................................................. 

To131 currenl liibililies ......................................... 69.562 
Lor,e-ter ni  deb1 ....................................................... 7 50,000 
C3pi!31 l e m  oblipt ions. .  .............................................. 7.640 
De ie r rc d c o n  p e n sa t i  on ................................................. 
0 : h e r  long-:erni liabiliiics .............................................. 3.179 

 TO:^: li3bilities. ............................................... 630,401 

- 

I 

Cor.: 3 i 1 m e n  is 3n d contingencies 
ino:i;!, i nre rests ..................................................... 

R e d e e n i 3 b l e  preferred stock (par value 50.01 per share. aEgrepale liquidation 
preference S!2!,17S; 6.322,031 and 0 shares issued nnd outstanding in 1997 

Clsss B comnion stock, subject to redemption (par u l u e  50.02 per share, 519,950 
and 0 shares issued 3nd outstandinp in 1997 and 1996, respectively). .......... 

Equit! units subject to redemption (0 and 397,202 u n i u  ouls~rndjng in 1997 

Shareholders' equity (deficit): 

23 

and 1996. respectivtl!,). .............................................. 313.319 

and 1996, respectively). .............................................. 
4.950 

- 
Common stock. par value $0.02 per share. stated 31 amounts paid in; Class A, 

110.331,OOO shares authorized, 19,167,899 and 0 shares issued and 
outstanding in  1997 and 1996, respectivel); Class B. 44,133,600 shires 
authorized, 33,746,573 and 0 shares issued and outstanding in 1997 and 
1996, respectively ................................................. 330,561 

Deferred conipensation.. ............................................. (9.596) 
Accumulated deficil ................................................. (252,505) 
Members' capital (28,154,509 units, all of uhich ate outstanding in 1996) 

68,460 
- ... 

Total shareholders' equity (deficit). .............................. 
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity (deficit). .................. - S1.217.153 

3 76,807 
47;713 

7,008 
607 

39,770 
171,905 
61,668 
97,784 
24.1 10 

S 18,622 
4,112 

9.250 
1,194 

34,678 
350,000 

6,262 
10,289 

- 
L 1 5 0 0  

2 M O  
404,079 

308 

4,950 

(64, 18 1 ) 
65.527 - 

See 3cconipanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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NEXTLi N K Communications, Inc. 
COXSOLJDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATJONS 

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts) 

l'rrr Ended Drctmbct 31, 
1991 I996 

Revenue ................................................................... S 57,579 S 25,686 
Costs and expenses: 

Operating..  ............................................................ 
Selling, general and administrative ......................................... 
Defened compensation ................................................... 
Depreciation.. .......................................................... 
Amortization ............................................................ 

Total costs and expenses ............................................. 
Loss from operations.. ....................................................... 
Interest income ............................................................. 
Jnterest expense.. ........................................................... 
Loss before minorit! interests ...................................... ....... 
Minority interests in  loss of consolidaied subsidiaries ............................... 
Net loss 
Preferred stock d i \ , idends  a n d  accretion of preferred stock redeniption oblipstion. 

inc luding  issue costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
We! loss 27?1ic3b!: t o  cocnion shares . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Pro forma: 

................................................................... 

54,03 1 
15,132 

3,247 
18,85 1 
8,339 

160.2OO 
( 102,62 I ) 

27,827 

25,094 
31,353 
9,9 14 
6,640 
3,700 

76.701 
(5 1 ,o 15) 

(54,495) (30.876) 
(1 29,289) (71,445) 

285 
S (129,004) 

(39.320) 
S (16E.324) 

- 
c 

344 

- 
s (71,101) 
1 

h'et loss Fer S h l r C . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  5 (3.91) u) - Shares used  in computation of pro f0~1ii3 ne t  loss per share (1996 m o u n t s  have 
been adjusted for con\ersion of membership units into shares of the Company's 
Ci2ss A 3 n d  C 1 w  B comnion stock upoa incorporation; see h'oie 9)  . . . . . . . . . .  43.055.885 39.312.4S2 -- 

S e e  acconipsnying notes to consolidated financial s1aIcments. 
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NEXTLINK Communications, Inc, 
COSSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANCES 

IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT) 
(Dollars In fhousands) 

Common Sioek 

Class A Class B Amount 
Shares 

0 * 0 s  0 

Dcftmd 
Compensation 

t -  - 
Accumulrltd Members' 

Deficit capital Total 
Balance at December 31, 1995.. ........... 

Contributed capital .................... 
Issuance of units for KEXTLINK Ohio 

acquisition.. ........................ 
Impact of recapitalization and merger of 

rffiliaies ............................ 
Net loss.. ............................ 

Balmce at December 31, 1996.. ........... 
Mer er of NEXTLIS'K Communications, 

L 1 . C  with and into NEXTLINK 
Communications, lnc. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Conversion of Equir! Option Plan into 
Employee Stock Option Plan . .  . . . . . . . .  

Issuance of compensatory stock options . . .  
Compensation artributable to stock c7tions 

vesting . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Issuance or comncn rto:k under le~sinp 

arrar.gement . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
lssuance cf c o r r m n  a:oik upon e\erci.re or 

stock cyions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Issuance of ccnmon stock in initial pESlic 

offering ............................ 
Sale of co rmon  stock b) selling 

sharehold:: ir: i n i t i i l  public oRerinp . . . .  
Issurnce of coxmon stock in acquisitions 
Conwsion of CIxs  B common sto:k into 

Loam 13 o5:crr lo: income t a m  p i d  

Cumuhli\.c rtdeerr.3blc F:eferred stock 
di\.idends ard xcieiic:! of p:rferred 
stock re d : m 7: i 0:. ob! ig 3 I ion, in c I u d i ng 
issue costs . .  ........................ 

Net loss.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Balrncr 31 December 31. 1997 . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

cl3ss A ccrnmon stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

upon e w t i s e  of stotk cFtions . . . . . . . . .  

t (13,060) $49,799 - 9.502. 
5 36.719 

9.502 

652 

5,574 
(7 1.101 ) 
( 1  8,654) 

- 652 

- SS74 
(71,101) - 
(84,161) 65,527 

36.165.259 65,527 - (65,527) - 
11.129 

0 

2.335 

1,400 

1 I5 

216.760 

- 15J63 - 4.872 
(4,234) 
(0.872) 

2.335 - 
176.534 

672.S78 

1.3.:so.ooo 

3.230.000 
69S.157 

I40.000 

- 1.400 

921 2 I4 115 

- 226.760 

(3.200.000) - - 16.524 

( I40.000) - 
- 

16.524 

- 
(2.815) (1.625) 

(39.320) - ( 39,320) 
( 129.004) - - (129.001. 

S(2S2.5OS) 5 - S 6S.060 ---- - 
19.167.699 33.746.573 $330.561 

- - ?  - 

s e e  accomp~nping noics to consolidated financial staicmcnts. 
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NEXTLINK Communicrtions. Inc . 
COSSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

(Dollars in thousands) 

Yrar Ended Drtrmbrr 31. 
1997 1996 

OPERATlNG ACTIVITIES: 
set loss ............................................................. 
Adjustments to reconcile net loss 10 net cash w e d  in operating activities: 

Deferred compensation expense ..................................... 
Equity in  loss of afiliatcs .......................................... 
Depreciation and amortization ...................................... 
Minority interests in loss of consolid~ted subsidiaries ................... 
Accounts receivable ............................................... 
Other current assets ............................................... 
Other long-term assets ............................................ 
Accounts paj.able ................................................. 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities ................................ 
Accrued interest  pa!.able . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1 .  ....... 

Set cash used in operating activities.. ................................... 
IS\'ESTI KG ACTII'ITIES: 
Purchase of p:op:rt! and equipment ..................................... 
In!. e s t ~ l t n i  i n  ? . z s t t s  of acquired businesses (ne1 of cash acquired) ........... 
C.1, b \ \ i : t 4 d r 3 n n  from (placed into) escron to be used in business 3cquisition . . 
1n~e~:nicnts  in unconsolid;lr:d afiliotes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Pzrch j j t  of pledged securities .......................................... 
,\ l L t u r i i !  of F!tdged securities .......................................... 
Purchast cf mjrkt i3ble  securities. net .................................... 
Ket cash u j t d  i n  i n w t i n g  acti\Aits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
F I S  .A SC I S G  ACT1 \'IT1 ES: 
Xe: F;O::C~S from isiu3nce of redtenable preferred stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Changes in assets and liabilities. net of effects from acquisitions: 

C37it31 cor;:ibu!ions .................................................. 
Pro:eeds f i c 3  ps!.able to afiliates ....................................... 
Repi!. m:nt of ~ ~ ! 2 5 1 :  t o  ~ R l i 3 t e s  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Repd!m:nl of cspi131 lease obligations ................................... 
Re;sjntnt of notes pq.3ble . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
B3nk o v e r d r d l  ....................................................... 
Net proxcds from sale of common stock ................................. 
Proceeds from sale of senior notes.. ..................................... 
Proceeds from issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock options ....... 
Costs incurred in connection with financing ............................... 
Loans to officers for income taxes paid upon exercise of stock options ......... 
Ket cash provided b! . financing activities ................................. 
Net incrcrse in cash and cash equivalents ................................ 
Cash and cash equivalents. beginning of year .............................. 
Cash and cash equivalents. end of year ................................... 

S ( 129. 004) 

3. 241 
2. 544 

27. 190 
(285) 

( 1 I .  206) 
(1. 953) 
(1. 208) 
4. 116 
2. 434 
9.630 

(94. 495) 

( l W 7 0 )  
(6  1.609) 

6. 000 
(6.766) 

39. 920 
- 

2%. 000 . . 
( 1.  500) 
(1. 939) 
(5 .  926) 

226. 760 
400. OOO 

115 
( 1  1. 128) 

- 

(2.825) 
816. 957 
3 12. 267 
76. 807 

5 389. 074 - 

s (71. 101) 

9. 9 1 4 *  
1. 100 

10. 340 
(344) 

( 5  1.920) 
(IS. 169) 
(6. 000) 
(4.953) 

( 1  It.6SS) 
16. 431 

. 
9. 935 

28. 766 
(33. 703) 

(771) . 
(1. 373) 

350. OOO 

(9. 822) 

. 

. 

. 
343.032 
75. 451 

1. 350 
5 16. 801 - 

See accomp3n)hg notes i o  consolidated financial statements . 
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NEXTLINK Communications, I n c  
KOTES T O  CONSOLIDATED FIKANCIAL STATEhlENTS 

December 31, 1997 and 1996 

I .  Organization and Description of Business 

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of NEXTLINK Communications, Inc., a 
Washington corporation, and its majority-owned subsidiaries (collectivcly referred to as the Company). T h e  
Company, through predecessor entities, was formed,on September 16, 1991 rnd, through its Subsidiaries, 
provides competitive local, long distance and enhanced ~elecommunications services in selected markets in the  
United States. The Company is a majority-owned subsidiary of Eagle River Investments, L.L.C. (Eagle 
River). 

The competitive local telecommunications service business is a capital intensive business. The develop- 
men1 of the  Company's businesses and the installation and expansion of its networks rcquirc significant 
espcndirures. a substantial portion of which must be made before any revenues may be realized. These 
expenditures, together with the associated early operating expenses, have resulted in negative cash flow and 
operating losses, which have been substantially financed with the proceeds from public sales of debt and equity 
sezuriiies. 

I. S u m m r !  of Significant .Accounting Policies 

Prirtriplrs of Corrsoli,lnnriorr 

TI): Coii?;..!n!'s fin3nci;ll st3tements include I005 of the assets, liabilities and results of operations of 
szbjidhrits in  \\ liicli tlic Con:pan!. has a controlling interest of greater than 507c. The ovmrship interests of 
the o : k r  nltnlbers or partners in  such subsidiaries ate reAected as minorit!, interests. The Company's 
in:.cs:nen1 i n  Telecommunications of Nevada, L.L.C., (Nevada L.L,C.) a limited liability company in which 
the Conipm! has 3 40% interest and 11 hich operates a network that is managed by the Company in Las Vegas, 
h ' e \ , ~ d ~ .  is 3:co~nted for on tlie equity method. Investments in entities in which the Company has voting 
in\:resis of not more than 20"~ are accounted for on the cost method. All significant intercompany accounts 
and irJns2;iions ha \ :  been e l i n i n m d .  

Cnsl; f ix . :  Cnslt Eqiiirnletrrs 

The CC:ilF2?!' considm 311 highl:. l iquid in immcnts  with miturities of three months or less 01 the time 
of putchxc to be cash equivalents. 

.If n rk cin blr Srrir rir ies 

h l x k e t ~ b l e  securities consist of US. Bovemment and other securities with original maturities beyond 
three months. M3rkctable securities are stated at cost, adjusted for discount accretion and premium 
amortization. The securities in the Company's ponfolio are classified as "held to maturity," as management 
has t h e  intent 3nd ability to hold those securities to maturity. The  fair value of the Company's marketable 
securities appoximntes the carrying value. 

Pledged Senrrilies 

I n  connection with the sale of 12Wi Senior Notes (see Note a), 8 portion of the net proceeds was 
utilized to purchase a portfolio consisting of U.S. government securities, which mature at dates sumcknt to 
provide for payment in ful l  of interest on the 12%% Senior Notes through April 15, 1999. The pledged 
securities 2re stated at cost, adjusted for premium amonization and accrued interest. The fair value of the 
pledged securities approximates the carrying value. 
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NEXTUKK Communications, Inc. 
NOTES TO COSSOLlDATED FlKANClAL STATfhlEKTS (Continued) 

Dcctmbcr 31, 1997 rnd  1996 

Properr)< arid Eqiripnitrir 

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Direct costs of construction are capitalizcd, including 
Sl,793,000 and 5853,000 of interest costs related to construction during 1997 and 1996, respectively. 
Depreciation is computed using the straight4ine method over the estimated useful lives of the asscts. 

Estimated useful lives of property rnd equipment are as follows: 
Telecommunications networks ..................... 5.20 years 
Offce equipment, furniture and other.. ............. 3 4  yean 
Leasehold improvements.. ........................ the lesser of the 

estimated useful lives 
or the terms of the 
leases 

Inrongible Assers 

Inlangib!: asseis primarily represent costs allocated in  acquisitions to customer bases and contracts, 
soft\\ arc and related intellectual propen) and goodit ill. 1n;angiblc assets arc amortized using the straight-line 
method o\'er the estimated useful lites of the assets as follo\vs: 

CEstomcr contracts .............................. term of the contracts 
Cuslcnier bases.. ................................ 5 years 
Sof \ \ a r e  and relaied iniellcciual propert!. . . . . . . . . . . . .  5 years 
Cood\\ill . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  15-20 years 

 COS!^ i n z u r r e d  i n  connection uiih securing the Companj's debi f;rcilities, including underwriting and 
ad\.isop fe:s and other such COSIS. are dtkrred and amortized o \ t r  the term of the financing using the 
S I  72 ig h I -  1: f ie  CIC I hod. 

I i i m i r e  f m e s  

Piior to J m c a p  21 .  1997. the Company \\as orpznized and o;e;a:cd as 3 limited l i d i l i t !  compin! that 
~ 3 s  c l x s i f i e d  a n d  ts \ed 3s a parinership for federal and sta te  in:ome 13s purposes. Effective February 1. 1997, 
t h e  Compsn! b e t m e  subject to federal and siaie income taxes directly as a C corporation. 

The Compm) accounts for income t a m  in accordance u i t h  the provisions of Statement of Financial 
Accounting Stsndsrds No. 109, "Accounting for Inconie T n c s "  (SFAS 109). uhich requires that deferred 
income 1 3 ~ s  be determined based on the cstiniated future tax eRccis of differences between the financial 
statemeni and tax bases of assets and liabilities given the provisions of the enacted tax laws. 

Rtrtt i  ire Recogtiition 

The Company recognizes revenue on telecommunications and enhanced communications services in the 
period t h a t  services are provided. 

Pro Forma Arr Loss Per Shore 

Pro forma net loss per share has been computed using the number of shares of common stock and 
common stock equivalents outstanding. Pursuant to Securities and Exchrngc Commission Staff Accounting 
Bulletin No. 96 (SAB 98) ,  issued in February 1998, nominal issuances of shares during the t\\dve-month 
period preceding the date of the initial filing of the Registration Statement have been included in the 
calculation of common slock equivalent shares as if such shares and options were outstanding for all periods 
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NEXTLlNK Communications, I n c  
NOTES TO COSSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

December 31, 1997 and 1996 

presented. The p:ovisions of SAB 98 require retroactive application: as such, pro forma net loss per share 
amounts and shares used in computation of pro forma net loss per share for all prior periods have been 
restated. 

In February 1997, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 128, "Eamings Per  
Share" (SFAS 128). which revises the calculation an'd presentation provisions of Accounting Principles Board 
(APB) Opinion No. IS and related interpretations. SFAS 128 is effective for the Company's fiscal year ending 
December 31, 1997, and retroactive application is required. Implementation of SFAS 128 did not have I 
material effect on the Company's earnings per share amounts reported prior to that date. 

Siock-Based Conrpensorion 
As allo~ved by Statement No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation" (SFAS 123), the  

Company has chosen to account for compensation cost associated with its stock option plans in accordance 
uiith APB Opinion No. 25. 

Corrrenrrorion O J  Crrdir Risk 

Financial inslruments I\ hich potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist 
priniaril), of trade receivables. The Company's trade receivables arc geographically dispersed and include 
customers in  ni in!  different industries. Nanagement believes that any risk of loss is significantly reduced due 
to t h e  di\,ersil!. of its customers and geographic sales areas. The Company continually evaluates the 
credii\\ orthiness of its customers; h o \ w e r ,  i t  generally does not require collsteral. The Company's allo~vance 
To: daubifti1 xccunis  is based on historical trends, current market conditions and other relevant factors. 

L'se ojE~rii i:nies 

The preparation of consolid3tcd financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
Frin:iFles r:quires m ~ n q c n i e n t  to m3kt esitimates and assump:ions that affect the amounts reported in the 
financinl sit3ttmtnis and accom?anying notes. Actud  results could differ from those estimates. 

Rer1nssrf;cnrioris 

CcrlJin rcc l~ss i f ic~~ions  h s e  been made to prior period amounts in order to  conform to the current year 
pre se n;a it ion.  

3. Acquisitions 

On r\ 'o\znber 1, 1997, the Company acquired all of the outstanding shares of S t a n  Technologies 
Corporation (Start), a shared tenant sewices provider offering local and long distance senkes ,  Internet access 
and customer premise equipment management in Texas and Arizona. The Company paid consideration for the 
transacrion consisting of $20.0 million in cash, 441,336 shares of Class A common stock, and the assumption 
of appro~im3iely 55.3 million of liabilities, the majority of which w ~ t e  repaid. 

On October 1, 1997, the Company acquired all of the outstanding shares of Chadwick Telecommunica- 
tions Corporation (Chaduick), a switch-based long distance rcsellcr in central Pennsylvania, through a 
merger transaction betueen Chadwick and a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. The purchase price of 
the transaction consisted of a $5.0 million promissow note payable, due January I ,  1998, issuance of 2S7.151 
shares of Class A common stock, and the repayment of long-term debt and other liabjlities totaling 
56.6 million. The merger agreement also provides for additional payments of up to a maximum of 192,663 
shares of Class A common stock over a tuo-year period, with these payments being contingent upon the 
acquired operation achieving specified performance goals. 

50 



NEXTLINK Communications, Inc. 

KOTES TO COSSOLIDATED FISANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
December 31, 1997 rnd  1996 

On February 4, 1997, the Company acquired substantially 311 of the assets of Linkatel Pacific, L.P. 
(Linkatel), a Los Angeles-based competitive access telecomnrunications provider. At the lime of the 
acquisition, Linkatel  operated an 80 mile fiber optic telecommunications netuork coveting sewral markets 
from the downtoun Los Angeles area to the city of h i n t  in Orange County. As pan  of the assets acquired, 
the Company obtained access to approximately 250 route miles of right-of-way, of which 183 miles have been 
completed, creating one netuork in Los Angeles and one netuork in the Orange County area. The Company 
has been providing competitive access services over these networks since the acquisition date and launched 
switched local and long distance services in July 1997. The total purchase price of 542.5 million consisted Of 8 
cash payment of 536.1 million, the repayment of debt of 55.6 million and the assumption of net liabilities of 
S0.8 million. 

In December 1996, the Company acquired ITC, a rwitched.based long distance reseller based in Salt 
Lake City, Utah. Consideration for the acquisition of ITC consisted of 8 cash payment of $4.0 million, of 
uhich 52.6 million was placed into escrow to be paid during 1998, plus the issuance of 397,202 Class A Units 
of the Company valued at approximately 55.0 million, which \\ere subsequently converted into 519,950 shares 
of the Compan)’s Class B common stock. The Company has granted the seller an option requiring the 
Company to repurchase such shares at 519.92 per share beeinning In the fourth quarter of 1999. This 
repurchase obligation \vi11 terminate if during the three-year period comnxncing March 25, 1998. the a\*erage 
daily closing price of the Class A common stock during any consecutive 60 trading day period is greater than 
5 19.92. 

I n  Janua? 1996, the Compsn! xquired certain assets of FoncSet. Inc. and US. h’et\\orlr. Inc. through 
XEXTLISK Ohio, L.L.C. Consideration for the purchase consisted of r7 cash paynient of 59.6 million. the 
issu3nce of 267,723 Class A Unils of the Company, valued at 5651.933. plus the assumption of capital 1 ~ 3 s ~  
oblig31ions of 56 1 million. 

The abo! e xquisitions \\ere accounted for using the purch3se method of accounting and, accordingly, the 
results of o?:r31ions of t h e  acquired companies h3ve been included in the Conipany’s consolidated financial 
sta~cmen!s  since t h e  cffccti\ e d:tes of acquisition. The 3ggrcg3te purchase price for the acquisitions occurring 
in 1997 and 1996 \ \ e r e  alloc31ed based on fair values 3s f o l l o ~ ~ s  ( in  thousands): 

Fair t a l ~ ~  of tangible assets arquircd and liabilities 
assumed.. ..................................... 512325 512.579 

Fair \ d u e  of intangible assets acquired., ............. 70,705 16,425 
583.230 529,004 

1997 I996 - -  

- -  
Purchase price . .................................. 583.230 529.004 - -  

The folloi\ing unaudited condensed pro forma information presents the results of operations of the 
Company for the  )‘ears ended December 31, 1997 and 1996 as if the above transactions had occurnd on 
January 1, 1996 ( in  thousands, except per share amounts): 

1997 I996 

Revenue ..................................... $ 79,070 S %OS0 
h’er loss.. .................................... S(l34,SOS) S(74423) 
Net loss per share ............................. f (3.12) f (1.89) 

The unaudited pro forma infonnation is provided for informational purposes only and is not necessarily 
indicative of the results of operations that uould have occurred had the purchases been made on J a n u a v  1, 
1996, or of the future anticipated results of operations of the combined companies. 



h’ EXTLI S K Comm u n ica t ions, Inc. 
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4. Propcrt! rnd  Equipment 

Property and equipment consisted of the follo~.ing components (in thousands): 
Dccrmbrr 31, 

1996 - 1991 

Tclecon~munications networks ..................... SI 89,629 $66,762 
Ofice equipment, leasehold improvements, fumitute 

and other.. ................................... 38,979 18.097 
228,608 84,859 

................... 8.369 
192.19 I 76,490 

Less accumulated depreciation.. 36.417 - 
h’etnork construction in progress.. ................. 61.462 21.294 

5253.653 591.784 - -  
I n  June 1997. the Conipm! enlered into an eight-year operating least agrecnrent. with an option to renew 

for f i \ e  addition31 ! e m .  uilh 3 company that has excess fiber capacity in Atlanta. Chicago, New York City, 
Xeuark. Se\t Jerje),  and Phil~delphin which i t  agreed to make available 10 the Company in each of those 
I T J ~ ~ C I S ,  P3!nient i n  e x h a n e e  for use of the le3scd network it,iIl be based on monthly charges for actual 
se:\ices pro\.id:d. I n  conneclion vi th  this le3st agrccnrent. the Company also issued 10 the lessor 176,531 
shares of Class .A common stock in June 1997 for certain csclusivi~y rights to the cscess capacity. 

I n  zddition to the capacil! wangemcr,t described above, in June 1997, the Company entered into a 
?O-!esr c.lpiia1 lease over an eiisting 47-mile fiber netuork in New York City. In connection with this 
arrangericnl. t he  Conipm! pJid 51 1 million in f u l l  sstisfsction of its obliption under the lease. 56 million of 
v h i z h  U J ~  placed i n  cscrou pcnding completion of certain building connections by the lessor. As of 
D:;er,ibcr 51. 199;. 9 . 1  million rcmaintd in tscro\\. 

5. Oilirr .4sscis 

O:l-,:r ~ S S C I S  consijltd of 11x follw in: son1poncn:i (in thousands): 
Drrcmbcr 31. 

1997 1996 - -  
Customer bises .................................. 553,033 512,033 
Equity investments.. .............................. 8,021 3,853 
Financing costs.. ................................. 21,552 9,822 
Cash held in escrow for acquisitions ................. - 8,682 
Advances to business to be acquired ................. - 1,490 
Other noncurrent assets.. .......................... 6,415 4,627 

9 1,02 1 40,477 
- 7  

5.261 
578.770 - Less ~ccumula tcd  amonization ..................... 12.251 - 

The Compiny‘s equity invcstnrtnts include ( i )  a 40% investment in Nevada L.L.C., which operates a 
fiber optic telecommunications network sewing the Las \legas market and (ii) a 53.7 million investment in 
convertible preferred stock of Interniind Corporation (Intermind). lntctmind has developed and patented an  
interacti\x communications tool for the World Wide Web and intranet applications. 
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6. Long-Term Debt 

On October 1, 1997, the Company sold SPOO million in aggregate principal amount of 9 W  Senior Notes 
due October 1, 2007, \vhich, after deducting issue costs, resulted in net proceeds to the Company of 
5388.5 million. Interest payments on the 9%% Senior Notes are due semi-annually. The 99tPc Senior Notes 
are redeemable at the option of the Company, in whole or in pan, at any time on or after October 1, 2002 81 * 

established redemption prices which decline to 100% of the stated principal amount thereof by October 1, 
2005. 

O n  April 25, 1996, the Company completed the sale and issuance of S350 million in principal amount of 
12%% Senior Notes due April 15,2006. The Company used SI 17.7 million of the gross proceeds to purchrse 
U.S. govemmcnt securities, representing funds sufficient to provide for payment in lull of intenst on the l2’h% 
Senior Notes through April 15, 1999 and used an additional $32.2 million to repay rdvances m d  r c c ~ e d  
interest from Eagle River. In addition, the Company incurred costs of 59.8 million in connection with the 
financing (including underwriter discounts and commissions). Interest payments on the 12%% Senior Notes 
are due semi-annually. The 12\% Senior Notes are redeemable at the option of the Company. in \\hole or in 
part, at any time on or after April IS, 2001 a1 established redemption prices which decline to 1005  of the 
stated principal amount thereof by April 15, 2004 As of December 31, 1997, the approximate fair value of the 
12!’25 Senior Notes was SCO2.5 million, based on quoted market prices. 

The indentures pursuzni to which the 9 M  and I?%% Senior Notes (the h’otes) ore issued contain 
ceruin coi’en2nts thz t .  among oiher things, l i m i t  the ability of the Conipan), and i t s  subsidixics 10 incur 
additionil ind:btedness, issue stock in subsidiaries, pay dividends or make oilier distributions. repurchase 
equity intercs!s or subordinated indebtedness, engsge in sale and leaseback transactions. create certain liens. 
en te r  into c e r u i n  transactions with affiliates, sell assets of the Conipmy and its subsidiaries. and enter inio 
ccruin mergers and consolidations. 

I n  the e \  c n t  of a change in  control of the Company 2s defined in the indentures. holders of the Votes nil1 
ha1.e the righ! 10 requi re  the Cornpin!, to purchase their Votes, in uhole or in part, at a price equal IO 1017~ of 
the  si3i:d principal amoun t  thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any. thereon to the date of pur:hsst. 
The So:es are senior unsecured obligations of the Conipan)., and are subordinated to all current and future 
indtbledncss or the Compan!,’s subsidiaries. including trade pq.3bles. 

7. Redeemable Preferred Stock 

On J a n u a q  31, 1997, the Company completed the sale of 5.7 million units consisting of ( i )  14% senior 
e~changeable redeeniable preferred shares (Preferred Shares), liquidation preference 550 per share, and 
(ii) contingent warrants to acquire in the aggregate 5% of each class of outstanding junior shares (as defined) 
of the Company on a fully diluted basis as of Februay  1, 1998, which resulted in gross proceeds to the 
Company of 5285 million, and proceeds net of undenvriiing discounts. advisoty fees rnd  expenses of 
5274 million. The contingent warrants expired unused on October 31, 1997 (30 days after the Company’s 
initial public offering of its Class A common stock). Dividends on the Preferred Shores accrue from 
f a n u a v  31, 1997 and are payable qurnerly, commencing on May 1, 1997, at an  annual rate of 14% of the 
liquidation preference thereof. Dividends may be paid, at  the Company’s option, on any dividend payment 
date occuning on or pn’or to February 1,2002, either in cash or by issuing additional Preferred Shares with an 
a~grega te  liquidation preference equal to the amount of such dividends. The Company is required to redeem 
dl Of the Preferred Shares outstanding on February 1, 2009 at I redemption pn’ce equal 10 100% of the 
liquidation preference thereof, plus accumulated and unpaid dividends to the date of redemption. As of 
December 31, 1997, the approximate fair value of ;he Preferred Shares was f345.1 million, based on quoted 
market prices. 
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Subject to certain conditions and the modifications of covenants, the Preferred Shares are exchangeable 
in  whole, but not in part, at the option of the Company, on any dividend payment date, for 14% senior 
subordinated notes (Senior Subordinated Notes) due February 1, 2009 of the Company. All terms and 
conditions (other than interest, ranking and maturity) of the Senior Subordinated Notes would be substin- 
tiall), the same as those of the Company's outstanding 12% Senior Notes due April 15, 2006. 

8. lncomc Tascs 

Prior to January 31. 1997, the Company was organized and operated as a limited liability company that 
\vas classified and talcd 3s a partnership for federal and state income tax purposes. Effective February 1, 1997, 
t h e  Con ip~ny  became subject to federal and state income tases directly as a C corporation, uhich resulted in 
the Compm! recording a deferred 131 liability and deferred tax provision at that lime. 

Components of deferred t i n  assets and liabilities as of February 1, 1997 (date of conversion to 3 
C corpomlion) n n d  December 31. 1997 are as follo\\s ( in  thousands): 

Frhruan 1. D w m b r r  31. 
I997 I997 

Deferred t n \  ;\jSetS: 
Amoriizntion .............................. 
Cnpiulized C O S I S  ........................... 
Pro\kions not currenil! deductible . . . . . . . . . . . .  
K C I  o y t ~ t i n f  loss carqforwards .............. 

TotA deferred t n  assets. .  ..................... 
\';ilunlion aIlo\\ance. .......................... 

5 994 
1.076 

252 

5.322 
- - 
- 

D L' fe r re  d 1.1 \ I in hi I i ties: 
D: prr. c i;il ion . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . .  Pur 2 h;i s c ;I ;c, u I 51 t I on s ........................ 
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

To131 deferred t3\ liabilities .................... 
SCI deferred t w x . .  . ......................... 

~~ 

5.322 

(7,819) 
5 f2.527) - 

5 1,116 
6.505 
1.191 

47.734 
56.549 

( 1.499) 
(20,274) 

(612) 
( 22 .1 S 5 ) 

s -  - 
During 1997, the vduation alIo\\mce i n c r e w d  534.1 million, thereby fully reserving the Company's net 

As of Deceniber 51, 1997. the Company hnd net operating loss carryforwards of approximately 

A rcconcilistion of the Company's efkctive income tax rate and the US. federal tas rate i s  as follow 

deferred I;I\ :issets as of Decenrber 31. 1997. 

51 19.3 million. nhich are available to oRset future federal and state taxable income, if an), through 2012. 

!'cor Endrd 
Drcrmhrr 31. 1997 

Statutory rate ........................................ 34.0% 
State income t w s ,  net of federal benefit, .  ............... 6.0% 
Conwsion  IO C corporation,. .......................... (1.9%) 
\'aluation alIo\~snce for dcfcrred tax assets ............... (26.1%) 

-5 
Purchase acquisitions. ................................. (120s) 
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9. Shareholders‘ Equit!, (Deficit) 

On October 1, 1997, the Company complttcd an initial public offering (IPO) of 12,000,000 shares of 
Class A common stock at a price of 517 per share. In addition, the undcnvriters of the 1PO exercised an option 
to purchase 2,280,000 additional shares of Class A common stock at the same price per share. Gross proceeds 
from the 1 PO totaled approximately 5242.8 million, ond proceeds net of undcnvriting discounts, advisoty.fecs 
and expenses aggregated approximately 5226.8 million. 

On August 27, 1997, the Company cfkctcd a 0.411336-for-I reverse stock split of the issued and 
outstanding shares of Class A and Class B common stock. All comnion stock, membership units, and per 
share amounts in  the consolidated financial statements have been adjusted retroactively to give effect to the 
reverse stock split. 

From January 31, 1997, the Company had two classes of comnion stock outstanding. Class A common 
stock and Clsss B common stock. The Comp3ny.s Class A comnion stock and Class B common stock are 
identical in di\.idend and liquidation rights, and vote together 3s 3 single class on all niatters. except as 
other\\ ise required by applicable law, with  the Class A shareholderr entitled to cast one vote per share. and the 
Class B shareholders entitled to cast IO votes per share. 

On J a n u q  3 I ,  1997, KEXTLISK Conimunications. L.L.C. \\'as nietgcd with and into the Company in 
3 ra \ - f ree  trmnction. I n  that merger. the  Class A membership interests of NEXTLlh'K Communications, 
L.L.C. \ \ere c o n w t e d  into Class B common stock, options to acquire Class A menibenhip interests were 
coniertcd inlo options t o  purchssc Class B common stock. and options to purchase C h s  B membership 
interests \\ere c o n w t e d  into options to purchase Class A coninion stock. In calculating the nuniber of shares 
of t h e  Compan!'s Class B coninion stock that each of the Class A nienibcrs received in the merger, the 
Coripm! applied a formula that reflected each member's revalued capital account balance as of January 31, 
1997. Opions to purchase Chis  B membership interests were converted inlo the right to receive options to 
Fur;h?s: shares of Class A comnion stock on a one to one basis. 

Prior to J a n u q  31, 1997, the Conipan!.'~ liniited linbility company agreement provided for both Class A 
2nd CI.?SS B membership interests in  the Compan!.. Class A C'nit holders uere entitled t o  a preferred return on 
t h e i r  i:\csinicni i n  the Cor,ip.in! plus 3 reiurn of their c;ipital upon the dissolution of the Company. Class B 
Cnils \ \ e x  g r m t t d  in connection u i t h  t h e  Compan!,'s Amcnded and Restated Equit: Option Plan (EOP) .  
A1:hou:h C13SS B Cnits. \ \ l ien cwcised .  constituted an ownership interest in the Company, the interest \vas 
liniited to the appreciation in  the value of the Conipan:. or the distributable profits interest. if an:, of the 
CcniFm!. The uluation of the membership units u;is determined b j  the EOP Administrative Committee. As 
of December 31, 1996. the v;llue of the Class A Units 11'3s dctcrniined to be approximately 59.8S, and the 
appteiiltion interest per unit  for C13ss B Units 1\35 approsiniatcl~~ 57.93. 

Effectkc January I ,  1996, the Company merged four of its five operating subsidiaries with newly formed 
entities o w e d  by the Company. As a result of these nierpcrs. the entities and individuals holding minority 
interests in the subsidiaries exchanged these interests for 1,695,263 Class A Units of the Company 
(representing an approximate 5.9% otvnership interest in the Company) which wen valued at approximately 
55.6 million. NEXTLINK M'ashinpton, L.L.C. did not participate in the merger. The transaction was 
accounted for as a purchase of minority interests. Accordingly, the f2 .9 million e x c e ~ ~  of the purchase price 
o w  the book value of the interests acquired was recorded as goodwill. 

I n  addition l o  the exchange of equity interests. the Company c~changed  options to acquire equity 
interests in the subsidiaries for options to acquire Class B Units in the Company. In connection with this 
transsction. the Company issued 862.2 19 options with esercise prices of 50.02 and four-year vesting schedulcs. 
These options had substantia11~~ the same economic vulues and vesting schedules as the subsidia?, options 
vhich v e r t  t xhanged .  
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IO. Pro Forma Nrt Loss Per Share 

Shares used'in the computation of net loss per share amounts were calculated as follous: 
lW7 1996 

U'eighted avernge conimon shares outstanding ................... 41,141,275 36,208,588 . 
Nominal issuances during the 12 month period prior to the 

Companjh filing of its IPO, treated as if outstanding for all 
periods presented .......................................... 1.91 1.610 3,103,894 

Shares used in computation of pro forms net loss per share ........ c3.05S.x L9.312.4J 

Subsequent to the Company's IPO and through December 31, 1997. options to purchase 307.164 shares 
of common stock \\ere issued but ticre not included in the computation of net loss per share, as these options 
did not fall unde r  the provisions of SAB 9s and inclusion of such options \\auld have been antidilutivc. 

11. Stock Options 

Prior to F e b r u J q  1997. the  Conipan). maintained an Equity Option Plan tlhich provided for the granting 
of cquit! option interests i n  the Conipm!.. These option grants \\ere considered compcnsato~y and were 
iiccoanicd for similarly to stock ;ipprcciation riphis. The Company recognized compensation expense over the 
\ejlinf pcriodj b w d  on the csccss of the fair value of the equity option interests, a5 determined by the 
.-!dniir,isir.l;i\ r Commitlee. o \e r  the exercise price of the option interests. Such clpense was periodically 
adjusted for slrm_res in the f i r  \,;llue of the equity interest units. These option interests vested ra~ably over a 
f w r - !  e.ir period. d thoug l i  sonic retained vesting schedules of previous option plans which, in most cases, 
\.estcd 207 ;it cniplo!~ment and 205 nt the end of each subsequent year. 

I n  cc.nni.:iion u i t h  the incorpmtion of the  Conipanx (see Kote 9). the Company csiablishcd the 
S E X T L I S K  Coniniunicniions. Inc. Stock Opiion Plrin (the Plan) to  replace the Equity Option Plan and to 
rra\  idc n pi.rforin;ince inscntii e for ccri;iin oflicers. eniplo!ccs and individua1s or compmies who provide 
ner\.i:tj ta ihr Conip;in!. The Plm provides for the granting of qualified and non-qualified stock options. All 
opions ouisianding under ihr Equit! Opiion Plan uerc r c p n t c d  under the new Plan with ierms and 
condi:ions substantiall! tlir s;inic ;is under the Equity Option Plan, except th3t option holders \ \ i l l  no longer 
hn\ , c  tlie op:ion to require the Conipnn!. to repurchase units for cash upon exercise of such units. nor will the 
Coni,n.in! h:i\x the option to r t p u r c h m  cacrciscd uniis for cash. The Company has resewed 4413.360 shares 
of c l ; ~  ,A coninion stock for issu:insc under the Plm. The options generally vest ratably o w  four years and 
cspire no h t c r  than 10 ).cars oficr the date of grant, with the exception of options originally prantcd under the 
Equit!. Opiion Plan, tthich espirc 15 !.cars after the date of grant. 

The exercise price of qualified stock options granted under the Pian ma). not be less ihan the fair market 
valuc of thc coninion shares on the date of grant. The exercise price of non-qualified stock options granted 
u n d e r  the Plnn may be greater or less than the fair market value of the common stock on the date of grant, as 
demniined 31 the discretion of the Board of Directors. Stock options granted at prices belo\\ fair market value 
31 tlie dJIc of grant arc considered conipensato?, and compensation expense is  deferred and recognized 
r;itabl!, over ilie option vesting period based on the excess of the fair market value of !he stock at the date of 
gra,rt o.:er the exercise price of the option. In connection with the regranting of options under the ne\\ Plan. 
the Company reclassified the deferred compensation liability relating to c o m p c n s ~ t o q  options issued tmdcr 
tlie Equit! Option Plan to coninion stock, stated 31 amounts paid in. The remaining. unrecognized 
coinpens:ition expcnse 3ttribut~ble to these compensatoq options was also recorded as deferred compcnsation. 
3 conrrJ-rquir! bd;lncc, and \ \ i l l  be recognized over the remaining vcsiing periods of the options. 
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During 1997, the Company recorded approximately 52,355,000 and 5892,000 of deferred conipens3tion 
expense related to the Stock Option Plan and Equity Option Plan, respectively. For the year ended 
December 3 1, 1996. the Company recorded approximately 59,914.000 of deferred compensation expense 
related to the Equity Option Plan. 

The Company has adopted the disclosure-only provisions of SFAS 123. Had compcns3tion costs. been 
recognized based on the fair value at the date of p n t  for options awarded under the Plans, the pro forma 
amounts of the Company's net loss and net loss per share for the years ended December 31, 1997 and 1996 
uould haiz been as follow (in thousinds, except per share amounts): 

1996 lW7 

Net loss applicable to common shares - as reponed ........ S(l6S.324) 5(71,101) 
Nei loss applicable IO common shares - pro forma ......... S( 1S2.571) S(aJ.512) 
Net loss per share - as reponed ......................... 5 (3.91) S (1.81) 
Net loss per share - pro forma .......................... 5 (4.24) 5 (1.64) 

The fair value of each option grant was estimated using the black-Scholes option-pricinp model with the 
follouing jieightcd average ~ssumptions: risk-free interest rates of 5.31% to 7.05%; expected option lives of 3 
to 5 !eats. c\pected voht i I i t>  of 45%; and no expected dividends. The utightcd 3verage fair value of options 
granted during 1997 and 1996 \\as S5.94 and 56.87. respectivel!.. 

- 

Informxion u i t h  respect to t h e  Equii) Option Plan 3nd Stock Option Plan i s  as follow 

0T:ioRs outstanding nt December 21, 1993 . . . . . .  
G:mtcd. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Cznceled..  ............................... 

OpiiJnj o:ts:anding 31 De:cniber 31. 1996 . . . . . .  
Gt?ntcd. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
C3n:rlcd.. ............................... 
E\er;ised . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

0p:ion.; oc1s:Jndinf 31 Dcxmbcr  31, 1997 . . . . . .  

Sharo 
Subjoct 

to Option 

1.39447 1 
43.01 8 
( 4 4 S 4 3 )  

2.004.646 
2.569.1 56 
( 205.3 9s ) 
(672.S7S) 
3.695.526 - 

Option Prier 
Ranzc 

50.02 
50.02 - 7.93 
50.02 
50.02 - 7.93 
57.93 - 26.50 
50.02 - 2 I .3 1 
50.02 - 7.93 
50.02 - 26.50 

\\'righted 
Awrafr 

E\rreict P r i n  

50.02 
s I .93 
50.02 
50.45 
59.24 
51.19 
50. IS 
56.45 

Opcicins Oulrtanding 
\\righted Options ~ s t r e i c a b l t  
A w a g r  \ i ' e i~ l i t rd  \\'tightrd 

Range of Options Rrmainin AwraPc Options Awrr e 
f \ricisr Priers Outstandinq Conmecud tik [\rrcisc Prier f iercibabk Eirreisr  $tin 

5 0.02 - S 1.00 1,146,886 12.54 5 0.23 4 1 1,470 5 0.10 
S 1-01 - 514.00 2,289,755 10.82 5 7.95 103.256 5 7.93 
514.01 - 526.50 256,885 9.92 520.53 1 10,308 52 1.94 
At December 31, 1997, 44,956 shares of Class A common stock were avaihble for future grants. The  

Board of Directors has authorized an increase of 5,441,336 in the number of shares that may be issued 
pursuant to options under the Plan, subject to shareholder approval. The Company has received an irrevoc3ble 
prosy from its majority shareholder approving the incnase. 
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KESTLlM Communications, lnc. 
KOTES TO COSSOLIDATED FIKAKCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

Dcccmber 31,1997 and 1996 

12. Supplcmrnral Disclosurc of Cmh Flow Information 

Supplenrcntal disclosure of the Company's cash flow information is as follow (in thousands): 
Yrrr Ended Deremhrr 31, 

1996 - l W 1  - 
Noncash financing and investing activities were as follows: 
Class A common stock issued under lease arrangement ..... - S 1,400 
Redccnrablc referred stock dividends, paid in redeemable 

Accrued redeemable preferred stock dividends, 
.................................... - preferred s K ares 531.102 

- pSsablc rcdeenublc preferred shares, and accretion o preferred 

Issuance of notes pa!,able and assumption of li3bilities in 
srock redemption obligation .......................... 3 8.218 

acquisitions ..................................... i .. 521.280 - 

s -  

s -  
c - 
5 -  

S 8.228 

- 
I, 

Jssusncc of Cliss A common stock in acquisitions .. :. ..... 516.524 ' 5  - 
Cdpitd lease obligations assumed ....................... S 4.725 S 1.377 

- - - - 
s 5.574 
5 2.907 
5 2.667 

................................... 520.9 I2 

............. ,\lcnibers' cquit! recorded in Recapit;llization - S - - 
Cooduill recorded in  Recapitalization.. - S - - 
E\thsnge of minorill, inrerests for Class A units. .  - S - - 

C;!sh pJid for inreresl II 544.665 - 
.................. 

......... 

13. Coniniicnicncs 2 n d  Contiqyncics 

Cn;i;.ilizcd Icases consis1 of 1c;lses of telecommunisarions equipment and fiber oplic nett\orks. The  
Co-,::.?n! ij nlso Ie;:sing premises under various opcr3:ing leases which, in addition 10 renral pqments ,  require 
p.!!'mcn:s for iniu:~n;c. 1n;lintcnincc. propcrty t a \ e j  and olher esccutog\. cosu r e l m d  10 the leases. The I C ~ S C  
: igrecr,- , tn~s h:i\ c t Jrious e\pir.i~ion dJles  2nd ;.cncu;ll options through 2018. 

Fc:::i. i:1i:ili\un1 pi! nicnts rcquircd under caFiu1 and opers~ing leases that have an initial or remaining 
noncsn:cl3b!c l e x e  tern1 in excess of one \ . e x  at December 31, 1997 were as follo\vs (in thousands): 

Capital 0 rrrting 
t r a m  Leases 

1996 ........................................... 5 3,285 5 7,005 
7,269 1999 ........................................... 3,199 

2000 6,950 ........................................... 2,825 ........................................... 6,461 200 1 1,209 ........................................... 6,305 2002 1.205 
Thereafter.. ..................................... - 5,174 22,695 
Total minimum lease payments.. ................... 16,897 
Less 3mounrs represenling interest .................. - 6.647 
Present value of future minimum lease payments ...... 10,250 
Less amounts due in one year ...................... - 2.610 

S 7.640 

7- 

Year ending December 31, 

- 
R c n i  expense 101a1ed npprosimlrlclj, 56,376,000 and S2,245,000 in 1997 and 1996. respectivels. 
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NEXTLINK Communications, Inc. 

NOTES TO COSSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEhlEKTS (Continued) 
December 31, 1997 and 1996 

14. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Joitu Vertirrre 

In J a n u a y  1998, the Company and Nextel Communications, Inc. (Nextel) formed a joint venture dolled 
KEXTBAND Communications, L.L.C. (NEXTBAND), which is owned 50% each by the Company and 
N e x t e l .  On January 28, 1998, NEXTBAND filed an application with the FCC for which it paid a SSO million 
refundable deposit to participate in the FCC's Local Multipoint Distribution service (LMDS)  auction which 
began on February 18, 1998. Of the deposit amount, 32s million was deposited by the Company. LhlDS is a 
fixed broadband point-to-multipoint service which the FCC and industry analysts an t ic ip~te  will be used for 
t h e  deplo!*mcnt of tvirelcss local loop, high-speed data transfer and video broadcasting service. NEXTBAND 
has applied for and is eligible to bid on any of the markets being auctioned for the licenses, which could result 
i n  additional funds being contributed by the Company to NEXTBAND. 

.4'erbtaorX Lense 

I n  F e b r u 3 ~  1998, the  Compan) entered into a 20-year capital lease for excIusi\.e rights to multiple fibers 
3nd innerducts c\tending o \cr  650 route miles throughout Ne\\ York, Ne\\ Jersej, Connecticut, Pennsylvania, 
De1anarc. .\lap land and Il'ashington, D.C. The Company paid 592.0 million for the transaction. of $1 hich 
SS0.3 million 1 \ 1 5  placed into escro\\ pending completion and de l i \ c~y  of segments of the ncwork route to the 
Conipn!. The Compan! h J s  the option to renett the lease for t i to additional IO-)ear terms. 

FI 1 1 ; )  m i u g  

0; 513rih 3, 199s. t h e  Compan!, completed the sale of S335 million in a g g r c p e  principal amount of 9% 
Scnior Soxs d u e  M ~ r c h  15. 200s. Proceeds from the sale net of discounts, underwriting commissions. 
ad\ isop fees 2nd e\pcnses. totaled approxim3tcly 5326.5 million. The 9 5  Senior Notes ore rcdeemnble 31 the 
option of t h e  Company. in  \\hole or in part, beginning March 15.2003 at established redemption prices uhich 
d:clinc to 1007 of the stattd principal amount thereof b) March 15, 7006. 

The indcr,tcrc pursuani to uhich the 9% Senior Sotcs arc issued contains ccnain covenants that. among 
other i h i n g j .  l ini i is  the  abili:! of the Company and its subsidiaries t o  incur additional indebtedness. issue stock 
in subsidhrics. pa) dividends or make other distributions, repurchase equity interests or subordinated 
indcbicdncss. engage in  sale 3nd  leaseback transactions, cre3te certain liens, enter into certain transactions 
u i i b  a f j j l i ~ ~ e s .  sell assets of the Company and its subsidiaries. and enter into certain mergers and 
conio1id;ltions. 

I n  t he  eient of a change in  control of the Company os defined in the indenture, holders of the 9% Senior 
h'oles \ \ i l l  ha1.e the right to require the Company to purchase their 9% Senior Notes, in whole or in pan, at o 
price equal to  101% of the stated principal amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest, irony, thereon to 
the date of purchase. The 9% Senior Notes are senior unsecured obligations of the Company, and are 
subordinated to all current and future indebtedness of the Company's subsidiaries. including trade payablcs. 
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REPORT OF ISDEPEA'DENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

T o  XEXTLINK Capital, Inc.: 

\!'e h a v e  audited the accompanying balance sheets of NEXTLINK Capital, Inca (a \\'ashineton 
corporation) as of December 31, 1997 and 1996. These balance sheets arc the responsibility of the Company's 
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these balance sheets based on our audits. 

\{'e conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards 
require that  \ \ e  plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the balance sheets 
arc free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a lest basis, evidence supporting the 
amounts and disclosures in the balance sheets. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used 
and significant estimates made by management, as well at evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. U ' e  believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

I n  our opinion, the balance sheets referred 10 above present fairly, in all material respecis, the financial 
position of KEXTLINK Capital, Inc. as of December 31, 1997 and 1996 in conformity with generally 
accepxd accounting principles. 

ARTHUR AKDERSEN LLP 
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SEXTUSK Capital, Inc. 

B A U K C E  SHEETS 

A S S E T S  
Drtcmbcr 31. 

1997 1996 - -  
Cash in bank ................................................. SI00 $100 - m a  

SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY 
Common stock, no p3r value, 

1,000 shares authorized, issued and outstanding .................. E 5100 

See arcotitpoiying noie ro bolatrce rheeu. 
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NEXTLINK Capitol, Inc 
NOTE TO BAUNCE SHEETS 

December 31, 1997 and 1996 

1. Description 

XEXTLINK Capital, Inc. (NEXTLINK Capital) is a Washington corporation and a wholly owned 
subsidiaq, of NEXTLINK Communications, Inc. (NEXTLINK).  NEXTLINK Capital was formed for the 
sole purpose of obtaining financing from external sources and is a joint obligor on the 12HB Senior No~es  due 
Apnl 15, 2006 of XEXTLlNK. NEXTLINK Capital was initially funded with a $100 contribution from 
KEXTLINK and has had no operations to date. NEXTLINK Capital's sole source and repayment for the 
12°C Senior Notes will be from the operations of NEXTLINK. Therefore, these balance sheets should be 
read in  conjunction with the consolidated financial statements of NEXTLINK. 
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SIC N ATL: RES 
Pursuant to the requiremenis of Section 13 or IS(d) of the Securities Exchange ACI of 1934, the 

Registrants have duly caused this report to be signed on rhcir behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly 
aut horizcd. 

I\'EXTLINK Communications. Inc. 

Date: March 2S, 1998 B y  1st WAYNE M. PERRY 
Wayne M. Perry 
Chief Executive Oflsccr, Director 

NEXTLINK Capital, Inc. 

Date: Narch 25, 1998 By: l r l  WAYNE M. PERRY 
\ \ ' ape  hi. Perry 
Chief Esecutive Officer, Director 

Pursuant to t h e  requitenienis of the Securities Esch3npt AH of 1934, this report has been signed below 
on hlarch 25, 199s by the follo\\ing persons on behalf of the Regisrrants and in the c3p3cities indicated: 

lsJ \ \ ' A I ' K E  h!. PERRY 
\\'3!ne M. PerT 

/ s /  K A T H L E E K  H .  ISKRA 
Kathleen H. lskra 

I s /  J A t l E S  F. \'OELE;ER 
J;lmes F. I'oclAcr 

l s l  S T E l ' E S  \\'. HOOPER 
Sie icn  ll'. Hooper 

Craig 0. SlcCau 
l s l  C R A I G  0. hlcCA\\' 

lsl  DENNIS \\'EIBLlNG 
Dennis U'cibling 

1st SCOT JARVIS 
Scot Janis 

1st \VILLlAhl A. HOGLUVD 

f s f  SHARON L. NELSON 

ls/ JEFFREY S. R A I K E S  

William A. Hoplund 

Sharon L. Nelson 

Jeffrq S. Raikts 

Chief Executive Oficer. Director 

Vice President, Chief financial Of ic t r  
(Principal Financial O f i w  and Principal 
Accounting Officer) 

President. Director 
(Principal Executive Oficer) 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Dire ctor 
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NEXTLINK Long Distance Services, Inc. Florida Tariff No. 1 
Original Title Page 1 

\ 

INTEREXCHANGE SERVICES TARIFF 

FLORIDA TELECOMMUNICATIONS TARIFF 

This tariff contains the descriptions, regulations and rates applicable to the furnishing of service 
and facilities for telecommunications services provided by NEXTLINK Long Distance Service, 
Inc. with principal offices at 508 108* Avenue N.E., Suite 2200, Bellevue, Washington 98004. 
This tariff applies for services furnished within the State of Florida. This tariff is on file with the 
Florida Public Service Commission, and copies may be inspected during normal business hours at 
the Company’s principal place of business. 

ISSUED: May 18, 1999 EFFECTIVE: May 18, 1999 

Douglas W. Kinkoph, Vice President 
NEXTLINK Long Distance Services, Inc. 

Two Easton Oval 
Columbus, OH 43219 
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NEXTLINK Long Distance Services, Inc. Florida Tariff No. 1 
Original Title Page 2 

INTEREXCHANGE SERVICES TARIFF 

NEXTLINK Long Distance Services, Inc. 

dba 

NEXTLINK or NEXTLINK Long Distance 

Regulations, Descriptions and Rates 

Applicable to Furnishing 

Interexchange Services 

with the State of Florida 

ISSUED: May 18, 1999 EFFECTIVE: May 18, 1999 

Douglas W. Kinkoph, Vice President 
NEXTLINK Long Distance Services, Inc. 

Two Easton Oval 
Columbus, OH 43219 



NEXTLINK Long Distance Services, Inc. Florida Tariff No. 1 
Original Page I 

INTEREXCHANGE SERVICES TARJFF 

CHECK SHEET 

The Title Page through Page 67 inclusive of this tariff are effective on the date shown. Original 
and Revised Pages as named below contain all changes from the original tariff that are in effect 
on the date shown. 

PAGE 

Title 
1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 
10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 

NUMBER OF REVISION EFFECTIVE 
(except as indicated) DATE 

Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 

ISSUED: May 18, 1999 EFFECTIVE: May 18, 1999 

Douglas W. Kinkoph, Vice President 
NEXTLINK Long Distance Services, Inc. 

Two Easton Oval 
Columbus, OH 43219 



NEXTLINK Long Distance Services, Inc. 

INTEREXCHANGE SERVICES TARIFF 

Florida Tariff No. 1 
Original Page 2 

PAGE 

26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

NUMBER OF REVISION EFFECTIVE 
(exceDt as indicated) DATE 

Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 

ISSUED: May 18, 1999 EFFECTIVE: May 18, 1999 

Douglas W. Kinkoph, Vice President 
NEXTLINK Long Distance Services, Inc. 

Two Easton Oval 
Columbus, OH 43219 



NEXTLINK Long Distance Services, Inc. Florida Tariff No. 1 
Original Page 3 

INTEREXCHANGE SERVICES TARIFF 

PAGE 

51 
52 
53 
54 
55 
56 
57 
58 
59 
60 
61 
62 
63 
64 
65 
66 

NUMBER OF REVISION EFFECTIVE 
(except as indicated) DATE 

Original 
0 rig i n a 1 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 

ISSUED: May 18, 1999 EFFECTIVE: May 18, 1999 

Douglas W. Kinkoph, Vice President 
NEXTLINK Long Distance Services, Inc. 

Two Easton Oval 
Columbus, OH 43219 



NEXTLINK Long Distance Services, Inc. 

INTEREXCHANGE SERVICES TARIFF 

Florida Tariff No. 1 
Original Page 4 

TARIFF FORMAT 

A. Sheet Numbering - page numbers appear in the upper right corner of the page. pages are numbered 
sequentially. When a new page is added between pages already in affect, a decimal is added. For 
example, a new page added between pages 14 and 15 would be 14.1. 

B. Sheet Revision Numbers - Revision numbers also appear in the upper right corner of each page. These 
numbers are used to determine the most current page version on file with the Florida Public Service 
Commission. For example, the 4" revised page 14 cancels the 3d revised page 14. Consult the Check 
Page for the page currently in effect. 

C. Paragraph Numbering Sequence - There are nine levels of paragraph coding. Each level of 
coding is subservient to the next higher level: 

2. 
2.1 
2.1.1 
2.1.1.A. 
2.1.1.A. 1. 
2.1.I .A.1.  (a) 
2.1.1.A.1.  (a) .I. 
2 .1 .1 .A. l .  (a). I . ( i ) .  
2.1.1.A.1. (a) .I. (i). ( I ) .  

D. Check Sheets - When a tariff filing is made with the Florida Public Service Commission, an 
updated Check Sheet accompanies the tariff filing. The  Check Sheet lists the pages contained in  
the tariff, with a cross reference to the current revision number. When new pages are added, the 
Check Sheet is changed to reflect the revision. All revisions made in a given filing are designated 
by an asterisk (*). There will be no other symbols used on this page if these are the only changes 
made to i t  ( i .e . ,  the format, etc. remain the same, ju s t  revised revision levels on some pages.) 

ISSUED: May 18, 1999 EFFECTIVE: May 18, 1999 

Douglas W. Kinkoph, Vice President 
NEXTLINK Long Distance Services, Inc. 

Two Easton Oval 
Columbus, OH 43219 
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NEXTLINK Long Distance Services, Inc. Florida Tariff No. 1 
Original Page 5 

INTEREXCHANGE SERVICES TARIFF 

APPLICATION OF TARIFF 

This tariff contains the regulations and rates applicable to the provision of intrastate 
interexchange services by NEXTLINK Long Distance Services, Inc. (hereafter the “Company”) 
from its operating locations throughout the state of Florida. Service is furnished by means of 
wire, terrestrial microwave radio, optical, fibers, satellite circuits or a combination thereof. 
Service is subject to transmission, atmospheric conditions and like conditions. 

ISSUED: May 18, 1999 EFFECTIVE: May 18, 1999 

Douglas W. Kinkoph, Vice President 
NEXTLINK Long Distance Services, Inc. 

Two Easton Oval 
Columbus, OH 43219 
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NEXTLINK Long Distance Services, Inc. Florida Tariff No. 1 
Original Page 6 

INTEREXCHANGE SERVICES TARIFF 

CONCURRING CARRIERS 

No Concurring Carriers 

CONNECTING CARRIERS 

No Connecting Carriers 

OTHER PARTICIPATING CARRIERS 

No Other Participating Carriers 

~ 

ISSUED: May 18, 1999 EFFECTIVE: May 18, 1999 

Douglas W. Kinkoph, Vice President 
NEXTLINK Long Distance Services, Inc. 

Two Easton Oval 
Columbus, OH 43219 
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NEXTLINK Long Distance Services, Inc. 

INTEREXCHANGE SERVICES TARIFF 

Florida Tariff No. 1 
Original Page 7 

EXPLANATION OF SYMBOLS, REFERENCE MARKS, AND ABBREVIATIONS OF 
TECHNICAL TERMS USED IN THIS TARIFF. 

Revisions of this tariff are coded through the use of symbols. These symbols appear in 
the right margin of the sheet. The symbols and their meanings are: 

(C) To signify changed conditions or regulations. 

(D) To signify discontinued rate, regulation, or condition. 

(I) To signify increase. 

(K) To signify that material has been transferred to another sheet or place in the 
tariff. 

(M) To signify that material has been transferred from another sheet or place in the 
tariff. 

(N) To signify a new rate, regulation, condition, or sheet. 

(0) To signify no change. 

(R) To signify reduction. 

(T) To signify a change in text for clarification. 

ISSUED: May 18, 1999 EFFECTIVE: May 18, 1999 

Douglas W. Kinkoph, Vice President 
NEXTLINK Long Distance Services, Inc. 

Two Easton Oval 
Columbus, OH 43219 
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INTEREXCHANGE SERVICES TARIFF 
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NEXTLINK Long Distance Services, Inc. Florida Tariff No. 1 
Original Page 10 

INTEREXCHANGE SERVICES TARIFF 

1 Definitions 

Access Line: 
Company’s network switching center. 

An arrangement which connects the customer’s location to the 

Advance Payment: Part or all of a payment required before the start of service. 

Authorization Code: 
customer to enable h idhe r  to access the carrier, and which are used by the carrier both to 
prevent unauthorized access to its facilities. 

A numerical code, one or more of which are available to a 

Authorized User: A person, firm or corporation which is authorized by the Customer or 
joint user to be connected to the service of the Customer or joint user. 

Company: NEXTLINK Long Distance Services, Inc., the issuer of this tariff, which is a 
Washington corporation, or any of its affiliates which concur in this tariff. 

Company Callincr Card: A telephone calling card issued by the Company at the 
Customer’s request which enables the Customer or User(s) authorized by the Customer to 
place telephone calls and to have the charges for such calls billed to the Customer’s 
account. 

Customer: The person, firm, or corporation which orders service and is responsible for 
the payment of charges and compliance with the Company’s regulations. 

Dav: 
Friday. 

From 8:OO AM up to, but not including, 5:OO PM local time, Sunday through 

Evening: 
through Friday. 

From 5:OO PM up to, but not including. 11:OO PM local time, Sunday 

Holidays: 
King, Jr. Day, President’s Day, Memorial Day, July 4*, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, 
Christmas Day. 

The Company’s recognized holidays are New Year’s Day, Martin Luther 

Individual Case Basis (ICB): A service arrangement in which the regulations, rates and 
charges are developed based on the specific circumstances of the Customer’s situation. 

IntraLATA Service: Service which originates and terminates within the same Local 
Access and Transport Area (LATA). 

InterLATA Service: Service which originates in one Local Access and Transport Area 
(LATA) and terminates in a different LATA. 

M/M: Month to month. 

ISSUED: May 18, 1999 EFFECTIVE: May 18, 1999 

Douglas W. Kinkoph, Vice President 
NEXTLINK Long Distance Services, Inc. 

Two Easton Oval 
Columbus, OH 43219 
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NEXTLINK Long Distance Services, Inc. 

INTEREXCHANGE SERVICES TARIFF 

Florida Tariff No. 1 
Original Page 11 

1. Definitions (cont’d) 

MOU: Minutes of use. 

Nighmeekend: 
through Friday, and 8:00 AM Saturday up to, but not including, 5:OO PM Sunday. 

From 11:OO PM up to, but not including, 8:00 AM Sunday 

Non-recurring Charges: The one-time initial charges for services or facilities, including 
but not limited to charges for construction, installation, or special fees which the 
Customer becomes liable at the time the Service Order is executed. 

Primary InterLATA Carrier (“PIC”): Long distance carrier designated by a telephone 
subscriber to provide the Customer with interLATA service without having to dial a 
special access code.. 

Originating Off-net: A call originating on and placed via non-company owned facilities 
or a combination of non-company owned and leased facilities. 

Originating On-Net: A call originating on and placed via company-owned facilities or a 
combination of company owned and leased facilities. 

Recurring Charges: The monthly charges to the Customer for services, facilities and 
equipment which continue for the agreed upon duration of the service. 

Service Order: The written request for communications services executed by the 
Customer and the Company in the format devised by the Company. The signing of a 
Service Order by the Customer and the acceptance by the Company initiates the 
respective obligations of the parties as set forth therein and pursuant to this tariff. 

Station: Denotes the network control signaling unit and any other equipment provided at 
the Customer’s premises which enables a Customer to establish communications 
connections and to effect communications through such connections. 

Station-to-Station: Service where the person originating the call from other than a public 
or semi-public coin telephone dials the telephone desired and the call is completed 
without the assistance of a Company operator and the call is not billed to a number other 
than the originating number. 

Two Point Message Toll Service: Furnishing of facilities for telecommunications 
between different local calling areas in accordance with the regulations and schedule of 
rates specified in this tariff.. The rates specified in this tariff are for payment for all 
services furnished between the calling and called stations. 
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1. Definitions (cont’d) 

United States: The 48 contiguous states and the District of Columbia, Hawaii, Alaska, 
Puerto Rico, the U.S. Virgin Islands, as well as the off-shore areas outside the boundaries 
of the coastal states of the 48 contiguous states to the extent that such areas appertain to 
and are subject to the jurisdiction and control of the United States. 

User or End User: Any person or entity that obtains the Company’s services provided 
under this tariff, regardless of whether such person or entity is so authorized by the 
Customer. 
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2. Undertaking of the Company 

2.1 Limitations on Service 

2.1.1 Service is offered to the availability of facilities and the provisions of the 
tariff. The Company reserves the right to limit or to allocate the use of 
existing facilities, or of additional facilities offered by the Company, 
when necessary because of lack of facilities, or due to some other cause 
beyond the Company’s control. 

The furnishing of service under this tariff is subject to the availability on 
a continuing basis of all the necessary facilities, including facilities the 
Company may obtain from other carriers, to furnish service. 

2.1.2 The Company reserves the right to immediately discontinue furnishing 
services or billing options when the manner in which the Customer uses 
the Company’s service results, or may result, in network blockage or 
other service degradation which adversely affects service to the calling 
party, the customer, or other customers of the Company. The Company 
also reserves the right to immediately discontinue furnishing services or 
billings options, when the Customer is using the service in violation of 
the provisions of this tariff or in violation of the law. The customer will 
be responsible for all charges incurred as well as any access charges the 
Company may incur as a result of such customer actions. 

2.1.3 Service may be discontinued by the Company, at any time and without 
notice to its Customers, by blocking traffic to or from certain countries, 
cities, NXX exchanges, or individual telephone stations, by blocking call 
origination for Company services, or by blocking calls using certain 
customer authorization codes and/or access codes when the Company 
deems it necessary to take such action to prevent unlawful and/or 
unauthorized use of its services. In addition, the Company may take any 
of the foregoing actions, in the case of actual or anticipated non-payment 
for its service. In order to control fraud, the Company may refuse to 
accept Calling Card, Collect Calling, and/or Third Party calls which it 
reasonably believes to be unauthorized or invalid and/or may limit the 
use of these billing options to or from certain countries or areas 
including, without limitation, all or part of the United States, Puerto 
Rico, and/or the U.S. Virgin Islands. 
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2. Undertaking of the Company (cont’d) 

2.1 Limitations on Service (cont’d) 

2.1.4 A Customer shall not: (a) use any service mark of trade mark either of 
the Company or any of its affiliated companies or of which the Company 
or any of its affiliated companies is a licensee, or (b) refer to the 
Company or any of its affiliated companies in connection with any 
service, product, equipment offering, promotion, or publication of the 
customer, without the prior written consent of the Company. 

2.1.5 Title to all facilities provided by the Company under these regulations 
remains with the Company. 

2.1.6 To the extent applicable, Company service will be subject to the most 
recent conditions set forth in the Truth in Lending Act, Reg. Z, 12 C.F.R. 
Section 226. 

2.1.7 If the Company disconnects a Customer’s service for non-payment of 
past due amounts, the Customer’s service will remain disconnected until 
such time as the Company receives payment for all past due amounts and 
confirms the availability of sufficient funds to satisfy the amount of 
payment. 

2.1.8 The Company assumes no responsibility for the availability or 
performance of any cable or satellite systems or related facilities under 
the control of other entities, or for other facilities provided by other 
entities used for service to the Customer, even if the Company has acted 
as the Customer’s agent in arranging for such facilities or services. Such 
facilities are provided subject to such degree of protection or non- 
preemptability as may be provided by the other entities. 

2.1.9 The Company makes no warranties or representations, express or implied 
either in  fact or by operation of law, statutory, or otherwise, including 
warranties of merchantability or fitness for a particular use, except those 
expressly set forth herein. 

ISSUED: May 18, 1999 EFFECTIVE: May 18, 1999 

Douglas W. Kinkoph, Vice President 
NEXTLINK Long Distance Services, Inc 

Two Easton Oval 
Columbus, OH 43219 



NEXTLINK Long Distance Services, Inc. Florida Tariff No. 1 
Original Page 15 

INTEREXCHANGE SERVICES TARIFF 

3. Rules and Regulations 

3.1 Terms and Conditions 

3.1.1 Company services are provided and billed on the basis of a minimum 
period of at least one month, beginning on the date that billing becomes 
effective and continues to be provided until canceled by the Customer in 
writing on not less than 30 days notice from the date of postmark on the 
letter giving notice of cancellation. 

3.1.2 The name(s), address(es), and telephone number(s) of the Customers 
desiring to use the service must be stipulated in the application for 
service. 

3.1.3 The Customer agrees to operate the Company-provided equipment in 
accordance with the instructions of the Company or an agent of the 
Company. 

3.1.4 The Customer agrees within five ( 5 )  days of termination of the service in 
connection with which the equipment was used to return to the Company 
all Company-provided equipment delivered which was delivered to the 
Customer. Said equipment shall be in the same condition as when 
delivered to the Customer, normal wear and tear excepted. Customers 
shall reimburse the Company, upon demand, for any costs incurred by 
the Company due to the Customers failure to comply with this provision. 
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3. Rules and Regulations (cont’d) 

3.2 Liability 

3.2.1 Except for granting allowances for interruptions of service as provided 
for in Section 3.22 and other sections of this tariff, the Company shall 
not be liable for any failure of performance due to: causes beyond its 
control, including, but not limited to, acts of God, fires, floods or other 
catastrophe, national emergencies, insurrections, riots or wars, strikes, 
lockouts, work stoppages or other labor difficulties; other preemption of 
existing services to restore service in compliance with Part 64, Subpart 
D, Appendix A, of the FCC’s Rules and Regulations; or any law, order, 
or action of any governing authority or agency thereof. 

3.2.2 The Company’s liability, if any, with regard to the delayed installation of 
Company facilities or commencement of services shall not be liable to a 
Customer or third party for any direct, indirect, special, incidental, 
reliance, consequential, exemplary, or punitive damages, including, but 
not limited to, loss of revenue or profits, for any reason whatsoever, 
including, but not limited to, any act or omission, failure to perform 
ordering (including the reservation of any specific number for use with a 
service), installation (including delays thereof), offered under this tariff, 
and subject to the provisions of Section 3.2, following the Company’s 
liability, if any shall be limited as follows: 

(1) With respect to any Dedicated leased Line Service offered by the 
Company, the Company’s liability amount is equal to the 
proportionate monthly recurring charge or charges for the service 
for the period during which the service was affected. 

With respect to any service provided by the Company which 
involves dedicated access, shared interexchange transmission, 
and/or shared information, the Company’s liability shall not 
exceed an amount equal to the proportionate monthly recurring 
charges-including any service charges, minimum monthly 
charges, basic feature package charges monthly charges for 
optional features, charges for dedicated access facilities and any 
other monthly charges-for the period during which the service 
was affected or, if only a transmission using the shared 
interexchange facilities is interrupted, an amount equal to the 
charge applicable to a one-minute call to the called station at the 
time the affected call was made. Where any claim arises out of 
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3. Rules and Regulations (cont’d) 

3.2 Liability (cont’d) 

3.2.2 (cont’d) 

(2) (cont’d) 
the Company’s acting as a Resp Org, or performing SMS Res 
Org changes, or where any claim arises out of any and all failing 
by the Company in connection with the provision of 
800/888/877 (and future toll-free prefixes) service is not made 
available on the date committed to the customer, or cannot 
otherwise be made available after the Company’s acceptance of 
the Customer order, or is provided with a number or numbers 
other than the one(s) committed by the Company to the 
Customer, or the number or numbers are not included in 
800/888/877 Service Directory Assistance or are included in an 
incorrect form, and any such failure or failures is due solely to 
the negligence of the Company, in such cases the Company’s 
liability, if any, will be limited to the lessor of (a) the actual 
monetary damages incurred and proven by the Customer as the 
direct result of such failure to failures; or (b) the sum of 
$1000.00. With respect to Resp Org and SMS Resp Org 
Changes, the customer will indemnify and hold the Company 
harmless against any third party claims arising out of the 
execution of changes requested by the Customer, including those 
changes made by an 800/888/877 Subscriber. Where the Resp 
Org Service Customer is a Customer acting on behalf of an 
800/888/877 Subscriber, the Customer represents that it has the 
authority to act on the 800/888/877 Subscribers behalf in 
choosing a Resp Org and otherwise utilizing the Company’s 
Resp Org Service. The Company shall not be liable at all for the 
use, misuse, or abuse of a Customer’s 800/888/877 Service by 
third parties including, without limitation, the Customers’ 
employees or members of the public who dial the Customers 
800/888/877 number by mistake. Compensation for any injury 
the Customer may suffer due to the fault of people or entities 
other than the Company must be sought from other such parties. 

ISSUED: May 18, 1999 EFFECTIVE: May 18, 1999 

Douglas W. Kinkoph, Vice President 
NEXTLINK Long Distance Services, Inc. 

Two Easton Oval 
Columbus, OH 43219 



I 

NEXTLINK Long Distance Services, Inc. 

INTEREXCHANGE SERVICES TARIFF 

Florida Tariff No. 1 
Original Page 18 

3. Rules and Regulations (cont’d) 

3.2 Liability (cont’d) 

3.2.2 (cont’d) 

(3) With respect to any service provided by the Company which 
involves shared access, shared interexchange transmission, 
and/or shared termination. The Company’s liability shall not 
exceed an amount equal to the charge applicable to a one( 1) 
minute call to the called station at the time the affect call was 
made. 

(4) With respect to any service provided by the Company’s which 
involves dedicated access, shared interexchange transmission, 
and/or dedicated termination, the Company’s liability shall not 
exceed an amount equal to the charge applicable to a one (1) 
minute call to the called station at the time the affected call was 
made. 

( 5 )  With respect to the routing of calls by the Company to public 
safety answering points or municipal emergency service 
providers, the Company’s liability, if any, will be limited to the 
lessor of a) the actual monetary damages incurred and proved by 
the customer as the direct result of the Company’s action, or 
failure to act, in routing the call; or b) the sum of $1000.00. 

(6) With respect to the Company’s offering of Telecommunications 
Relay Service (TRS), any service provided by LCI which 
involves receiving, translating, or delivering messages by 
telephone, text telephone, a Telecommunications Device for the 
Deaf, or any other instrument over the facilities of the Company 
or any connecting carriers or through any TRS centers operated 
by the Company or its agents, the Company’s liability shall not 
exceed an amount equal to the Company’s charge for a one (1) 
minute call to the station at the time affected call was made. 

The liability provided for above, shall in each case, be in 
addition to any amounts that may otherwise be due to the 
Customer under this tariff as a credit allowance for the 
interruption of service. 
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3. Rules and Regulations (cont’d) 

3.2 Liability (cont’d) 

3.2.3 The Company shall be indemnified, defended, and held harmless by the 
Customer or by others authorized to use the service against all claims of 
loss or damage arising from the use of service furnished under this tariff, 
including: 

(a) Claims for libel, slander, invasion of privacy, or infringement of 
copyright arising out of the material, data, information, or other 
content transmitted via Company service; 

(b) patent infringement claims arising from combining or connecting 
Company service with apparatus and systems furnished by the 
Customer or others; and 

(c) all other claims arising out of any act or omission of the 
Customer or others including those relating to Section 3.2.4 
below, in connection with any service provided by the Company. 

3.2.4 The Company shall not be liable for any act or omission of any other 
company or companies furnishing a portion of the service, or for 
damages associated with service, circuits, or equipment that it does not 
furnish, or for damages which result from the operation of customer- 
provided systems, equipment, facilities or services which are 
interconnected with Company services. 

3.2.5 The Company does not guarantee, nor make any warranty with respect 
to, service installations at locations at which there is present an 
atmosphere that is explosive, prone to fire, dangerous or otherwise 
unsuitable for such installations. The Customer and user shall indemnify 
and hold the Company harmless from any and all loss, claims, demands, 
suits or other actions, or any liability whatsoever, whether suffered, made 
instituted or asserted by the Customer by any other party, for any 
personal injury to, whether owned by the Customer or others, caused or 
claimed to have been caused, directly or indirectly, by the installation, 
operation, failure to operate, maintenance, removal, presence, furnished 
by the Company at such locations. 
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3. Rules and Remlations (cont’d) 

3.2 Liability (cont’d) 

3.2.6 The Company is not liable for any defacement of, or damages to, the 
premises of a Customer resulting from the furnishing of service, or the 
attachment of any instruments, apparatus associated wiring on such 
Customer premises or from the installation or removal thereof, when 
such defacement or damage is not the result of Company negligence. 

3.2.7 The Company shall not be liable for the Customers failure to fulfill its 
obligations to take all necessary steps including, without limitation, 
obtaining, installing and maintaining all necessary equipment, materials, 
and supplies, for interconnecting the terminal equipment or 
communications system of the Customer, or any third party acting as its 
agent, to the Company’s network. The Customer shall secure all 
licenses, permits, approvals, rights-of-way, and other arrangements 
necessary for such interconnection. In addition, the Customer shall 
ensure that its equipment and/or system or that of its agent is properly 
interfaced with the Company’s service, that the signals emitted into the 
Company’s network are of the proper mode, bandwidth, power, data 
speed, and signal level for the intended use of the Customer and in 
compliance with the criteria set forth in the following, and that such do 
not damage the Company’s equipment or network or injure Company 
personnel or degrade service to other Customers. If the Federal 
Communications Commission or some other appropriate certifying body 
certifies terminal equipment as being technically acceptable for direct 
electrical connection with interstate communications service, the 
Company will permit such equipment to be connected with its services 
without the use of protective interfaces devices. If the Customer or its 
agent fails to maintain and operate its equipment and/or system or that of 
its agent properly, with resulting imminent harm to Company equipment, 
network, personnel, or the quality of service to other Customers, the 
Company may, upon notice, require the use of protective equipment at 
the Customers expense. If this fails to produce satisfactory quality and 
safety, the Company may, upon written notice, terminate the Customers 
service without liability or obligation. 

3.2.8 With respect to the Company’s prepaid Calling Card Service, the 
Company makes no warranty, guarantee, or representation, either express 
or implied, regarding the merchantability, accuracy, reliability, condition, 
or fitness of the information provided in connection with the use of the 
card. 
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3. Rules and Regulations (cont’d) 

3.2 Liability (cont’d) 

3.2.9 Use and Sale of Telephone Subscriber Information 

3.2.9.1 With respect to the use and sale of telephone subscriber 
information provided pursuant to Automatic Number 
Identification (“ANI”) or charge number services, the Company 
shall permit the Customer to use the telephone number and 
billing information or billing and collection, routing, screening 
and completion of the originating telephone subscriber’s call or 
transaction, or for services directly related to the originating 
telephone subscriber’s call or transaction. The Customer is 
prohibited from reusing or selling the telephone number or 
billing information without first: 

(a) notifying the originating telephone subscriber and: 

(b) obtaining the affirmative consent of each subscriber for 
such reuse or resale. Additionally, the Customer is 
prohibited from disclosing, except as permitted above, 
any information derived from the Automatic Number 
Identification (“ANI”) or charge number service for any 
purpose other than: 

(i)  performing the services or transactions that are 
the subject of the origination telephone 
subscriber’s call; 

( i i )  ensuring network performance security, and the 
effectiveness of call delivery; 

(iii) compiling, using, and disclosing aggregate 
information; and 

(iv) complying with applicable law or legal process. 
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3. Rules and Regulations (cont’d) 

3.2 Liability (cont’d) 

3.2.9 Use and Sale of Telephone Subscriber Information (cont’d) 

3.2.9.2 The requirements imposed under Section 3.2.9.1 shall not 
prevent a person to whom automatic number identification, or 
charge number services are provided from using: 

(i) the telephone number and billing information provided 
pursuant to this service; and 

(ii) any information derived from the automatic number 
identification or charge number service, or from the 
analysis of the characteristics of a telecommunications 
transmission, to offer a product or service that is directly 
related to the products or services previously acquired by 
that Customer from such person. 

3.3 Cancellation of Service bv a Customer 

3.3.1 If a Customer cancels an order for service before the service begins, 
before completion of the minimum period, or before completion of some 
other period mutually agreed upon by the Customer and the Company, a 
charge will be levied upon the Customer for the non-recoverable portions 
of expenditures or liabilities incurred expressly on behalf of the 
Customer by the Company and not fully reimbursed by installation and 
monthly charges. If based on an order by a Customer, and construction 
has either begun or been completed, but no services provided, the non- 
recoverable cost of such construction shall be borne by the Customer. 

3.3.2 Except as otherwise provided in this tariff, if an order for installation is 
delayed for more that thirty (30) days beyond the due date, and such 
delay is not requested or caused by the Customer, the Customer may 
cancel the order without incurring cancellation charges. 
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3. Rules and Regulations (cont’d) 

3.4 Use of Service 

3.4.1 Service furnished by the Company may be used for one or more of the 
following: 

(a) for the transmission of communications by the Customer; 

(b) for the transmission of communications to or from an authorized 
user or joint user; 

(c) for the transmission of communications to or from a Customer of 
another common carrier, which has subscribed to the Company’s 
communications service for purposes of resale. 

3.4.2 Service furnished by the Company may be arranged for joint use or 
authorized use. The joint user or authorized user shall be permitted to 
use such service in the same manner as the Customer, but subject to the 
following: 

(a) One joint user or authorized user must be designated as the 
Customer. The designated Customer does not necessarily have 
to have communications requirements of its own. The Customer 
must specifically name all joint users or authorized users in the 
application for service. Orders that involve the start, 
rearrangement, or discontinuance of joint use or authorized use 
service will be accepted by the Company only from that 
Customer and will be subject to all provisions of this tariff. 

(b) All charges for the service will be computed as if the service 
were to be billed to one Customer. The joint user or authorized 
user that has been designated as the Customer will be billed for 
all components of the service and will be responsible for all 
payments to the Company. In the event that the designated 
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3. Rules and Regulations (cont’d) 

3.4 Use of Service (cont’d) 

3.4.2 (b) (cont’d) 

Customer fails to pay the Company each joint user or authorized 
user shall be liable to the Company for all charges incurred as a 
result of its use of the Company’s service. Each joint or 
authorized user must submit to the designated Customer a letter 
accepting contingent liability for its portion of all charges billed 
by the Company to the designated Customer. This letter must 
specify that the joint or authorized user understands that the 
Company will receive a copy of the guaranty from the 
designated Customer. Unless supportive services are provided, 
the Customer shall be responsible for allocating charges to each 
joint user or authorized user. 

3.5 Directory Assistance 

3.5.1 Directory Assistance is available for all services. The Directory 
Assistance charge will be applied to each call for information as to any 
telephone number in the United States, Puerto Rico, and the U S .  Virgin 
Islands. The Directory Assistance charge applies to each call regardless 
of whether the requested Directory Assistance telephone number is 
furnished. In addition, Directory Assistance calls will not count toward, 
nor be calculated as part of, the Customers service volume discounts 
unless otherwise indicated. Directory Assistance customer calls may be 
placed with the assistance of an operator, and they may be billed to 
commercial credit cards. 

3.5.2 A credit allowance will be given or the charge that would otherwise 
apply will be waived when: 

(a) the Customer experiences poor transmission or is cut-off during 
the call to Directory Assistance; 

(b) the Customer is given an incorrect telephone number by the 
Directory Assistance operator; 

(c) the Customer has inadvertently misdialed and has reached 
Directory Assistance for the wrong area code. To obtain such a 
credivwaiver, the Customer must notify a Company customer 
service representative with twenty-four (24) hours. 
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3. Rules and Regulations (cont’d) 

3.5 Directory Assistance (cont’d) 

3.5.3 Customers who are presubscribed to Company service and have been 
certified in writing to be unable to access or use a manual directory 
because of a visual or other physical impairment are eligible to receive a 
credit that will be applied against the per-call charge and any applicable 
operator-assistance surcharges specified in this tariff for domestic 
Directory Assistance calls made by dialing area code +555+1212. This 
certification must be made by a licensed physician, optometrist, 
appropriate federal or state agency, or appropriate approved private 
agency. 

The written certification of visual or other physical impairment must be 
provided to a Company Customer Service Representative, or at the 
Company’s election, proof of certification, as defined above, may be 
provided to, and maintained on file with, the Customer’s Local Exchange 
Carrier. 

Credits may be used by: (I) the visually or otherwise physically impaired 
customer: (ii) an organization established specifically for the purpose of 
assisting the visually or otherwise physically impaired; or (iii) a business 
where all owner(s) andor employees of the business on the premises at 
which a call originates have been certified as visually or otherwise 
physically impaired. Credits will apply only to Directory Assistance 
calls made by dialing area code+555+1212, that originate from and are 
billed to the telephone number of the certified visually or otherwise 
physically impaired person or organization. Only one telephone number 
per location is entitled to this credit. A maximum of fifty (50) Directory 
Assistance calls, including operator-assistance surcharges, per monthly 
billing period will be eligible for the credit. 
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3. Rules and Regulations (cont’d) 

3.6 Toll Free Service 

3.6.1 A call begins when call termination is received by or passes through 
customer premises equipment. It is the Customer’s responsibility to pass 
appropriate answer supervision back to the Company point of 
connection. 

3.6.2 If a Customer of the Company Toll Free service is found to be non- 
compliant in passing back appropriate answer supervision. The 
Company reserves the right to suspend and/or deny service. The 
Company shall give the Customer three (3) days notice of intent to 
suspend or deny service due to such non-compliance. 

3.6.3 The Customer shall be liable for all costs and toll charges associated with 
their 800/888/877 service, including unauthorized calls associated with 
the use of 800/888/877 service obtained from the Company, including, 
but not limited to, calls made using Toll Free Service when such calls are 
in any way routed through the Customer’s location. Customers shall 
maintain sole responsibility for the security of 800/888/877 number(s) 
issued to them. 

3.6.4 Nothing in this section, or, in any other provision of this tariff, or in any 
marketing materials issued by the Company, shall give any Customers 
who have reserved 800/888/877 telephone numbers hereunder or 
Customer who subscribe to and use Toll Free Service, or their transferees 
or assignees, any ownership interest or proprietary right in any particular 
800/888/877 telephone number. 

3.6.5 Customers (including carrier customers) are prohibited from using any 
telephone numbers beginning with an 800/888/8/77 service code, or any 
other number advertised or widely understood to be Toll Free, in a 
manner that would result in;  (a) the calling party or the subscriber 
originating line being assessed any fee or charge by virtue of completing 
the call; (b) the calling party being connected to a pay-per-call service; 
(c) the calling party being charges for information conveyed during the 
call unless the calling party has a presubscription or comparable 
arrangement; or (d) the calling party being call back collect for the 
provision of audio or data information services, simultaneous voice 
conversation services, or products. The Customer shall be afforded a 
period of no less that seven ( 7 )  days and no more than fourteen (14) days 
during which a violation may be brought into compliance. 800/888/877 
service no in compliance with the above regulations at the expiration of 
such period may be terminated immediately. 
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3. Rules and Regulations (cont’d) 

3.6 Toll Free Service (cont’d) 

3.6.6 The Customer must obtain an adequate number of access lines associated 
with Toll Free service(s) to handle the Customer’s expected demand in 
order to prevent interference or impairment of this service, or any other 
service provided by the Company, taking into account (1) call volume (2) 
average call duration; (3) time-of-day characteristics; and (4) peak 
calling periods. The Company, without incurring any liability, may 
disconnect or refuse to furnish Toll Free services to any Customer that 
fails to comply with these conditions. Incase of disconnection, the 
Customer will be notified at least (5) days in advance of the disconnect. 
The Customer will be responsible for all charges incurred as well as any 
access charges the Company may incur as a result of the Customer 
failure to comply within the above conditions. 

3.6.7 A Customer is responsible for all charges for network arising from calls 
placed to the Customer’s Toll Free service. An applicant for Toll Free 
service may be required to supply the following information when 
requesting service: an initial traffic forecast, identification of its 
geographical marketing target areas, and a schedule of marketing and 
promotional activities. A new tariff forecast shall be submitted quarterly 
after service is initiated. Customers of Toll Free service may not use 
Automatic Number Identification (ANI), provided by the Company 
incidental to the furnishing of Toll Free service, to invoice, either 
directly or indirectly their Customer in connection with their furnishing 
of other than common carrier services. 

3.6.8 All new 800/888/877 and future toll free prefixes, for the purpose of this 
tariff, apply to all Company existing 800/888/877 services, rates, and 
rules and regulations that governs all Company Toll Free service. 
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3. Rules and Regulations (cont’d) 

3.6 Toll Free Service (cont’d) 

3.6.9 Reservation and Administration. Ownership, Use, and Assignment of 
Telephone Numbers for NEXTLINK 800 

3.6.9.1 The Company will accept a prospective Customer’s request for a 
particular 800/888/877 service telephone number. Up to a total 
of ten (IO) such requested numbers may be requested. The 
Company will accommodate each request to the possible extent. 
If a requested number(s) can be assigned to a prospective 
Customer, the Company will notify the Customer and will 
reserve it for the Customer’s use for a fifty-nine (59) day period. 
If, at the end of the fifty-nine (59) day period, the prospective 
Customer has not subscribed to the Company 800/888/877 
services using a reserved number(s), the Company, in 
accordance with its procedures, may make the reserved number 
available for use by another Customer. 

3.6.9.2 In its capacity as Resp Org, the Company will reserve, assign, 
activate, or change, upon receipt of a verified request, 
800/888/877 numbers for a Customer or prospective Customer 
and will administrator 800/888/877 numbers, in accordance with 
customary industry standards and practices, the terms of this 
tariff, and the effective procedures of the 800/888/877 Service 
Management System (SMS) database administration. Customers 
may request, reserve, assign or activate 800/888/877 numbers on 
their own behalf, or a Customer that resells Company inbound 
transmission services may request, reserve, assign, or activate 
800/888/877 numbers on behalf of a Customer or prospective 
Customer of such reseller. A Customer who resells Company 
inbound transmission services must provide to any Customer or 
potential Customer, upon reasonable request therefore, 
information concerning the status of a particular 800/888/877 
number or number(s) in which the Customer or potential 
Customer has interest and, if applicable and available the identity 
of the Resp Org(s) for the 800/888/877 number(s), the Customer 
must notify the Company within forth-eight (48) hours so the 
Company may release the 800/888/877 numbers to the pool of 
numbers for assignment in accordance with industry practice and 
standards. 
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3. Rules and Regulations (cont’d) 

3.6 Toll Free Service (cont’d) 

3.6.9 Reservation and Administration, Ownershiu, Use, and Assignment of 
Telephone Numbers for NEXTLINK 800 (cont’d) 

3.6.9.3 800/888/877 numbers are incidental to the inbound calling 
service with which they are associated and, as such, may not be 
sold, transferred, or otherwise conveyed independent of inbound 
transmission. The assignment of an 800/888/877 telephone 
number(s) for use with company-provided inbound transmission 
service confers of the Customer no proprietary interest what so 
ever in the number(s) assigned. It shall be a violation of this 
tariff if the Customer seeks to acquire, or does acquire, any 
800/888/877 associated with inbound service provided by the 
Company for the primary purpose of selling, brokering bartering, 
or releasing for a fee (or other consideration) to another party 
that 800/888/877 number, independent of the Company service 
with which it is associated. In any instance in which the 
Company learns that a Customer or prospective Customer is 
attempting to sell or otherwise transfer or assign an 800/888/877 
number to another person, in violation of this tariff, the 
Company may immediately and without notice release the 
number from reserved status, or it may immediately upon written 
notice to the Customer discontinue the furnishing of service, or it  
may immediately upon written notice to the Customer 
discontinue the furnishing of service via the 800/888/877 
number. The Company telephone number forfeited as a result of 
the impermissible or reassigned to the undertaking will not be 
reserved for the prospective Customer or reassigned to the 
Customer under any condition or circumstances by the 
Company. 

3.6.9.4 Each 800/888/877 service telephone number must be placed in 
actual and substantial use by the Customer. 
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3. Rules and Regulations (cont’d) 

3.7 Recording Conversations 

3.7.1 Company services are not adapted to the use of recording devices to 
record two-way telephone conversations, or for other purposes, do so at 
their own risk. As used in this section, a two-way conversation is a 
telephone conversation between or among two or more parties. A 
Customer may use a recording only if the Customer is able to connect or 
disconnect the recording, or turn the recording device on or off, at will. 

3.7.2 A Customer may record a two-way conversation only when the recording 
is: 

(a) preceded by verbal or written consent of all parties to the 
conversation; 

(b) preceded by verbal notification of the recording of the 
conversation, which notification is recorded at the beginning, 
and as a part of, the call; or 

(c) accompanied by a distinctive recorder tone, repeated at intervals 
of approximately fifteen (15) seconds, to alert all parties to the 
conversation that a recording device is in use. 
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3. Rules and Regulations (cont’d) 

3.7 Recording Conversations (cont’d) 

3.7.3 Broadcast licenses are exempt from the restrictions set forth in Section 
3.7 when the licensee is recording the two-way conversation for 
broadcast and: 

(a) the licensee informs each party to the conversation that the 
licensee intends to broadcast the conversation; 

(b) each party to the conversation is aware that the conversation will 
be broadcast; or 

(c) the other party or parties to the conversation may be presumed to 
be aware, from the circumstances of the conversation, that the 
conversation is likely to be broadcast; provided that such 
awareness may be presumed only when the other party to the 
conversation is associated with the licensee (such as an 
employee or part-time reporter) or the other party or parties to 
the conversation originate(s) and the conversation is obviously in 
connection with a program during which the licensee 
customarily broadcasts telephone conversations. 

3.7.4 A Customer is exempt from the restrictions set forth in Section 3.7 when: 

(a) recording incoming calls made to telephone numbers publicized 
for emergencies (such as 91 1) and outgoing calls made in 
immediate response to these incoming calls (including calls 
made to and from Department of Defense Command Centers and 
the Operations Center of the Nuclear Regulatory Commission); 

(b) recording calls made for patently unlawful purposes (such a 
bomb threats, kidnap ransom requests, and obscene calls) and 
outgoing calls made in immediate response to these calls 
(including calls referred to the U.S. Secret Service that threaten 
the safety and security of the President of the United States, his 
or her immediate family, or the White House); or 

(c) recording calls pursuant to an explicit and lawful order of a court 
issued to 18 U.S.C. Section 2516, as amended, or any equivalent 
successor provision. 
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3. Rules and Reerulations (cont’d) 

3.8 ODerator Services 

3.8.1 A Customer acquiring operator service from the Company which, in the 
ordinary course of its operations, makes telephone calls, must: 

(a) post on or near the telephone instrument, in plain view of 
consumers: the name address and toll-free telephone number of 
the provider of operator services; 

(b) a written disclosure that the rates for all operator-assisted calls 
are available on request, and that consumers have a right to 
obtain access to the interstate common carrier of their choice; 
and that Customers may contact their preferred interstate 
common carriers for information on accessing that carrier service 
using the telephone; and the name and address of the 
enforcement of the Common Carrier Bureau of the Federal 
Communications Commission, to which the consumer may 
direct complaints regarding operator services; ensure that each of 
its telephones presubscribed to a provider of operator services 
allows consumers to use 800/888/877 and 950 access code 
numbers or any other carrier identification code (l0lOXXX) to 
obtain access to the provider of operator service desired by the 
consumer; 

(c) ensure that no charge by such Customer to the consumer for 
using an 800/888/877 and 950 access code, or any other access 
code number, is greater than the amount the aggregator charges 
for calls placed using the Customers presubscribed provided of 
operator services. Payment (on a location-by-location basis) of 
any compensation to the Customer, including commissions, shall 
be in violation of Section 3.8.1 (b) and shall not be made until 
such time as the blocking ceases. 
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3. Rules and Regulations (cont’d) 

3.9 Information Provider Data 

A Service Bureau shall promptly furnish to the Company, and keep current on a 
continuing basis, the name, address, and Customer Service telephone number(s) 
of the Information Providers to whom it provides service. Where an Information 
Provider directly subscribes top Company service, it shall promptly furnish to the 
Company, and keep current on a continuing basis, its name, address, and 
Customer Service Telephone number(s). 

3.10 Line Service 

No provider of pay-per-call services subscribing to the Company’s service in this 
tariff shall use automatic dialing devices which deliver a recorded message to the 
called party unless the device releases that called party’s telephone line promptly 
but in no event longer than current industry standards. 

3.1 1 Answer Supervision 

Answer supervision must be provided when a Company service offering is 
connected to switching equipment or a Customer-provided communications 
system. The Customers equipment or system must provide answer supervision 
so that the measure of chargeable time that begins upon the delivery of the 
Customer’s call to the switching equipment or to the equipment connected to the 
communications system and ends upon termination of the call by the calling 
party. If a Customer’s communications system fails to promptly return to 
Company am idle (on-hook) state upon completion of the call, the Customer will 
be held responsible for all charges that responsible for all charges that result up 
until the time the Customer’s communication system signals the Company’s 
network that the call has been terminated or until such a time that the Company’s 
own system terminates the call. 
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3. Rules and Regulations (cont’d) 

3.12 Restrictions 

Providers of pay-per-call services subscribing to Company transmission services, 
including 900 service, must comply with all requirements of (a) Title I and I1 of 
the Telephone Disclosure and Dispute Resolution Act (Pub.L No. 102-556) 
(TDDRA); and (b) all requirements of the regulations presubscribed by the 
federal Communications Commission and Federal Trade Commission pursuant to 
those Titles. The Company shall terminate programs which utilize 900 service if 
the programs are not in compliance, following written notice to the provider. 
The provider shall be afforded a period of no less than seven (7) days and no 
more that fourteen (14) days during which a program may be brought into 
compliance. Programs not in compliance at the expiration of such period shall be 
terminated immediately. 

3.13 Payment Arrangements 

3.13.1 The Customer is responsible for payment of all charges for service 
furnished to the Customer or its joint or authorized users. This 
responsibility is not changed by virtue of any use, misuse, or abuse of the 
Customer service or Customer provided systems, equipment, facilities, or 
services interconnected to the Customer’s service, which use, misuse, or 
abuse may be occasioned by third parties, including, without limitation, 
the Customers’ employees or other members of the public. The 
Company is not liable for any damages, including toll usage charges, the 
subscriber may incur as a result of the unauthorized use of its telephone 
facilities. This unauthorized use if the subscriber’s facilities includes, 
but is not limited to, the placement of calls from the subscriber’s 
premises, and the placement of calls through subscriber-provided 
equipment which are transmitted or carriers on the Company network. 
The Company security department may work with subscribers to 
recommend possible solutions to reduce unauthorized use of its facilities. 
However, the Company does not warrant or guarantee that its 
recommendations will prevent all unauthorized use, and the subscriber is 
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3. Rules and Regulations (cont’d) 

3.13 Payment Arrangements (con’t) 

3.13.1 (cont’d) 
responsible for controlling access to, and use of, its own telephone 
facilities. Non-recurring charges are payable when the service for which 
they are applied has been made available. If an entity other than the 
Company (e.g. another carrier or supplier) imposes charges on the 
Company, in addition to its own internal costs, those charges will be 
passed onto the Customer. Recurring charges which are fixed in amount 
and not dependent on usage are billed in advance. Except for usage 
charges the rate or volume discount level applicable to a Customer for a 
particular service or services shall be the rate or volume discount level in 
effect at the end of the monthly billing period applicable to the Customer 
for the particular service or service. The Customer agrees to pay the 
Carrier for all charges billed as a result of any use of the Customer’s 
authorization code(s), whether such use is by Customer or by a third 
party in connection with a lost, stolen or misappropriated authorization 
code, or otherwise. It is the Customer’s responsibility to inform the 
Company that an authorization code(s) has been stolen or lost. 

3.13.2 Service is provided and billed on a monthly(30-day) basis, beginning on 
the date that service becomes effective. 
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3. Rules and Regulations (cont’d) 

3.13 Payment Arrangements (cont’d) 

3.13.3 Payment will be due upon receipt. Interest may be applied in accordance 
with Company-standard credit policy to any unpaid amount commencing 
thirty (30) days after the statement date. 

3.13.4 If a Customer accumulates more that $500.00 of unpaid or disputed Toll 
Free service charges, the Company Resp Org reserves the right not to 
honor that Customer’s request for a Resp Org change until such dispute 
is resolved or undisputed charges are paid in full. 

3.13.5 In the event the Company incurs fees or expenses, including attorney’s 
fees in collecting or attempting to collect any charges owed the 
Company, the Customer will be liable to the Company for the payment 
of all such fees and expenses reasonably incurred. 

3.13.6 The Company’s bills are payable upon receipt, unless the Company 
indicates on the invoice or a billing insert that the sum shown as due 
need not be paid, because of the smallness of the amount, until the 
balance reaches some specified amount; or the Company may deal with 
Customers whose accounts show very small balances by withholding the 
issuance of an invoice until the amount due from the Customer reaches a 
level, which, in the Company’s sole discretion, is deemed large enough 
to justify initiating the billing and collection process; or the Company 
may invoice low usage Customers every other month unless a Customer 
invoiced in such a manner requests monthly billing. When a bill is 
issued, amounts not paid within thirty (30) days after the date of invoice 
will be considered past due. If the Company becomes concerned at any 
time about the ability of a Customer to pay its bills, the Company, in its 
sole discretion, may require that such a Customer pay its bills within a 
specified number of days and to make such payments in cash or the 
equivalent of cash. 
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3. Rules and Regulations (cont’d) 

3.13 Payment Arrangements (cont’d) 

3.13.7 Applicants for service or existing Customers whose financial condition is 
not acceptable to the Company, or is not a matter of general knowledge, 
may be required at any time to provide the Company a security deposit 
as a condition of service. The deposit requested will be in cash or the 
equivalent of cash, up to an amount equal to the applicable installation 
charges, if any, and/or up to one month’s actual or estimated usage 
charges for service to be provided. Any applicant or Customer may also 
be required, at any time, whether before or after the commencement of 
service, to provide such other assurances of, or security for, the payment 
of the Company’s charges for services to be provided as the Company 
deems necessary including, without limitation, advance payments for 
service, third party guarantees of payment, pledges, or other grants of 
security interest in the Customers’ assets, and similar arrangements. The 
required deposit or other security may be increased or decreased by the 
Company as it deems appropriate in light of changing conditions and 
Customers usage pattern. In addition, the Company shall be entitled to 
require such an applicant or Customer to pay all its bills within a 
specified period of time, and to make such payments in cash or the 
equivalent of cash. Simple interest at the rate of six percent (6%) 
annually will be paid for the period during which the deposit is held by 
the Company, unless a different rate has been established by the 
appropriate legal authority in the jurisdiction in which the Company 
service in question is provided. At the Company’s option, such deposit 
may be refunded to the Customer’s account at any time. The Company 
also reserves the right to cease accepting and processing service orders 
after it has requested a security deposit and prior to the Customer’s 
compliance with this request. 
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3. Rules and Regulations (cont’d) 

3.13 Payment Arrangements (cont’d) 

3.13.8 For the purpose of billing, the start of service date is the activation date. 
The end of service date is the last day of the minimum notification period 
as described in Section 3.1.1. 

3.13.9 If a Customer does not give the Company written notice of a dispute 
within sixty (60) days from the date the invoice was rendered, such 
invoice shall be deemed to be correct and binding on the Customer. 

3.13.10 The charges set forth in this tariff contemplate installations made in 
normal locations and under normal working conditions. Any 
installations to be made under other circumstances are subject to 
additional charges. 

3.13.11 Promotional and other credits offered by the Company in the marketing 
of its service cannot be assigned, but must be used by the person to 
whom they were offered and who earned them in strict accordance with 
the terms of the offers. In the event that a customer has been awarded a 
promotional credit for subscribing to the Company and does not use the 
service within twelve (12) months following the date of the Customer’s 
service order, the Company may cancel the credit from the Customer’s 
account unless otherwise stated in the specific promotion. 

3.13.12 All charges for service are exclusive of applicable federal, state, local 
taxes, and tax-related surcharges. 
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3. Rules and Regulations (cont’d) 

3.13 Payment Arrangements (cont’d) 

3.13.13 If a Customer whose account has been closed has a credit balance 
showing, the Company will transfer the credit to another account of the 
Customer, if there is one, or will mail a check for the balance to the 
Customer if it believes it has a valid and current address. If the 
Company is not certain that it has a valid and current address, it will 
include a notice with the final invoice, which will be mailed to the 
Customer’s last known address, asking the Customer to verify the 
address so that it can make a refund, or it will write to the Customer at 
that address and request verification. Such verification can be made by 
calling a designated telephone number or by writing to a specified 
address. Upon receiving verification, a check for the balance will be 
mailed. If the final invoice or the notification letter is returned by the 
post office as undeliverable, or if no response is received within thirty 
(30) days of mailing, the Company as its option may begin applying a 
closed account maintenance charge of $2.50 per month in the second 
monthly billing period following the month in which the account was 
closed, and will continue to apply that charge until the Customer requests 
a refund in writing or the balance is exhausted. 

3.13.14 From time to time, the Company will grant credits against usage or 
recurring charges in an amount not to exceed $1000.00 per Customer or 
account, per monthly billing period, whenever the Company determine, 
in its sole discretion, that such a credit is warranted due to consideration 
or disputes involving the delivery of past service to the Customer or 
account receiving the credit. 

3.13.15 In lieu of the Customer receiving applicable volume discounts and/or 
promotional credits on a monthly invoice, the Company may, in its sole 
discretion, utilize other forms of payment. 
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3. Rules and Regulations (cont’d) 

3.13 Payment Arrangements (cont’d) 

3.13.16 In the event payment is made by check and the Customer’s check is not 
honored by the institution on which it was drawn, the Company will 
impose, and the Customer will be required to pay, a $15.00 fee, in 
addition to other tariff, legal, and equitable remedies available to the 
Company. 

3.13.17 If the Company disconnects a Customer’s service for non-payment of 
past due amounts, the Customer’s service will remain disconnected until 
such time as the Company receive payment for all past due amounts and 
confirms the availability of sufficient funds to satisfy the amount of 
payment. 

3.13.18 The liability of the Company for errors in billing that result in 
overpayment by the Customer shall be limited to a credit equal to the 
dollar amount erroneously billed. 
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INTEREXCHANGE SERVICES TARIFF 

3. Rules and Remlations (cont’d) 

3.13 Payment Arrangements (cont’d) 

3.13.19 A surcharge will be imposed on all Customer’s charges for outbound 
service originating at, or inbound service terminating at, addresses in 
states which levy, or assert a claim of right to levy: a) 
tax on the Company’s operations in any such state; or b) a tax on 
interstate access charges incurred by the Company for access to 
telephone exchanges in that state; or c) an ad valorem tax on the 
Company’s interstate property located in that state. This surcharge is 
based, respectively, on the Company’s: a)gross receipts or revenues in 
that state; and/or, b) payment of interstate access charges in that state; 
andor, c) property located in that state and used by the Company to 
provide interstate service. The surcharge for (c) is derived by using the 
ratio of interstate revenue in that state to total revenue, multiplied by 
total ad valorem taxes imposed during the current calendar year and are 
listed below. The surcharge will be shown as a separate line item on the 
Customer’s invoice. 

gross receipts 
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3. Rules and Regulations (cont’d) 

3.14 Special Access Surcharge (cont’d) 

3.14.1 A monthly special access surcharge, required by the Local Exchange 
Carrier (LEC), applies to each local channel termination associated with 
Channel Service and Foreign Exchange Service Capability. This 
monthly surcharge is applicable when the local channel is connected to a 
PBX or equivalent device which is capable of interconnecting the 
Channel Service or Foreign Exchange Service Capability with local 
exchange service. When analog or digital high capacity facilities 
interconnect with the local exchange network, the special access 
surcharge is applied on a per voice grade equivalent circuit basis as 
shown in the following example: 

Basic Digital Voice Grade Monthly 
Facility Equivalent Surcharge 

Per Circuit 
- $300.00 

Circuits X $25 
Group 12 X $25 - 
DS 1 24 X $25 - - $600.00 

3.14.2 The special access surcharge applies on each local channel termination 
installed whether the interconnection capability exists in the Customer’s 
premise equipment or in  a Centrex CO type switch. 

3.14.3 The Customer may be exempt from the monthly special access surcharge 
if 

(a) The Customer certifies in writing that the local channel 
terminated is a device not capable of interconnecting the service 
with the local exchange network; or 

(b) The Customer certifies that the local channel termination, by 
nature of its operating characteristics, could not make use of 
LEC common lines; or 

(c) The Customer certifies that the local channel is connected to a 
LECs switched access service that is subject to carrier line 
charges. 
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3.14 Special Access Surcharge 

3.14.4 The certification will be in the form of a written notification to the 
Company. The notification may be provided: 

(a) At the time the service is ordered; 

(b) At such time as the service is re-terminated to a device not 
capable of interconnecting to the local exchange network; or 

(c) At such time as the local channel becomes associated with a 
switched access service that is subject to carrier common line 
charges. 

3.14.5 If a written certification is not received at the time an order for new 
service is placed, the special access surcharge will be applied. The 
Company will cease billing the special access surcharge and the exempt 
status will become effective on the date the certification is received by 
the Company on services in place. If the Company charged the 
Customer prior to the receipt of the exemption certification, the 
Company will credit the Customer’s account, not to exceed ninety (90) 
days, based on the effective date of the change specified by the Customer 
in the letter of certification. 

3.15 Gross Receipts and Other Taxes 

A surcharge will be imposed on all charges for outbound service originating at, 
or inbound service terminating at, addresses in states which levy, or assert as 
claim if right to levy, a gross receipts tax on the Company’s operations in any 
such state, or a tax on interstate access charges incurred by the Company for 
originating access to telephone exchanges in that state. This surcharge is based 
on the particular state’s receipts tax and other states receipts taxes imposed 
directly or indirectly upon the Company by virtue of and measured by the gross 
receipts or revenues in that state and/or payment of interstate access charges in 
that state. The surcharges will be shown as a separate line item on the 
Customer’s notice. 
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3.16 Telecommunications Service Priority Provisioning and Restoration of Service 

The provisioning and restoration of service in emergencies shall be in accordance 
with Part 64, Subpart D, Appendix A of the Federal Communications 
Commission’s Rules and Regulations which specifies the prioritization for such 
activities. 

3.17 Inspection 

The Company may, upon reasonable notice, make such tests and inspections, as 
may be necessary to determine that the requirements of this tariff are being 
complied with in the installation, operation, or maintenance of the Customer’s 
service. The Company may interrupt the type service at any time, without 
penalty to the Company, because of departure from any of these requirements. 
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3.18 Cancellation for Cause by the ComDanv (See Section 3.3 for cancellation by 
customer) 

3.18.1 The Company may discontinue the furnishing of any andor all service(s) 
to a Customer, without incurring any liability, immediately and without 
notice if the Company deems, in its sole discretion, that such action is 
necessary to prevent or to protect against fraud or to otherwise protect its 
personnel, agents, facilities or services. The Company may discontinue 
service pursuant to this subsection if 

(a) The Customer refuses to furnish information to the Company 
regarding the Customer’s creditworthiness, its past or current use 
of common carrier services, or its planned use of service(s); 

(b) The Customer provided false information for the Company 
regarding the Customer’s identity, address, creditworthiness, 
past or current use of common carrier communications services, 
or its planned use of Company service(s); 

(c) The Customer states that it will not comply with a request by the 
Company for security for the payment for service(s) in 
accordance with Section 3.13.7 above or either the Customer has 
been given written notice by the Company of any past due 
amount (which remains unpaid in whole or in part) for any of the 
Company’s services to which the Customer subscribes or had 
subscribed or used: 

(d) The Customer either a) accesses the Company service by dialing 
the Company’s Carrier Identification Code (CIC), or b) having 
presubscribed to the Company’s service has had its account(s) 
canceled and has been removed from the Company’s billing 
system and is being billed for its subsequent use of the 
Company’s network by the local exchange carrier, and either 
refuses to pay when billed for the Company service(s) or 
indicates to the Company or its billing agent that it  will not pay 
for Company service(s) used by it; or 

ISSUED: May 18, 1999 EFFECTIVE: May 18, 1999 

Douglas W. Kinkoph, Vice President 
NEXTLINK Long Distance Services, Inc. 

Two Easton Oval 
Columbus, OH 43219 



NEXTLINK Long Distance Services, Inc. Florida Tariff No. 1 
Original Page 46 

INTEREXCHANGE SERVICES TARIFF 

3. Rules and Regulations (cont’d) 

3.18 Cancellation for Cause by the Company (cont’d) 

3.18.1 (cont’d) 

(e) A subscriber to the Company who accesses the service by use of 
an authorization code has not used the service (with the 
exception of calls to Directory Assistance) for ninety (90) days; 

(f) Upon written notice to the Customer’s billing address or notice 
to the Customer who is a subscriber to the Company’s Calling 
Card service who has not used the service (with the exception of 
calls to Directory Assistance) for one-hundred eighty (180) days. 
In such case, the Company may deactivate the Customer’s card 
to reduce the risk of unauthorized use. If the Customer wishes to 
renew usage of the service (e.g. upon returning from a vacation 
home), the Company will promptly supply a new card; 

(g) The Customer uses service to transmit a message, locate a person 
or otherwise give or obtain information without payment for the 
service: 

(h) The Customer uses, or attempts to use, service with the intent to 
avoid the payment, either in whole or in part, of the tariff charges 
for the service: 

(1) Using or attempting to use service by rearranging, 
tampering with, or making connections to the 
Company’s service not authorized by this tariff; 

( 2 )  Using tricks, schemes, false or invalid numbers, false 
credit devices, electronic devices, or any other fraudulent 
means or devices. 
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3.18 Cancellation for Cause by the Company (cont’d) 

3.18.2 Upon written notice to the Customer of any sum thirty (30) days past 
due, the Company may immediately cancel service pursuant to this 
section: or 

3.18.3 Immediately upon written notice to the Customer, after failure of the 
Customer to comply with a request by the Company for security for the 
payment of service in accordance with Section 3.13.7 above for five ( 5 )  
days after sending the Customer written notice of noncompliance with 
any provision of this tariff if the noncompliance is not corrected within 
that five ( 5 )  day period, the Company may immediately cancel service 
pursuant to this section; or 

3.18.4 The Company may, without notice, cancel service pursuant to this 
section without notice, if the Customer’s account has shown no usage for 
six (6) consecutive months; 

3.18.5 The discontinuance of service(s) by the Company pursuant to this 
Section does not relieve the Customer of any obligation to pay the 
Company for charges, dues and owings for service(s) furnished up to the 
time of discontinuance. In the event the Company cancels the Customers 
service for cause, and the Customer is committed to a term or other plan 
for which charges apply the Customer will be obligated to pay, as 
though it had terminated service early for its own convenience. 
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3.19 Testing and Adiusting 

Upon reasonable notice, the service provided by the Company shall be made 
available to the Company for such tests and adjustments as the Company deems 
necessary to maintain it in satisfactory condition. 

3.20 Terminal Equipment 

3.20.1 Terminal equipment, such as teleprinters, handsets, or data sets at the 
premises of the Customer and between such premises and the Company 
terminals, shall be furnished by and maintained at the expense of the 
Customer, except as otherwise provided. 

3.20.2 The characteristics of equipment at either end of the channel shall be 
such that its connection to the channel complies with the minimum 
protection criteria set forth below, and does not interfere with services 
furnished to other Customers. Additional protective equipment, where 
required, shall be provided and maintained at the Customer’s expense. 
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3.20 Terminal Equipment (cont’d) 

3.20.3 When services using local exchange carrier voice grade facilities are 
terminated in Customer-provided terminal equipment, channel derivation 
devices, or communications systems, the Customer shall comply with the 
minimum protective criteria set forth below. 

3.20.3.1When the facilities furnished under this tariff are used in 
common with local exchange carrier services, it is necessary, in 
order to prevent excessive noise and crosstalk, that the power of 
the signal applied to local exchange lines be limited. A single 
valued limit for all applications cannot be specified. Therefore, 
the power of the signal in the band above 300 Hertz which may 
be applied by the Customer-provided equipment at the point of 
termination will be specified by the Company for each 
application. 

3.20.3.2To protect the telecommunications services from interference at 
frequencies which are above the band of service provided, the 
Company will specify the acceptable signal power in the 
following bands to be applied by the Customer-provided 
equipment or communications systems at the point of 
termination to insure that the input to local exchange carrier 
facilities does not exceed the limits indicated: 

(a) The power in the band from 3995 Hertz to 4005 Hertz 
shall be at least 18 dB below the power of the signal as 
specified in Section 3.20.4 

(b) The power in the band from 4000 Hertz to 10,000 Hertz 
shall not exceed 16 dB below one milliwatt. 

(c) The power in the band from 10,000 Hertz to 25,000 
Hertz shall not exceed 24 dB below one milliwatt. 

(d) The power in the band from 25,000 Hertz to 40,000 
Hertz shall not exceed 36 dB below one milliwatt. 

(e) The power in the band above 40,000 Hertz shall not 
exceed 50 dB below one milliwatt. 
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3.20 Terminal Equipment (cont’d) 

3.20.4 Where in connection via Customer-provided terminal equipment or 
communications systems to a Message Telecommunications Service or a 
WATS service, to prevent the interruption or disconnection of a call, or 
interference with network control signaling, it is necessary that the signal 
applied by the Customer-provided equipment to the interface at no time 
have energy solely in the 2450 Hertz to 2750 Hertz. If signal is in the 
2450 to 2750 Hertz, it must not exceed the power present at the same 
time in the 800 to 2450 Hertz Band. 

3.20.5 Where such Customer-provided equipment or communications systems 
applies signals having components in the spectrum 300 Hertz, excluding 
ringing signals, the currents and voltages (including all harmonics and 
spurious) at the interface shall not exceed the limits indicated in Sections 
3.20.5.1 through 3.20.5.4 following: 

3.20.5. lThe maximum rms. (root-means-square) value, including DC 
and AC components, of the current per conductor will not 
exceed .035 ampere. 

3.20.5.2The magnitude of the peak of the conductor or ground voltage 
shall not exceed 70 volts. 

3.20.5.3The conductor voltage shall be such that the conductor ground 
voltage limit in .10 proceeding is not exceeded. If the signal 
source is not grounded, the voltage limit in .0342 preceding 
applies to the conductor to conductor voltage. 
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3.20 Terminal Equipment (cont’d) 

3.20.5 (cont’d) 

3.20.5.4The total weighted rms. Voltage within the band from 50 Hertz 
to 300 Hertz shall not exceed 100 volts. The total weight rms. Is 
the square root of the sum of the products times the square of the 
rms. Voltage of the individual frequency components. 

3.20.5.5The weighting factors are as indicated: 

For Frequencies Between Weight Factor 
50 Hertz and 100 Hertz 
100 Hertz and 300 Hertz 

f 2/104 
f33/ 106.6 

3.20.5.6The Customer is responsible for all costs, which may include the 
expenses of Customer personnel, electrical power, etc. at the 
Customer’s premises in the provision of the service described 
herein. 
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3.21 Svstems Security (cont’d) 

3.21.1 Where Customers are permitted access to the Company’s computer 
systems and date for the purpose of managing and maintaining their 
telecommunications services, they will comply with the following: 

(a) Customers may access the Company’s systems only to the extent 
required by an incident to administer and manage the Customer’s 
telecommunications systems. 

(b) Customers may not disclose or use information which may be 
learned as a consequence of access to Company systems except 
as may be directly required to ensure the proper operations of the 
Customer’s telecommunications systems. Customers must take 
all reasonable precautions to prevent any other person or entity 
who does not have a need to know from acquiring such 
information. 

(c) Customers shall not in any manner or form disclose, provide, or 
otherwise make available, in whole or in part, Company 
documentation, any related material or any other confidential 
material except to those who have a need to know incident to the 
use of Company services. All documentation shall remain the 
property of the Company and may not be copied, reproduced, or 
otherwise disseminated without the prior written permission of 
the Company. 

(d) Customers shall take all responsible precautions to maintain the 
confidentiality of all Company documents. Such precautions 
shall include the use of Personal Identifications Numbers (PINs) 
and passwords selected by and known only to the Customer’s 
individual authorized users. Company telephone numbers and 
dial-up access number(s) assigned to Customers by the 
Company, PINs, or any aspect of access and sign-on 
methodology shall not be posted or shared with others under any 
circumstances. Customers shall follow normal logoff procedures 
prior to leaving a terminal unattended. Customers should report 
any known or suspected attempt by others to gain unauthorized 
access. 
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3.21 Systems Security 

3.21.2 In the event that a security access device assigned to a Customer for dial- 
up access is lost, stolen, or misplaced, the Customer must notify the 
Company immediately. Access to information beyond that authorized 
may result in civil and/or criminal penalties. 

3.22 Allowance for Interruptions 

3.22.1 Except as provided for in Section 3.5 above, which pertain to Directory 
Assistance, the following credit allowances for interruptions of Company 
services will be made: 

(a) Except as provided, for elsewhere in this tariff, credit 
allowances will be made for interruptions associated with those 
Company services for which charges are specified on the basis of 
per minute of use, or on usage of a fraction of a minute, and in 
which there may be interruption of an individual call, due to a 
condition in the Company’s shared interexchange facilities or in 
shared access or termination facilities provided by other carriers, 
where the interruption can be remedied by redialing the calls. A 
credit allowance will be made for that portion of a call which is 
interrupted due to poor transmission (e.g. noisy circuit) quality, 
one-way transmission (one party is unable to hear the other) or 
involuntary disconnection caused by deficiencies in the 
Company’s service. A Customer may also be granted credit for 
reaching a wrong number. To receive a credit, the Customer 
must notify a Company Customer Service Representative and 
furnish information, including the called number, the service 
subscribed to, the difficulty experienced, and the approximate 
time the call was placed, Credit allowances will not be made for 
a) interruptions not reported to the Company within twenty-four 
(24) hours, orb) interruptions that are due to the failure of 
power, equipment, systems, or services not provided by the 
Company. If the Customer elects to use another means of 
communications after one of the above interruptions, or during a 
period when he or she is unable to place a call over the 
Company, the Customer must pay the charges for the alternative 
service used. 
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3.22 Allowance for Interruptions (cont’d) 

3.22.1 (cont’d) 

(b) An interruption period begins when the Customer reports to the 
Company that the service has been interrupted and releases it for 
testing and repair. An interruption period ends when the service 
is operative again. If the Customer reports the service to be 
inoperative but declines to release it for testing and repairs, the 
service is deemed to be impaired, but not interrupted. The 
Company may deny a Customer’s request for credit where 
notification of alleged inferior, or inadequate service has not 
been received by the Company’s Customer Service Department 
within twenty-four (24) hours of the occurrence. Credit will be 
allowed only for disabled portions of the service. 
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3.22 Allowance for Interruptions (cont’d) 

3.22.1 (cont’d) 

(c) Where a call has been disconnected, the Customer will be given 
a credit allowance equivalent to the charge for the initial minute 
of the call made to reestablish communications with the other 
party. Where a call has been interrupted by poor transmission or 
one-way transmission, the Customer will be given a credit 
allowance equivalent to the charge for the initial minute of a call 
made to continue communicating with the other party to the 
interrupted call. A Customer who has reached a wrong number 
will be given a credit allowance to the charge for the initial 
minute of the wrong number if he or she reports the situation, 
within twenty-four (24) hours to a Company Customer Service 
Representative. 

(d) For all of the Company’s services which involve dedicated 
access, dedicated interexchange transmission and/or dedicated 
termination, for which monthly recurring charges are applied, 
which are interrupted for more than an individual call and cannot 
be remedied by redialing the call except as provided in Section 
3.24 below, the Customer will be given a credit allowance for an 
interruption of two consecutive hours or more, in accordance 
with the following: 
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3.23 Outage Credit 

3.23.1 For the purpose of this tariff, all months contain thirty (30) days. 
Services offered by the Company are on a twenty-four (24) hours per 
day, seven (7) days per week basis unless specifically stated otherwise. 

3.23.2 For purposes of credit computations, every month shall be considered to 
have seven hundred twenty (720) hours. 

3.23.3 The Customer shall be credited for an interruption of service on a 
prorated basis for the facilities affected for each period of two (2) hours 
or additional major fraction thereof. The prorated credit will be based on 
the monthly recurring charge of the affected Company circuit(s). 

3.23.4 No credit allowance will be made for: 

a) Interruptions by the negligence of the Customer or others 
authorized by the Customer to use the Customer’s service. 

b) Interruptions due to the failure of power, equipment, systems, or 
service not provided by the Company. 

c) Interruptions during any period during which the Company or its 
agents are not afforded access to the premises where access lines 
are associated with the Customer’s service are terminated. 

d) Interruptions during any period when the Customer or user has 
released the service to the Company for maintenance or 
rearrangement purpose, or for the installation of a Customer 
order. 

e) Interruptions during the period when the Customer elects not to 
release the service for testing or repair and continues to use it on 
an impaired basis. 

f) Non-completion of calls due to network busy conditions or 
interruptions not reported to the Company. 
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3.24 Interconnection with Other Carriers 

3.24.1 Service furnished by the Company may be connected with services or 
facilities of another participating carrier. Such interconnection may be 
made at a Company terminal or entrance site, at a terminal of another 
participating carrier, or at the premises of a Customer, joint user, or 
authorized user. Service furnished by the Company is not part of a joint 
undertaking with other such carriers. 

3.24.2 Any special interface equipment or facilities necessary to achieve 
compatibility between the facilities of the Company and other 
participating carriers shall be provided at the Customer’s expense. Upon 
Customer request and acting as the Customer’s authorized agent, the 
Company, in its discretion, may attempt to make the necessary 
arrangements for such interconnections. 

3.24.3 Service furnished by the Company may be connected with our facilities 
or services of other participating carriers under the terms and conditions 
of the other participating carriers’ tariffs applicable to such connections. 
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3.25 Special Construction 

Subject to the arrangement of the Company and to all of the regulations 
contained in this tariff, special construction of facilities may be undertaken on a 
reasonable effort basis at the request of the Customer. Special construction is 
that construction undertaken that: 

(a) where facilities are not presently available, and there is no other 
requirement for the facilities so constructed; 

(b) of a type other than that which the Company would normally utilize in 
the furnishing of its services; 

(c) over a route other than that which the Company would normally utilize 
in the furnishing of its services; 

(d) in a quantity greater than that which the Company would normally 
construct ; 

(e) on an expedited basis; 

(f) on a temporary basis until permanent facilities are available; 

(6) involving abnormal costs; or 

(h) in advance of its normal construction. 
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3.26 Third Party Marketing Promotion 

3.26.1 The Company may from time to time enter into agreements with third 
parties to market Company services. These promotions will be approved 
by the Florida Public Services Commission with specific starting and 
ending dates. Subsequent to entering into such agreements, the 
Company may pay commission to the third party marketing entity for 
qualifying monthly usage revenues generated by the Company 
Customers to whom the third party has marketed Company service(s). 
The actual level of commissions to be paid will be dependent on the 
nature and extent of activities engaged in by the third party on the 
Company’s behalf, including, without limitation, initial sales efforts, 
order coordination and processing, customer service, service problem 
determination and resolution, billing coordination, billing dispute 
resolution, and the collection or guarantee of collection of the amounts 
billed to the Company Customers enrolled by the third party. The 
commission payments may be remitted by the third party, in whole or in 
part, and in its sole discretion, to Customers to whom it has marketed 
Company service(s). 

3.26.2 Within a Third Party Marketing Promotion, the Company may waive its 
portion of installation charges on voice and data basic digital service and 
switched services until such time as the Customers DAL services is 
installed and made available. 

3.27 Dedicated Service 

3.27.1 Upon request and signing up for one of the Company’s dedicated access 
line services (DAL), the DAL Customer will have the option of utilizing 
one of the Company’s switched services until such time as the 
Customer’s DAL service is installed and made available. 

3.27.2 The Company will then credit the Customer the difference between the 
switched product rates and the applicable DAL rates after the DAL 
service is installed and in billing. The credit would only be for the 
period beginning with the first date the Customer is willing to accept 
installation of the DAL and the actual date the DAL is installed. The 
credit will be given on the Customer’s second month’s DAL bill received 
from the Company. 
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3.28 Schools and Libraries Discount Program 

3.28.1 General 

The Schools and Libraries Discount Program permits eligible schools 
(public and private, grades Kindergarten through 12) and libraries to 
purchase the Company services offered in this tariff at a discounted rate, 
in accordance with the Rules adopted by the Federal Communications 
Commission (FCC) in its Universal Service Order 97-157, issued May 8, 
1997. The Rules are codified at 37 Code of Federal Regulation (C.F.R.) 
54.500 et. seq. 

As indicated in the Rules, the discounts will be between 20 and 90 
percent of the pre-discount price, which is the price of services to schools 
and libraries prior to application of a discount. The level of discount will 
be based on an eligible school or library’s level of economic 
disadvantage and by its location in either an urban or rural area. A 
school’s level of economic disadvantage will be determined by the 
percentage of its students eligible for participation in the national school 
lunch program, and a library’s level of economic disadvantage will be 
calculated on the basis of school lunch eligibility in the public school 
district in which the library is located. A non-public school may use 
either eligibility for the national school lunch program or other federally 
approved alternative measures to determine its level of economic 
disadvantage. To be eligible for the discount, schools and .libraries will 
be required to comply with the terms and conditions set forth in the 
Rules. Discounts are available only to the extent that they are funded by 
the federal universal service fund. Schools and libraries may aggregate 
demand with other eligible entities to create a consortium. 
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3. Rules and Regulations (cont’d) 

3.28 Schools and Libraries Discount Program (cont’d) 

3.28.2 Remlations 

Obligation of eligible schools and libraries: 

3.28.2.1Requests for service: 

(a) Schools and libraries and consortia shall participate in a 
competitive bidding process for all services eligible for 
discounts, in accordance with any state and local 
procurement rules. 

(b) Schools and libraries and consortia shall submit requests 
for services to the Schools and Libraries Corporation, as 
designated by the FCC, and follow established 
procedures. 

(c) Services requested will be used for educational purposes. 

(d) Services will not be sold, resold or transferred in 
consideration for money or any other thing of value. 

3.28.2.20bligations of the Company: 

(a) The Company will offer discounts to eligible schools 
and libraries on commercially available 
telecommunications services contained in this tariff. 

(b) The Company will offer services to eligible schools, 
libraries, and consortia at prices no higher than the 
lowest price it charges to similarly situated non- 
residential Customers for similar services (lowest 
corresponding price). 

(c) In competitive bidding situations, the Company may 
offer flexible pricing or rates other than in this tariff, 
where flexible pricing arrangements are allowed. 

ISSUED: May 18, 1999 EFFECTIVE: May 18, 1999 

Douglas W. Kinkoph, Vice President 
NEXTLINK Long Distance Services, Inc. 

Two Easton Oval 
Columbus, OH 43219 



NEXTLINK Long Distance Services, Inc. Florida Tariff No. 1 
Original Page 62 

INTEREXCHANGE SERVICES TARIFF 

3. Rules and Regulations (cont'd) 

3.28 Schools and Libraries Discount Program (cont'd) 

3.28.3 Discounted Rates for Schools and Libraries 

3.28.3.lDiscounts for eligible schools and libraries and consortia shall be 
set as a percentage from the pre-discount price, which is the 
price of services to schools and libraries prior to the application 
of a discount. 

3.28.3.2The discount rate will be applied to all commercially available 
telecommunications services purchased by eligible schools, 
libraries or consortia. 

3.28.3.3The discount rate is based on each school or library's level of 
economic disadvantage as determined in accordance with the 
FCC Order or other federally approved alternative measures (as 
permitted by the Rules) and by its location in either urban or 
rural area. 

3.28.3.4The discount matrix for eligible schools, libraries, and consortia 
can be found below in Section 3.28.4 of this tariff. 

3.28.4 Schools and Libraries Discount Matrix 

% Of Students Eligible For % Of us Urban Rural 
National School Lunch Program Schools Discount Discount 

<1% 
1% - 19% 
20% - 34% 
35% - 49% 
50% - 74% 
75% - 100% 

3% 20% 25 % 
31% 40% 50% 
19% 50% 60 % 
15% 60% 70% 
16% 80% 80% 
16% 90% 90% 

_ _ _ ~  
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4. Domestic Services 

4.1 I+  Outbound 

4.1.1 Switched Access 

Switched access service is available to Customers for their use in 
furnishing their services to end users, provides a two-point 
communications path between a Customer’s premises and an end user’s 
premises. It provides for the use of common terminating, switching and 
transport facilities. Switched access service provides the ability to 
originate calls from an end user’s premises location to an end user’s 
premises. 

Rates and charges are will be provided at a later date. 

4.2 Toll Free Service 

4.2.1 Switched Access 
4.2.2 Dedicated Access 

4.3 Saved for future use 

ISSUED: May 18, 1999 EFFECTIVE: May 18, 1999 

Douglas W. Kinkoph, Vice President 
NEXTLINK Long Distance Services, Inc. 

Two Easton Oval 
Columbus, OH 43219 



NEXTLINK Long Distance Services, Inc. Florida Tariff No. 1 
Original Page 64 

INTEREXCHANGE SERVICES TARIFF 

4. Domestic Services (cont’d) 

4.4 Prepaid Calling Card 

Prepaid Cards allow customers to acquire cards that are used to originate 
outbound direct dial calls via NEXTLINK toll-free numbers. Prepaid cards are 
available in various dollar denominations at the per minute rates set forth below. 
To use the card, callers must dial an access number. When the call is 
acknowledged, the caller then enters the PIN. At this point, the caller is notified 
of the dollar value remaining on the card. The caller then enters the telephone 
number to be called. 

NEXTLINK will offer consumers the ability to purchase its prepaid cards in 
various dollar denominations. Each prepaid card will remain active until such 
time as the charges (as set forth below) equal the dollar value of the prepaid card 
purchased by the end-use or until the card expires (as set forth below). 

4.4.1 Rate Per Minute Use: 

The following per minute of use rates will apply in addition to the 
charges set forth in 4.4.2 through 4.4.3 below (as applicable). 

Option A Option B Option C 
Rate Per Minute of Use $0.039 $0.049 $0.079 

4.4.2 Per Call Surcharge: 

The following surcharge will be assessed on each call made (regardless 
of the length of the call or location from which the call is made) using a 
NEXTLINK prepaid card under Options A, B or C which originates in 
the contiguous United States and the following non-contiguous U S .  
regions; including Alaska, Hawaii, Puerto Rico, U.S. Virgin Islands, 
Guam, Northern Marianas and American Samoa. 

Option A Option B Option C 
Each Call $0.49 $0.49 $0.59 
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4. Domestic Services (cont’d) 

4.4 Prepaid Callinp Card (cont’d) 

4.4.3 Pavphone Surcharpe: 

The following surcharge will be assessed on each call made (regardless 
of the length of the call) from a payphone using a NEXTLINK prepaid 
card under Options A, B or C which originates in the contiguous United 
States and the following non-contiguous U S .  regions; including Alaska, 
Hawaii, Puerto Rico, U.S. Virgin Islands, Guam, Northern Marianas and 
American Samoa 

Option A Option B Option C 
Each Call $0.30 $0.30 $0.30 

4.4.4 Exuiration of Prepaid Cards 

NEXTLINK’s prepaid cards will expire on the date specified on the card 
or package in which the card is included. 

4.4.5 Directory Assistance 

A charge of $1.25 will be assessed for each call requesting Directory 
Assistance. 
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4. Domestic Services (cont’d) 

4.4 Prepaid Calling Card (cont’d) 

4.4.6 Conditions of Service 

A. Only the entity in whose name the original qualifying purchase was 
made shall be deemed to be the Customer. Related entities, such as 
affiliates and subsidiaries, spouses and relatives, shall not be treated 
as the customer. 

B. Calls to 500,700, 800, 877, 888, 900 and 950 numbers will not be 
completed using the NEXTLINK prepaid card. 

C. Neither NEXTLINK nor any of its authorized agents or contractors 
shall be liable or responsible for theft, loss or unauthorized use of 
any NEXTLINK prepaid cards or card numbers. NEXTLINK will 
not refund or issue credit for any unused value on any NEXTLINK 
prepaid card. 
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